
P.O. Box 640, 4511-46 Avenue, Fort Vermilion, AB  T0H 1N0 
P: (780) 927-3718 |Toll Free: 1-877-927-0677 | F: (780) 927-4266 

www.mackenziecounty.com | office@mackenziecounty.com 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
REGULAR COUNCIL 
MEETING AGENDA 

 
AUGUST 9, 2016 

 
10:00 A.M. 

 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
FORT VERMILION, AB 

 



STRATEGIC PRIORITIES CHART 
 

COUNCIL PRIORITIES (Council/CAO)  
 

NOW ADVOCACY 
1. FISCAL RESPONSIBILITY: Long term planning 
2. CITIZEN ENGAGEMENT: Ratepayers surveys 
3. DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS: Evaluation of 

infrastructure 
4. POTABLE WATER: Availability & Infrastructure 
5. INDUSTRY RETENTION AND ATTRACTION 
6. CAMPGROUNDS: Expansion 
7. LAND STEWARDSHIP COMMITTEE 
8. MUNICIPAL ROADS: Upgrading 
9. INTER-PROVINCIAL/ TERRITORIAL RELATIONS 
10. RECREATION CENTRES & ARENA UPGRADES 
11. EDUCATION STRATEGY: Environmental 

information for farmers 
12. INDUSTRY RELATIONS AND GROWTH: Value 

added 

  Provincial Government Relations 
 Transportation Development 
 Health Services 
 La Crete Postal Service 
 Land Use (Land Use Framework, 

conservation initiatives, agricultural land 
expansion) 

 
 
Codes: 
BOLD CAPITALS – Council NOW Priorities  
CAPITALS – Council NEXT Priorities 
Italics – Advocacy 
Regular Title Case – Operational Strategies 
* See Monthly Capital Projects Progress Report 

 

OPERATIONAL STRATEGIES (CAO/Staff) 
 

CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER (Joulia) 
1. INDUSTRY RETENTION AND ATTRACTION: 

meetings with local industries leaders 
2. INTER-PROVINCIAL/ TERRITORIAL 

RELATIONS: develop a plan for symposium to 
share information (CAO & Sustainability 
Committee) 

May  
 
May  

 Provincial Government Relations 
 Transportation Development 
 Health Services 
 La Crete Postal Service 
 

 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT (Joulia/Byron) AGRICULTURAL SERVICES (Grant) 
1. INDUSTRY RELATIONS AND GROWTH: 

Value added (review development 
incentives options) 

2. Tourism Strategy – SWOT analysis 
3. Land Use (Land Use Framework, conservation 

initiatives, agricultural land expansion) 
 Economic Development Action Plan 

Sept. 
 
 
Sept. 
August 
 
May 

1. EDUCATION STRATEGY: Environmental 
information for farmers 

2. Emergency Livestock Response Plan 
3. Agricultural Fair & Tradeshow 
 Easements for Existing Drainage Channels 

 
 
Oct. 
August 
August 

COMMUNITY SERVICES (Ron/Len) PUBLIC WORKS* (Ron/Len) 
1. CAMPGROUNDS: Expansion - Wadlin & 

Hutch Lake Plans 
2. RECREATION CENTRES & ARENA 

UPGRADES 
3. COR Certificate – External Audit Review 
 Construct dock expansion plan for 

campgrounds as per new design 
 

April 
 
July 
 
March 
May 

1. MUNICIPAL ROADS: Upgrading 
 Hamlet 5 Year Upgrading Plan – Review & 

Update 
 Engineering Services Procurement RFP 

July 
July 
 
Dec. 
 

PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT (Byron) LEGISLATIVE SERVICES (Carol) 
1. DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS: Evaluation 

of infrastructure - engage consultant 
2. LAND STEWARDSHIP COMMITTEE - fill 

positions 
3. Infrastructure Master Plans - complete 
 LC & FV Streetscape - finalize design 
 LC & FV Airports - infrastructure review, ph. 1 

April 
 
April 
 
April 
May 
April 

1. CITIZEN ENGAGEMENT: Ratepayers 
surveys 

2. Filing/Records Management Procedure 
3. By – Election (Ward 7) 
 SDAB Bylaw Review 
 Social Media Policy 

 
 
May 
May 
May 
June 

FINANCE (Mark) ENVIRONMENTAL (Fred) 
1. FISCAL RESPONSIBILITY: Long term 

planning 
2. Non-traditional municipal revenue stream – 

research options 
3. Multi-year capital plan 

Sept. 
 

1. POTABLE WATER: Availability & 
 Infrastructure 
2. Hamlet Easement Strategy 
 Establish Tactical Plan 
 Water Study Rocky Lane and High Level 

 
 
July 
 

 
Revised March 2016 



MACKENZIE COUNTY 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

 
Tuesday, August 9, 2016 

10:00 a.m. 
 

Fort Vermilion Council Chambers 
Fort Vermilion, Alberta 

 
AGENDA 

 
 

  Page 
CALL TO ORDER: 1. a) Call to Order 

 
 

 

AGENDA: 2. a) Adoption of Agenda 
 
 

 

ADOPTION OF 
PREVIOUS MINUTES: 

3. a) Minutes of the July 12, 2016 Regular Council  
  Meeting 
 
 

7 

DELEGATIONS: 4. a) Kevin Hunt, Wildfire Technologist - Alberta  
  Agriculture & Forestry (10:30 a.m.) 
 

b) Barb Spurgeon, Mackenzie Housing Management 
 Board (11:00 a.m.) 

 
 c) Gerhard Hirt – 9 Mile Road (11:30 a.m.) 
 
 

 

COUNCIL 
COMMITTEE 
REPORTS: 
 

5. a) Council Committee Reports (verbal) 
 
 b) Finance Committee Meeting Minutes 
 
 c) Tompkins Crossing Meeting Minutes 
 
 d) Agricultural Service Board Meeting Minutes 
 
 e) Municipal Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
 
 

 
 

19 
 

25 
 

29 
 

33 

GENERAL 
REPORTS: 
 

6. a) CAO Report 
 
 b)  
 
 

53 

TENDERS: 7. a) Removal of BF78103 and Construction of Range 67 



MACKENZIE COUNTY   PAGE 2 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 
August 9, 2016 
 
   Road 140A (2:00 p.m.) 

 
 b) Request for Proposal - Supply of New or Used  
  Plow/Sanding Gravel Truck (3:00 p.m.) 
 
 c) Tender - Supply and Construct Wooden Post  
  Frame Sand Shed (3:00 p.m.) 
 
 

 
 

69 
 
 

71 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 8. a) None 
 
 

 

ADMINISTRATION: 9. a) Seeking Input on Energy Efficiency and 
Community Energy in Alberta 

 
 b) Mighty Peace Watershed Working Alliance 

Groups 
 
 c) Mackenzie Housing Management Board Member 

Appointments 
 
 d) Boreal Housing Foundation – Draft Ministerial 

Order 
 
 e)  
 
 f)  
 
 

73 
 
 

93 
 
 

109 
 
 

113 

AGRICULTURE 
SERVICES: 

10. a) Policy ASB020 Wolf Depredation Management 
Policy 

 
 b)  
 
 c)  
 
 

119 

COMMUNITY 
SERVICES: 

11. a) Archeological Study Bridge Campground 
 
 b) Canada 150 Community Infrastructure Program 
 
 c) La Crete Arena – Ice Chiller Replacement Project 

– Additional Funding Request 
 
 d) Request to Waive Contracted Services Fee – 

Norbord Fire 
 
 e)  

127 
 

129 
 

131 
 
 

133 



MACKENZIE COUNTY   PAGE 3 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 
August 9, 2016 
 

 
 f)  
 
 

FINANCE: 12. a) Policy FIN023-Local Improvement Charge  
  Cancellation Policy 
 
 b) Policy ADM049 – Bursary Policy 
 
 c) Tax Recovery Auction – Sale of Land/Properties 
  By Public Auction 
 
 d) Financial Reports – January 1 to June 30, 2016 
 
 e)  
 
 f)  
 
 

137 
 

143 
 
 

155 
 
 

159 

OPERATIONS: 13. a) Third Access Request – NE 23 104 15 W5M 
 
 b) Supply of Winter Sand 
 
 c) Zama Water Sprinkler 
 
 d) Blue Hills Bridge Crossings 
 
 e) Supply of Water Truck & Operator for Windrow 

Burning Tests 
 
 f)  
 
 g)  
 
 

173 
 

177 
 

181 
 

185 
 

199 

PLANNING & 
DEVELOPMENT: 

14. a) Bylaw 1022-16 Service Road Closure 
 
 b) Bylaw 1044-16 Land Use Bylaw Amendment to 

Amend Bylaw 649/07 being a Road Closure for  
  NW 29-106-15-W5M (Plan 042 4702) 
  La Crete Rural) 
 
 c) Bylaw 718/09 Amending Bylaw 649/07 
 
 d) Policy DEV009 - Subdivision Affidavits Policy 
 
 e) La Crete SE Drainage Ditch 
 

203 
 

213 
 
 
 
 

223 
 

227 
 

231 
 



MACKENZIE COUNTY   PAGE 4 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 
August 9, 2016 
 

 f) Quality Investment Corporation – Road Widening 
 Reimbursement 

 
 g) Mackenzie County Land Use Bylaw Amendment 

 – Contract Awarding 
 
 h) Caribou (to be presented at the meeting) 
 
 i)  
 
 j)  
 
 

255 
 
 

261 

UTILITIES: 15. a) Rural Waterline Lateral (Danny Friesen) 
 
 b)  
 
 c)  
 
 

265 

INFORMATION / 
CORRESPONDENCE: 
 

16.  a) Information/Correspondence 
 
 

269 

IN CAMERA 
SESSION: 

17. a) Legal 
 
 b) Labour 

• AUPE Negotiations Update 
 
 c) Land 

• Option to Purchase Mackenzie County Lands 
(near High Level) 

 
 

 

NOTICE OF MOTION: 
 

18.  Notices of Motion 
 

 

NEXT MEETING 
DATES: 

19. a) Committee of the Whole Meeting 
  August 23, 2016 
  10:00 a.m. 
  Fort Vermilion Council Chambers 
 
 b) Regular Council Meeting 
  August 24, 2016 
  10:00 a.m.  
  Fort Vermilion Council Chambers 
 

 
 

ADJOURNMENT: 20. a) Adjournment  
 



Agenda Item # 3. a) 
 

Author: C. Simpson Reviewed by:  CAO: CG 
 

 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 
 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: August 9, 2016 

Presented By: Carol Gabriel, Interim Chief Administrative Officer 

Title:  Minutes of the July 12, 2016 Regular Council Meeting 

 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
Minutes of the July 12, 2016, Regular Council Meeting are attached. 
 
 
OPTIONS & BENEFITS: 
 
 
 
COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
 
 
 
SUSTAINABILITY PLAN: 
 
 
 
COMMUNICATION: 
 
Approved Council Meetings minutes are posted on the County website. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
 Simple Majority  Requires 2/3  Requires Unanimous 
 
That the minutes of the July 12, 2016, Regular Council Meeting be adopted as 
presented. 

7



 
________ 

________ 

MACKENZIE COUNTY 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

 
Tuesday, July 12, 2016 

10:00 a.m. 
 

Fort Vermilion Council Chambers 
Fort Vermilion, Alberta 

 
 

PRESENT: Bill Neufeld 
Jacquie Bateman 
Peter F. Braun 
Elmer Derksen 
John W. Driedger 
Eric Jorgensen 
Josh Knelsen 
Ray Toews 
Lisa Wardley 
 

Reeve 
Councillor 
Councillor 
Councillor 
Councillor 
Councillor 
Councillor 
Councillor 
Councillor 
 

REGRETS: 
 

Walter Sarapuk 
 

Deputy Reeve 
 

ADMINISTRATION: 
 

 

Ron Pelensky 
 
Len Racher 
Byron Peters 
Fred Wiebe 
Carol Gabriel 
 

Acting CAO/Director of Community Services 
& Operations 
Director of Facilities & Operations (South) 
Director of Planning and Development 
Director of Utilities 
Director of Legislative & Support 
Services/Recording Secretary 
 

ALSO PRESENT: Media 
Members of the Public 
 

Minutes of the Regular Council meeting for Mackenzie County held on July 12, 2016 in the 
Fort Vermilion Council Chambers. 
 
CALL TO ORDER:  1. a) Call to Order 

 
 Reeve Neufeld called the meeting to order at 10:01 a.m. 

 
AGENDA: 
 

2. a) Adoption of Agenda 
 

MOTION 16-07-521 MOVED by Councillor Jorgensen 
 
That the agenda be approved with the following additions: 
 4. a) Brenda Friesen, Ivy Lane Registry 

8



MACKENZIE COUNTY  Page 2 of 10 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
Tuesday, July 12, 2016 

________ 

________ 

 4. b) Ryan Konowalyk, Regional Director – Peace  
  Region, Alberta Transportation 
 9. e) Machesis Lake Horse Campground Grand Opening 
 
CARRIED 
 

ADOPTION OF 
PREVIOUS MINUTES: 
 

3. a) Minutes of the June 30, 2016, Regular Council 
 Meeting 
 

MOTION 16-07-522 MOVED by Councillor Toews 
 
That the minutes of the June 30, 2016 Regular Council Meeting 
be adopted as presented. 
 
CARRIED 
 

COUNCIL 
COMMITTEE 
REPORTS: 
 

5. a) Council Committee Reports  
 

MOTION 16-07-523 MOVED by Councillor Driedger 
 
That the Council Committee Reports be received for information. 
 
CARRIED 
 

 5. b) Municipal Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
 

MOTION 16-07-524 MOVED by Councillor Wardley 
 
That the approved minutes of the June 23, 2016 Municipal 
Planning Commission meeting and the unapproved minutes of 
the July 7, 2016 Municipal Planning Commission be received for 
information. 
 
CARRIED 
 

 5. c) Agricultural Service Board Meeting Minutes 
 

MOTION 16-07-525 MOVED by Councillor Toews 
 
That the unapproved minutes of the June 24, 2016 Agricultural 
Service Board be received for information. 
 
CARRIED 
 

GENERAL REPORTS: 6. a) CAO Report 

9



MACKENZIE COUNTY  Page 3 of 10 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
Tuesday, July 12, 2016 

________ 

________ 

  
MOTION 16-07-526 MOVED by Councillor Wardley 

 
That the County pursue purchasing the leased lands at the 
Wadlin Lake and Hutch Lake campgrounds. 
 
CARRIED 
 

MOTION 16-07-527 MOVED by Councillor Bateman 
 
That the completion of the CAO report be TABLED until following 
the delegations. 
 
CARRIED 
 

DELEGATIONS: 
 

4. a) Brenda Friesen, Ivy Lane Registry (ADDITION) 

MOTION 16-07-528 MOVED by Councillor Jorgensen 
 
That a letter be sent to Service Alberta and Alberta Justice 
identifying concerns regarding the exclusion for the Alberta 
Association of Registry Agents from the online portal and 
requesting that a fee model be put in place for an annual review 
of fees and the notification of renewal registration notices. 
 
CARRIED 
 

 Reeve Neufeld recessed the meeting at 11:22 a.m. and 
reconvened the meeting at 11:30 a.m. 
 

 4. b) Ryan Konowalyk, Regional Director - Peace Region, 
 Alberta Transportation (ADDITION) 
 

 9. d) Fox Lake Access Road 
 

MOTION 16-07-529 MOVED by Councillor Jorgensen 
 
That the County agree to the request from Alberta Transportation 
to create a municipal road allowance on the 14 km access from 
the Wentzel River to the Peace River crossing accessing Fox 
Lake and that the County not be responsible for capital, 
operational and maintenance costs; or liability for the public road 
way and the ferry/ice-bridge. 
 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

 Reeve Neufeld recessed the meeting at 12:07 p.m. and 

10



MACKENZIE COUNTY  Page 4 of 10 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
Tuesday, July 12, 2016 

________ 

________ 

reconvened the meeting at 12:58 p.m. 
 

GENERAL REPORTS: 
 

6. a) CAO Report 
 

MOTION 16-07-530 
Requires 2/3 

MOVED by Councillor Bateman 
 
That Mackenzie County implement a wolf bounty ($200 per wolf) 
effective immediately, in response to conserving the caribou in 
our region as a result of the issues identified at the caribou 
protection area stakeholder information session held July 11, 
2016, up to a maximum of $100,000 with funding coming from 
the General Operating Reserve. 
 
CARRIED 
 

MOTION 16-07-531 
Requires 2/3 

MOVED by Councillor Bateman 
 
That administration be authorized to engage a consultant(s) to 
prepare a caribou/industry protection strategy and that the 
budget be amended to include $300,000 with funding coming 
from the General Operating Reserve. 
 
CARRIED 
 

MOTION 16-07-532 MOVED by Councillor Bateman 
 
That the County requests that Alberta Forestry begin combating 
forest fires within the proposed caribou protection area within a 
48 hour period of spotting the fire in order to maintain the current 
caribou habitat. 
 
CARRIED 
 

MOTION 16-07-533 MOVED by Councillor Jorgensen 
 
That a letter be sent to the Standing Committee on Aboriginal 
Affairs and Northern Development notifying them of the caribou 
situation in the Mackenzie Region as a result of the Species at 
Risk Act (SARA) and the proposed caribou protection area. 
 
CARRIED 
 

MOTION 16-07-534 MOVED by Councillor Wardley 
 
That a letter be sent to MP Arnold Viersen, MP Chris Warkentin, 
and MP Bob Zimmer notifying them of the caribou situation in the 
Mackenzie Region as a result of Species at Risk Act (SARA) and 

11



MACKENZIE COUNTY  Page 5 of 10 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
Tuesday, July 12, 2016 

________ 

________ 

the proposed caribou protection area. 
 
CARRIED 
 

MOTION 16-07-535 MOVED by Councillor Braun 
 
That the Acting CAO and Directors reports for June, 2016 be 
received for information. 
 
CARRIED 
 

 Reeve Neufeld recessed the meeting at 2:03 p.m. and 
reconvened the meeting at 2:16 p.m. 
 

MOTION 16-07-536 MOVED by Councillor Jorgensen 
 
That a caribou protection area information session be held with 
elected officials from Mackenzie County, Town of High Level, 
Town of Rainbow Lake, and the local First Nations and the 
Paddle Prairie Metis Settlement on August 2, 2016 in High Level. 
 
CARRIED 
 

TENDERS: 
 

7. a) None 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 

8. a) None 
 

ADMINISTRATION: 
 

9. a) 2016 Ratepayers Meeting Minutes 
 

MOTION 16-07-537 MOVED by Councillor Toews 
 
That the draft 2016 ratepayers meeting minutes be accepted for 
information. 
 
CARRIED 
 

 9. b) AAMDC MGA Survey 
 

MOTION 16-07-538 MOVED by Councillor Wardley 
 
That administration submit the AAMDC MGA Survey as 
completed by Council. 
 
CARRIED 
 

 Reeve Neufeld recessed the meeting at 3:23 p.m. and 
reconvened the meeting at 3:30 p.m. 

12



MACKENZIE COUNTY  Page 6 of 10 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
Tuesday, July 12, 2016 

________ 

________ 

 
 9. c) Notice of Motion – MOTION 15-05-373 

 
 Councillor Knelsen declared himself in conflict of interest at 3:33 

p.m. and abstained from the discussion and the vote. 
 

MOTION 16-07-539 MOVED by Councillor Toews 
 
That the Notice of Motion – MOTION 15-05-373 be received for 
information. 
 
CARRIED 
 

 9. e) Machesis Lake Horse Campground Grand Opening 
 (ADDITION) 
 

MOTION 16-07-540 
Requires Unanimous 

MOVED by Councillor Bateman 
 
That the Community Services Committee members be 
authorized to attend the Machesis Lake Horse Campground 
Grand Opening on July 13, 2016. 
 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

AGRICULTURE 
SERVICES: 
 

10. a) None 
 

COMMUNITY 
SERVICES: 
 

11. a) Fort Vermilion Court House Building 
 

MOTION 16-07-541 MOVED by Councillor Jorgensen 
 
That the use of the old Fort Vermilion court house building be 
received for information. 
 
DEFEATED 
 

MOTION 16-07-542 MOVED by Councillor Wardley 
 
That administration works with local community groups to come 
forward with proposals of use for the old Provincial Court House 
building in Fort Vermilion. 
 
CARRIED 
 

FINANCE: 
 

12. a) Financial Reports – January 1 to May 31, 2016 
 

13



MACKENZIE COUNTY  Page 7 of 10 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
Tuesday, July 12, 2016 

________ 

________ 

MOTION 16-07-543 MOVED by Councillor Wardley 
 
That the financial reports for the period of January 1 – May 31, 
2016 be accepted for information. 
 
CARRIED 
 

OPERATIONS: 
 

13. a) None 
 

PLANNING & 
DEVELOPMENT: 
 

14. a) Community Advisory Committee –Streetscape Project 
 

MOTION 16-07-544 MOVED by Councillor Braun 
 
That the terms of reference for the Community Advisory 
Committee be revised as presented in order to transition into a 
Community Streetscape Implementation Committee.  
 
CARRIED 
 

UTILITIES: 
 

15. a) None 
 

INFORMATION: 
 

16. a) Information/Correspondence 
 

MOTION 16-07-545 
 

MOVED by Councillor Wardley 
 
That the information/correspondence items be accepted for 
information purposes. 
 
CARRIED 
 

 Councillor Derksen stepped out of the meeting at 4:02 p.m. 
 

MOTION 16-07-546 
 

MOVED by Councillor Wardley 
 
That a letter be sent to Alberta Environment and Parks 
requesting information regarding their efforts in the past year on 
the development of the Lower Peace Regional Plan. 
 
CARRIED 
 

 Reeve Neufeld recessed the meeting at 4:03 p.m. and 
reconvened the meeting at 4:14 p.m. with all members present. 
 

IN-CAMERA 
SESSION: 
 

17. In-Camera Session  

14



MACKENZIE COUNTY  Page 8 of 10 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
Tuesday, July 12, 2016 

________ 

________ 

MOTION 16-07-547 MOVED by Councillor Toews 
 
That Council move in-camera to discuss issues under the 
Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Regulations 18 
(1) at 4:14 p.m. 
 17. a) Legal 
 17. b) Labour 

• CAO Recruitment 
• Project Coordinator 
• AUPE Negotiations Update 

 17. c) Land 
• Gravel Land Purchase 
• Option to purchase Mackenzie County Lands 

(near High Level) 
 
CARRIED 
 

MOTION 16-07-548 MOVED by Councillor Jorgensen 
 
That Council move out of camera at 5:51 p.m. 
 
CARRIED 
 

 17. b) Labour – CAO Recruitment 
 

MOTION 16-07-549 MOVED by Councillor Braun 
 
That the CAO interviews be set up as discussed. 
 
CARRIED 
 

 17. b) Labour – Project Coordinator 
 

MOTION 16-07-550 MOVED by Councillor Driedger 
 
That the Reeve and Deputy Reeve be authorized to negotiate a 
projects coordinator position. 
 
CARRIED 
 

MOTION 16-07-551 MOVED by Councillor Braun 
 
That Carol Gabriel be appointed as the Interim CAO until the 
CAO recruitment has been completed. 
 
CARRIED 

15



MACKENZIE COUNTY  Page 9 of 10 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
Tuesday, July 12, 2016 

________ 

________ 

 
 17. b) Labour – AUPE Negotiations Update 

 
MOTION 16-07-552 MOVED by Councillor Toews 

 
That the AUPE negotiations proceed as discussed. 
 
CARRIED 
 

 17. c) Land – Gravel Land (Pit) Purchase 
 

MOTION 16-07-553 MOVED by Councillor Toews 
 
That the gravel land (pit) purchase be TABLED for more 
information. 
 
CARRIED 
 

 17. c) Land – Option to purchase Mackenzie County Land 
 (near High Level) 
 

MOTION 16-07-554 MOVED by Councillor Wardley 
 
That administration be authorized to enter into negotiations for 
the sale of lands located at NW ¼, Section 6-109-19-W5M and 
that administration proceed with the rezoning of the said lands. 
 
CARRIED 
 

MOTION 16-07-555 MOVED by Councillor Knelsen 
 
That a letter of support be provided to Ripple Rock Resources 
for grant application purposes. 
 
CARRIED 
 

NOTICE OF MOTION: 
 

18. a) None 

NEXT MEETING 
DATES: 
 

19. a) Regular Council Meeting 
  Tuesday, August 9, 2016 
  10:00 a.m. 
  Fort Vermilion Council Chambers 
 
 b) Committee of the Whole Meeting 
  Tuesday, August 23, 2016 
  10:00 a.m. 
  Fort Vermilion Council Chambers 

16



MACKENZIE COUNTY  Page 10 of 10 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
Tuesday, July 12, 2016 

________ 

________ 

 
 b) Regular Council Meeting 
  Wednesday, August 24, 2016 
  10:00 a.m. 
  Fort Vermilion Council Chambers 
 

ADJOURNMENT: 20. a) Adjournment 
 
 

MOTION 16-07-556 MOVED by Councillor Jorgensen 
 
That the council meeting be adjourned at 5:56 p.m. 
 
CARRIED 
 

These minutes will be presented to Council for approval on August 9, 2016. 
 
 
 
   
Bill Neufeld 
Reeve 

 Chief Administrative Officer 

 
 

17



18



Agenda Item # 5. b) 
 

Author: C. Robinson Reviewed by:  CAO: CG 
 

 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 
 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: August 9, 2016 

Presented By: Peng Tian, Director of Finance 

Title:  Finance Committee Meeting Minutes 

 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
The unapproved minutes of the July 11, 2016 Finance Committee meeting are attached. 
 
 
OPTIONS & BENEFITS: 
 
N/A 
 
 
COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
 
N/A 
 
 
SUSTAINABILITY PLAN: 
 
N/A 
 
 
COMMUNICATION: 
 
Finance Committee minutes are posted on Docushare. 
 

19



Author: C. Robinson Reviewed by:  CAO: CG 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
 Simple Majority  Requires 2/3  Requires Unanimous 
 
That the Finance Committee unapproved meeting minutes of July 11, 2016 be received 
for information. 

20



 

 

MACKENZIE COUNTY 
FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 

 
July 11, 2016 

1:05 p.m. 
 

Fort Vermilion Corporate Office 
Fort Vermilion, Alberta 

 
 

PRESENT: Jacquie Bateman 
Peter F. Braun 
Lisa Wardley  
Josh Knelsen 
Bill Neufeld 

Councillor 
Councillor 
Councillor 
Councillor 
Reeve, ex-officio 
 

ADMINISTRATION: 
 

 

Ron Pelensky 
Peng Tian  
Oxana Mamontova  
Carlee Robinson 

Chief Administrative Officer 
Director of Finance 
Finance Officer 
Finance Clerk/ Recording Secretary 
 

 
CALL TO ORDER:  1. a) Call to Order 

 
 Peter Braun, Chair called the meeting to order at 1:05 p.m. 

 
AGENDA: 2. a) Adoption of Agenda 

MOTION FC-16-05-99 MOVED by Bateman 
 
That the Agenda be approved as presented. 
 
CARRIED 
 

MINUTES FROM 
PREVIOUS MEETING: 

3. a) Minutes of the May 24, 2016 Finance Committee 
Meeting 
 

MOTION FC-16-05-100 MOVED by Councillor Wardley 
 
That the minutes of the May 24, 2016 Finance Committee 
meeting be approved as presented. 
 
CARRIED 

BUSINESS ARISING 
FROM PREVIOUS 
MINUTES: 
 

4. a) None 

DELEGATIONS: 5. a) None 

21



MACKENZIE COUNTY  Page 2 of 4 
FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 
July 11, 2016 
 

 

  
  
BUSINESS: 6. a)   Review Policy ADM049 – Bursaries 

 
MOTION FC-16-05-101 MOVED by Councillor Wardley 

 
That administration update Policy PW049 – Bursaries as 
discussed brings Policy ADM049 to the next Council meeting 
for approval. 
  
CARRIED 
 

 
 

6. b)   Bursaries - Request for Invoice Decision – Trisha 
Ward 
 

MOTION FC-16-05-102 MOVED by Councillor Knelsen 
 
That the invoice reversal request be approved as presented. 
 
MOVED 
 

 
 

6. c) Banking Proposal – Vision Credit Union  

MOTION FC-16-05-103 
 

MOVED by Councillor Bateman 
 
The Special Arrangement terms expressed in our current 
banking service provider ATB Financial’s proposal remain firm 
for a period of 3 years. The contents of this proposal are 
considered to be of a confidential matter between Mackenzie 
County and ATB Financial. Mackenzie County’s special 
agreement with ATB Financial is within the time period from 
December 2015 to December 2018. 
 
Prior to expiry of this arrangement, it is recommended that the 
request for proposal be issued and sent out to all major 
financial institutions with in the County. 
 
CARRIED 
 

 6. d) Quarterly Fuel Report 
 

MOTION FC-16-05-104 
 

MOVED by Wardley 
 
That the quarterly fuel usage report for quarter 1 of 2016 be 
accepted for information and that administration adds a dyed 
diesel column to the spreadsheet as discussed. 
 

22



MACKENZIE COUNTY  Page 3 of 4 
FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 
July 11, 2016 
 

 

CARRIED 
 

 6. e) MasterCard Statements (Handout) 

MOTION FC-16-05-105 
 

MOVED by Councillor Bateman 
 
That the MasterCard Statements for May 2016 and June 2016 
be received for information. 
 
CARRIED 
 

 6. f)    Cheque Lists (Handout) 
 

MOTION FC-16-05-106 MOVED by Councillor Bateman 
 
That the cheque lists for May 24 to July 11, 2016 be received 
for information. 
 
CARRIED 
 

 6. g) Councillors’ Honorariums and Expense Claims  
 

MOTION FC-16-05-107 
 
 
 
 

MOVED by Councillor Bateman 
 
That the Councillors’ Honorariums and Expense Claims for 
April 2016 be approved and May 2016 be adjusted as 
discussed. 
 
CARRIED 
 

IN CAMERA: 
 

7. a) None 
 

ADDITIONS TO 
AGENDA: 

8. a)   None 

NEXT MEETING  
DATE:  

9. a) September 14, 2016 at 1:00 p.m. 
           Fort Vermilion Corporate Office 
 

ADJOURNMENT:  
 

10. a) Adjournment 
 

MOTION FC-16-05-108 
 

MOVED by Councillor Knelsen 
 
That the Finance Committee meeting be adjourned at 2:22 
p.m. 
 
CARRIED 

 
 
 

23



MACKENZIE COUNTY  Page 4 of 4 
FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 
July 11, 2016 
 

 

These minutes were approved by the Finance Committee on_______________, 2016. 
 
 
(original signed)  (original signed) 
Peter Braun 
Chair, Councillor 

  
Chief Administrative Officer 

 

24



Agenda Item # 5. c) 
 

Author: S Wheeler Reviewed by:  CAO: CG 
 

 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 
 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: August 9, 2016 

Presented By: Len Racher, Director of Facilities & Operations (South) 

Title:  Tompkins Crossing Committee Meeting Minutes 

 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
The unapproved minutes of the July 8, 2016 meeting are attached. 
 
 
OPTIONS & BENEFITS: 
 
N/A 
 
 
COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
 
N/A 
 
 
SUSTAINABILITY PLAN: 
 
N/A 
 
 
COMMUNICATION: 
 
N/A 
 

25



Author: S. Wheeler Reviewed by:  CAO: CG 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
 Simple Majority  Requires 2/3  Requires Unanimous 
 
That the Tompkins Crossing Committee unapproved meeting minutes of July 8, 2016 be 
received for information. 
 

26



MACKENZIE COUNTY 
Tompkins Crossing Committee 

July 8, 2016  2:00 p.m. 
La Crete Conference Room 

 
________ 

________ 

 
 
 

PRESENT:   Bill Neufeld   Reeve 
Josh Knelsen  Councillor 
John W. Driedger  Councillor 
Peter Braun   Councillor 

 
ADMINISTRATION: Len Racher   Director of Facilities & Operations 
        (South) 
    Dave Fehr   Public Works Supervisor (South) 

Sylvia Wheeler Public Works Admin Officer / 
Recording Secretary 

Madison Dyck Public Works Admin Assistant 
    

 
CALL TO ORDER:  1. a) Call to Order 
     

Chair Knelsen called the meeting to order at 2:02 p.m. 
 

AGENDA:   2. a) Adoption of Agenda 
 
MOTION TC-16-07-007 MOVED by Councillor Braun 
 

That the agenda be adopted as presented. 
 
CARRIED 

 
MINUTES:   3. a) Adoption of Minutes from April 8, 2016 
 
MOTION TC-16-07-008 MOVED by Reeve Neufeld 
 

That the minutes from April 8, 2016 be adopted as presented. 
 
CARRIED 
 

NEW BUSINESS: 4. a) Draft Sub-Contract 
 
MOTION TC-16-07-009 MOVED by Councillor Braun 
  
    That Administration make additional revisions to Sub-Contract 
    and proceed with advertising the Invitation for Proposal. 
 

CARRIED 
 

 

27



MACKENZIE COUNTY  Page 2 of 2 
TOMPKINS CROSSING COMMITTEE MEETING 
Friday, July 8, 2016 
 
 

 
________ 

________ 

ADDITIONS:   5. a) None 
 
NEXT MEETING:  6. a) At the Call of the Chair 
 
MOTION TC-07-010 MOVED by Councillor Driedger 
 
    That the next Tompkins Crossing Committee meeting be  
    scheduled for August 25, 2016 at 10:00 am. 
 
    CARRIED 
 
ADJOURNMENT:  7. a) Adjournment 
 
MOTION TC-16-07-011 MOVED by Reeve Neufeld 
 
    That the meeting be adjourned at 3:08 p.m. 
 
    CARRIED 
 
These minutes were adopted at the _________________ meeting. 
 
 
 
 
_____________________      _____________________ 
Josh Knelsen, Chair      Len Racher, 
         Director of Facilities 
         & Operations (South) 

28



Agenda Item # 5. d) 
 

Author: C. Sarapuk Reviewed by:  CAO: CG 
 

 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 
 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: August 9, 2016 

Presented By: Grant Smith, Agricultural Fieldman 

Title:  Agricultural Service Board Meeting Minutes 

 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
The unapproved minutes of the July 28, 2016 Agricultural Service Board Meeting are 
attached. 
 
 
OPTIONS & BENEFITS: 
 
N/A 
 
COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
 
N/A 
 
SUSTAINABILITY PLAN: 
 
N/A 
 
COMMUNICATION: 
 
N/A 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
 Simple Majority  Requires 2/3  Requires Unanimous 
 
That the Agricultural Service Board unapproved meeting minutes of July 28, 2016 be 
received for information. 
 

29



 

  

 
MACKENZIE COUNTY 

AGRICULTURAL SERVICE BOARD MEETING 
 

Thursday July 28, 2016 
9:00 a.m. 

La Crete, AB 
 

PRESENT: Josh Knelsen 
Bill Neufeld 
Terry Batt 
Ernie Dyck 
Eric Jorgensen 
 

ASB Chair 
Reeve (left meeting at 10:40 a.m.) 
Member at Large 
Member at Large 
Council Representative 

REGRETS:  David Doerksen Member at Large 

ALSO 
PRESENT: 

Carol Gabriel  
Grant Smith 
Colleen Sarapuk 
 
Elmer Derksen 
Donny Roberts 
 
 

Acting Chief Administrative Officer  
Agricultural Fieldman 
Public Works Administrative Officer (Recording 
Secretary) 
Councillor 
Zama Site Manager 

 
Minutes of the Mackenzie County Agricultural Service Board meeting held on Thursday, July 28, 
2016. 
 

CALL TO ORDER:  1. a) Call to Order 
 
Chair Knelsen called the meeting to order at 9:01 a.m. 
 

AGENDA: 2. a) Adoption of Agenda 
 

MOTION ASB 16-07-066 
 
 

Moved by Bill Neufeld 
 
That the agenda be adopted with the item 7.b) switched with item e). 
 
CARRIED 
 

PREVIOUS MINUTES 
 
MOTION ASB 16-07-67 
 
 
 
 
 

3.a) Minutes of the June 24, 2016 ASB Minutes 
 
Moved by Terry Batt 
 
That the minutes of the June 24, 2016 ASB meeting be approved as 
amended. 
 
CARRIED 

30



 
MACKENZIE COUNTY           
AGRICULTURAL SERVICE BOARD MEETING 
July 28, 2016 
 
 

 
 

BUSINESS ARISING OUT 
OF THE PREVIOUS 
MINUTES 
MOTION ASB 16-07-68 
 

4.a) Agricultural Land Lease Concern 
 
 
Moved by Bill Neufeld 
 
That a letter be sent to the concerned ratepayer advising that the lease 
in question will remain status quo, and that the Agricultural Land Lease 
concern be received for information.  
 
CARRIED 
 
 

ACTION LIST 
 
MOTION ASB 16-07-69 
 

5.a) Action List 
 
Moved by Terry Batt 
 
That the action list be received as information.  
 
CARRIED 
 

 
 
MOTION ASB 16-07-70 
 
 
 

7.a) Fieldman Report  
 
Moved by Eric Jorgensen 
 
That the Fieldman Report be received for information. 
 
CARRIED 
 

 
 
MOTION ASB 16-07-71 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7.b) Wolf Bounty 
 
Moved by Terry Batt 
 
That the Draft Wolf Bounty Policy be brought to Council for approval as 
amended.  
 
CARRIED 
 
Meeting Recess 10:10 a.m. 
Meeting Reconvened 10:17 a.m. 
 

 
 
MOTION ASB 16-07-72 
 
 
 
 
 

7.c) Rosenberger Flood Control Repairs 
 
Moved by Bill Neufeld  
 
That administration secure funding from the Provincial Government to 
repair the Rosenberger Flood Control Channel.  
 
CARRIED 
 

31



 
MACKENZIE COUNTY           
AGRICULTURAL SERVICE BOARD MEETING 
July 28, 2016 
 
 

 
 

 
 
MOTION ASB 16-07-73 
 
 
 
 
 

7.d) Buffalo Head/Steephill Creek Repairs 
 
Moved by Bill Neufeld 
 
That the ASB Chair, Reeve, and Agricultural Fieldman meet with the 
affected landowners to discuss Easements, and bring back information 
to the next ASB meeting. 
 
CARRIED 
 

 
 
MOTION ASB 16-07-74 
 
 
 
 

7.e) Alberta Environment Concern (Bluehills)  
 
Moved by Terry Batt  
 
That the ASB Chair and Agricultural Fieldman meet with the concerned 
landowner to discuss issue further, and bring back information to the 
next ASB Meeting.  
 
CARRIED 
 

SET NEXT MEETING 
DATE 

9.a) Next Meeting Date 
 
Call of the Chair. 
 

ADJOURNMENT  
 
MOTION ASB 16-07-75 

9.a) Adjournment 
 
Moved by Eric Jorgensen  
 
That the ASB meeting be adjourned at 10:55 p.m. 
 
CARRIED 
 

These minutes will be present for approval at the next ASB Meeting.  
 
 
 
___________________________  ____________________________ 
Josh Knelsen, Chair     Grant Smith, Agricultural Fieldman 

32



Agenda Item # 5. e) 
 

Author: B. Peters Reviewed by:  CAO: CG 
 

 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 
 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: August 9, 2016 

Presented By: Byron Peters, Director of Planning & Development 

Title:  Municipal Planning Commission Meeting Minutes  

 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
The approved meeting minutes of the July 7, 2016 and the unapproved minutes of the 
July 21, 2016 Municipal Planning Commission meetings are attached. 
 
 
OPTIONS & BENEFITS: 
 
N/A 
 
 
COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
 
N/A 
 
 
SUSTAINABILITY PLAN: 
 
N/A 
 
 
COMMUNICATION: 
 
N/A 
 

33



Author: B. Peters Reviewed by:  CAO: CG 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
 Simple Majority  Requires 2/3  Requires Unanimous 
 
That the Municipal Planning Commission approved meeting minutes of July 7, 2016 and 
the unapproved minutes of the July 21, 2016 meeting be received for information. 
 

34



MACKENZIE COUNTY 
Municipal Planning Commission Meeting 
Thursday, July 7, 2016 
 

 
________ 

________ 

MACKENZIE COUNTY 
Municipal Planning Commission Meeting 

 
Mackenzie County Office 

La Crete, AB 
 

Thursday, July 7, 2016 @ 10:00 a.m. 
 

PRESENT: 
 
 
 

John W. Driedger 
Erick Carter 
Beth Kappelar 
Jacquie Bateman 
Jack Eccles 
 

Chair, Councilor, MPC Member  
Vice Chair, MPC Member 
MPC Member (via teleconference) 
Councilor, MPC Member  
MPC Member 

ADMINISTRATION: Byron Peters 
Liane Lambert 
Caitlin Smith 
Hayley Gavin 
Morgan Friesen 
 

Director of Planning and Development 
Planner 
Development Officer  
Planner 
Administrative Assistant/Recording Secretary 

 
MOTION 1.  Call to Order 

 
 John W. Driedger called the meeting to order at 10:01 a.m. 

 
 
 

2.  Adoption of Agenda 
 

MPC-16-07-112 
 
 
 

MOVED by Jack Eccles 
 
That the agenda be adopted with the addition of the following 
item: 
 
e) 01-SUB-16 Ernie & Shannon Peters 
    (La Crete Rural) 
    SW 1-107-14-W5M 
   
CARRIED 
 

 3.    Minutes 
 

 a) Adoption of Minutes 
 

MPC-16-07-113 
 
 
 

MOVED by Erick Carter 
 
That the minutes of the June 23, 2016 Municipal Planning 
Commission meeting be adopted as presented. 

35



MACKENZIE COUNTY  Page 2 of 9 
Municipal Planning Commission Meeting 
Thursday, July 7, 2016 
 

 
________ 

________ 

 
 

 
CARRIED 
 

 b) Business Arising from Previous Minutes 

 None. 

 4.        DEVELOPMENT 
 

 a) 128-DP-16 Select Developments – Dwelling – Single  
Family in “HCR2” (Isaac Dyck Subdivision) 
Plan 992 0893, Block 01, Lot 02 
 

MPC-16-07-114 MOVED by Beth Kappelar 
 
That Development Permit 128-DP-16 on Plan 992 0893, Block 
02, Lot 02 in the name of Select Developments be APPROVED 
with the following conditions: 
 
Failure to comply with one or more of the attached conditions 
shall render this permit Null and Void 
 
1. Minimum building setbacks are: 
 
a) 15.2 meters (50 feet) front (East) yard; 
 
b) 7.6 meters (25 feet) rear (West) yard; 
 
c) 4.6 meters (15 feet) side (North & South) yards; from the 
property lines. 
 
2. The existing Manufactured Home shall be removed from 
the property after occupancy of the new Dwelling – Single 
Family. 
 
3. The lowest opening of the building shall be a minimum of 
2.0% above the centerline elevation of the street abutting 
the property. 
 
4. The architecture, construction materials and appearance of 
buildings and other structures shall be to accepted standards 
and shall compliment the natural features and character of the 
site to the satisfaction of the Development Authority. 
 
5. Building to be connected to the municipal water and sewer 
system and the cost of connection fees will be borne by the 

36



MACKENZIE COUNTY  Page 3 of 9 
Municipal Planning Commission Meeting 
Thursday, July 7, 2016 
 

 
________ 

________ 

owner. 
 
6. The Municipality has assigned the following address to the 
noted property 9206 – 94th Street. You are required to display 
the address (9206) to be clearly legible from the street and be 
on a contrasting background. The minimum size of the 
characters shall be four inches in height. 
 
7. Provide adequate off street parking as follows: The minimum 
parking shall be 300 square feet per vehicle owned plus an 
additional 500 square feet for off street parking. “One parking 
space, including the driveway area, shall occupy 300 square 
feet.” 
 
8. This permit approval is subject to the access to the 
property being constructed to County standards. PRIOR to 
installation of a new access or changing location of 
existing access, complete a Request for Access form by 
contacting the Operational Services Department for 
Mackenzie County at 780-928-3983. Access to be 
constructed to Mackenzie County standards and at the 
developers’ expense. 
 
9. No construction or development is allowed on or in a right-of-
way. It is the responsibility of the developer/owner/occupant to 
investigate the utility rights-of-way, if any, that exist on the 
property prior to commencement of any construction and to 
ensure that no construction or development is completed on any 
utility right-of-way. 
 
10. The total site area (lot) shall have a positive surface 
drainage without adversely affecting the neighbouring 
properties. 
 
11.The Developer shall at all times comply with all applicable 
Federal, Provincial and Municipal legislation and regulations 
and County Bylaws and resolutions relating to the development 
of the lands. 
 
CARRIED 
 

 5. SUBDIVISION 
 

 a) 29-SUB-15 1880894 Alberta Ltd. (PineRidge)  
(Time Extension) 
Part of SE 16-106-15-W5M 

37



MACKENZIE COUNTY  Page 4 of 9 
Municipal Planning Commission Meeting 
Thursday, July 7, 2016 
 

 
________ 

________ 

 

MPC-16-07-115 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MOVED by Erick Carter 
 
That a Time Extension be GRANTED to subdivision application 
29-SUB-15 in the name of 1880894 Alberta Ltd., on SE 16-106-
15-W5M. The Time Extension will expire on July 7, 2017. 
 
CARRIED 
 

 b) 17-SUB-15 Darwen & Joanne Dyck 
(High Level Rural) 
SE 5-110-18-W5M 
 

MPC-16-07-116 MOVED by Jack Eccles 
 
That Subdivision Application 16-SUB-16 in the name of Darwen 
& Joanne Dyck on SE 5-110-18-W5M be APPROVED with the 
following conditions: 
 
1. This approval is for a TYPE B single lot subdivision, 
approximately 12.44 acres (5.03 hectares) in size. 
 
2. Applicant/developer shall enter into and abide by a 
Development Agreement with the Mackenzie County which 
shall contain, but is not limited to: 
 
a) Prior to any development on the proposed subdivision, the 
developer shall obtain a development permit from the 
Municipality. 
 
b) The east boundary line shall be moved west approximately 
68.56 meters, 91.44 meters from the existing pumpout 
discharge line. Reducing the requested 15.60 acres down to 
approximately 12. 44 acres. 
 
c) Provision of access to both the subdivision and the balance 
of the lands in accordance with Mackenzie County standards at 
the developer’s expense. 
 
d) Enter into a Road Acquisition agreement for the westerly 5.18 
meters of the SE 5-110-18-W5M that is required for future road 
widening. 
 
e) All sewage disposals shall conform to the Alberta Private 
Sewage Systems Standard of Practice 2009. 

38



MACKENZIE COUNTY  Page 5 of 9 
Municipal Planning Commission Meeting 
Thursday, July 7, 2016 
 

 
________ 

________ 

 
f) Provision of municipal reserve in the form of money in lieu of 
land. Specific amount is based on 10% of the subject land and 
on the current market value. The current market value for this 
property is $________ per acre. Municipal reserve is charged at 
10%, which is $______ per subdivided acre. 12.44 acres times 
$_______ equals $________, 
 
g) The Developer has the option to provide a market value 
appraisal of the existing parcel of land as of a specified 
date occurring within the 35-day period following the date 
on which the application for subdivision approval is made 
in accordance to the Municipal Government Act Section 
667 (1) (a). 
 
h) Provision of a storm water management plan. Contact 
Planning and Development staff at 780-928-3983 to discuss 
the requirements for your subdivision. 
 
i) Any outstanding property taxes are to be paid on the land 
proposed to be subdivided prior to registration. 
 
j) Provision of utility right-of-way as required by ATCO Electric, 
Telus and Northern Lights Gas and others. 
 
k) Provision of and negotiations for utility rights-of-way and/or 
easements as required by utility companies. The Developer 
shall be responsible for any line relocation or correction costs 
that occur as a result of this development. Responses from 
utilities companies are shown in Schedule “C” hereto attached. 
 
l) Mackenzie County shall not be held liable for any 
concerns, issues or damages related to and/or resulting 
from the water tables and any other water problems as a 
result of any low land levels of the proposed development. 
It is the responsibility of the developer to ensure that 
adequate drainage and other precautions are taken to avoid 
water seepage into the dwellings/basement and/or flooding 
of the basement, and/or any ancillary buildings. 
 
CARRIED 
 

 c) 24-SUB-16 Danny Friesen  
(Fort Vermilion Area) 
NE 21-108-12-W5M 
 

39



MACKENZIE COUNTY  Page 6 of 9 
Municipal Planning Commission Meeting 
Thursday, July 7, 2016 
 

 
________ 

________ 

MPC-16-07-117 MOVED by Jacquie Bateman 
 
That Subdivision Application 24-SUB-16 in the name of Danny 
Friesen on NE 21-108-12-W5M be APPROVED with the 
following conditions: 
 
1. This approval is for a TYPE B single lot subdivision, 10 acres 
(4.04 hectares) in size. 
 
2. Applicant/developer shall enter into and abide by a 
Development Agreement with the Mackenzie County which 
shall contain, but is not limited to: 
 
a) Prior to any development on the proposed subdivision, the 
developer shall obtain a development permit from the 
Municipality. 
 
b) Provision of access to both the subdivision and the balance 
of the lands in accordance with Mackenzie County standards at 
the developer’s expense. 
 
c) Enter into a Road Acquisition agreement for the westerly 5.18 
meters of the NE 21-108-12-W5M that maybe required for 
future road widening. 
 
d) All sewage disposals shall conform to the Alberta Private 
Sewage Systems Standard of Practice 2009. 
 
e) Provision of a storm water management plan. Contact 
Planning and Development staff at 780-928-3983 to discuss 
the requirements for your subdivision. 
 
f) Any outstanding property taxes are to be paid on the land 
proposed to be subdivided prior to registration. 
 
g) Provision of utility right-of-way as required by ATCO Electric, 
Telus and Northern Lights Gas and others. 
 
h) Provision of and negotiations for utility rights-of-way and/or 
easements as required by utility companies. The Developer 
shall be responsible for any line relocation or correction costs 
that occur as a result of this development. Responses from 
utilities companies are shown in Schedule “C” hereto attached. 
 
i) Mackenzie County shall not be held liable for any 
concerns, issues or damages related to and/or resulting 

40



MACKENZIE COUNTY  Page 7 of 9 
Municipal Planning Commission Meeting 
Thursday, July 7, 2016 
 

 
________ 

________ 

from the water tables and any other water problems as a 
result of any low land levels of the proposed development. 
It is the responsibility of the developer to ensure that 
adequate drainage and other precautions are taken to avoid 
water seepage into the dwellings/basement and/or flooding 
of the basement, and/or any ancillary buildings. 
 
CARRIED  
 

 d) 27-SUB-15 Wilhelm & Elizabeth Wiebe  
(Wolfe Lake Road Area) 
SE 33-106-14-W5M 
 

MPC-16-07-118 MOVED by Jacquie Bateman 
 
That Subdivision Application 27-SUB-16 in the name of Wilhelm 
& Elizabeth on SE 33-106-14-W5M be APPROVED with the 
following conditions: 
 
1. This approval is for a TYPE B single lot subdivision, 
approximately 11.81 acres (5.03 hectares) in size. 
 
2. Applicant/developer shall enter into and abide by a 
Development Agreement with the Mackenzie County which 
shall contain, but is not limited to: 
 
a) Prior to any development on the proposed subdivision, the 
developer shall obtain a development permit from the 
Municipality. 
 
b) The existing pumpout discharge line shall be relocated 4.03 
meters to the west as shown on the tentative plan drafted by the 
survey company Altus Geomatics File # 194299. 
 
c) The east boundary line shall be moved west approximately 
16.69 meters, 91.44 meters from the relocated pumpout 
discharge line. Reducing the requested 12.88 acres down to 
approximately 11.81 acres. 
 
d) Provision of access to both the subdivision and the balance 
of the lands in accordance with Mackenzie County standards at 
the developer’s expense. 
 
e) Enter into a Road Acquisition agreement for the westerly 5.18 
meters of the SE 5-110-18-W5M that is required for future road 
widening. 

41



MACKENZIE COUNTY  Page 8 of 9 
Municipal Planning Commission Meeting 
Thursday, July 7, 2016 
 

 
________ 

________ 

 
f) All sewage disposals shall conform to the Alberta Private 
Sewage Systems Standard of Practice 2009. 
 
g) Provision of a storm water management plan. Contact 
Planning and Development staff at 780-928-3983 to discuss the 
requirements for your subdivision. 
 
h) Any outstanding property taxes are to be paid on the land 
proposed to be subdivided prior to registration. 
 
i) Provision of utility right-of-way as required by ATCO Electric, 
Telus and Northern Lights Gas and others. 
 
j) Provision of and negotiations for utility rights-of-way and/or 
easements as required by utility companies. The Developer 
shall be responsible for any line relocation or correction costs 
that occur as a result of this development. Responses from 
utilities companies are shown in Schedule “C” hereto attached. 
 
k) Mackenzie County shall not be held liable for any 
concerns, issues or damages related to and/or resulting 
from the water tables and any other water problems as a 
result of any low land levels of the proposed development. 
It is the responsibility of the developer to ensure that 
adequate drainage and other precautions are taken to avoid 
water seepage into the dwellings/basement and/or flooding 
of the basement, and/or any ancillary buildings. 
 
CARRIED 
 

 e) 01-SUB-15 Ernie & Shannon Peters 
(La Crete Rural) 
SW 1-107-14-W5M 

 
MPC-16-07-119 MOVED by Jack Eccles 

 
That a Time Extension be GRANTED to subdivision application 
01-SUB-16 in the name of Ernest D. Peters and Shannon D. 
Peters on SW 1-107-14-W5M. The Time Extension will expire 
on July 7, 2017. 
 
CARRIED 
 

 6.   MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS 
 

42



MACKENZIE COUNTY  Page 9 of 9 
Municipal Planning Commission Meeting 
Thursday, July 7, 2016 
 

 
________ 

________ 

 a) Action List 
 
For information. 
 

 7.   IN CAMERA 
 

a) None 
 
8.   MEETING DATES 
 

 July 21, 2016 at 10:00 a.m. in Fort Vermilion 
 August 3, 2016 at 10:00 a.m. in La Crete 
 August 18, 2016 at 10:00 a.m. in Fort Vermilion 
 September 9, 2016 at 10:00 a.m. in La Crete 
 September 22, 2016 at 10:00 a.m. in Fort Vermilion 

 
 
 
 
 
MPC-16-07-120 

9.   ADJOURNMENT 
 
Beth Kappelar left the meeting at 10:22 a.m. 
 
MOVED by Erick Carter 
 
That the Municipal Planning Commission Meeting be adjourned 
at 10:28 a.m. 
 
CARRIED 
 

 
These minutes were adopted this 21st day of July, 2016. 
 
 
 
 

Original Signed 
John W. Driedger, Chair 

43



MACKENZIE COUNTY 
Municipal Planning Commission Meeting 
Thursday, July 21, 2016 
 

 
________ 

________ 

MACKENZIE COUNTY 
Municipal Planning Commission Meeting 

 
Mackenzie County Office 

Fort Vermilion, AB 
 

Thursday, July 21, 2016 @ 10:00 a.m. 
 

PRESENT: 
 
 
 

John W. Driedger 
 
Erick Carter 
Beth Kappelar 
Jacquie Bateman 
Jack Eccles 
 

Chair, Councilor, MPC Member (via 
teleconference) 
Vice Chair, MPC Member 
MPC Member  
Councilor, MPC Member  
MPC Member 

ADMINISTRATION: Liane Lambert 
Caitlin Smith 
Morgan Friesen 
 

Planner 
Development Officer  
Administrative Assistant/Recording Secretary 

MEMBERS OF 
PUBLIC: 

Darwen & Joanne 
Dyck 
 

 

 
MOTION 1.  Call to Order 

 
 Erick Carter called the meeting to order at 9:57 a.m. 

 
 
 

2.  Adoption of Agenda 
 

MPC-16-07-121 
 
 
 
 
 
MPC-16-07-122 
 
 
 

MOVED by Beth Kappelar 
 
That the agenda be adopted as presented. 
   
CARRIED 
 
MOVED by Beth Kappelar 
 
That item 5.a) 17-SUB-16 Darwen & Joanne Dyck be moved up 
to first item on the agenda. 
 
CARRIED 
 

 3.    Minutes 
 

 a) Adoption of Minutes 
 

44



MACKENZIE COUNTY  Page 2 of 9 
Municipal Planning Commission Meeting 
Thursday, July 21, 2016 
 

 
________ 

________ 

MPC-16-07-123 
 
 
 
 
 

MOVED by Beth Kappelar 
 
That the minutes of the July 7, 2016 Municipal Planning 
Commission meeting be adopted as presented. 
 
CARRIED 
 

 b) Business Arising from Previous Minutes 

 None. 

 5. SUBDIVISION 
 

a) 17-SUB-15 Darwen & Joanne Dyck  
(High Level Rural) 
SE 5-110-18-W5M 
 

MPC-16-07-124 MOVED by Beth Kappelar 
 
That Subdivision Application 17-SUB-16 in the name of Darwen 
& Joanne Dyck on SE 5-110-18-W5M be REVISED with the 
following conditions: 
 
1. This approval is for a TYPE B single lot subdivision, 
approximately 15.60 acres (6.31 hectares) in size. 
 
2. Applicant/developer shall enter into and abide by a 
Development  Agreement with the Mackenzie County which 
shall contain, but is not limited to: 
 
a) Prior to any development on the proposed subdivision, the 
developer shall obtain a development permit from the 
Municipality. 
 
b) Provision of access to both the subdivision and the balance 
of the lands in accordance with Mackenzie County standards at 
the developer’s expense. 
 
c) Enter into a Road Acquisition agreement for the westerly 5.18 
meters of the SE 5-110-18-W5M that is required for future road 
widening. 
 
d) All sewage disposals shall conform to the Alberta Private 
Sewage Systems Standard of Practice 2009. 
 
e) Provision of municipal reserve in the form of money in lieu of 

45



MACKENZIE COUNTY  Page 3 of 9 
Municipal Planning Commission Meeting 
Thursday, July 21, 2016 
 

 
________ 

________ 

land. Specific amount is based on 10% of the subject land and 
on the current market value. The current market value for this 
property is $3,500.00 per acre. Municipal reserve is charged at 
10%, which is $350.00 per subdivided acre. 15.60 acres times 
$350.00 equals $5,460.00, 
 
f) The Developer has the option to provide a market value 
appraisal of the existing parcel of land as of a specified 
date occurring within the 35-day period following the date 
on which the application for subdivision approval is made 
in accordance to the Municipal Government Act Section 
667 (1) (a). 
 
g) Provision of a storm water management plan. Contact 
Planning and Development staff at 780-928-3983 to discuss 
the requirements for your subdivision. 
 
h) Any outstanding property taxes are to be paid on the land 
proposed to be subdivided prior to registration. 
 
i) Provision of utility right-of-way as required by ATCO Electric, 
Telus and Northern Lights Gas and others. 
 
j) Provision of and negotiations for utility rights-of-way and/or 
easements as required by utility companies. The Developer 
shall be responsible for any line relocation or correction costs 
that occur as a result of this development. Responses from 
utilities companies are shown in Schedule “C” hereto attached. 
 
k) Mackenzie County shall not be held liable for any 
concerns, issues or damages related to and/or resulting 
from the water tables and any other water problems as a 
result of any low land levels of the proposed development. 
It is the responsibility of the developer to ensure that 
adequate drainage and other precautions are taken to avoid 
water seepage into the dwellings/basement and/or flooding 
of the basement, and/or any ancillary buildings. 
 

 4.        DEVELOPMENT 
 

 a) 146-DP-16 The Espresso House Inc. – Restaurant in  
“HC2” (La Crete) 
Part of NE 04-106-15-W5M 
 

MPC-16-07-125 MOVED by Jack Eccles 
 

46



MACKENZIE COUNTY  Page 4 of 9 
Municipal Planning Commission Meeting 
Thursday, July 21, 2016 
 

 
________ 

________ 

That Development Permit 146-DP-16 on Part of NE 04-106-15-
W5M in the name of The Espresso House Inc. be APPROVED 
with the following conditions: 
 
Failure to comply with one or more of the attached conditions 
shall render this permit Null and Void: 
 
1. This permit approval is for the operation of a Restaurant 
(Coffee Shop) with the capacity of 35 seats out of the 
existing building. 
 
2. Comply with applicable legislation under the Public 
Health Act and obtain the appropriate approvals prior to 
commencement of development. Contact the Health 
Inspector at 926-7000. 
 
3. The architecture, construction materials and appearance of 
buildings and other structures shall be to accepted standards 
and shall compliment the natural features and character of the 
site to the satisfaction of the Development 
Authority. 
 
4. Please provide adequate off street parking as follows: 12 
public parking stalls, 1 space per each full time employee and 1 
space for every 2 part time employees. “One parking space, 
including the driveway area, shall occupy 27.87 square meters 
(300 square feet).” 
 
5. The Municipality has assigned the following address to the 
noted property (9302 – 100th Street, Unit _). You are required 
to display the address (9302 - _) to be clearly legible from the 
street and be on a contrasting background. The minimum size 
of the characters shall be four inches in height. 
 
6. The property must at all times be kept in a neat and orderly 
fashion. 
 
7. Building to be connected to the municipal water and sewer 
system and the cost of connection fees will be borne by the 
owner. 
 
8. This permit approval is subject to an access to the property 
being constructed to County standards. PRIOR to installation of 
a new access or changing location of existing access, complete 
a Request for Access form by contacting the Operational 
Services Department for Mackenzie County at 780-927-3718. 

47



MACKENZIE COUNTY  Page 5 of 9 
Municipal Planning Commission Meeting 
Thursday, July 21, 2016 
 

 
________ 

________ 

Access to be constructed at the developers’ expense. 
 
9. No construction or development is allowed on or in a right-of-
way. It is the responsibility of the developer/owner/occupant to 
investigate the utility rights-ofway, if any, that exist on the 
property prior to commencement of any construction and to 
ensure that no construction or development is completed on any 
utility right-of-way. 
 
10. The total site area shall have a positive surface drainage 
without adversely affecting the neighbouring properties. 
 
11.The Developer shall at all times comply with all applicable 
Federal, Provincial and Municipal legislation and regulations 
and County Bylaws and resolutions relating to the development 
of the lands. 
 
CARRIED 
 

 5. SUBDIVISION 
 

 b) 26-SUB-16 Northpoint Business Park  
Part of NE 10-106-15-W5M 
 

MPC-16-07-126 
 
 
 
 

MOVED by Jacquie Bateman 
 
That Subdivision Application 26-SUB-16 in the name of 
Northpoint Business Park on Part of NE 10-106-15-W5M, be 
APPROVED with the following conditions; 
 
1. This approval is for 3 lot subdivision, 7.47 acres (3.02 
hectares) in size. 
 
2. Applicant/developer shall enter into and abide by a 
Development Agreement with the Mackenzie County which 
shall contain, but is not limited to: 
 
a) Prior to any development on the proposed subdivision, the 
developer shall obtain a development permit from the 
Municipality, 
 
b) Provision of access to each lot within the subdivision in 
accordance with Mackenzie County standards at the 
developer’s expense. 
 
c) Provision of all sanitary systems including service lines, main 

48



MACKENZIE COUNTY  Page 6 of 9 
Municipal Planning Commission Meeting 
Thursday, July 21, 2016 
 

 
________ 

________ 

and appurtenances as required by the Municipality, 
 
d) Provision of all water lines, including all fittings and valves as 
required by the County, 
 
e) Provision of municipal servicing (water and sanitary sewer) to 
each lot, 
 
f) All drainage systems, provisions for weeping tile flow where a 
high water table or other subsurface conditions cause 
continuous flow in the weeping tile, and associated works, all as 
and where required by the County. Where trunk storm sewer 
mains are required, the County shall reimburse the Developer 
for the cost of the trunk storm sewer mains in accordance with 
current County policy; The developer shall provide the 
municipality with a site drainage and surface water 
management plan that outlines the following: 
 
(1) Drainage of internal road system, 
(2) Erosion prevention systems, if required, 
(3) Direction of site drainage 
 
g) Provision of internal roads, sidewalks and other infrastructure 
as required by the County in accordance to Mackenzie County 
Engineering Guidelines and at Developers expense, such 
construction of roads to serve the lots to be created by the 
subdivision; and shall be constructed to the rural standards as 
previously approved. 
 
h) Provision of street lighting with overhead wiring, design and 
location as required by the County, as previously approved in 
first phase. 
 
i) Engineered signage package, 
 
j) Provision of utilities (power, telephone, etc.) to each lot. Gas 
may be installed in accordance to the gas company’s policies 
upon request of the service. Such utilities to be provided in a 
location and to a standard to be approved by the appropriate 
utility company and the County. Responses from utilities 
companies are shown in Schedule “C” hereto attached. 
 
k) Provision of and/or negotiation for utilities rights-of-way 
and/or easements as required by utilities companies. Any costs 
incurred for line relocation will be the responsibility of the 
developer. All utility lanes/lots must be accessible. All public 

49



MACKENZIE COUNTY  Page 7 of 9 
Municipal Planning Commission Meeting 
Thursday, July 21, 2016 
 

 
________ 

________ 

utility lanes/lots shall be cleared to ground level with all tree 
stumps and debris removed and then landscaped. Where 
necessary, utility lanes/lots shall be excavated or landscaped to 
provide drainage for the subdivision. Any excavation or 
landscaping of the public utility lanes/lots shall be to engineered 
plans and completed prior to the installation of utilities, 
 
l) The developer is responsible for site grading and landscaping 
to design elevation and seeding with grass or other approved 
landscaping, in a manner that does not negatively impact 
adjacent properties or infrastructure. 
 
m) Provision of an agreement with the adjacent landowners for 
utility lanes/lots if required, 
 
n) Any outstanding property taxes shall be paid in full prior to 
registration of title, 
 
o) Provision of off-site levies as required by the County as 
follows: 
 

i) Subdivision Off-Site Levies (Bylaw 319/02) are 
imposed for the construction and maintenance of off-
site municipal services, including: 

 
a) new or expanded facilities for the storage, transmission, 

treatment or supplying of water; 
 

b) new or expanded facilities for the treatment, movement 
or disposal of sanitary sewage; 

 
c) new or expanded storm sewage drainage facilities; 

 
d) new or expanded facilities for the storage, transfer, or 

disposal of waste; 
 

e) land required for or in connection with any facilities 
described in clauses (a) to (d); and  
 

f) ongoing maintenance of the facilities described in 
clauses (a) to (d). 

 
The levy is calculated at $1,000.00 per lot. 3 lots at $1,000 
equals $3,000.00, 
 

ii) Subdivision Levies for Water Servicing (Bylaw 

50



MACKENZIE COUNTY  Page 8 of 9 
Municipal Planning Commission Meeting 
Thursday, July 21, 2016 
 

 
________ 

________ 

440/04) Offsite Levies for water servicing are for the 
cost of new or expanded facilities for the storage, 
transmission, treatment or supplying of water. The 
levy is calculated at $1,421.40 per acre. Your 
subdivision is a total of 7.47 acres. 7.47 acres at 
$1,421.40 equals $10,617.86. 

 
Total Levies = $13,617.86 
 
p) Provision of municipal reserve in the form of money in 
lieu of land. Specific amount to be based on 10% of the 
market value of the subject land and on the current market 
value. The current market value for this property is 
$40,000.00 per acre. Municipal reserve is charged at 10%, 
which is $4000.00 per subdivided acre. 7.47 acres times 
$4000.00 equals $29,880.00, or 
 
q) The Developer has the option to provide a market value 
appraisal of the existing parcel of land as of a specified 
date occurring within the 35-day period following the date 
on which the application for subdivision approval is made 
in accordance to the Municipal Government Act Section 
667 (1) (a). 
 
r) Security, in the form of an irrevocable letter of credit or 
certified cheque, in the amount of 25% of subsurface and 
surface infrastructure construction cost must be submitted to the 
County prior to installation and construction of any permanent 
infrastructure. 
 
CARRIED 
 

 6.   MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS 
 

 a) Action List 
 
For information. 
 

 7.   IN CAMERA 
 

a) None 
 
8.   MEETING DATES 
 

 August 3, 2016 at 10:00 a.m. in La Crete 
 August 18, 2016 at 10:00 a.m. in Fort Vermilion 

51



MACKENZIE COUNTY  Page 9 of 9 
Municipal Planning Commission Meeting 
Thursday, July 21, 2016 
 

 
________ 

________ 

 September 9, 2016 at 10:00 a.m. in La Crete 
 September 22, 2016 at 10:00 a.m. in Fort Vermilion 

 
 
 
MPC-16-07-127 

9.   ADJOURNMENT 
 
MOVED by John W. Driedger 
 
That the Municipal Planning Commission Meeting be adjourned 
at 10:06 a.m. 
 
CARRIED 
 

 
These minutes were adopted this 3rd day of August, 2016. 
 
 
 
 

Original Signed 
Erick Carter, Vice Chair 

52



Agenda Item # 6. a) 
 

Author: C. Gabriel Reviewed by:  CAO: CG 
 

 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 
 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: August 9, 2016 

Presented By: Carol Gabriel, Interim Chief Administrative Officer 

Title:  CAO Report 

 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
The Interim CAO and Director reports for July, 2016 are attached for information. 
 
 
OPTIONS & BENEFITS: 
 
 
 
COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
 
 
 
SUSTAINABILITY PLAN: 
 
 
 
COMMUNICATION: 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
 Simple Majority  Requires 2/3  Requires Unanimous 
 
That the Interim CAO report for July, 2016 be received for information. 

53



REPORT TO THE CAO 
 
For the Month of July, 2016 
 
From:   Carol Gabriel 
  Interim CAO/Director of Legislative & Support Services 
 
Meetings Attended 

• 2016-07-19 – Meeting with Barb Spurgeon, CAO of Mackenzie Housing 
Management Board regarding an update on the proposed High Level seniors 
lodge.  An email update was provided to Councillors on July 20, 2016 and is also 
attached to this report. 

• 2016-07-20 – Regional Sustainability Committee Teleconference 
• 2016-07-21 – Regional Sustainability Study – Procurement Working Group 

Teleconference.   
• 2016-07-21 – CAO’s meeting was held in High Level.  Discussed the agenda for 

the Tri-Council meeting on August 3, 2016 and other various items. 
• 2016-07-21 – Mackenzie Regional Golf Committee Meeting was held in High 

Level.  Approximately 50% of the sponsorships are in.  The Committee reduced 
the rates this year due to the economy in order to keep the event going. 

• 2016-07-25 – AUPE Negotiations Committee Meeting.  An update will be 
provided to Council in-camera on August 9, 2016. 

• 2016-07-25 – Meeting with Alberta Environment & Parks regarding Wadlin Lake.  
Discussed the requirements for the Management Plan which is now a 
standardized template to accommodate pre-planning and future recreational 
opportunities.  Management Plans are required for all recreational areas. 

• 2016-07-26 – Meeting with Special Projects Coordinator to discuss short term 
contract and special projects list with the Reeve and Deputy Reeve. 

• 2016-07-27 – Attended Court due to subpoena as a Trial Witness – individual 
plead guilty and therefore a trial was not necessary.  Individual is not allowed on 
the Mackenzie County premises in Fort Vermilion for the four month period of his 
probation.  Administration is looking at additional security measures including 
surveillance of the outside of the building. 

• 2016-07-27 – Assisted Council with the setup of Skype interviews with CAO 
candidates. 

• 2016-07-28 – Agricultural Service Board Meeting 
• Various managers meetings and council meetings 

 
Assessment Appeals 

• Hearings have been scheduled for the six appeals received.  Four to the Local 
Assessment Review Board (LARB) and two to the Composite Assessment 
Review Board (CARB). 

• LARB hearings are scheduled for September 1, 2016 and the CARB hearings 
have been scheduled for October 27, 2016. 

• All Complainants have been notified of their hearings and their disclosure 
timelines. 

54



 
Bylaws/Policies/Reports/Publications: 

• Reviewing Council Committee Bylaw drafted by our Intern to be presented to 
Council in August 2016. 

• Reviewing video surveillance policy drafted by our Intern to be presented to 
Council in August 2016. 

 
Citizen Engagement: 

• Various postings on the County’s website and Facebook page regarding Request 
for Proposals, Tenders, and the Agricultural Fair. 

 
Records Management: 

• The temporary position in the records department was extended to January 2018 
due to unforeseen circumstances. 

 
Human Resources: 

• Software demonstrations were held for the purchase of the HR/Payroll Module.  
The Finance Department, IT Department, and HR participated in this 
demonstration.  An upgrade to the Diamond software is required prior to moving 
forward with the module. 

• In discussions with Lane Quinn Benefits Consultant regarding the 2016 renewal. 
• Various staff performance evaluations were completed. 

 
Events: 

• Organizing continues for the 8th annual Mackenzie Regional Charity Golf 
tournament on September 7, 2016. 

 
Miscellaneous: 

• Ongoing updates to the County website 
• Ongoing updates to the County Facebook page regarding upcoming events, 

wildfire updates, etc. 
• Assisting with reviewing various correspondence, etc. regarding the caribou 

strategy. 
• Responding to various ratepayer concerns, etc. 
• Setup Docushare access for Councillors to access development permits in their 

ward for information purposes. 
 
 

55



MONTHLY REPORT TO THE CAO 
 
For the Month of July 2016 
 
From: Ron Pelensky 

Director of Community Services and Operations 
 
 
Program/Activity/Project Timeline Comments 
Road Maintenance Ongoing Regular road maintenance. Lots of Grading 

do to rainy weather. Crew working on 
regraveling program with two trucks. Asphalt 
crackseal program is complete.  Repaired 
Tandem axel gravel truck  
 

Dogs Ongoing One dog picked up 
 

Bylaw Ongoing Responded to 3 back alley complaints in La 
Crete. Issued 6 verbal clean up orders and 9 
written warnings Also dealt with 3 parked 
vehicle issues 

Emergency/Disaster 
Service 

Ongoing Worked on emergency disaster manual 
Training for Emergency Alert use 

Health and Safety Ongoing Hosted fire extinguisher training 
Completed Building Inspections and site 
inspections 

Peace Officer Ongoing Provided patrols on the weekend of July 8 

Issued 59 warnings and 4 traffic violations 
totaling $1474 in fines 
Waiting for signed MOU from RCMP for new 
Peace Officer.  
 

Fire Department Ongoing Fort Vermilion Responded to 1 Motor 
Vehicle accident, 3 Medical Assists, 1 
propane leak, 2 False alarms, 1 outdoor fire 
La Crete responded to 4 Medical Assists,    
2 Motor Vehicle Collision, 2 Fire Alarms, 1 
Outdoor Fire     
Zama no calls  

Fire Department Training Ongoing Regular practices held. La Crete & FV & 
Zama 
In house probationary firefighter, rope and 
water rescue training.  

56



Zama Public Works Ongoing Regular spring/summer maintenance. 
Installed a sump system at the park 
 

Capital Projects 
Snow Plow Truck July Tender advertised, closes Aug 9th.  

Road Regraveling Project July Contractors completed the regraveling 
program. County staff still working in  
FV area 

Purchase 3 Graders July Agreement to purchase graders through 
Finning is complete. Three Graders delivered. 
 

Hutch Lake  & Machesis 
Campground  

July Constructed Hutch Lake caretaker site. 
Machesis Lake horse camping is 99% 
complete. 

Bridge Campground July Discussions with Alberta Culture and Tourism 
about combining archaeological work with 
former employee Heinz Pyszczyk. Met with 
Heinz and his schedule looks quite full and 
may only have time for part of the project. 

FV 43rd Ave Paving July Project Awarded to Knelsen Sand and Gravel 
Construction planned for Aug. 

FV 45 Ave Cul-de-sac 
Paving 

July Project awarded to Knelsen Sand and Gravel 
Construction planned for Aug. 

Store Road Reconstruction July Engineers preparied grade plan 
 Raymond Vanpatten negotiated back slope 
agreements and applying for borrow pits. 
Started construction with hired equipment. 
 

Heliport Road – oil dust 
control 

July Raymond Vanpatten digging out the soft 
spots and shaping the road. Oil is planned for 
early Aug 
 

Fire Department Radios July Vector and Motorola has resolved pager 
issues. Radio system is complete  

Shoulder Pull July Rebuilt  Blumenort rd east  

Oil Recycling Facilities July Buildings are set up, need to change signing 
and some minor repairs before using 

57



Fort Vermilion Sand/Salt 
shed 

July Tender being advertised with closing date 
August 9th 

Fort Vermilion Shop 
extension 

July Awarded to Alpine Builders. Construction 
started 

 
 
 
Personnel Update: 
One grader operator position off on long term disability. Second grader operator position 
off on short term disability. David Lizotte has temporary filled the High Level Grader 
operator position 
 
 
Other Comments: 
 

 

58



MONTHLY REPORT TO THE CAO 
 
For the Month of July 2016 
 
From: Len Racher 

Director of Facilities and Operations (South) 
 
 
Annual Operating Programs, Projects and Activities 
 
Program/Activity/Project Timeline Comments 
 
94th ave.  

 
Tentative 
start Aug.2  

 
Survey work has started, easements are in 
place for walking trail, tree limbs have been 
removed where needed. 

 
Oil dust control 

 
In progress 

 
Two Graders and a packer are applying oil 
in Blumenort, LaCrete, Bluehills, West 
LaCrete, and Fort Vermilion.   

 

Wadlin Lake 

  
 
Fish cleaning station now requires the 
discarded parts to be put into drums and 
sealed and removed from site. We are 
looking into the cost of a cement tank that 
can be Vac-trucked out. Cost for crews to 
deliver and haul out drums is expensive and 
is taking up man power that can be used 
elsewhere in the organization.  

 

Winter Sand 

 
 
Going to 
Council 
August 9 

 
 
Proceed with recommendation  

 
 
 
 
 

59



Projects Timeline Comments 

Sand/Salt shed  
 
Completed 

 
Very nice building, Lago blocks will be 
installed and sand salt mix will be done 
middle to end of September  

 
Ice Bridge Contract 

 
Out in 
advertisement 

 
Will go to committee  

 
 
Other Activities Timeline Comments 
 
Mechesis Grand opening 
Ag Fair 
Re 

  
Horse camping 
Attend 

 
 
Respectfully, 
 
Len Racher 
Director of Facilities and Operations (South) 

60



REPORT TO THE CAO & COUNCIL 
 
July, 2016 
 
From: Grant Smith 

Agricultural Fieldman 
 
 
Annual Operating Programs, Projects and Activities 
 
Program/Activity/Project Timeline Comments 
Roadside Spraying 2016 Roadside spraying commenced June 10th, 

completion date was July 10th. All roads north 
of the peace river were sprayed. 

Roadside Mowing 2016 Mowing commenced July 11th. All county 
roads are mowed. North of the peace river will 
receive a single pass cut, south of the peace 
will receive a full width cut. Completion date is 
August 15th. 

Weed Inspections 2016 Weed Inspectors have been busy inspecting 
fields and oil leases. There appears to be an 
increased presence of White Cockle in the 
Machesis Lake area. Alberta Transportation 
will likely be issued notices to control as they 
aren’t going to spray their roadsides this year. 

Clubroot of Canola & 
Fusariam Grameniarum 
Inspections 

2016 As per our recently implemented policies field 
inspections will be carried out in late August/ 
September. 

Ag Fair & Tradeshow 2016 Everything is on schedule. There is an 
increase in tradeshow bookings. The ASB is 
scheduled to cook the breakfast from 8:00-
10:00 am on Saturday, August 6th. 

 
 
Capital Projects 
 
Projects Timeline Comments 
Erosion Repairs 2016 An RFP will be issued to local contractors. 

Completion date will be October 30, 2016. 
Funding will be from 2016 ASB Operating 
Budget. 

Blue Hills Erosion Repair Spring 
2016 

The original approved bid amount of $187,000 
has been submitted to Northern Roadbuilders. 
The overage amount of $35,000 will be 

61



decided upon after spring runoff as quantities 
will be measured then. WSP has surveyed 
and measured quantities. Northern Road 
Builders has surveyed and we will meet and 
compare their findings with ours. 

   

   

 
Personnel Update: 
 

 
Other Comments: 
 

 

62



MONTHLY REPORT TO THE CAO 
 
For the month of July 2016 
 
From: Peng Tian 
            Director of Finance 
 
Annual Operating Programs, Projects and Activities 
 

Program/Activity/Project Timeline Comments 

Grants to Local Governments July 31, 2016 2016 operating grants for Town of High Level and the 
second payment of the operating grants to Town of 
Rainbow Lake have been processed before July 31, 
2016. 

2016 Requisitions July 31, 2016 The school fund for Opted Out School Board and the 
payment for Lodge Requisition were paid in July 
2016. 

Tax Preauthorized Payments July 31, 2016 The monthly tax preauthorized payments were 
recalculated and updated in July 2016. 

Operating Budget Amendments 
for July 2016 

Ongoing The operating budget was updated in July for the 
operating budget amendment motions. 

 
 
Capital Projects 
Capital Budget Amendments for 
July 2016 

Ongoing The capital budget was also updated in July for the 
capital budget amendment motions. 

 
 
Personnel Update: 
 
 
 
Other Comments: 
 
 
 

63



MONTHLY REPORT TO THE CAO 
 
For the Month of July 2016 
 
From: Fred Wiebe 

Director of Utilities 
 
Annual Operating Programs, Projects and Activities 
 
Program/Activity/Project Timeline Comments 
Water Distribution and 
Wastewater Collection 
Maintenance  

Sept/16 - Most sewer flushing complete with 
hydrant flushing starting in Aug. 

Strategic Priorities 1.Sept 
 
 

Hamlet Easement Strategy – coming back 
with more details and recommendations. 
 

 
Capital Projects 
 
Projects Timeline Comments 
Master Meters Sept/16 1 large meter remaining in LC 

2 large meters remaining in FV. 

FV- Hydrant Replacement July/16 
 

Complete.  

FV-Frozen Water Service 
Repairs 

Aug/16 
 

Reviewing further measurements found by 
operators and interpreting findings. 

FV-Raw Water Truckfill 
Upgrade 

Complete Treated truckfill has been piped to east side 
of building for non-potable use. 

LC-Raw Water Truckfill 
Upgrade 

Complete Deficiencies are corrected and just require 
O&M documentation. 

LC- Lagoon Upgrade Oct/16 
 

Some seeding to be completed in 2016 and 1 
year inspection to occur in fall 2016. 

LC- Main Lift Station 
Repair/Upgrade 

Complete Concrete island for rv fill that had to be 
removed needs to be replaced after ground 
settlement. 

LC- Sanitary Sewer Main 
Upgrade 

Oct/16 Project complete with final inspection to take 
place August 8, 2016. Looking at putting 
asphalt millings on roadway for dust control. 

64



FV- 48th Ave Water 
Services 

Complete Complete. 

Rural Potable Water 
Infrastructure 

Jan/17 As of Aug 2/16, Pipe fusing about 50% 
complete and 1.6 km waterline installed. 
Truckfills have both reservoirs dug and mud 
slab installed. FV current working on 
approaches and driveway and floor slab 
scheduled for coming week. 

FV- Dechlorination Complete Dechlorination equipment is installed, tested 
and working. 

FV- Lagoon Desludge Oct/16 Scheduled to be done in the fall when fields 
are harvested. 

LC- Paving Raw Water Fill Sept/16 Done in conjunction with 94th ave road 
improvement. 

FV- Paving FV WTP Sept/16 Done in conjunction with the street 
improvements in FV. Atco pole has been 
moved out of traffic area. 

LC,FV,ZA- Exhaust 
Thimbles 

Aug/16 Consultant has inspected and is working on 
engineered drawings to be sent to 
contractors for quotes. 

FV- Filter Media 
Replacement 

Complete Both filters have media replaced and are 
performing well. 

 
Personnel Update: 
 

 
Other Comments: 
Personal: I’m just back from a 2 week vacation using a lot of the time to work on my 
newly acquired acreage. I also did some camping/fishing at Hutch Lake which was quite 
relaxing. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Fred Wiebe 
Director of Utilities 
Mackenzie County 

65



66



Agenda Item # 7. a) 
 

Author: S Wheeler Reviewed by: L Racher CAO: CG 
 

 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 
 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: August 9, 2016 

Presented By: Len Racher, Director of Facilities & Operations (South) 

Title:  Tender - Removal of BF78103 and Construction of Range 
Road 140A (2:00 pm) 

 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
Administration advertised the invitation to tender ‘Removal of BF78103 and 
Construction of Range Road 140A’ on the County Website, County Facebook and in the 
Big Deal Bulletin.  
 
 
OPTIONS & BENEFITS: 
 
 
 
COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
 
2016 Capital Budget code 6-32-30-28 $120,000. 
 
 
SUSTAINABILITY PLAN: 
 
 
 
COMMUNICATION: 
 
Successful bidder will be notified. 
 

67



Author: S Wheeler Reviewed by: L Racher CAO: CG 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
 
Motion 1: 
 
 Simple Majority    Requires 2/3  Requires Unanimous 
 
That the tenders for Removal of BF78103 and Construction of Range Road 140A be 
opened. 
 
Motion 2: 
 
 Simple Majority    Requires 2/3  Requires Unanimous 
 
That the tenders for ‘Removal of BF78103 and Construction of Range Road 140A’ be 
referred to the Public Works Committee for review and award, subject to being within 
budget. 
 

68



Agenda Item # 7. b) 

Author: R. Pelensky Reviewed by:  CAO: CG 
 

 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 
 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: August 9, 2016 

Presented By: Ron Pelensky, Director of Community Services and 
Operations 

Title:  Request for Proposal - Supply of New or Used 
Plow/Sanding Gravel Truck (3:00 pm) 

 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
Administration advertised a Request for Proposal ‘Supply of New or Used Plow/Sanding 
Gravel Truck’ on the Alberta Purchasing Connection (APC) website.  
 
 
OPTIONS & BENEFITS: 
 
That the ‘Supply of New or Used Plow/Sanding Gravel Truck’ Request for Proposals be 
awarded to the lowest qualified bidder. 
 
 
COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
 
Funding to come from the 2016 Capital project in the amount of $290,000. 
 
 
SUSTAINABILITY PLAN: 
 
N/A 
 
 
COMMUNICATION: 
 
The request for proposal was advertised on the APC website, and by contacting 
suppliers. 
 

69



Author: R. Pelensky Reviewed by:  CAO: CG 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
Motion 1: 
 
 Simple Majority  Requires 2/3  Requires Unanimous 
 
That the Supply of New or Used Plow/Sanding Gravel Truck Request for Proposals be 
opened. 
 
Motion 2: 
 
 Simple Majority  Requires 2/3  Requires Unanimous 
 
That the Supply of New or Used Plow/Sanding Gravel Truck Request for Proposals be 
referred to the Public Works Committee for review, and awarded to the best qualified 
proponent while remaining in budget. 
 

70



Agenda Item # 7. c) 

Author: R. Pelensky Reviewed by:  CAO: CG 
 

 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 
 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: August 9, 2016 

Presented By: Ron Pelensky, Director of Community Services and 
Operations 

Title:  Tender - Supply and Construct Wooden Post Frame 
Sand Shed (3:00 pm) 

 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
Administration advertised an invitation to tender ‘Supply and Construct Wooden Post 
Frame Sand Shed’ on the County Website, and Alberta Purchasing Connection (APC) 
website.  
 
 
OPTIONS & BENEFITS: 
 
That the ‘Supply and Construct Wooden Post Frame Sand Shed’ Tender be awarded to 
the lowest qualified bidder. 
 
 
COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
 
Funding to come from the 2016 Capital project in the amount of $200,000. 
 
 
SUSTAINABILITY PLAN: 
 
N/A 
 
 
COMMUNICATION: 
 
The tender was advertised on the APC website, Mackenzie county website, and by 
contacting suppliers. 

71



Author: R. Pelensky Reviewed by:  CAO: CG 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
Motion 1: 
 
 Simple Majority  Requires 2/3  Requires Unanimous 
 
That the Supply and Construct Wooden Post Frame Sand Shed tenders be opened. 
 
Motion 2: 
 
 Simple Majority  Requires 2/3  Requires Unanimous 
 
That the Supply and Construct Wooden Post Frame Sand Shed Tender be awarded to 
the lowest qualified bidder. 
 

72



Agenda Item # 9. a) 
 

Author: C. Simpson Reviewed by:  CAO: CG 
 

 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 
 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: August 9, 2016 

Presented By: Carol Gabriel, Interim Chief Administrative Officer 

Title:  Seeking Input on Energy Efficiency and Community Energy in 
Alberta 

 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
The province has recently convened an Energy Efficiency Advisory Panel to engage 
Albertans in determining the types of programs that should be developed to help 
individuals, businesses and communities reduce greenhouse gas emissions. 
 
The province estimates that over the next five years, carbon pricing will raise $9.6 
billion, which will be reinvested in supporting Alberta’s move to a lower carbon future: 
 
$3.4 billion will help households, businesses and communities adjust to the carbon levy, 
which will be applied to fuels starting in 2017.  Much of this will be spent through 
rebates to lower income Albertans.  AUMA had been advocating that municipalities also 
receive a rebate on the levy. 
 
While the primary task of the Panel is to provide advice on the programs Energy Alberta 
will deliver, there is also an opportunity to provide input on how the province should roll 
out their other funding such as the $2.2 billion envelope for green infrastructure. 
 
The Panel is planning engagement sessions for municipalities at the end of September, 
with more details on these sessions expected to be released later in August.  In the 
meantime the municipalities can review the panel’s discussion document and provide a 
written submission. 
 
If Mackenzie County does provide a written submission, AUMA is asking for a copy of 
the submission by September 1, so they can reflect member input on their own 
submission. 
 
A discussion document has been developed to help guide the conversation.  It outlines 
key areas and issues they would like to hear Alberta’s opinions on, including: 
 

73



Author: C. Simpson Reviewed by:  CAO: CG 
 

• Which sectors or areas would you like to see support directed to? 
• What types of programs and technologies would best promote energy efficiency 

and community energy systems, based on cost-effectiveness and greatest 
impact of greenhouse gas reductions? 

• Understanding program funding starts from $45 million per year, what level of 
funding or other support should be offered to different programs? 

• Are there other ways, aside from financial incentives, to help promote energy 
efficiency and community  

 
Attached is the document that was developed for the discussion. 
 
 
OPTIONS & BENEFITS: 
 
N/A 
 
 
COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
 
N/A 
 
 
SUSTAINABILITY PLAN: 
 
N/A 
 
 
COMMUNICATION: 
 
N/A 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
 Simple Majority  Requires 2/3  Requires Unanimous 
 
For discussion. 

74



  

 

 
  

75



 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

76



 

   

 

Contents 

Minister’s Message ................................................................................................................................ 1 

Message from the Advisory Panel Chair ............................................................................................... 2 

Overview and Context: Energy Efficiency and Community Energy in Alberta ...................................... 3 

Energy Efficiency Advisory Panel .......................................................................................................... 4 

Opportunities for Energy Efficiency and Community Energy ................................................................ 6 

Barriers to Implementing Energy Efficiency and Community Energy .................................................... 7 

How do we overcome these barriers to promote energy efficiency and community energy? ............... 8 

Programming Tools and Options ........................................................................................................... 9 

What programming tools best promote energy efficiency and community energy? ............................ 10 

Defining Success ................................................................................................................................. 10 

What measures of success best demonstrate energy efficiency and community energy? ................. 11 

Technologies ........................................................................................................................................ 11 

Getting Involved ................................................................................................................................... 14 

 

 

 

 

 

77



  

CONFIDENTIAL ADVICE TO MINISTER    1 

  1 

 Minister’s Message 

From the outset of announcing Alberta’s Climate Leadership Plan in November 2015, the provincial 

government has focused on developing and implementing energy efficiency and community energy 

systems as the easiest and most economical way to reduce greenhouse gas emissions. The new Climate 

Leadership Implementation Act brings Albertans one step closer to saving on their energy bills and 

helping to lower greenhouse gas levels throughout the province.  

The Act establishes Energy Efficiency Alberta, the public agency that will put provincial-scale energy 

efficiency and community energy system programs in place in early 2017. The Energy Efficiency Advisory 

Panel will ensure this timeframe is met.  

The Energy Efficiency Advisory Panel will engage with a cross-section of Albertans, including individuals, 

Indigenous communities, and municipal and industry stakeholders, to determine the types of energy 

savings and community energy programs that Energy Efficiency Alberta can deliver in the short- and 

medium-term. Alberta’s approach to energy efficiency and community energy systems will ensure the 

largest reduction of greenhouse gas emissions at the lowest possible cost to the economy. 

This discussion document is meant to help guide the engagement process. Throughout the document a 

number of questions will provide a starting point for conversations. These conversations will provide the 

information the panel needs to develop its recommended approach, programming options and general 

advice to government. 

We invite you to share your perspective. 

Energy efficiency and community energy systems program development is another leadership step 

Alberta is taking on its fight on climate change. It adds to efforts to protect the health of Albertans, our 

environment and our economy. 

 

Shannon Phillips, Minister of Environment and Parks, Minister Responsible for the Climate Change Office 

June 2016 

78



 

  2 

 Message from the Advisory Panel Chair 

I am delighted the Government of Alberta invited me to chair its Energy Efficiency Advisory Panel. 

Experience around the world and evidence from many independent international agencies confirms that 

energy efficiency is the most cost effective energy investment that any jurisdiction can make. Energy 

efficiency, combined with targeted investments in community-level renewable energy, creates reliable 

green jobs, delivers regional economic development, reduces fuel poverty for those on low incomes and 

reduces carbon pollution at least cost. 

Through this initiative, the Alberta economy will benefit from deploying the smartest new technologies 

emerging in the fields of energy efficiency and small scale renewables and Albertans will know that every 

single dollar invested will generate social, economic and environmental pay offs. Those benefits will be 

experienced both in the short term and in the long term. 

The work of our panel will ensure that the benefits are maximized in line with international best practices 

and that accountability for performance is hardwired into the design of the independent agency that will 

be charged with responsibility for developing and executing programs. 

The agency needs to be high performing and effective, measuring and reporting on performance in real 

time. In addition the agency needs to enthuse Albertans with the possibilities: for transformation of the 

provincial economy; for the creation of opportunity for Indigenous communities and other key sectors of 

Alberta’s municipal and civil society sectors; for reductions in energy costs for all consumers; and for 

social and environmental leadership in Canada. 

It is the job of our panel – working closely with all stakeholders and communities – to design and deliver 

that vision. 

 

Dr. David Wheeler, Chair, Energy Efficiency Advisory Panel 

June 2016  

79



 

  3 

Overview and Context: Energy Efficiency and 

Community Energy in Alberta  

Alberta’s Climate Leadership Plan was launched in November 2015, based on recommendations from the 

Climate Change Advisory Panel. This panel, chaired by Dr. Andrew Leach, based on public, Indigenous 

and stakeholder engagement, delivered a report with specific recommendations on energy efficiency and 

community energy: 

• An energy efficiency strategy is a key complementary program to the proposed economy-
wide carbon levy. 

• A dedicated Energy Efficiency Alberta entity would address the unique structure of the 
Alberta electricity market. 

• Energy efficiency programming should be broadened to include the deployment of 
community-scale energy systems. 

• Performance accountabilities are foundational to the programming and least cost 
incremental reductions should be pursued as a priority. 

• Integrating services for audits, incentives, financing and installation for the full range of 
best new building energy technologies can reduce barriers to adoption.  

Demand-side management and community energy systems will help reduce greenhouse gas emission in 

households, communities and businesses, help Albertans reduce their energy use and lower their energy 

costs.  

In Budget 2016, Alberta estimated that, over the next five years, carbon pricing is expected to raise  

$9.6 billion, all of which will be reinvested in the economy and a rebate program for Albertans:  

• $6.2 billion will help diversify our energy industry and create new jobs:   

- $3.4 billion for large-scale renewable energy, bioenergy and technology; 

- $2.2 billion for green infrastructure such as transit; and 

- $645 million for Energy Efficiency Alberta, a new provincial agency that will support 
energy efficiency programs and services for homes and businesses. 

• $3.4 billion will help households, businesses and communities adjust to the carbon levy. 

The Government of Alberta, through the Climate Leadership Implementation Act, established Energy 

Efficiency Alberta, a public agency to deliver energy efficiency and community energy system programs. 

The agency will be established and operational by the end of 2016, with the expectation that energy 

efficiency and community energy system programs will be launched in early 2017. The agency will:  

• Raise awareness among energy consumers of energy use and the associated economic 
and environmental consequences; 

80



 

  4 

• Promote, design and deliver energy efficiency and conservation programs, and develop 
community energy systems (including community energy systems, and micro- and small-
scale generation); and 

• Promote the development of an energy efficiency and community energy services 
industry.  

The agency will ensure programs are relevant to a broad range of Albertans, organizations and 

industries, including rural, remote and Indigenous communities, the agricultural sector, businesses and 

small industrial consumers, and not-for-profits
1
.  

Energy Efficiency Advisory Panel  

The Energy Efficiency Advisory Panel will help launch Energy Efficiency Alberta. The panel will engage 

with Albertans and produce a report to the Minister of Environment and Parks, Responsible for the 

Climate Change Office, on the path forward. The report will include: 

• Advice on programs the agency could undertake that would be lowest cost and highest 
impact in terms of maximizing economic and social benefits, while significantly reducing 
greenhouse gas emissions. 

• Recommendations for education and outreach initiatives to help consumers reduce 
energy use and emissions. 

• A vision for energy efficiency’s long-term mission and goals. Recommendations will 
include how to promote, design and deliver demand-side energy management programs 
that deliver an environmental advantage. Examples include energy efficiency and 
conservation, fuel switching, demand response, and demand-side energy systems. 

The panel comprises individuals with the expertise and experience that will help Alberta establish long-

term energy efficiency and community energy systems programming to bring the greatest reduction of 

greenhouse gas emissions at the lowest overall cost to the economy. 

Over the coming months, the panel will gather input from Albertans, Indigenous communities, municipal 

and other civil society sectors, and technical stakeholders. This will ensure a well-rounded perspective on 

the challenges and opportunities related to energy efficiency and community energy. 

Visit www.EnergyEfficiency.alberta.ca for more information, to learn about the engagement process, 

opportunities, to attend public meetings, or to submit feedback online.  

 

 

 

                                                      

1 Examples may include replacing diesel generated electricity in remote First Nation communities, or bioenergy operations on farms. 

81



 

  5 

 

The image above outlines how the panel’s engagement ties into the development of the agency and the 

launch of programs in early 2017.  

The purpose of this document is to help facilitate discussions by highlighting the various energy efficiency 

and community energy program areas, programming tools and opportunities available to Albertans. 

 

 

 

Energy Efficiency and Community Energy Systems  

Discussion Document 

Public Engagement  
(Online and Community) 

Indigenous Communities  
Engagement 

Technical Engagement 

Panel Advice to Minister Responsible for the  
Climate Change Office   

Energy Efficiency Alberta Established 

Energy Efficiency Advisory Panel Established 

Launch Initial Programs Early 2017 

82



 

  6 

 

Opportunities for Energy Efficiency and 

Community Energy  

Energy efficiency is widely recognized as the most cost-effective way to reduce greenhouse gas 

emissions. Energy efficiency is always less expensive and easier to use than developing new energy 

sources over the long term. Through energy efficiency gains, it is possible to defer the development of 

new sources of energy while continuing to meet demand.  

Across Alberta, the unique needs of individuals, communities and businesses may differ. Energy 

efficiency and community energy programs can be designed specifically to cater to these sectors. For 

example:  

• Province-wide programs (residential, commercial and transportation) 

• Indigenous community programs 

• Institutional programs (schools, hospitals, charitable sector) 

• Lower-income programs 

• Agricultural programs and programs with a rural focus 

For the purposes of this document: 

Energy efficiency refers to initiatives that would increase the effective use of energy through a 

particular technology or process. Exchanging a light bulb for one that uses less energy is an example 

of energy efficiency.  

Energy conservation is simply using less energy. Turning off a light when you leave the room is an 

example of energy conservation. 

Demand side management (DSM) refers to all changes made by energy users to achieve large-

scale energy efficiency improvements (International Energy Agency, 2011). It includes activities that 

change how much energy consumers use, when it is used it, or in what form – for example shifting 

electricity use from periods of high peak to off-peak hours, and improving energy efficiency and 

conservation.  

Community energy systems technologies includes both micro-generation and small-scale energy 

generation. Micro-generation is not intended to produce electricity beyond the owner’s needs. 

Generated capacity is less than one megawatt from alternative or renewable sources of energy. 

Small-scale community generation refers to generation owned by a local community, co-operative or 

non-profit organization (including schools, post-secondary institutions and hospitals, etc.). Generation 

capacity from alternative or renewable sources of energy may be larger than a micro-generation site.  

83



 

  7 

• Small/medium business and small industrial consumer programs 

• Not-for-profit group programs 

• Community energy systems including district energy, combined heat and power and 
small-scale renewables 

• Programs targeting micro-generation 

Each unique sector or area has opportunities for efficiency in housing, buildings, transportation and 

renewable and alternative energy are available. Within housing, specific opportunities include:  

• Heating, ventilation and air conditioning systems (HVAC) 

• Building envelope (e.g., insulation) 

• Information and building management (e.g., day-to-day operations, programmable 
thermostats, smart metering, storage, etc.) 

• End-use technologies (e.g., kitchen appliances, electronics); 

• Lighting 

• Renewable energy generation 

In the transportation sector, energy efficiency opportunities include:  

• Fuel switching (from gas vehicles to electric, hybrid and other advanced technology 
vehicles) 

• Conservation (e.g., ride sharing, public transportation, biking or walking); 

• Vehicle fuel efficiency awareness (e.g., fuel consumption labels, comparator charts) 

• Driving practices (e.g., slow acceleration, driving consistent speeds) 

Barriers to Implementing Energy Efficiency and 

Community Energy 

While energy efficiency is one of the best ways to achieve cost-effective greenhouse gas emission 

reductions, it is sometimes difficult to implement energy efficiency improvements. A number of factors 

such as those below can be barriers to adoption.  

Awareness – Homeowners, businesses and communities can be unaware of their level of energy 

efficiency and are unsure what they can do to change their energy consumption. 

Ownership Transfer Barrier – This arises when the payback period on an energy efficiency upgrade or 

a small scale renewable investment exceeds the length of time the owner or manager will own a facility or 

business. 

84



 

  8 

Payback Periods - Individual consumers, businesses and communities are sometimes much more 

sensitive to the initial cost of a device than to future long-term cost savings. 

Split Incentive Problem – This arises when the person, business or community responsible for facility 

maintenance is not responsible for energy costs, which means there is no incentive to make efficiency 

upgrades or explore opportunities for renewable energy, smart grid or storage investments. 

Technical Capacity – Individuals, community organizations and small businesses may lack access to 

technical expertise and may be unable to explore and execute investments in efficiency or small scale 

renewables. 

Technological Risk – New or unfamiliar technologies are sometimes associated with higher risk, 

because of unproven performance. 

Transaction Costs - There can be time-consuming steps involved in improving energy efficiency and 

deploying community energy systems, including energy audits, researching energy efficiency 

opportunities, designing systems and installing devices. 

Upfront Costs - The upfront costs for high-impact energy efficiency upgrades, or the need to finance a 

renewable energy development, may exceed the capital budgets for repairs and renovations at 

household, small business or community levels. 

How do we overcome these barriers to promote energy efficiency and 

community energy? 

 

 

 

Discussion – Barriers:  

Q1. Are there barriers not listed that you think are important? 

Q2: What are the most significant barriers to adopting energy efficient and community energy 

system technologies that are common to all sectors?   

Q3. Are certain barriers unique to a particular sector?   

Q4. Given the large number of potential program areas, where should government focus its efforts in 

the short-, medium- and long-term? 

85



 

  9 

Programming Tools and Options 

Different programing tools can promote energy efficiency and community energy systems. 

Consumers can take advantage of a number of available low-cost energy efficiency measures. Many 

homeowners and businesses, however, are not fully aware of opportunities to reduce their energy 

consumption and utility bills. Education and outreach provides information on best practices in 

technology as well as associated benefits and risks. This allows consumers to learn about new 

technologies and compare different options to improve energy efficiency.  

Examples: 

• Home and business energy assessment tools 

• Detailed energy billing 

• Building and equipment labeling  

• Consumer-focused websites  

A major barrier to implementing energy efficiency is the up-front capital costs associated with many 

energy efficiency improvements. Incentives, whether direct grants or loans, or indirect tax breaks, help 

users adopt newer, more efficient technologies. Incentives can reduce some risk of investing in new 

technologies to reduce energy use and greenhouse gas emissions. 

Examples: 

• Rebates for new energy efficiency and community energy system technologies  

• No- or low-interest loans 

• Rebates for household and business energy audits 

Once technologies mature, implementing standards and regulations and other policy tools can ensure 

the level of energy efficiency is continually improving throughout all sectors in the province. 

Complementary programs and policy approaches support improvements.  

Examples: 

• Equipment and appliance minimum performance standards 

• Building codes 

 

86



 

  10 

What programming tools best promote energy efficiency and community 

energy? 

 

Defining Success  

To design effective energy efficiency and community energy programs, it is necessary to develop an 

objective approach to determine which technologies should be selected. Some examples of measures of 

success include: 

Economic impact: the number of stable green jobs associated with program options and the direct and 

indirect benefits to urban and rural economies associated with the implementation of programs. 

Cost-effectiveness: the cost of achieving greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions reductions, also known as 

the abatement cost. Technology or behaviour changes with a lower abatement cost will achieve greater 

emissions reductions and energy savings per dollar invested. 

GHG reduction potential: the total GHG reduction potential of a particular technology or program.  

Incentive cost: the cost of the incentive to motivate energy consumers to adopt the technology or 

behaviours (based on the incremental cost between the conventional technology/behaviour and the 

energy efficient alternative).  

Proven: the program or technology has been proven to be successful in Alberta, or elsewhere in the 

world. 

Regional diversity and reach: the potential reach of a particular technology or program in terms of the 

number of households, people, buildings, communities or businesses that can implement this technology.  

Regional relevance: ensuring that programs are helpful to Albertans in all types of communities, 

including rural and remote. 

Social benefit: the reduction of energy costs to low- and middle income households. 

Social inclusion: the economic and social benefits to Indigenous communities, for example, through job 

creation and lower energy costs per household. 

Discussion – Programming Tools:  

Q1. Which programming tools are most effective at driving uptake of energy efficiency and 

community energy system technologies and why? 

Q2. Are certain programming tools more effective than others at driving efficiency in a particular 

sector? If so, please specify the programming tool (or combination of tools) and the sector. 

87



 

  11 

What measures of success best demonstrate energy efficiency and 

community energy? 

 

Technologies 

A large number of energy efficiency and community energy technologies and measures are available to 

consumers. Technologies vary significantly from sector to sector, and in terms of capital costs, installation 

costs, maturity of technology, and impact on energy use. Energy audits often are used to assess the 

specific needs of a household, business or industrial facility, and to recommend appropriate equipment or 

appliance upgrades. 

 

Discussion – Measures of Success: 

Q1. Which measures of success do you feel are most important to informing energy efficiency and 

community energy programming?   

Q2. Are there additional measures you would add? Are there any measures you think should be 

removed?    

88



 

  12 

Examples of Energy Efficient Technologies and Practices 

 Category Technologies and Behaviours 

R
e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
B

u
il

d
in

g
s

 

Low cost conservation 

measures 

Programmable thermostats, weather stripping, low flow 

showerheads, energy audits 

Appliances High efficiency appliances (e.g., fridges, washing machines) 

Space and water heating Insulation, high efficiency furnace and hot water heaters, 

waste heat recovery systems 

Lighting Light emitting diodes (LED)  

Building operations Day-to-day management and operations to improve 

efficiency 

Behavioural change Individuals take responsibility for reducing energy use 

C
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l 

B
u

il
d

in
g

s
 

Auxiliary Motors High efficiency motors 

Space and water heating High efficiency furnaces and boilers, furnace vent dampers, 

and waste heat recovery 

Lighting Fluorescent upgrades (e.g., t5), bulb, light emitting diodes 

(LED) 

Auxiliary equipment High efficiency equipment 

Building operations Day-to-day management and operations to improve 

efficiency 

Behavioural change Individuals take responsibility for reducing energy use 

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

a
ti

o
n

 

High efficiency passenger 

and commercial vehicles 

High efficiency gasoline, high efficiency diesel, hybrid 

electric and electric vehicles 

Commercial vehicle 

upgrades 

Devices to increase efficiency of commercial vehicles (e.g., 

anti-idling devices, aerodynamic aids, etc.) 

Conservation and efficient 

driving techniques 

Ride sharing, public transit, fuel consumption labeling, 

driving consistent speeds, slow acceleration, etc.  

 

  

89



 

  13 

Examples of Small-Scale and Community Energy Technologies and Practices 

Technology Application Examples Considerations 

Solar 

Photovoltaic 

(Solar PV) - 

Producing 

electricity 

using solar 

energy 

• Residential 

• Commercial 

• MUSH sector (Municipal, 

Universities, Schools and 

Hospitals) 

• Industrial 

• Community 

• Capital costs decrease as technology 

improves 

• Alberta has good solar PV potential 

• Requires space and access to sunlight  

Solar 

Thermal – 

Producing hot 

water using 

solar energy 

• Residential 

• Commercial 

• MUSH sector 

• Industrial 

• Mature technology 

• Alberta has good solar thermal potential 

• Requires space and access to sunlight 

Small Wind 

Turbines 

• Residential 

• Commercial 

• MUSH sector  

• Not as common as solar technologies 

• Wind potential varies throughout Alberta 

Geothermal 

– using 

earth’s heat to 

produce 

electricity 

and/or heat 

• Residential 

• Commercial 

• MUSH sector 

• Industrial 

• Community 

• Potential varies throughout province 

• Installation is more involved than other 

technologies 

• Can include benefit of electricity and 

heat provisions 

Combined 

Heat and 

Power 

systems 

• Commercial 

• MUSH sector 

• Industrial 

• Community 

• Improved efficiency with combined 

generation 

• Scalable and suitable for aggregate and 

larger systems  

90



 

  14 

What technologies and practices best drive energy efficiency and 

community energy? 

 

Getting Involved 

Albertans are invited to participate and provide feedback to the Energy Efficiency Advisory 

Panel. This feedback will inform energy efficiency and community energy system programming, 

which can help Albertans, businesses and communities transition to a lower carbon economy.  

Visit www.EnergyEfficiency.alberta.ca for more information, to learn about the engagement 

process, opportunities, to attend public meetings, or to submit feedback online.  

 

 

 

 

Discussion – Technologies and Practices:  

Q1. What are the most important factors in determining which technologies and practices should be 

included in energy efficiency and community energy programs?   

91



92



Agenda Item # 9. b) 
 

Author: C. Simpson Reviewed by:  CAO: CG 
 

 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 
 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: August 9, 2016 

Presented By: Carol Gabriel, Interim Chief Administrative Officer 

Title:  Mighty Peace Watershed Working Alliance Groups 

 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
The Mighty Peace Watershed Alliance (MPWA) is the designated Watershed Planning 
and Advisory Council for the Peace and Slave River Watersheds in Alberta under the 
Water for Life strategy.  Currently several issues of concern have been identified by the 
MPWA and now appropriate people are being sought to contribute to a multi-
stakeholder, consensus decision-making process in a Working Group setting.  Two 
concern areas that have been identified are: 

• Non- saline Ground Water 
• Peace River Flow Regime 

 
The goal for these working groups is to have draft recommendations about how to deal 
with the Non-saline Ground Water in the Peace and Slave River Watersheds, and how 
to approach the Peace River Flow as an issue of concern ready by January 2017. 
 
Specific to the concern of the Peace River Flow Regime they are in need of people who 
are involved in water quality, quantity and use and represent the sectors present in the 
watershed to work through this issue.   
 
Specific to the Non-saline Ground water issue they are looking for people who are 
involved with non-saline ground water use and represent the range of sectors in the 
watershed to work through this issue. 
 
Attached is the list of components and questions for the Non-Saline Ground Water 
working group as well the list of components and questions for the Peace River Flow 
Regime Working group. 
 
They are hoping that someone from Mackenzie County could fill the Rural 
Municipality seat for the Non-saline Groundwater working group and that 

93



Author: C. Simpson Reviewed by:  CAO: CG 
 

someone could fill the Rural Municipality/Fort Vermillion seat for the Peace River 
Flow Regime working group. 
 
Interested participants are asked to commit to 5 meetings (full days) from September 
2016 to January 2017. 
 
Also attached are the Terms of Reference for both of the working group. 
 
 
OPTIONS & BENEFITS: 
 
 
 
COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
 
Honorariums and travel and subsistence for meeting attendance – Operating Budget 
 
 
SUSTAINABILITY PLAN: 
 
 
 
COMMUNICATION: 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
 Simple Majority  Requires 2/3  Requires Unanimous 
 
For discussion. 

94



From: Adam Norris
To: Carol Gabriel
Cc: Eric Jorgensen
Subject: MPWA working groups
Date: July-25-16 9:38:20 AM
Attachments: Non-saline Ground Water working group letter 4.7.16.pdf

Non-saline Ground Water Draft Terms of Reference.pdf
Peace River Flow Regime working group letter 4.7.16.pdf
Peace River Flow Regime Draft Terms of Reference.pdf

Hi Carol, thanks for talking with me this morning.  I have attached a letter of invitation and draft
 Terms of Reference for each of the working groups.  We are hoping that someone from Mackenzie
 County could fill the Rural Municipality seat for the Non-saline Groundwater working group and
 someone could fill the Rural Municipality/Fort Vermillion seat for the Peace River Flow Regime
 working group.
Please let me know if there are any questions.
Thank you,

Adam Norris, M.Sc., B.i.T.
Watershed Coordinator
Mighty Peace Watershed Alliance
Box 217, McLennan, AB T0H 2L0
Office: 780-324-3355 
Cell: 780-552-4354
email: mpwa.coordinator@telus.net
Website: http://www.mightypeacewatershedalliance.org

95

mailto:mpwa.coordinator@telus.net
mailto:cgabriel@mackenziecounty.com
mailto:eric@mackenziecounty.com
mailto:mpwa.coordinator@telus.net
http://www.mightypeacewatershedalliance.org/



 


 


P.O. Box 217, McLennan, AB, T0H 2L0 - 205 First St East – WC Kirkland Building Phone: 780-324-3355 - Fax: 780-324-3377 
Web:    www.mightypeacewatershedalliance.org   email:   info@mightypeacewatershedalliance.org 


 


 
 


 
 
July 4, 2016 
 
 
The Mighty Peace Watershed Alliance (MPWA) is the designated Watershed Planning and Advisory Council for the 
Peace and Slave River Watersheds in Alberta under the Water for Life strategy.  Presently, the MPWA is working on 
an Integrated Watershed Management Plan for the Peace and Slave River Watersheds in Alberta.  Several Issues of 
Concern have already been identified by the MPWA and now appropriate people are being sought to contribute to 
a multi-stakeholder, consensus decision- making process in a Working Group setting.  One identified Issue of 
Concern is Non-saline Ground Water. 
 
Our goal is to have draft recommendations about how to deal with Non-saline Ground Water in the Peace and 
Slave River Watersheds ready by January 2017.  The background work completed in the State of the Watershed 
and other technical projects will provide a basis for moving this process forward.  What we need are people who 
are involved with non-saline ground water use and represent the range of sectors present in the watershed to 
work through this issue.  This will involve ensuring the issue is framed properly, reviewing impacts of land 
use/human activity on watershed function, examining and evaluating Beneficial Management Practices (BMPs) to 
mitigate negative impacts and using consensus decision-making to identify the most appropriate BMPs for the 
Peace and Slave River Watersheds. 
 
The Non-saline Ground Water Working Group will provide draft recommendations to the Integrated Watershed 
Management Plan Steering Committee who will then bring all the Issues of Concern together and take it to the 
MPWA Board of Directors for validation.  The Integrated Watershed Management Plan, including the Non-saline 
Ground Water component, will be then taken out for validation by the different sectors in the Watershed.  The 
plan will make recommendations to solve issues and feed in to the Government of Alberta’s Land Use Framework 
and Regional Planning Efforts. 
 
The following is a list of components and questions to help start the work of the Non-Saline Ground Water working 
group. 
 


1. Conflicts between industrial and residential use of ground water      
a. Fox creek/Valleyview area availability 
b. Hot spots - wherever there is currently a lot of Oil and Gas activity 
c. West County of Grande Prairie/ Wembley  
d. West of Saddle Hills - natural gas contamination of drinking wells 
e. La Crete area 
f. What interaction is there between hydraulic fracturing and non-saline ground water? 


2. Lack of background information 
a. Capacity and recharge rates of aquifers 
b. Linkages between ground water and surface water 
c. What are the exact problems with the lack of information (examples)? 
d. What is the viability of aerial surveys for the Peace and Slave watersheds and ground water 


mapping 
3. Sharing of information 


a. What information does Alberta Energy Regulator receive about water discoveries? 
b. What is the feasibility of bringing together all the known information on ground water including 


driller's logs? 
c. Who becomes responsible for integrating ground water information? 







 


 


P.O. Box 217, McLennan, AB, T0H 2L0 - 205 First St East – WC Kirkland Building Phone: 780-324-3355 - Fax: 780-324-3377 
Web:    www.mightypeacewatershedalliance.org   email:   info@mightypeacewatershedalliance.org 


 
 
 
 
 
 


d. Where is there uncollated data? 
e. Is there a well drillers association? 
f. Well testing/water quality in ground water? What are the current reporting requirements? 


4. Who will do the gap filling work?  
5. Availability of ground water reserves and their sustainability 


a. What risks are there to our non-saline ground water? 
6. Public Education about ground water 
7. Grimshaw Gravels Aquifer - could this be an example/model/template for management? 


a. What are the risks to future sustainability? How do we set thresholds? 
8. Identify resources for ground water management (ground water mapping) 


a. What are the BMPs? Are they being used? Are they effective? Who is doing these?  
9. Potability 


a. Assess the risk of selenium in ground water in the upper watershed? 
b. Are there are any other particular contaminants that are a risk locally? Arsenic, mercury 
c. Access to drinking water 


10. Is there an appropriate regulatory framework in place surrounding Non-saline Ground Water? 
a. Is there an appropriate metric to determine when and where non-saline ground water will be 


used so that it is sustainable? 
b. How do Alberta Energy Regulator and Alberta Environment and Parks interact on ground water?  


 
 
 


We are asking interested participants to commit to at least 5 meetings (full day) from September 2016 to January 
2017, of Non-saline Ground Water, land use that is affecting ground water and potential solutions or opportunities 
to the table.  Work will be done in a multi-stakeholder setting and the ability to constructively engage with those 
from a different sector or with a different opinion is critical.  
 
More information regarding the MPWA or the Integrated Watershed Management Plan can be found on our 
website mightypeacewatershedalliance.org or by contacting the office at 780-324-3355. 
 
 
 
Thank you, 
 
The Integrated Watershed Management Plan Steering Committee 
 
By: 
 
 
 
Adam Norris 
Watershed Coordinator 
780-552-4354 
mpwa.coordinator@telus.net 








  IWMP Working Group TOR  June 2016 
 


Non-saline Ground Water  1 | P a g e  
 


 
Integrated Watershed Management Plan Working Group 


Non-saline Ground Water 


 Terms of Reference 


The following document describes the purpose and structure of the working groups including what they 


should achieve, who will participate, how work will be done and when it will be completed. The Board of 


Directors approved these Terms of Reference on  


Context 


The Mighty Peace Watershed Alliance Society (MPWA) is a multi-stakeholder not-for-profit organization 


registered under Alberta’s Society Act. The MPWA is one of several Watershed Planning and Advisory 


Councils created under Alberta’s Water for Life strategy. The MPWA is committed to achieving and 


implementing the three goals of the strategy: 


 Safe, secure drinking water supply 


 Healthy aquatic ecosystems 


 Reliable, quality water supplies for a sustainable economy. 


The implementation of these goals is guided by the vision, mission and shared values of the MPWA:  


 Vision – The Peace is a healthy, sustainable watershed that supports our social environmental 


 and economic objectives. 


 Mission – To promote watershed excellence, the Mighty Peace Watershed Alliance will monitor 


 cumulative effects from land use practices, industry and other activities in the watershed and 


 work to address issues through science, education, communication policy and by supporting 


 watershed stewardship. 


 Shared Values - The Mighty Peace Watershed Alliance will: 


Respect a diversity of peoples 
and values 


By demonstrating individual and collective respect for the air, land 
and water and by appreciating the diversity of values and opinions 
found in the Peace watershed. 







  IWMP Working Group TOR  June 2016 
 


Non-saline Ground Water  2 | P a g e  
 


Be an ambassador By promoting our vision and mission, demonstrating integrity, 
accountability and practicality, and practicing effective 
communication, knowledge-building and consensus decision-
making. 


Be a trustworthy and 
credible source of 
information 


By being well-informed and providing sound advice through an 
adaptive watershed approach that integrates traditional local and 
scientific knowledge in information-gathering and problem solving. 


Be fair and 
transparent to all 


By seeking balanced representation and listening to all 
stakeholders in an open, transparent manner. 


Be inclusive and 
collaborative 


By facilitating inclusive and collaborative processes and 
partnerships, promoting membership and interaction and 
providing opportunities for all stakeholders to be involved. 


 Be action-oriented and 
innovative 


By being motivated, resourceful and action-oriented in finding 
new, innovative ideas and win-win strategies. 


Foster 
stewardship 


By encouraging and enabling individuals and organizations to be 
good stewards of the watershed. 


 


Objectives 


The working groups will work through the Issues of Concern as directed by the Integrated 


Watershed Management Plan Steering Committee (IWMP SC) in a consensus process. The end 


goal for each Issue of Concern is a set of concrete recommendations to the IWMP SC on how to 


improve water quality and quantity in pursuit of the 3 goals of the Water for Life strategy.  This 


includes statements about the Issue of Concern and potential options for addressing this, which 


are ranked. 


 


Working Group Task  
 


1. To review the information presented by the Integrated Watershed Management Plan 


Steering Committee (IWMP SC), review and assess for completeness and data gaps.  


 


2. The working group will ensure that Issue of Concern is properly framed through discussion 


and brainstorming. 


 


3. The working group will develop statements for their assigned Issues of Concern to clarify 


and frame the issue.  Subsequent to this, the working group will identify and evaluate 


potential management options of how to address the issues. 


 


4. Finally, recommendations will be made by the Working Group to the IWMP SC on how 


best to move forward on their designated Issue of Concern.  This recommendation will 


include ranked management options and indications of the consensus achieved within the 


Working Group.  







  IWMP Working Group TOR  June 2016 
 


Non-saline Ground Water  3 | P a g e  
 


 What is in scope? 


  The IWMP SC will indicate to each working group what the Issue(s) of Concern  


  they are to deal with is/are.  Each issue is to be considered, diagnosed and  


  potential management options for addressing are to be sought out, collected  


  and evaluated. Please see Appendix I for more detail on each Issue of Concern. 


 


 What is out of scope? 


  Issues of Concern not assigned to a particular Working Group are out of scope,  


  as is engaging consultants without the approval of the IMWP SC or   


  implementation activities. The Working Groups will not engage is lobbying or  


  promotion of a particular management option.   


 


Membership 


1. Membership of the Integrated Watershed Management Plan Working Groups must be 


approved by the IWMP SC and shall consist of the following classifications: 


 Non-saline Ground Water 


 Agriculture and Forestry member 


 Alberta Environment and Parks member 


 Alberta Geological Survey member 


 Alberta Energy Regulator member 


 First Nation member 


 Grimshaw Gravels Aquifer Management Advisory Association member 


 Integrated Watershed Management Plan Steering Committee member 


 Mining Industry member 


 Municipality using ground water member 


 North Peace Tribal Council Land and Water Table member 


 Oil and Gas Industry member 


 Public at Large member 


 Rural Municipality member 


 


2. The Working Group can, with approval from the IWMP SC, call upon the expertise of people 


outside the Working Group and outside the MPWA.  


 


Meetings 


 Meetings will be set as required and notification will be provided electronically. 


 


 







  IWMP Working Group TOR  June 2016 
 


Non-saline Ground Water  4 | P a g e  
 


 


Reporting 


 1. The Working Groups is responsible to and reports to the Integrated Watershed Management 


 Plan Steering Committee, which in turn is responsible to and reports to the MPWA board 


 (MPWA Process Guide section 6.1).  


 2. The Working Group will report to the IMWP SC after every meeting and the IWMP SC will 


 report to the Board at minimum at every regular Board meeting. 


Quorum 


 A simple majority of committee members shall constitute quorum.  


Delegation  
  
 The Working Group may, with permission from the IWMP SC, delegate tasks to other qualified 
 individuals or groups.  


 


Timelines 


 The Working Group will convene in September 2016 and complete their work by January  2017. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 








 


 


P.O. Box 217, McLennan, AB, T0H 2L0 - 205 First St East – WC Kirkland Building Phone: 780-324-3355 - Fax: 780-324-3377 
Web:    www.mightypeacewatershedalliance.org   email:   info@mightypeacewatershedalliance.org 


 


 
 


 
 
July 4, 2016 
 
 
The Mighty Peace Watershed Alliance (MPWA) is the designated Watershed Planning and Advisory Council for the 
Peace and Slave River Watersheds in Alberta under the Water for Life strategy.  Presently, the MPWA is working on 
an Integrated Watershed Management Plan for the Peace and Slave River Watersheds in Alberta.  Several Issues of 
Concern have already been identified by the MPWA and now appropriate people are being sought to contribute to 
a multi-stakeholder, consensus decision- making process in a Working Group setting.  One identified Issue of 
Concern is the Peace River Flow Regime. 
 
Our goal is to have draft recommendations about how to approach Peace River Flow Regime as an Issue of 
Concern in the Peace and Slave River Watersheds ready by January 2017.  The background work completed in the 
State of the Watershed and other technical projects will provide a basis for moving this process forward.  What we 
need are people who are involved with water quality, quantity and use and represent the range of sectors present 
in the watershed to work through this issue.  This will involve ensuring the issue is framed properly, reviewing 
impacts of land use/human activity on watershed function, examining and evaluating Beneficial Management 
Practices (BMPs) to mitigate negative impacts and using consensus decision-making to identify the most 
appropriate BMPs for the Peace and Slave River Watersheds. 
 
The Peace River Flow Regime Use Working Group will provide draft recommendations to the Integrated Watershed 
Management Plan Steering Committee who will then bring all the Issues of Concern together and take it to the 
MPWA Board of Directors for Validation.  The Integrated Watershed Management Plan, including the Peace River 
Flow Regime component, will be then taken out for validation by the different sectors in the Watershed.  The plan 
will make recommendations to solve issues and feed in to the Government of Alberta’s Land Use Framework and 
Regional Planning Efforts. 
 
The following is a list of components and questions to help start the work of the Peace River Flow Regime working 
group. 
 


1. Assess funding options for characterizing the management options for  wetlands affected by flow regime 
2. Effect of flow regime on lower Peace Watershed wetlands 
3. How to be ensure effective Parks Canada engagement 
4. Is the amount of gauging along the Peace River appropriate? 
5. What are the costs (operational, structural and hazards) and benefits associated with changes to flow 


regime? 
6. What are the transboundary issues?  What processes are in place to deal with these? 
7. What are the data gaps about ice jams? What are the possible solutions to deal with it? 
8. What changes in flow regime are needed to achieve desired ecological outcomes? 


a. What frequency of flooding is needed to achieve ecological outcomes? 
b. What drives flooding in wetlands complexes beyond ice jams? 
c. Effect on wildlife and fish 
d. Effect on riparian zone 
e. Impact on channel development 
f. How do we apply the optimization model to the different objectives for flow regime? 
g. Effect on water temperature 
h. Volume and timing 
i. What percentage of the flooding is controlled by BC dams? 







 


 


P.O. Box 217, McLennan, AB, T0H 2L0 - 205 First St East – WC Kirkland Building Phone: 780-324-3355 - Fax: 780-324-3377 
Web:    www.mightypeacewatershedalliance.org   email:   info@mightypeacewatershedalliance.org 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 


j. What are the alternatives to ice jams for restoring ecological function? 
9. What are the flood risks associated with changed flow regimes?  
10. What are the barriers to addressing data gaps? 
11. How does this Issue of Concern fit into in the Land Use Framework? 
12. Effects of flow regime on the ability of First nations to exercise Mode of Life as guaranteed by Treaties 
13. What technical resources are available (eg. Lidar, satellite digital elevation model)? 
14. What should be the objectives for the flow regime? 
15. What conditions are necessary to enable transportation (ferries, ice bridges, First Nations/bush travel 


with boats)?  What costs/benefits are associated with restoring these? 
16. Effect on recreational opportunities 
17. Promote communication of relevant information between parties  
18. Assemble and present First Nation’s knowledge and concerns around the impact of Peace River Flow 


Regime on their way of life 
19. Understand and promote the work done by Peace Athabasca Delta Ecological Monitoring Program 
20. Identify opportunity within the trans-boundary process to inform and make recommendations 


 
 
We are asking interested participants to commit to 5 meetings (full day) from September 2016 to January 2017, to 
bring understanding of Peace River Flow Regime and potential solutions or opportunities to the table.  Work will 
be done in a multi-stakeholder setting and the ability to constructively engage with those from a different sector or 
with a different opinion is critical.  
 
More information regarding the MPWA or the Integrated Watershed Management Plan can be found on our 
website mightypeacewatershedalliance.org or by contacting the office at 780-324-3355. 
 
 
Thank you, 
 
The Integrated Watershed Management Plan Steering Committee 
 
By: 
 
 
 
 
Adam Norris 
Watershed Coordinator 
780-552-4354 
mpwa.coordinator@telus.net 
 








  IWMP Working Group TOR  June 2016 
 


Peace River Flow Regime  1 | P a g e  
 


 
Integrated Watershed Management Plan Working Group 


Peace River Flow Regime 


 Terms of Reference 


The following document describes the purpose and structure of the working groups including what they 


should achieve, who will participate, how work will be done and when it will be completed. The Board of 


Directors approved these Terms of Reference on  


Context 


The Mighty Peace Watershed Alliance Society (MPWA) is a multi-stakeholder not-for-profit organization 


registered under Alberta’s Society Act. The MPWA is one of several Watershed Planning and Advisory 


Councils created under Alberta’s Water for Life strategy. The MPWA is committed to achieving and 


implementing the three goals of the strategy: 


 Safe, secure drinking water supply 


 Healthy aquatic ecosystems 


 Reliable, quality water supplies for a sustainable economy. 


The implementation of these goals is guided by the vision, mission and shared values of the MPWA:  


 Vision – The Peace is a healthy, sustainable watershed that supports our social environmental 


 and economic objectives. 


 Mission – To promote watershed excellence, the Mighty Peace Watershed Alliance will monitor 


 cumulative effects from land use practices, industry and other activities in the watershed and 


 work to address issues through science, education, communication policy and by supporting 


 watershed stewardship. 


 Shared Values - The Mighty Peace Watershed Alliance will: 


Respect a diversity of peoples 
and values 


By demonstrating individual and collective respect for the air, land 
and water and by appreciating the diversity of values and opinions 
found in the Peace watershed. 







  IWMP Working Group TOR  June 2016 
 


Peace River Flow Regime  2 | P a g e  
 


Be an ambassador By promoting our vision and mission, demonstrating integrity, 
accountability and practicality, and practicing effective 
communication, knowledge-building and consensus decision-
making. 


Be a trustworthy and 
credible source of 
information 


By being well-informed and providing sound advice through an 
adaptive watershed approach that integrates traditional local and 
scientific knowledge in information-gathering and problem solving. 


Be fair and 
transparent to all 


By seeking balanced representation and listening to all 
stakeholders in an open, transparent manner. 


Be inclusive and 
collaborative 


By facilitating inclusive and collaborative processes and 
partnerships, promoting membership and interaction and 
providing opportunities for all stakeholders to be involved. 


 Be action-oriented and 
innovative 


By being motivated, resourceful and action-oriented in finding 
new, innovative ideas and win-win strategies. 


Foster 
stewardship 


By encouraging and enabling individuals and organizations to be 
good stewards of the watershed. 


 


Objectives 


The working groups will work through the Issues of Concern as directed by the Integrated 


Watershed Management Plan Steering Committee (IWMP SC) in a consensus process. The end 


goal for each Issue of Concern is a set of concrete recommendations to the IWMP SC on how to 


improve water quality and quantity in pursuit of the 3 goals of the Water for Life strategy.  This 


includes statements about the Issue of Concern and potential options for addressing this, which 


are ranked. 


 


Working Group Task  
 


1. To review the information presented by the Integrated Watershed Management Plan 


Steering Committee (IWMP SC), review and assess for completeness and data gaps.  


 


2. The working group will ensure that Issue of Concern is properly framed through discussion 


and brainstorming. 


 


3. The working group will develop statements for their assigned Issues of Concern to clarify 


and frame the issue.  Subsequent to this, the working group will identify and evaluate 


potential management options of how to address the issues. 


 


4. Finally, recommendations will be made by the Working Group to the IWMP SC on how 


best to move forward on their designated Issue of Concern.  This recommendation will 


include ranked management options and indications of the consensus achieved within the 


Working Group.  







  IWMP Working Group TOR  June 2016 
 


Peace River Flow Regime  3 | P a g e  
 


 What is in scope? 


  The IWMP SC will indicate to each working group what the Issue(s) of Concern  


  they are to deal with is/are.  Each issue is to be considered, diagnosed and  


  potential management options for addressing are to be sought out, collected  


  and evaluated. Please see Appendix I for more detail on each Issue of Concern. 


 


 What is out of scope? 


  Issues of Concern not assigned to a particular Working Group are out of scope,  


  as is engaging consultants without the approval of the IMWP SC or   


  implementation activities. The Working Groups will not engage is lobbying or  


  promotion of a particular management option.   


 


Membership 


1. Membership of the Integrated Watershed Management Plan Working Groups must be 


approved by the IWMP SC and shall consist of the following classifications: 


 Peace River Flow Regime  


 Alberta Environment and Parks member 


 Alberta Transportation member 


 BC Hydro member 


 Environmental Non-Government Organization member 


 First Nation (outside of Wood Buffalo National Park) member 


 First Nation member of Peace-Athabasca Delta Ecological Monitoring 


Program member 


 Hamlet of Fort Vermilion member 


 Integrated Watershed Management Plan Steering Committee member 


 Neutral Scientific Advisor 


 Parks Canada member 


 Rural Municipality member 


 Town of Peace River member 


 Trans-boundary Secretariat member 


 Upper Watershed Aboriginal Community member 


 


2. The Working Group can, with approval from the IWMP SC, call upon the expertise of people 


outside the Working Group and outside the MPWA.  


 


Meetings 


 Meetings will be set as required and notification will be provided electronically. 







  IWMP Working Group TOR  June 2016 
 


Peace River Flow Regime  4 | P a g e  
 


 


 


 


Reporting 


 1. The Working Groups is responsible to and reports to the Integrated Watershed Management 


 Plan Steering Committee, which in turn is responsible to and reports to the MPWA board 


 (MPWA Process Guide section 6.1).  


 2. The Working Group will report to the IMWP SC after every meeting and the IWMP SC will 


 report to the Board at minimum at every regular Board meeting. 


Quorum 


 A simple majority of committee members shall constitute quorum.  


Delegation  
  
 The Working Group may, with permission from the IWMP SC, delegate tasks to other qualified 
 individuals or groups.  


 


Timelines 


 The Working Group will convene in September 2016  and complete their work by January  2017. 







 

 

P.O. Box 217, McLennan, AB, T0H 2L0 - 205 First St East – WC Kirkland Building Phone: 780-324-3355 - Fax: 780-324-3377 
Web:    www.mightypeacewatershedalliance.org   email:   info@mightypeacewatershedalliance.org 

 

 
 

 
 
July 4, 2016 
 
 
The Mighty Peace Watershed Alliance (MPWA) is the designated Watershed Planning and Advisory Council for the 
Peace and Slave River Watersheds in Alberta under the Water for Life strategy.  Presently, the MPWA is working on 
an Integrated Watershed Management Plan for the Peace and Slave River Watersheds in Alberta.  Several Issues of 
Concern have already been identified by the MPWA and now appropriate people are being sought to contribute to 
a multi-stakeholder, consensus decision- making process in a Working Group setting.  One identified Issue of 
Concern is Non-saline Ground Water. 
 
Our goal is to have draft recommendations about how to deal with Non-saline Ground Water in the Peace and 
Slave River Watersheds ready by January 2017.  The background work completed in the State of the Watershed 
and other technical projects will provide a basis for moving this process forward.  What we need are people who 
are involved with non-saline ground water use and represent the range of sectors present in the watershed to 
work through this issue.  This will involve ensuring the issue is framed properly, reviewing impacts of land 
use/human activity on watershed function, examining and evaluating Beneficial Management Practices (BMPs) to 
mitigate negative impacts and using consensus decision-making to identify the most appropriate BMPs for the 
Peace and Slave River Watersheds. 
 
The Non-saline Ground Water Working Group will provide draft recommendations to the Integrated Watershed 
Management Plan Steering Committee who will then bring all the Issues of Concern together and take it to the 
MPWA Board of Directors for validation.  The Integrated Watershed Management Plan, including the Non-saline 
Ground Water component, will be then taken out for validation by the different sectors in the Watershed.  The 
plan will make recommendations to solve issues and feed in to the Government of Alberta’s Land Use Framework 
and Regional Planning Efforts. 
 
The following is a list of components and questions to help start the work of the Non-Saline Ground Water working 
group. 
 

1. Conflicts between industrial and residential use of ground water      
a. Fox creek/Valleyview area availability 
b. Hot spots - wherever there is currently a lot of Oil and Gas activity 
c. West County of Grande Prairie/ Wembley  
d. West of Saddle Hills - natural gas contamination of drinking wells 
e. La Crete area 
f. What interaction is there between hydraulic fracturing and non-saline ground water? 

2. Lack of background information 
a. Capacity and recharge rates of aquifers 
b. Linkages between ground water and surface water 
c. What are the exact problems with the lack of information (examples)? 
d. What is the viability of aerial surveys for the Peace and Slave watersheds and ground water 

mapping 
3. Sharing of information 

a. What information does Alberta Energy Regulator receive about water discoveries? 
b. What is the feasibility of bringing together all the known information on ground water including 

driller's logs? 
c. Who becomes responsible for integrating ground water information? 

96



 

 

P.O. Box 217, McLennan, AB, T0H 2L0 - 205 First St East – WC Kirkland Building Phone: 780-324-3355 - Fax: 780-324-3377 
Web:    www.mightypeacewatershedalliance.org   email:   info@mightypeacewatershedalliance.org 

 
 
 
 
 
 

d. Where is there uncollated data? 
e. Is there a well drillers association? 
f. Well testing/water quality in ground water? What are the current reporting requirements? 

4. Who will do the gap filling work?  
5. Availability of ground water reserves and their sustainability 

a. What risks are there to our non-saline ground water? 
6. Public Education about ground water 
7. Grimshaw Gravels Aquifer - could this be an example/model/template for management? 

a. What are the risks to future sustainability? How do we set thresholds? 
8. Identify resources for ground water management (ground water mapping) 

a. What are the BMPs? Are they being used? Are they effective? Who is doing these?  
9. Potability 

a. Assess the risk of selenium in ground water in the upper watershed? 
b. Are there are any other particular contaminants that are a risk locally? Arsenic, mercury 
c. Access to drinking water 

10. Is there an appropriate regulatory framework in place surrounding Non-saline Ground Water? 
a. Is there an appropriate metric to determine when and where non-saline ground water will be 

used so that it is sustainable? 
b. How do Alberta Energy Regulator and Alberta Environment and Parks interact on ground water?  

 
 
 

We are asking interested participants to commit to at least 5 meetings (full day) from September 2016 to January 
2017, of Non-saline Ground Water, land use that is affecting ground water and potential solutions or opportunities 
to the table.  Work will be done in a multi-stakeholder setting and the ability to constructively engage with those 
from a different sector or with a different opinion is critical.  
 
More information regarding the MPWA or the Integrated Watershed Management Plan can be found on our 
website mightypeacewatershedalliance.org or by contacting the office at 780-324-3355. 
 
 
 
Thank you, 
 
The Integrated Watershed Management Plan Steering Committee 
 
By: 
 
 
 
Adam Norris 
Watershed Coordinator 
780-552-4354 
mpwa.coordinator@telus.net 

97



 

 

P.O. Box 217, McLennan, AB, T0H 2L0 - 205 First St East – WC Kirkland Building Phone: 780-324-3355 - Fax: 780-324-3377 
Web:    www.mightypeacewatershedalliance.org   email:   info@mightypeacewatershedalliance.org 

 

 
 

 
 
July 4, 2016 
 
 
The Mighty Peace Watershed Alliance (MPWA) is the designated Watershed Planning and Advisory Council for the 
Peace and Slave River Watersheds in Alberta under the Water for Life strategy.  Presently, the MPWA is working on 
an Integrated Watershed Management Plan for the Peace and Slave River Watersheds in Alberta.  Several Issues of 
Concern have already been identified by the MPWA and now appropriate people are being sought to contribute to 
a multi-stakeholder, consensus decision- making process in a Working Group setting.  One identified Issue of 
Concern is the Peace River Flow Regime. 
 
Our goal is to have draft recommendations about how to approach Peace River Flow Regime as an Issue of 
Concern in the Peace and Slave River Watersheds ready by January 2017.  The background work completed in the 
State of the Watershed and other technical projects will provide a basis for moving this process forward.  What we 
need are people who are involved with water quality, quantity and use and represent the range of sectors present 
in the watershed to work through this issue.  This will involve ensuring the issue is framed properly, reviewing 
impacts of land use/human activity on watershed function, examining and evaluating Beneficial Management 
Practices (BMPs) to mitigate negative impacts and using consensus decision-making to identify the most 
appropriate BMPs for the Peace and Slave River Watersheds. 
 
The Peace River Flow Regime Use Working Group will provide draft recommendations to the Integrated Watershed 
Management Plan Steering Committee who will then bring all the Issues of Concern together and take it to the 
MPWA Board of Directors for Validation.  The Integrated Watershed Management Plan, including the Peace River 
Flow Regime component, will be then taken out for validation by the different sectors in the Watershed.  The plan 
will make recommendations to solve issues and feed in to the Government of Alberta’s Land Use Framework and 
Regional Planning Efforts. 
 
The following is a list of components and questions to help start the work of the Peace River Flow Regime working 
group. 
 

1. Assess funding options for characterizing the management options for  wetlands affected by flow regime 
2. Effect of flow regime on lower Peace Watershed wetlands 
3. How to be ensure effective Parks Canada engagement 
4. Is the amount of gauging along the Peace River appropriate? 
5. What are the costs (operational, structural and hazards) and benefits associated with changes to flow 

regime? 
6. What are the transboundary issues?  What processes are in place to deal with these? 
7. What are the data gaps about ice jams? What are the possible solutions to deal with it? 
8. What changes in flow regime are needed to achieve desired ecological outcomes? 

a. What frequency of flooding is needed to achieve ecological outcomes? 
b. What drives flooding in wetlands complexes beyond ice jams? 
c. Effect on wildlife and fish 
d. Effect on riparian zone 
e. Impact on channel development 
f. How do we apply the optimization model to the different objectives for flow regime? 
g. Effect on water temperature 
h. Volume and timing 
i. What percentage of the flooding is controlled by BC dams? 

98



 

 

P.O. Box 217, McLennan, AB, T0H 2L0 - 205 First St East – WC Kirkland Building Phone: 780-324-3355 - Fax: 780-324-3377 
Web:    www.mightypeacewatershedalliance.org   email:   info@mightypeacewatershedalliance.org 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

j. What are the alternatives to ice jams for restoring ecological function? 
9. What are the flood risks associated with changed flow regimes?  
10. What are the barriers to addressing data gaps? 
11. How does this Issue of Concern fit into in the Land Use Framework? 
12. Effects of flow regime on the ability of First nations to exercise Mode of Life as guaranteed by Treaties 
13. What technical resources are available (eg. Lidar, satellite digital elevation model)? 
14. What should be the objectives for the flow regime? 
15. What conditions are necessary to enable transportation (ferries, ice bridges, First Nations/bush travel 

with boats)?  What costs/benefits are associated with restoring these? 
16. Effect on recreational opportunities 
17. Promote communication of relevant information between parties  
18. Assemble and present First Nation’s knowledge and concerns around the impact of Peace River Flow 

Regime on their way of life 
19. Understand and promote the work done by Peace Athabasca Delta Ecological Monitoring Program 
20. Identify opportunity within the trans-boundary process to inform and make recommendations 

 
 
We are asking interested participants to commit to 5 meetings (full day) from September 2016 to January 2017, to 
bring understanding of Peace River Flow Regime and potential solutions or opportunities to the table.  Work will 
be done in a multi-stakeholder setting and the ability to constructively engage with those from a different sector or 
with a different opinion is critical.  
 
More information regarding the MPWA or the Integrated Watershed Management Plan can be found on our 
website mightypeacewatershedalliance.org or by contacting the office at 780-324-3355. 
 
 
Thank you, 
 
The Integrated Watershed Management Plan Steering Committee 
 
By: 
 
 
 
 
Adam Norris 
Watershed Coordinator 
780-552-4354 
mpwa.coordinator@telus.net 
 

99



  IWMP Working Group TOR  June 2016 
 

Non-saline Ground Water  1 | P a g e  
 

 
Integrated Watershed Management Plan Working Group 

Non-saline Ground Water 

 Terms of Reference 

The following document describes the purpose and structure of the working groups including what they 

should achieve, who will participate, how work will be done and when it will be completed. The Board of 

Directors approved these Terms of Reference on  

Context 

The Mighty Peace Watershed Alliance Society (MPWA) is a multi-stakeholder not-for-profit organization 

registered under Alberta’s Society Act. The MPWA is one of several Watershed Planning and Advisory 

Councils created under Alberta’s Water for Life strategy. The MPWA is committed to achieving and 

implementing the three goals of the strategy: 

 Safe, secure drinking water supply 

 Healthy aquatic ecosystems 

 Reliable, quality water supplies for a sustainable economy. 

The implementation of these goals is guided by the vision, mission and shared values of the MPWA:  

 Vision – The Peace is a healthy, sustainable watershed that supports our social environmental 

 and economic objectives. 

 Mission – To promote watershed excellence, the Mighty Peace Watershed Alliance will monitor 

 cumulative effects from land use practices, industry and other activities in the watershed and 

 work to address issues through science, education, communication policy and by supporting 

 watershed stewardship. 

 Shared Values - The Mighty Peace Watershed Alliance will: 

Respect a diversity of peoples 
and values 

By demonstrating individual and collective respect for the air, land 
and water and by appreciating the diversity of values and opinions 
found in the Peace watershed. 

100



  IWMP Working Group TOR  June 2016 
 

Non-saline Ground Water  2 | P a g e  
 

Be an ambassador By promoting our vision and mission, demonstrating integrity, 
accountability and practicality, and practicing effective 
communication, knowledge-building and consensus decision-
making. 

Be a trustworthy and 
credible source of 
information 

By being well-informed and providing sound advice through an 
adaptive watershed approach that integrates traditional local and 
scientific knowledge in information-gathering and problem solving. 

Be fair and 
transparent to all 

By seeking balanced representation and listening to all 
stakeholders in an open, transparent manner. 

Be inclusive and 
collaborative 

By facilitating inclusive and collaborative processes and 
partnerships, promoting membership and interaction and 
providing opportunities for all stakeholders to be involved. 

 Be action-oriented and 
innovative 

By being motivated, resourceful and action-oriented in finding 
new, innovative ideas and win-win strategies. 

Foster 
stewardship 

By encouraging and enabling individuals and organizations to be 
good stewards of the watershed. 

 

Objectives 

The working groups will work through the Issues of Concern as directed by the Integrated 

Watershed Management Plan Steering Committee (IWMP SC) in a consensus process. The end 

goal for each Issue of Concern is a set of concrete recommendations to the IWMP SC on how to 

improve water quality and quantity in pursuit of the 3 goals of the Water for Life strategy.  This 

includes statements about the Issue of Concern and potential options for addressing this, which 

are ranked. 

 

Working Group Task  
 

1. To review the information presented by the Integrated Watershed Management Plan 

Steering Committee (IWMP SC), review and assess for completeness and data gaps.  

 

2. The working group will ensure that Issue of Concern is properly framed through discussion 

and brainstorming. 

 

3. The working group will develop statements for their assigned Issues of Concern to clarify 

and frame the issue.  Subsequent to this, the working group will identify and evaluate 

potential management options of how to address the issues. 

 

4. Finally, recommendations will be made by the Working Group to the IWMP SC on how 

best to move forward on their designated Issue of Concern.  This recommendation will 

include ranked management options and indications of the consensus achieved within the 

Working Group.  

101



  IWMP Working Group TOR  June 2016 
 

Non-saline Ground Water  3 | P a g e  
 

 What is in scope? 

  The IWMP SC will indicate to each working group what the Issue(s) of Concern  

  they are to deal with is/are.  Each issue is to be considered, diagnosed and  

  potential management options for addressing are to be sought out, collected  

  and evaluated. Please see Appendix I for more detail on each Issue of Concern. 

 

 What is out of scope? 

  Issues of Concern not assigned to a particular Working Group are out of scope,  

  as is engaging consultants without the approval of the IMWP SC or   

  implementation activities. The Working Groups will not engage is lobbying or  

  promotion of a particular management option.   

 

Membership 

1. Membership of the Integrated Watershed Management Plan Working Groups must be 

approved by the IWMP SC and shall consist of the following classifications: 

 Non-saline Ground Water 

 Agriculture and Forestry member 

 Alberta Environment and Parks member 

 Alberta Geological Survey member 

 Alberta Energy Regulator member 

 First Nation member 

 Grimshaw Gravels Aquifer Management Advisory Association member 

 Integrated Watershed Management Plan Steering Committee member 

 Mining Industry member 

 Municipality using ground water member 

 North Peace Tribal Council Land and Water Table member 

 Oil and Gas Industry member 

 Public at Large member 

 Rural Municipality member 

 

2. The Working Group can, with approval from the IWMP SC, call upon the expertise of people 

outside the Working Group and outside the MPWA.  

 

Meetings 

 Meetings will be set as required and notification will be provided electronically. 

 

 

102



  IWMP Working Group TOR  June 2016 
 

Non-saline Ground Water  4 | P a g e  
 

 

Reporting 

 1. The Working Groups is responsible to and reports to the Integrated Watershed Management 

 Plan Steering Committee, which in turn is responsible to and reports to the MPWA board 

 (MPWA Process Guide section 6.1).  

 2. The Working Group will report to the IMWP SC after every meeting and the IWMP SC will 

 report to the Board at minimum at every regular Board meeting. 

Quorum 

 A simple majority of committee members shall constitute quorum.  

Delegation  
  
 The Working Group may, with permission from the IWMP SC, delegate tasks to other qualified 
 individuals or groups.  

 

Timelines 

 The Working Group will convene in September 2016 and complete their work by January  2017. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

103



  IWMP Working Group TOR  June 2016 
 

Peace River Flow Regime  1 | P a g e  
 

 
Integrated Watershed Management Plan Working Group 

Peace River Flow Regime 

 Terms of Reference 

The following document describes the purpose and structure of the working groups including what they 

should achieve, who will participate, how work will be done and when it will be completed. The Board of 

Directors approved these Terms of Reference on  

Context 

The Mighty Peace Watershed Alliance Society (MPWA) is a multi-stakeholder not-for-profit organization 

registered under Alberta’s Society Act. The MPWA is one of several Watershed Planning and Advisory 

Councils created under Alberta’s Water for Life strategy. The MPWA is committed to achieving and 

implementing the three goals of the strategy: 

 Safe, secure drinking water supply 

 Healthy aquatic ecosystems 

 Reliable, quality water supplies for a sustainable economy. 

The implementation of these goals is guided by the vision, mission and shared values of the MPWA:  

 Vision – The Peace is a healthy, sustainable watershed that supports our social environmental 

 and economic objectives. 

 Mission – To promote watershed excellence, the Mighty Peace Watershed Alliance will monitor 

 cumulative effects from land use practices, industry and other activities in the watershed and 

 work to address issues through science, education, communication policy and by supporting 

 watershed stewardship. 

 Shared Values - The Mighty Peace Watershed Alliance will: 

Respect a diversity of peoples 
and values 

By demonstrating individual and collective respect for the air, land 
and water and by appreciating the diversity of values and opinions 
found in the Peace watershed. 

104



  IWMP Working Group TOR  June 2016 
 

Peace River Flow Regime  2 | P a g e  
 

Be an ambassador By promoting our vision and mission, demonstrating integrity, 
accountability and practicality, and practicing effective 
communication, knowledge-building and consensus decision-
making. 

Be a trustworthy and 
credible source of 
information 

By being well-informed and providing sound advice through an 
adaptive watershed approach that integrates traditional local and 
scientific knowledge in information-gathering and problem solving. 

Be fair and 
transparent to all 

By seeking balanced representation and listening to all 
stakeholders in an open, transparent manner. 

Be inclusive and 
collaborative 

By facilitating inclusive and collaborative processes and 
partnerships, promoting membership and interaction and 
providing opportunities for all stakeholders to be involved. 

 Be action-oriented and 
innovative 

By being motivated, resourceful and action-oriented in finding 
new, innovative ideas and win-win strategies. 

Foster 
stewardship 

By encouraging and enabling individuals and organizations to be 
good stewards of the watershed. 

 

Objectives 

The working groups will work through the Issues of Concern as directed by the Integrated 

Watershed Management Plan Steering Committee (IWMP SC) in a consensus process. The end 

goal for each Issue of Concern is a set of concrete recommendations to the IWMP SC on how to 

improve water quality and quantity in pursuit of the 3 goals of the Water for Life strategy.  This 

includes statements about the Issue of Concern and potential options for addressing this, which 

are ranked. 

 

Working Group Task  
 

1. To review the information presented by the Integrated Watershed Management Plan 

Steering Committee (IWMP SC), review and assess for completeness and data gaps.  

 

2. The working group will ensure that Issue of Concern is properly framed through discussion 

and brainstorming. 

 

3. The working group will develop statements for their assigned Issues of Concern to clarify 

and frame the issue.  Subsequent to this, the working group will identify and evaluate 

potential management options of how to address the issues. 

 

4. Finally, recommendations will be made by the Working Group to the IWMP SC on how 

best to move forward on their designated Issue of Concern.  This recommendation will 

include ranked management options and indications of the consensus achieved within the 

Working Group.  

105



  IWMP Working Group TOR  June 2016 
 

Peace River Flow Regime  3 | P a g e  
 

 What is in scope? 

  The IWMP SC will indicate to each working group what the Issue(s) of Concern  

  they are to deal with is/are.  Each issue is to be considered, diagnosed and  

  potential management options for addressing are to be sought out, collected  

  and evaluated. Please see Appendix I for more detail on each Issue of Concern. 

 

 What is out of scope? 

  Issues of Concern not assigned to a particular Working Group are out of scope,  

  as is engaging consultants without the approval of the IMWP SC or   

  implementation activities. The Working Groups will not engage is lobbying or  

  promotion of a particular management option.   

 

Membership 

1. Membership of the Integrated Watershed Management Plan Working Groups must be 

approved by the IWMP SC and shall consist of the following classifications: 

 Peace River Flow Regime  

 Alberta Environment and Parks member 

 Alberta Transportation member 

 BC Hydro member 

 Environmental Non-Government Organization member 

 First Nation (outside of Wood Buffalo National Park) member 

 First Nation member of Peace-Athabasca Delta Ecological Monitoring 

Program member 

 Hamlet of Fort Vermilion member 

 Integrated Watershed Management Plan Steering Committee member 

 Neutral Scientific Advisor 

 Parks Canada member 

 Rural Municipality member 

 Town of Peace River member 

 Trans-boundary Secretariat member 

 Upper Watershed Aboriginal Community member 

 

2. The Working Group can, with approval from the IWMP SC, call upon the expertise of people 

outside the Working Group and outside the MPWA.  

 

Meetings 

 Meetings will be set as required and notification will be provided electronically. 

106



  IWMP Working Group TOR  June 2016 
 

Peace River Flow Regime  4 | P a g e  
 

 

 

 

Reporting 

 1. The Working Groups is responsible to and reports to the Integrated Watershed Management 

 Plan Steering Committee, which in turn is responsible to and reports to the MPWA board 

 (MPWA Process Guide section 6.1).  

 2. The Working Group will report to the IMWP SC after every meeting and the IWMP SC will 

 report to the Board at minimum at every regular Board meeting. 

Quorum 

 A simple majority of committee members shall constitute quorum.  

Delegation  
  
 The Working Group may, with permission from the IWMP SC, delegate tasks to other qualified 
 individuals or groups.  

 

Timelines 

 The Working Group will convene in September 2016  and complete their work by January  2017. 

107



108



Agenda Item # 9. c) 
 

Author: C. Gabriel Reviewed by:  CAO: CG 
 

 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 
 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: August 9, 2016 

Presented By: Carol Gabriel, Interim Chief Administrative Officer 

Title:  Mackenzie Housing Management Board Member 
Appointments 

 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
The Mackenzie Housing Management Board has sent a letter (attached) requesting that 
the County extend the member appointments to December 31, 2016. 
 
Appointments to the Mackenzie Housing Management Board are for a one year term 
ending in October of each year.  Due to the amalgamation of housing authorities 
expected to take place on January 1, 2017, they are requesting that the current 
appointments be extended. 
 
 
OPTIONS & BENEFITS: 
 
Once the amalgamation process has been completed a new Ministerial Order is in place 
for the new Board advertising will occur for application to the new Board. 
 
 
COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
 
N/A 
 
 
SUSTAINABILITY PLAN: 
 
N/A 
 
 
COMMUNICATION: 
 
Members will be notified by letter of the extension of their appointments. 

109



Author: C. Gabriel Reviewed by:  CAO: CG 
 

 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
 Simple Majority  Requires 2/3  Requires Unanimous 
 
That the current member appointments to the Mackenzie Housing Management Board 
be extended to December 31, 2016. 
 

110



111



112



Agenda Item # 9. d) 
 

Author: C. Gabriel Reviewed by:  CAO: CG 
 

 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 
 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: August 9, 2016 

Presented By: Carol Gabriel, Interim Chief Administrative Officer 

Title:  Boreal Housing Foundation – Draft Ministerial Order 

 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
Attached is the draft Ministerial Order (MO) for the amalgamated housing board called 
the Boreal Housing Foundation as discussed at the Tri-Council meeting on August 3, 
2016.  The changes discussed at the Tri-Council meeting have been approved by the 
implementation committee members and therefore it is being presented to each 
Council.  The Implementation Committee is seeking support from each municipality to 
go forward with sending the MO to the Minister for approval. 
 
 
OPTIONS & BENEFITS: 
 
 
 
 
COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
 
 
 
 
SUSTAINABILITY PLAN: 
 
 
 
 
COMMUNICATION: 
 
 
 

113



Author: C. Gabriel Reviewed by:  CAO: CG 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
 Simple Majority  Requires 2/3  Requires Unanimous 
 
That Mackenzie County support the draft Boreal Housing Foundation Ministerial Order 
as presented. 
 

114



 

Page 1 of 3 
 

APPENDIX 
 

Boreal Housing Foundation 
 

1.  Boreal Housing Foundation (hereafter referred to as the “management body”) is hereby 
established as a management body. 
 

2. The members of the management body are as follows: 
 

• Mackenzie County 
• Town of High Level 
• Town of Rainbow Lake 
• La Crete Municipal Nursing Association 
• Dene Tha First Nation 
• Beaver First Nation 
• Tall Cree First Nation 
• Little Red Cree First Nation 
 

3. (1) The management body shall be governed by a board (hereafter referred to as “the 
board”), comprised of a maximum of thirteen (13) members appointed from within the borders 
of Mackenzie County as follows, and in accordance to subsection (2): 
 
(a) Three (3) members of the board shall be appointed by Mackenzie County.  

 
(b) Two (2) members of the board shall be appointed by the Town of High Level as follows: 

 
(c) Two (2) members of the board shall be appointed by the Town of Rainbow Lake as follows: 

 
(d) Two (2) members of the Board shall be appointed by La Crete Municipal Nursing 

Association.   
 

(e) One (1) member of the Board shall be appointed by the Dene Tha First Nation. 
 
(f) One (1) member shall be appointed by the Beaver First Nation 
 
(g) One (1) member shall be appointed by the tall Cree First Nation; and 
 
(h) One  (1) member shall be appointed by Little Red Cree First Nation 
 

(2) For the purposes of subsection 3(1), the members of the management body have the 
sole discretion to determine: 

 
(a) The boundaries of the areas from which the members of the board may be appointed; 
(b) How residency in the areas from which members of the board may be determined. 

 
(3)  The board shall be appointed as follows: 

115



 

Page 2 of 3 
 

 
(a) Members of the board shall be appointed by the member of the management body in 

accordance with the Order and at the times the board request the member of the 
management body. 
 

(b) The term of office for each member of the board shall be for a one (1) year term.  
 

(c) Members of the board appointed under clause 3(a), may hold consecutive terms of office. 
 

(d) If the office of a board member is vacated, an individual shall be appointed to the board in 
the same manner as the vacating member of the board, on the vacancy occurring or as 
soon as possible thereafter, as a member of the board to complete the term of the vacating 
member. 
 

(e) The chairperson, vice-chairperson or any other officer of the board; as the board 
determines necessary, shall be appointed from among the board members in the manner 
and at the times the board determines appropriate. 
 

(f) The term of office for the chairperson, vice-chairperson or any other officers of the board 
shall be for a one (1) year term. 

 
(g) The chairperson, vice-chairperson or any other officers of the board, may hold consecutive 

terms of office, as long as each officer is a member of the board. 
 

(4)  The lodge reserve policy cannot be changed without the unanimous approval of all the 
members of the Board. 

 
(5)  The board is a continuing body. 
 
(6)  The board shall provide the Deputy Minister with the name of its chairperson and vice-

chairperson as soon as possible on selection, and shall notify the Deputy Minister of any 
change of chairperson and vice-chairperson. 

 
 

4. The board shall: 
(a) Designate the offices of the management body and 

 
(b) Immediately notify the Deputy Minister of the location of its primary place of business 

in Alberta and any other offices, the management body address for service, and any 
change in the location of such offices or address for service. 

 
5. For the purpose of providing lodge accommodation, the management body may requisition the 

following municipalities: 
 

• Mackenzie County 
• Town of High Level 
• Town of Rainbow Lake 

 

116



 

Page 3 of 3 
 

6. A minimum of seven (7) voting board members is considered quorum. 
 

7. All financial matters of the lodge requires a three quarter (6) majority approval of the 
requisitioning board appointees to pass the motion; and a two thirds (9) approval of the full 
board.  All other matters require a majority vote of the full board. 

 
8. (1) The management body is responsible for the operation and administration of the housing 

accommodation listed in Schedule “A” 
 
(2) In addition to the housing accommodation operated under subsection 8(1), the management 
body may operate Rent Supplement housing accommodation as designations are allocated to the 
management body by the Minister under the Rent Supplement Program Regulation. 
 

9. For the purpose of the Act, the management body has and is subject to the powers, functions or 
duties as provided in the following Regulations: 

 
(a) Management Body Operations and Administration Regulation; 

(b) Social Housing Accommodation Regulation 

(c) Housing Accommodation Tenancies Regulation; 

(d) Rent Supplement Regulation; and 

(e) Lodge Assistance Program Regulation 

 
 

 
 

117



118



Agenda Item # 10. a) 
 

Author: C. Sarapuk Reviewed by:  CAO: CG 
 

 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 
 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: August 9, 2016 

Presented By: Grant Smith, Agricultural Fieldman 

Title:  Policy ASB020 Wolf Depredation Management Policy 

 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
Council made a motion at the July 12, 2016 Council meeting for the implementation of a 
wolf bounty effective immediately in response to conserving the caribou in our region as 
a result of the issues identified at the caribou protection area stakeholder information 
session held on July 11, 2016. 
 
Subsequently administration drafted a Wolf Depredation Management policy which was 
circulated to Council and presented to the Agricultural Service Board (ASB) on July 28, 
2016 for review.  The ASB is recommending approval by Council.  A copy of the policy 
is attached. 
 
 
OPTIONS & BENEFITS: 
 
 
 
COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
 
Council has established a budget of $100,000 and set the wolf bounty at $200.00/wolf 
carcass. 
 
 
SUSTAINABILITY PLAN: 
 
 
 
COMMUNICATION: 
 
 

119



Author: C. Sarapuk Reviewed by:  CAO: CG 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
 Simple Majority  Requires 2/3  Requires Unanimous 
 
That Policy ASB020 Wolf Depredation Management Policy be adopted as presented. 
 

120



MACKENZIE COUNTY 
 

Title AGRICULTURE SERVICE BOARD – 
WOLF DEPREDATION MANAGEMENT 
PROGRAM 

Policy No. ASB020 

 
Legislation Reference  
 
Purpose: 
Mackenzie County supports wolf population control efforts in order to reduce 
Livestock and Boreal Woodland Caribou (Rangifer Tarandus Caribou) predation.  
Mackenzie County will implement procedures to provide a Wolf Depredation 
Management Program for the purpose of promoting the lawful harvesting of 
wolves.  Through this program, participants will receive monetary compensation 
for the entire carcass of an adult wolf lawfully harvested within the boundaries of 
Mackenzie County. 
 
 
Policy Statement and Guidelines 
 
1. Mackenzie County Wolf Depredation Management Program will be 

established for a period of one calendar year, at which time, the program and 
this policy will be evaluated. 

 
2. Council will, during budget deliberations, establish a budget for the Wolf 

Depredation Management Program. 
 

3. By resolution of Council, the Wolf Depredation Management Program will be 
activated or terminated. 

 
4. Mackenzie County shall pay compensation of two hundred dollars ($200) per 

adult wolf taken by a registrant within the boundaries of Mackenzie County in 
accordance with the listed conditions. 

 
5. Eligible registrants requesting compensation shall be registered in advance 

with Mackenzie County and have entered into a Hold-Harmless Agreement, 
attached as Appendix A. 

 
6. Entire wolf carcass shall be delivered to a location designated by the 

Agricultural Fieldman for examination and marking, and authorization of 
payment of compensation; 

a) Examination of the carcass will be performed to verify the animal 
has been destroyed by means other than vertebrate toxicant. 

b) The carcass will be marked by a representative of Mackenzie 
County; a carcass that has been previously marked will be rejected. 

121



Mackenzie County Policy ASB020  Page 2 of 2 
Wolf Depredation Management Program 
 
 

c) If eligible, the claimant will be provided with a payment 
authorization. 
 

7. Registrants will be responsible for disposal of all parts of the wolf carcass 
using provincially recognized carcass disposal methods. 

 
8. To request authorization for compensation, the participants will provide proof 

of permission from the owner or authorized occupant of the land upon which 
the harvested was conducted, and declare the following; 

a) The legal land location where the wolf was harvested. 
b) The date of harvest. 
c) The harvest was conducted in a lawful manner, in accordance with 

current legislation. 
d) The participant in the legal landowner or authorized occupant of the 

land; and/or 
e) The participant had permission to harvest on said land. 

 
9. Individuals participating on the Wolf Depredation Management Program will 

follow all Federal and Provincial Legislation and Regulations including, but not 
limited to the Wildlife Act and Wildlife Regulations, the Firearms Act, the Petty 
Trespass Act, and Alberta Hunting and Trapping Regulations, and any 
amendments or successor legislation thereto. 

 
10. Participants will be removed from the list of eligible participants and will forfeit 

all benefits form the said program; if it is determined they have not adhered to 
the Policy as set by Mackenzie County Council. 

 
11. Disputes over eligible claims for compensation will be settled at the discretion 

of the Agricultural Fieldman or designate, whose decision will be final and 
binding.  

 
 
 Date Resolution Number 
Approved   
Amended   
Amended   
 

122



Page 1 of 3 

Policy ASB020 Wolf Depredation Management Program 
Appendix A 

 
Contract of Participation - Wolf Depredation Management Program 

Between Participants and Mackenzie County 
 

In an effort to support population control efforts and to further public interest 
regarding predatory wildlife, Mackenzie County (“County”) has approved a Wolf 
Depredation Management Program (“Program”) for the purpose of promoting wolf 
harvesting within the County.  Through this program, eligible individuals 
(“Participants”) will receive monetary compensation (“Compensation”) with the 
presentation at a location designated by County Administration of an adult wolf 
carcass harvested lawfully within the County and in accordance with this Contract 
(“Contract”) of Participation. 

 
The terms and conditions of participation in the Program are as follows; 

 
1. STATUTORY ADHERENCE: While participating in the Program, the 

Participant will, at all times, abide by all statutes, regulations, and bylaws 
enacted by the Federal, Provincial, and Municipal governments, and the 
Participant agrees there has been NO violation of any statutory or regulatory 
provision in any way. The relevant statutes include but are not limited to: the 
Firearms Act, the Petty Trespass Act, the Wildlife Act, and the Wildlife 
Regulations or any current Hunting or Trapping Regulations. A Participant 
who fails to strictly adhere to all relevant laws will forfeit any right to 
compensation under the Program. 
 

2. INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS: The Participant will indemnify 
and hold harmless the County, its officers, representatives, agents and 
employees, from and against any and all liability for any and all claims, costs, 
damages and expenses or liability arising out of or on account of injury or 
death to persons or damage or destruction to property resulting from or 
arising out of or in any way connected to the Program or participation in the 
Program. 
 

3. PRECONDITIONS OF COMPENSATION: Intended participants will notify the 
Agricultural Fieldman or his/her designate of their intention to participate in the 
Program, in advance of participation. In order to obtain the compensation, the 
entire carcass of a lawfully harvested adult wolf will be presented to an 
appropriate representative of the County at a delivery point as designated by 
the representative responsible for administration of the Program. Any carcass 
received by a representative of the County will be marked, and any carcass 
that has been previously marked by a representative of the County will be 
rejected. To qualify for the compensation, a wolf must have been lawfully 
harvested within the boundaries of the County, by a ratepayer of the County.  
Any individual who has not previously agreed to the terms and  conditions of 

123



Policy ASB020 Wolf Depredation Management Program 
Appendix A – Contract of Participation 

 

Page 2 of 3 
 

this Contract will be considered ineligible to receive the Compensation. The 
Participant will provide the date of harvest and the location where each wolf 
was harvested, and will produce appropriate documentation as follows: 
 

a. If the wolf was harvested on private property, the Participant will, at 
the time of presentation of the carcass to a representative of the 
County, produce either: 
 
i. a letter of permission, signed by the registered owner or 

authorized occupant of the property, authorizing the 
Participant to harvest wolves on the property, or 
 

ii. proof that the Participant is the registered owner or authorized 
occupant of the property 

 
b. If the wolf was harvested on public lands used for Agricultural 

Production such as grazing leases, the Participant will, at the time of 
presentation of the carcass to a representative of the County, produce 
one of the following: 

 
i. proof that the Participant is authorized to maintain livestock on that 

land, 
ii. a letter of permission, signed by the person authorized to 

maintain livestock on that land, authorizing the Participant to 
harvest wolves on the land, 

iii. proof that the land is within 8 kilometers (5 miles) of property 
owned by the Participant or lands on which the Participant is 
authorized to maintain livestock, or lands for which the 
Participant has a signed letter authorizing permission as 
contemplated in (ii) above: 
a) and if the land is leased, a letter of permission, signed by the 

lessee. 
b) and if the land is not leased, proof that the land is not leased. 

 
c. Any wolf that was harvested on crown land not being used for 

Agricultural Production (green zone) will be accepted under the 
following conditions; 

i. Written permission from the trapline owner. 
ii. Participant holds a big game license within big game season.  

 
4. COMPENSATION: If, and only if, the representative of the County is satisfied 

that the Participant has complied with the terms and conditions of this 
Contract, the compensation will be paid by the County to the Participant. 
Compensation will be paid by the County to a successful Participant at the rate 
established in the Fee Schedule Bylaw, which may be amended from time to 
time as determined by Council for the County. 

124



Policy ASB020 Wolf Depredation Management Program 
Appendix A – Contract of Participation 

 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 
 
SIGNED on this   day of  , 2  . 

 
 
   
Participant Name  Participant Signature 
   

County Representative Name  County Representative Signature 
 

125



126



Agenda Item # 11. a) 

Author: Ron Pelensky Reviewed by:  CAO: CG 
 

 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 
 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: August 9, 2016 

Presented By: Ron Pelensky, Director of Community Services & Operations 

Title:  Archeological Study Bridge Campground  

 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
Mackenzie County currently has applied to obtain a Recreational Lease with Alberta 
Lands and Parks for the Bridge Campground. One of the conditions of obtaining the 
lease is that Mackenzie County needs to obtain an archeological clearance. 
 
Administration has received an estimate of $45,000 to complete the area dependent on 
the scope of the area to be studied. This amount can be reduced if Council decides they 
want the study area reduced. 
 
 
OPTIONS & BENEFITS: 
 

Option #1 
Request a smaller scale study of just the roadways, while staying within budget. 

 
Option #2 
Request a larger study of the area to allow for further development, if required.  

 
 
COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
 

Option #1 
Capital budget amount of $12,050 is remaining for obtaining the lease. 

 
Option #2 
Council would have to allocate an additional $32,950 to allow for a larger study of 
the area. 

 
 

127



Author: Ron Pelensky Reviewed by:  CAO: CG 
 

SUSTAINABILITY PLAN: 
 
NA 
 
 
COMMUNICATION: 
 
N/A 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
 Simple Majority  Requires 2/3  Requires Unanimous 
 
That the budget be amended to include an additional $32,950 to allow for a larger 
archeological study to allow for further development of the Bridge Campground Capital 
project with funding coming from the General Capital Reserve. 
 

128



Agenda Item # 11. b) 
 

Author: R. Pelensky Reviewed by:  CAO: CG 
 

 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 
 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: August 9, 2016 

Presented By: Ron Pelensky, Director of Community Services & Operations 

Title:  Canada 150 Community Infrastructure Program  

 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
Mackenzie County applied for 3 grants under the Canada 150 Community Infrastructure 
Program (Fort Vermilion – Ice Plant Replacement, La Crete – Arena Upgrade, 
Mackenzie County – Parks & Campgrounds projects). 
 
The Fort Vermilion Ice Plant Replacement proposed project consists of removing the old 
freon plant, constructing a small building, and constructing a new ammonia ice plant. 
The estimated cost of this project is $980,000. 
 
Administration has received an inquiry from the Infrastructure Program Committee 
about the Fort Vermilion Ice Plant Replacement application, more specifically an 
additional $10,000 is needed to account for the $980,000.  Administration made a 
clerical error when filling out the grant application, and placed $480,000 in the grant 
request vs $490,000. 
 
The granting committee cannot adjust our application to $490,000 as the application 
date has passed. 
 
The error may be an advantage to us as they may choose our proposal over others as 
Mackenzie County will be providing 51% of the matching grant.  They provide more 
points if they don’t have to come up with as much funding. 
 
The other point to remember if we get approved and when we go to Request for 
Proposal the final costs may be lower or possibly higher.  At this stage this is only a 
good project estimate number. 
 

129



Author: RP Reviewed by:  CAO: CG 
 

 
OPTIONS & BENEFITS: 
 
That Council allocates $10,000 from the General Capital Reserve to meet the minimum 
50% matching grant funding amount for the Fort Vermilion – Ice Chiller project. 
 
. 
COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
 
Council will have to commit $10,000 from the General Capital Reserve to meet the 
minimum 50% matching grant funding amount for the Fort Vermilion – Ice Chiller 
project. 
 
 
SUSTAINABILITY PLAN: 
 
Having recreational community infrastructure helps building vibrant communities. 
 
 
COMMUNICATION: 
 
A letter will be sent to the Canada 150 Community Infrastructure Program with the 
County’s commitment of the additional funds. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
 Simple Majority  Requires 2/3  Requires Unanimous 
 
That the budget be amended to include an additional $10,000 from the General Capital 
Reserve for the Fort Vermilion – Ice Chiller project, subject to grant funding. 
 

130



Agenda Item # 11. c) 
 

Author: R. Pelensky Reviewed by:  CAO: CG 
 

 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 
 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: August 9, 2016 

Presented By: Ron Pelensky, Director of Community Services & Operations  

Title:  La Crete Arena – Ice Chiller Replacement Project – Additional 
Funding Request  

 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
The La Crete Recreation Board has an agreement with Mackenzie County to manage 
and operate the La Crete areas facility.  This facility is now approaching approximately 
30 years old, and requires upgrading.  The La Crete Recreation Board has been 
working towards improving the aging facility, which includes the replacement of the ice 
chiller.  
 
In the 2016 Capital budget, the La Crete Recreation Board was approved in the 2016 
Capital Budget for the Arena – Ice Chiller Project in the amount of $375,400. 
 
While the ice chiller was being installed, the contractor noted that some of the pipes 
have started leaking causing additional repairs being required.  These repairs have 
been completed, and CIMCO estimated at the time of the repairs that the cost may be 
$15,000. 
 
 
OPTIONS & BENEFITS: 
 
OPTION #1 
 
Approve the La Crete Recreation Boards request for an additional $15,000 in funds for 
this project with the funds from the Grants to Other Organizations Reserve.  
 
OPTION #2 
 
That Council requests that the La Crete Recreation Society look at funding these 
additional costs from other approved Capital Projects that have funds remaining.  
 

131



Author: R. Pelensky Reviewed by:  CAO: CG 
 

 
COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
 
That an additional $15,000 be added to the La Crete Arena – Ice Chiller Replacement 
project with funds coming from the Grants to Other Organizations Reserve with the new 
total budget being $390,400. 
 
 
SUSTAINABILITY PLAN: 
 
N/A 
 
 
COMMUNICATION: 
 
Administration to communicate Council’s decision to the La Crete Recreation Board. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
 Simple Majority  Requires 2/3  Requires Unanimous 
 
That the budget be amended to include an additional $15,000 to the La Crete Arena – 
Ice Chiller Replacement project for pipe replacement with funds coming from the Grants 
to Other Organizations Reserve, with the new total budget being $390,400. 
 
 

132



Agenda Item # 11. d) 
 

Author: C. Simpson Reviewed by: RP CAO: CG 
 

 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 
 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: August 9, 2016 

Presented By: Ron Pelensky, Director of Community Services & Operations 

Title:  Request to Waive Contracted Services Fee – Norbord Fire 

 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
Mackenzie County and the Town of High Level entered into a Regional Services 
Sharing Agreement.  As part of this agreement the Town of High Level supplies fire 
services within a 40km radius.  This agreement allows the Town to charge back costs to 
the County. 
 
In May of 2016, Norbord Incorporated, an OSB plant that is located 5km south of High 
Level caught fire and the Town of High Level responded with aid from several other fire 
departments. 
 
This was a major fire that took a week to distinguish.  It is our understanding that the fire 
departments that responded charged the uniform rate as set out in the Regional Fire 
Services Agreement; however this rate does match our Regional Sharing Agreement 
with the Town of High Level.  This fire response is unique in the way that several fire 
departments responded and were charged under the Town of High Level invoice (see 
handout).  Some of their charges do not match our Fee Schedule Bylaw, such as; travel 
time, accommodations, meals, additional pick-up’s, etc. 
 
Mackenzie County has a Fire Services Bylaw that states it will charge fees to residents 
or businesses that use fire services.  The Bylaw is not clear on whether we should be 
placing charges like the one from the Town of High Level under contract services or 
charging each unit separately. 
 
Attached is the Fee Schedule Bylaw with the Fire Services Fees. 

133



Author: C Simpson Reviewed by: RP CAO: CG 
 

 
OPTIONS & BENEFITS: 
 
Option 1: 

• That Norbord Inc. be invoiced for the fire services and place the Town of High 
Level invoice under the contracted services with no additional administration 15% 
fee. 

 
Option 2: 

• That Norbord Inc. be invoiced for the fire services under the contracted services 
with an additional 15% as per the fee schedule Bylaw. 

 
Option 3: 

• That Norbord Inc. be invoiced for the fire services for each unit as per the fee 
schedule bylaw. 

 
 
COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
 
 
 
SUSTAINABILITY PLAN: 
 
 
 
COMMUNICATION: 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
 Simple Majority  Requires 2/3  Requires Unanimous 
 
That Norbord Inc. be invoiced for the fire services and place the Town of High Level 
invoice under the contracted services with no additional administration 15% fee. 

134



Bylaw 1042-16 Page 31
Fee Schedule Bylaw

________

________

FIRE SERVICES FEES

Provincial Roadways Incidents

Alberta Transportation Policy #TCE-DC-501 states that Alberta Transportation is to be 
invoiced for recovery of services according to the rates set in the policy.

Item Amount

Response fees including man power:

Pumper Unit As per AT Policy #TCE-DC-501

Ladder Unit (Aerial) As per AT Policy #TCE-DC-501

Tanker Unit As per AT Policy #TCE-DC-501

Rescue Unit As per AT Policy #TCE-DC-501

Command Unit As per AT Policy #TCE-DC-501
Contracted Services (i.e water haulers, equipment, labour, 
etc.) Road Builders Rates

ESRD Provincial Incidents – as per Mutual Aid Agreement

Item Amount

Pumper Unit $400.00 per hour

Ladder Unit (Aerial) $400.00 per hour

Tanker Unit $400.00 per hour

Rescue Unit $400.00 per hour

ESRD Provincial Incidents – as per Mutual Aid Agreement

Item Amount

Sprinkler Trailer $400.00 per day

Command Unit $200.00 per hour

Contracted Services (i.e water haulers, equipment, labour, etc.) Road Builders Rates

Manpower Fee:

Officers $50.00 per man hour

Firefighter $50.00 per man hour

135



136



Agenda Item # 12. a) 
 

Author: Jeri Phillips Reviewed by: Peng Tian CAO: CG 
 

 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 
 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: August 9, 2016 

Presented By: Peng Tian, Director of Finance 

Title:  Policy FIN023 – Local Improvement Charge Cancellation 
Policy 

 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
At the Regular Council Meeting on June 14, 2016 council requested Policy FIN023 be 
amended as per Motion 16-06-465. 
 
 
OPTIONS & BENEFITS: 
 
Schedule A has been amended as follows:  
 
Add Coalition for Far Northwest Alberta (Brighter Futures) Tax Roll 296353 for 
exemption of Local Improvement Bylaw 658/07 for $181.86.  
 
Delete La Crete Senior Inn Society Tax Roll 076836 exemption for Local Improvement 
Bylaw 423/04 for $129.97 it has expired in 2014. 
 
 
COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
 
 
 
SUSTAINABILITY PLAN: 
 
 
 
COMMUNICATION: 
 
 

137



Author: Jeri Phillips Reviewed by: Peng Tian CAO: CG 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
 Simple Majority  Requires 2/3  Requires Unanimous 
 
That Policy FIN023 Local Improvement Charge Cancellation Policy be amended as 
presented. 

138



Mackenzie County 
 

Title: Local Improvement Charge Cancellation Policy No: FIN023 

 

Purpose 
 

To provide financial relief to non-profit groups, or registered charities that may have a 
yearly local improvement tax payable to the County.  

 
Policy Statement and Guidelines 
 
The County recognizes the limited financial capacity of selected non-profit groups or 
registered charities.  If Council considers it equitable to do so, it may cancel the yearly 
local improvement charge in respect to a particular property that is owned by the non-
profit group or registered charity. 
 
Under section 397 of the MGA, no land is exempt from a local improvement charge if a 
local improvement tax bylaw authorized that particular property to pay for a local 
improvement that benefited that area of the municipality. 
 
However, under section 347 of the MGA, Council has the ability to cancel, reduce or 
refund all or part of a tax. 
 
Guidelines 
 

1. Administration will provide Council with a list (Schedule A) of non-profit groups or 
registered charities properties’ that Council will consider for approval whether it is 
equitable to cancel the yearly local improvement charge.  The list will contain the 
name of the group, roll number of the property and the amount of the local 
improvement charge and other details that administration may find pertinent. 

 
2. Schedule A may be amended from time to time and will be brought forward for 

Council approval. 
 

3. This Schedule A will be part of the yearly budget documentation to support the 
expenditure code 922 – Tax Cancellation/Write Offs. 

 
 
 Date Resolution Number 
Approved 14-May-03 03-328 
Amended 08-Jul-03 03-377 
Amended 12-Jun-07 07-06-552 
Amended  10-Jun-08 08-06-415 

139



Policy FIN023 Local Improvement Charge Cancellation Page 2 
 
 
Amended 10-Jul-08 08-07-490 
Amended 14-Sep-10 10-09-743 
Amended 29-Sep-10 10-09-781 
Amended 26-Jun-13 13-06-450 
Amended   

140



Policy FIN023 Local Improvement Charge Cancellation Page 3 
 
 

Tax Cancellation/Write Offs 
Schedule A 

 
 

Name Roll 
Number Details Amount Expiry 

Date 
Friends of the Old Bay House Society  
4405 River Road  
Fort Vermilion 

076893 Sewer 
Sidewalk 
 
Total 

1,027.51 
431.38 

 
1,458.89 

2019 
2016 

La Crete Senior Inn Society 
10014 - 99 Avenue 
La Crete 

076836 C,G,Sidewalk 
 
Total 

129.97 
 

129.97 

2014 
 

La Crete Municipal Nursing Association  
9802 - 105 Street 
La Crete 
10501 – 98 Ave 
La Crete 
10505 – 98 Ave 
La Crete 
9802 – 105 Street 
La Crete 
 
Total 

 
181096 

 
082369 

 
082368 

 
072022 

 
98 Ave 
Curb & Gutter 
98 Ave 
Curb & Gutter 
98 Ave 
100 St  
Curb & Gutter 
98 Ave 
 

 
628.97 

 
298.73 

 
293.30 

 
475.77 

 
 
1,696.77 

 
2019 

 
2019 

 
2019 

 
2019 

Fort Vermilion and District Board of Trade 
4801 River Road 
Fort Vermilion 

105963 Curb, Gutter, 
Sidewalk 47 
St/49 Av FV 
 
Total 

530.12 
 
 
 

530.12 

2019 

Coalition For Far Northwest Alberta 
(Brighter Futures) 

296353 Curb/Gutter 
52 Ave & 43 
St FV 
 
Total 

181.86 
 
 
 

181.86 

2018 

 

141



142



Agenda Item 12. b) 
 

Author: E. Nyakahuma Reviewed by:  CAO: CG 
 

 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 
 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: August 9, 2016 

Presented By: Peng Tian, Director of Finance 

Title:  Policy ADM049 – Bursary Policy  

 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
At the July 11, 2016 Finance Committee meeting, the following motion was made: 
 
MOTION FC-16-05-101 MOVED by Councillor Wardley 

 
That administration update Policy ADM049 – Bursaries as 
discussed and brings Policy ADM049 to the next Council 
meeting for approval. 
  
CARRIED 

 
The updated policy is attached for review. 
 
 
OPTIONS & BENEFITS: 
 
The updated policy provides more clarity and consistency regarding applicant 
requirements such as the return service agreement. 
 
 
COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
 
Annual Operating Budget 
 
 
SUSTAINABILITY PLAN: 
 
N/A 
 

143



Author: E. Nyakahuma Reviewed by:  CAO: CG 
 

COMMUNICATION: 
 
The approved policy will be available on the County website. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
 Simple Majority  Requires 2/3  Requires Unanimous 
 
That Policy ADM049 Bursary Policy be amended as presented. 
 
 
 

144



Mackenzie County 
 
Title Bursaries Policy No: ADM049 
 
Legislation Reference MGA, Section 1 b) 
 
Purpose 
 
To encourage and to afford an opportunity to Mackenzie County residents to pursue 
studying in priority fields which are critically appealing to the Mackenzie Region, and 
thereby enhance the residents’ abilities to make a meaningful contribution to their 
communities. 
 
 

Policy Statement and Guidelines 
Statement: 
Mackenzie County Council recognizes the need for a skilled and knowledgeable 
workforce in the Mackenzie Region and therefore encourages further learning.  In order 
to provide financial assistance to qualified applicants/students, a bursary fund is 
established during an annual budgeting process.   
 
Guidelines: 
 
1. Student Eligibility 

 
1.1 First time university/college students may receive a bursary within two years 

from their public school graduation date and either student or immediate family 
must be living in the County.  

 
1.2 Students returning to their second to fourth year of studies may apply to receive 

a bursary.  Student’s immediate family must be living within Mackenzie County. 
 
1.3 Mature students are eligible to receive a bursary at the discretion of the 

Finance Committee.  The student’s immediate family must be living within 
Mackenzie County.  These students will be given third priority. 

 
1.4 Students enrolled in part time studies will be eligible for a bursary prorated to 

the number of months studied compared to a full time program. 
 
1.5 Must be enrolled in a post-secondary education or certified trade institution. 

 
1.6 Must commit to live and work in the Mackenzie region for a six-month period 

upon graduation of from a post-secondary institution education for each bursary 
received.  Work experience must be obtained in the field of study for which the 
bursary was received. The length of return service will be based on the amount 

145



Policy ADM049  Page 2 of 10 
Bursaries 
 

awarded as follows: 
 

• $500 – 3 months 
• $1,000 – 6 months 
• $1,500 – 9 months 
• $2,000 – 12 months 

 
1.7 Must be able to demonstrate commitment to community and education. 

 
Note: Bursary applications received after initial deadline will be awarded on a first come 
first served basis 

 
2. Return Service Agreement 

 
Every student selected to receive a Mackenzie County Bursary must sign an 
agreement.  The Agreement commits the student to live and work in the field of 
study the bursary was received for within the Mackenzie region for a six-month 
period upon graduation of post-secondary studies for each bursary received.  The 
length of return services is based on the total value of bursary support with three 
months of return service for each $500 of total bursary support or any portion 
thereof.  For example: a bursary of $1000 has a return service agreement of six 
months.  
 
Students not returning to work within the Mackenzie region may be expected to 
reimburse bursary grants received.   

 
3. Bursary Amount 

 
The usual amount of the bursary is $1,000.00 will be dependent on the length and 
field of study; however both the number and value of bursaries available each year 
may vary. 
 

4. Bursary Cancellation 
 

If a bursary is excluded or expelled from the institution or discontinues his/her 
studies on his/her own accord, the bursary shall be cancelled and the bursar shall 
have to repay the County the full bursary amount within one month of 
cancellation/discontinuation of studies.  The bursar shall be responsible for notifying 
the County. 

 
5. Bursary Awarding 
 

The Finance Committee shall be responsible to review the applications and award 
the annual bursaries. 
 
 
 

146



Policy ADM049  Page 3 of 10 
Bursaries 
 

 
6. Administrative Process 

 
6.1 The bursary applications (Schedule A) shall be advertised during the first two 

weeks of April March with the closing date for applications being 4:30 p.m. on 
the last day of April. 

 
6.2 Successful bursary recipients will receive notification within two weeks of the 

awards; however, the funds will not be provided until the Return Service 
Agreement (Schedule B) has been signed and confirmations of acceptance 
from the post-secondary institution and of tuition paid have been received. 

 
6.3 If not all annually allocated funds have been distributed, the Finance Committee 

may re-advertise the bursary applications. 
 

6.4 Any unused funds in any given year shall be allocated to the Bursary Reserve 
established by Council. 

 
 
7. Administrative Responsibilities 

 
Chief Administrative Officer or Designate shall be responsible for monitoring 
compliance with this policy. 
 

 
 
 Date Resolution Number 
Approved 12-Apr-11 11-04-347 
Amended 26-Mar-14 14-03-197 
Amended 11-Aug-15 15-08-547 
 

147



Policy ADM049  Page 4 of 10 
Bursaries 
 
 

MACKENZIE COUNTY BURSARY APPLICATION (SCHEDULE A) 
 
 
General Guidelines 
 
Student Eligibility 
 
• First time university/college students may receive a bursary within two years from their 

public school graduation date and either student or immediate family must be living in the 
County.  

• Students returning to their second to fourth year of studies may apply to receive a bursary.  
Student’s immediate family must be living within Mackenzie County.  

• Mature students are eligible to receive a bursary at the discretion of the Finance 
Committee.  The student’s immediate family must be living within Mackenzie County. 
These students will be given third priority. 

• Students enrolled in part time studies will be eligible for a bursary prorated to the number 
of months studied compared to a full time program. 

• Must be enrolled in a post-secondary education or certified trade institution. 
• Must commit to live and work in the Mackenzie region for a six-month period upon 

graduation of post-secondary education for each bursary received. 
• Must be able to demonstrate commitment to community and education. 

 
Note: Bursary applications received after initial deadline will be awarded on a first come first 
served basis 

 
Return Service Agreement 
 
Every student selected to receive a Mackenzie County Bursary must sign an agreement.  The 
Agreement commits the student to live and work within the Mackenzie region for a six-month 
period upon graduation of post-secondary studies for each bursary received.  The length of 
return services is based on the total value of bursary support with three months of return service 
for each $500 of total bursary support or any portion thereof.  For example: a bursary of $1000 
has a return service agreement of six months.  
 
Students not returning to work within the Mackenzie region may be expected to reimburse 
bursary grants received.   
 
Bursary Amount 
 
The usual amount of the bursary is $1,000.00; however both the number and value of bursaries 
available each year may vary. 
 
Successful Bursary recipients will receive notification in May; however, the funds will not be 
provided until the Return Service Agreement has been signed and you have provided us with 
confirmations of acceptance from the post-secondary institution of your choice and of tuition 
paid. 

148



Policy ADM049  Page 5 of 10 
Bursaries 
 
 
Application Must Include: 
 
• A cover letter including reason for application, the field of study, career goal and date of 

graduation. 
 
First year applicants 
• 3 reference letters: 1 public school or college or university related, and 2 personal 

references. 
 
Returning applicants 
• Proof of course completion (academic transcript) 
• Proof of course registration or Receipt of tuition paid 
 

Application deadline 
 
The deadline for receipt of application is ______________at 4:30 p.m. at the following address: 
 

Finance Committee, Mackenzie County 
Box 640, Fort Vermilion, Alberta  T0H 1N0 

Fax: (780) 927-4266 
Email: jwhittletonoffice@mackenziecounty.com 

149



Policy ADM049  Page 6 of 10 
Bursaries 
 

 
MACKENZIE COUNTY BURSARY APPLICATION FORM (SCHEDULE A) 

 
 

CONTACT INFORMATION  (please print) 
 

Full Name:  Phone Number:  

Mailing Address:  

City/Town:  Postal Code:  

Street Address or Land Location:  

Number of Years Lived in Region:   
 
 

EDUCATIONAL INFORMATION 
 
Name of Public School:      Graduation Date:      
 
Provide a list of the grade twelve subjects, with final grade, that you are using as entry level for 
post-secondary or trade education.  (Please provide a copy of your transcripts if available.) 

 

 

 

 
 
Returning Students:  Please provide a copy of your most recent transcripts. 
 
 
Post-Secondary Institution:            
 
Program of Study:            
 
Length of Program Studies you plan to attend:   1yr.   2 yr.  3 yr.   4yr.   more 
 
Date you expect to graduate: _____________________ 20____ 
 

150



Policy ADM049  Page 7 of 10 
Bursaries 
 

PERSONAL INFORMATION 
 
Please explain how your choice of post-secondary education will benefit the Mackenzie County 
area? 

 

 

 

 
 
Please list any community involvement and past work experiences. 

 

 

 

 
 
Please list any extracurricular activities, hobbies and interests. 

 

 
 

Your application may not be considered if information is missing. 
Have you answered all the questions? 

APPLICANT DECLARATION 
 
I declare that: 

to the best of my knowledge, the information given on this application is true. 
 

I agree to: 
provide any information needed to verify any statement made on this application. 

 
I understand that: 

I may have to repay my bursary if I do not fulfil my return service agreement. 
I may be denied a bursary if I have made any false or misleading statements on this 
application. 
 

I consent to: 
The use of my name and/or photograph by Mackenzie County for the purposes of 
publicizing the Mackenzie County Bursary Program. 

 
X            
Signature of Applicant                 Date Signed 

151



Policy ADM049  Page 8 of 10 
Bursaries 
 

 
RETURN SERVICE AGREEMENT 

 
 

THIS AGREEMENT made this _____day of _________________, 20______. 
 
BETWEEN 

Mackenzie County  
(referred to as the “Sponsor”) 

 
and 

 
___________________________________ 

(referred to as the "Student") 
 

of the ___________ of ______________________, in the Province of Alberta 
 
 

WHEREAS the Sponsor has established a bursary to provide assistance to eligible 
students and to promote the development of vocational or professional expertise within 
northern Alberta the Mackenzie region; and 
 
WHEREAS the Student has applied to the Sponsor for a Bursary to assist him in his 
course of studies: and 
 
WHEREAS a Bursary consists of a financial assistance award from the Sponsor; and 
 
WHEREAS the Student has undertaken to work and provide services in the Sponsor 
region; now 
 
THEREFORE the parties agree as follows: 
 

1. For the purposes of this agreement, “sponsor region” means the area within the 
boundaries of the Mackenzie County. 

 
2. Upon approval of the Student’s application by the Sponsor and upon receipt of 

confirmations of the Student’s registration in the course of studies and of tuition 
paid, the Sponsor will pay to the Student the sum of $ ___________as an award 
in order for the Student to commence the course of studies as outlined in the 
Student’s bursary application. 

 
3. The Student 

a) agrees and undertakes to obtain, within six (6) months from the last day of 
his/her studies, employment in northern Alberta for a continuous period of 
_______months. 

152



Policy ADM049  Page 9 of 10 
Bursaries 
 

b) agrees and acknowledges that his employment under (a) is to be in an 
occupation or field of endeavor which relates to his course of studies and 
is to be otherwise satisfactory to the Sponsor; 

 
c) Must annually provide written information to the Sponsor regarding the 

status and location of employment; commencing on the date on which 
employment is obtained in accordance with this Agreement and until the 
completion of work commitments under this Agreement; 

 
d) Must in writing notify the Sponsor within seven (7) days of the following 

events:  
 

i) a withdrawal from the course of studies; or  
ii) a failure to maintain a passing grade in his course of studies in 

any academic year; or 
iii) a change of address. 

 
4. The Sponsor may, in its absolute discretion, require repayment in full by the 

Student of the Bursary to the Sponsor for failure to comply with clause 3 of this 
Agreement or upon the occurrence of one or more of the events in clause 3(d).  
Repayment will occur according to the following schedule based on total value of 
awards received: 

≤ $500 repayment due within 3 months of invoice date 
$500-$1000 repayment due within 6 months of invoice date 
> $1000 repayment due within 1 year of invoice date 

 
5. If the Sponsor requires repayment of the financial assistance for failure to 

maintain employment in accordance with clause 3(a), the Sponsor may, in its 
absolute discretion, consider the employment commitment under cause 3(a), to 
be partially fulfilled and accordingly reduce the repayment obligations of the 
Student under this Agreement on a pro rata basis. 

 
6. The Sponsor may waive a default of this Agreement only by written notice to the 

Student. 
 

7. The Student agrees and acknowledges that he has the sole obligation to seek 
employment and lodging to fulfill his commitment under this Agreement and that 
there is no obligation upon the Sponsor to provide any employment position or 
lodging place to help fulfill this commitment.  

 
8. The Student allows the Sponsor to release his name as a bursary recipient for 

advertising and recognition of the bursary. 
 

9. All notices and other written communications required or permitted under this 
Agreement can be delivered by hand, or sent by registered mail or faxed to the 
addressee as follows: 

 

153



Policy ADM049  Page 10 of 10 
Bursaries 
 

To the Sponsor: c/o Mackenzie County 
   P.O. Box 640 
   Fort Vermilion, AB 
   T0H 1N0 
   Phone:  (780) 927-3718 
   Fax:  (780) 927-4266 
 
 
To The Student __________________________________ 
 
   __________________________________ 
    
   __________________________________ 
 
   Phone:  (      )_______________________ 
 
   Fax:  (      )_______________________ 
 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the 
date first written above. 
 
SIGNED IN THE PRESENCE OF  
 
 
____________________________ _______________________________ 
Signature of Witness Signature of Student or Parent/Guardian if 

Student is under 18 
 
Printed name of Witness:  _______________________________ 
 
Address of Witness:   _______________________________ 
 
Postal Code of Witness:  _______________________________ 
 
Phone Number of Witness  _______________________________ 

 
 
 
 

TO BE COMPLETED BY THE SPONSOR 
  
 

____________________________ _______________________________ 
Witness     Signature of Sponsor 

 

154



Agenda Item # 12. c) 
 

Author: Jeri Phillips Reviewed by: Peng Tian CAO: CG 
 

 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 
 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: August 9, 2016 

Presented By: Peng Tian, Director of Finance  

Title:  Tax Recovery Auction – Sale of Land/Properties By Public 
Auction 

 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
The MGA states that  
“Section 418(1) Each municipality must offer for sale at a public auction any parcel of 
land shown on its tax arrears list if the tax arrears are not paid.” 
 
“Section 419 The council must set 
 

(a) for each parcel of land to be offered for sale at a public auction, a reserve bid 
that is as close as reasonable possible to the market value of the parcel, and 

(b) any conditions that apply to the sale.” 
 
There are four (4) parcels of land to be offered for sale that were placed on the Tax 
Notification List. Notices and letters have been sent with no response and/or 
arrangements made for the orderly repayment of the arrears. 
 
Tax Roll 
Number 

Land Location Notification 
Registration 

Reserved Bid Outstanding 
Taxes 

Comments 

219457 2938RS; 01; 11 082150962 
082150963 

49,970 29,842.81 Last Payment May 
2014.  

Notification April 2008 
300574 902 2917; 02A; 24 062168689 18,740 8,707.37 Last Payment March 

2004 
Notification May 2006 

117447 882 1687; 10; 10 152123226 26,420 1,707.90 Last Payment January 
2013 

Notification April 2015 
077048  882 1687; 10; 06 152123226 23,810 1,664.84 Last Payment January 

2013 
Notification April 2015 

 
 

155



Author: Jeri Phillips Reviewed by: Peng Tian CAO: CG 
 

Below are Motions 15-09-648 and 15-09-651 from the September 30, 2015 Regular 
Council meeting.  

• Motion 15-09-648 for Tax Roll 219457 states that the following properties be 
removed from the 2015 auction list due to property taxes being paid or payment 
arrangements made. 

• Motion 15-09-651 for Tax Roll 300574 states that the following properties remain 
in the current owners name and the County continues to attempt to collect 
property taxes. 

 
MOTION 15-09-648 MOVED by Councilor Paul 

 
That the following properties be removed from the 2015 auction 
list due to property taxes being paid or payment arrangements 
made. 

• Tax Roll 229967 
• Tax Roll 229959 
• Tax Roll 082047 
• Tax Roll 148076 
• Tax Roll 074410 
• Tax Roll 229966 
• Tax Roll 229970 
• Tax Roll 229971 
• Tax Roll 229972 
• Tax Roll 106062 
• Tax Roll 192383 
• Tax Roll 192383 
• Tax Roll 307114 
• Tax Roll 219457 
• Tax Roll 082453 
• Tax Roll 077029 
• Tax Roll 296347 
• Tax Roll 229919 

 
CARRIED 
 

MOTION 15-09-651 MOVED by Councilor Wardley  
 
That the following properties remain in the current owners name 
and the County continues to attempt to collect property taxes. 
 

• Tax Roll 300574, Plan 902 2974; Block 02A; Lot 24 
 
CARRIED 

 
The owner of Tax Roll 219457 entered into a Tax Arrears Agreement in 2015; because 
of non-payment, this property has been included in 2016 Tax Recovery Auction list. 
 

156



Author: Jeri Phillips Reviewed by: Peng Tian CAO: CG 
 

Tax Roll 300574 has been included in 2016 Tax Recovery Auction list; no funds for 
property taxes have been collected since 2015 (Motion 15-09-651). 
 
Administration is recommending that the Tax Recovery Auction for properties under tax 
arrears be set for October 11, 2016.  The following advertising requirements would 
apply: 
 

Ad in Queens 
Printer 

Not less than 40 
days 

Not more than 90 
days 

Council Meeting 
Date 

August 31 October 10 November 29 August 9 
 
 
OPTIONS & BENEFITS: 
 
If a Tax Arrear Agreement is in place and/or taxes are paid in full before the auction 
commences the property will not be auctioned. 
 
 
COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
 
Any fees will be charged to the respective Tax Rolls. 
 
Per MGA, Section 427: 
The money paid for a parcel of land at a public auction must be deposited in a separate 
account for sale proceeds. 
 
“The following must be paid first and in the following order: 

a) any remedial costs relating to the parcel; 
a.1) the tax arrears in respect of the parcel; 
b) any lawful expenses of the municipality in respect of the parcel; 
c) any expenses owing to the Crown that have been charged against the parcel of 
land under section 553 (Adding amounts owing to a tax roll); 
d) an administration fee of 5% of the amount paid for the parcel, payable to the 
municipality.” 

 
 
SUSTAINABILITY PLAN: 
 
N/A 
 
 
COMMUNICATION: 
 
Letters will be sent to those registered as having an interest on the title as well as the 
property owners advising of the Tax Recovery Auction. 
 

157



Author: Jeri Phillips Reviewed by: Peng Tian CAO: CG 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
Motion 1: 

 
That the Tax Recovery Auction for properties under tax arrears be set for October 11, 
2016. 
 
Motion 2: 

 
That the reserve bid for the properties being sold by public auction be set as follows: 
 
Tax Roll 
Number 

Ward Zoning Legal Civic Outstanding 
Taxes 

Reserved 
Bid 

219457 07 MHS-2 2938RS; 01; 11 4720-49 AVE 29,842.81 49,970 
300574 09 F 902 2917; 02A; 24  8,707.37 18,740 
117447 10 HG1 882 1687; 10; 06 953 

WILDCAT 
AVE 

1,707.90 26,420 

077048 10 HG1 882 1687; 10; 10 976 
WILDCAT 
AVE 

1,664.84 23,810 

 

 Simple Majority  Requires 2/3  Requires Unanimous 

 Simple Majority  Requires 2/3  Requires Unanimous 

158



Agenda Item # 12. d) 
 

Author: Oxana Mamontova Reviewed by: Peng Tian CAO: CG 
 

 

 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 
 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: August 9, 2016 

Presented By: Peng Tian, Director of Finance 

Title:  Financial Reports – January 1 to June 30, 2016 

 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
The Finance Department provides financial reports to Council as per policy. 
 
 
OPTIONS & BENEFITS: 
 
Please review the following financial reports for the period January 1 – June 30, 2016: 

• Investment Report 
• Statements of Operations by Object and Department 
• Projects Progress Report 
• Aged Receivables 

 
 
COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
 
N/A 
 
 
SUSTAINABILITY PLAN: 
 
N/A 
 
 
COMMUNICATION: 
 
N/A 
 
 

159



Author: Oxana Mamontova Reviewed by: Peng Tian CAO: CG 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
 Simple Majority  Requires 2/3  Requires Unanimous 
 
That the financial reports for the period of January 1 – June 30, 2016 be accepted for 
information. 
 

160



Chequing Account on June 30, 2016

Bank account balance 23,517,981

Investment Values on June 30, 2016

Short term investments  (EM0-0377-A) 12,096,622
Short term T-Bill  (1044265-26) 237,747
Long term investments  (EM0-0374-A) 8,329,901
Short term notice on amount 31 days 1,274
Short term notice on amount 60 days 4,875
Short term notice on amount 90 days 3,801

20,674,219

Revenues

Interest received 154,952 51,068 103,884
Interest accrued 53,978 54,493 (515)

208,929 105,561 103,369
Market value changes 105,594 66,094
Interest received, chequing account 14,321 14,321
Grand total revenues before investment manager fees 328,844 119,882 169,463
Deduct: investment manager fees for investments -14,599 -3,437 -11,162
Grand total revenues after investment manager fees 314,245 116,445 158,301

Balances in the Various Accounts - Last 12 Months

Chequing Short Term T-Bills Long Term Total
Jul. 31 26,397,330      9,885,600        237,189           8,146,843        44,666,961      
Aug. 31 25,123,788      9,886,627        237,255           8,118,107        43,365,777      
Sep. 30 20,894,752      9,887,654        237,309           8,119,455        39,139,169      
Oct. 31 18,167,602      9,887,630        237,364           8,099,481        36,392,078      
Nov. 30 17,188,418      9,888,659        237,417           8,081,738        35,396,233      
Dec. 31 2,960,308        18,959,215      237,473           8,171,084        30,328,080      
Jan. 31 2,772,109        17,969,964      237,528           8,194,472        29,174,072      
Feb. 28 3,613,083        14,980,328      237,579           8,189,257        27,020,247      
Mar. 31 1,754,505        13,988,864      237,610           8,237,943        24,218,922      
Apr . 30 1,028,981        13,074,135      237,663           8,200,802        22,541,582      
May . 31 2,631,668        12,100,192      237,693           8,233,190        23,202,743      
Jun . 30 23,517,981      12,106,571      237,747           8,329,901        44,192,200      

Short Term Long TermTotal

Investment Report for June 2016

These balances include 
'market value changes'.  

 -

 5,000,000

 10,000,000

 15,000,000

 20,000,000

 25,000,000

 30,000,000

 35,000,000

 40,000,000

 45,000,000

 50,000,000

Jul. 31 Aug. 31 Sep. 30 Oct. 31 Nov. 30 Dec. 31 Jan. 31 Feb. 28 Mar. 31 Apr . 30 May . 31 Jun . 30

Long Term

T-Bills

Short Term

Chequing

161



MACKENZIE COUNTY
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS July 31, 2016

2015 Actual 2016 Actual 2016 $ Variance % Variance
Total Total Budget

OPERATIONAL REVENUES
  Property taxes $35,309,092 $28,799,841 $33,921,049 $5,121,208 15%
  User fees and sales of goods $4,619,126 $2,340,324 $4,594,216 $2,253,892 49%
  Government transfers $1,501,319 $583,035 $1,302,914 $719,879 55%
  Investment income (operating) $500,870 $262,384 $360,000 $97,616 27%
  Penalties and costs on taxes $1,057,962 $518,340 $1,288,413 $770,073 60%
  Licenses, permits and fines $539,489 $225,324 $448,000 $222,676 50%
  Rentals $140,117 $52,743 $80,455 $27,712 34%
  Insurance proceeds $329,409 $36,663 $0 ($36,663)
  Development levies $47,870 $0 $0 $0
  Muncipal reserve revenue $92,428 $22,999 $50,000 $27,001 54%
  Sale of non-TCA equipment $8,061 $0 $0 $0
  Other $501,684 $287,401 $308,000 $20,599 7%

Total operating revenues $44,647,427 $33,129,054 $42,353,047 $9,223,993 22%

OPERATIONAL EXPENSES
  Legislative $543,500 $321,868 $796,640 $474,772 60%
  Administration $6,882,710 $3,298,215 $7,489,653 $4,191,438 56%
  Protective services $1,406,990 $547,169 $1,864,996 $1,317,827 71%
  Transportation $16,128,251 $3,845,950 $18,428,976 $14,583,026 79%
  Water, sewer, solid waste disposal $4,793,168 $1,232,079 $4,955,238 $3,723,159 75%
  Public health and welfare (FCSS) $639,256 $729,248 $789,053 $59,805 8%
  Planning, development $1,072,553 $561,839 $1,296,071 $734,232 57%
  Agriculture and veterinary $1,397,583 $421,630 $1,343,446 $921,816 69%
  Recreation and culture $2,268,946 $1,201,042 $2,324,449 $1,123,407 48%
  School requisitions $6,635,781 $7,620 $6,836,582 $6,828,962 100%
  Lodge requisitions $788,108 $852,083 $852,083 $0
  Non-TCA projects $1,092,265 $361,224 $1,569,288 $1,208,064 77%

Total operating expenses $43,649,111 $13,379,967 $48,546,475 $35,166,508 72%

Excess (deficiency) before other $998,316 $19,749,087 ($6,193,428) ($25,942,515) 419%

CAPITAL REVENUES
  Government transfers for capital $5,102,465 $0 $12,635,212 $12,635,212 100%
  Other revenue for capital $733,150 $124,194 $933,641 $809,447 87%
  Proceeds from sale of TCA assets $528,614 $0 $492,932 $492,932 100%

$6,364,229 $124,194 $14,061,785 $13,937,591 99%

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) - PSAB Model $7,362,545 $19,873,281 $7,868,357 ($12,004,924) -153%

Convert to local government model
  Remove non-cash transactions $9,541,342 $0 $10,629,659 $10,629,659 100%
  Remove revenue for capital projects ($6,364,229) ($124,194) ($14,061,785) ($13,937,591) 99%
  Long term debt principle $1,669,369 $0 $1,578,512 $1,578,512 100%
  Transfers to/from reserves $8,820,289 $0 $2,857,719 $2,857,719 100%

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) - LG Model $50,000 $19,749,087 $0 ($19,749,087)

162



Mackenzie County

Summary of All Units

For the Six Months Ending June 30, 2016

2015 Actual 2016 Actual 2016 $ Variance % Variance

Total Total Budget

OPERATING REVENUES

100-Taxation $34,974,510 $28,677,405 $33,782,194 $5,104,789 15%

124-Frontage $197,247 $122,437 $171,497 $49,060 29%

261-Ice Bridge $95,530 $139,640 $0 ($139,640)

420-Sales of goods and services $693,522 $338,567 $590,395 $251,828 43%

421-Sale of water - metered $3,006,884 $1,531,327 $3,093,285 $1,561,958 50%

422-Sale of water - bulk $918,721 $470,431 $910,536 $440,105 48%

424-Sale of land $1 $0 $0 $0

510-Penalties on  taxes $1,057,962 $518,340 $1,288,413 $770,073 60%

511-Penalties of AR and utilities $61,483 $27,375 $48,000 $20,625 43%

520-Licenses and permits $49,879 $33,413 $36,000 $2,587 7%

521-Offsite levy $47,870 $0 $0 $0

522-Municipal reserve revenue $92,428 $22,999 $50,000 $27,001 54%

526-Safety code permits $342,366 $128,454 $325,000 $196,546 60%

525-Subdivision fees $55,156 $30,562 $35,000 $4,438 13%

530-Fines $78,310 $28,192 $39,000 $10,808 28%

531-Safety code fees $13,777 $4,703 $13,000 $8,297 64%

550-Interest revenue $548,519 $156,790 $360,000 $203,210 56%

551-Market value changes ($47,649) $105,594 $0 ($105,594)

560-Rental and lease revenue $140,118 $52,743 $80,455 $27,712 34%

570-Insurance proceeds $329,409 $36,663 $0 ($36,663)

592-Well drilling revenue $11,114 $34,848 $20,000 ($14,848) -74%

597-Other revenue $206,704 $60,989 $143,500 $82,511 57%

598-Community aggregate levy $101,272 $0 $70,000 $70,000 100%

630-Sale of non-TCA equipment $8,062 $0 $0 $0

790-Tradeshow Revenues $25,580 $24,550 $26,500 $1,950 7%

840-Provincial grants $1,501,318 $583,035 $1,302,914 $719,879 55%

890-Gain (Loss) Penny Rounding $1 $0 $0 $0

990-Over/under tax collections $137,336 $0 ($32,642) ($32,642) 100%

TOTAL REVENUE $44,647,430 $33,129,057 $42,353,047 $9,223,990 22%

OPERATING EXPENSES

110-Wages and salaries $6,354,973 $3,751,854 $7,168,699 $3,416,845 48%

132-Benefits $1,255,906 $797,886 $1,514,850 $716,964 47%

136-WCB contributions $40,547 $0 $51,743 $51,743 100%

142-Recruiting $12,848 $2,865 $20,000 $17,135 86%

150-Isolation cost $66,993 $41,846 $72,000 $30,154 42%

151-Honoraria $478,774 $285,315 $648,900 $363,585 56%

211-Travel and subsistence $265,578 $122,943 $405,635 $282,692 70%

212-Promotional expense $77,983 $16,904 $82,500 $65,596 80%

214-Memberships & conference fees $107,460 $36,151 $143,321 $107,170 75%

215-Freight $107,164 $42,437 $141,460 $99,023 70%

216-Postage $44,344 $24,833 $43,150 $18,317 42%

217-Telephone $124,467 $22,386 $123,640 $101,254 82%

221-Advertising $36,405 $15,681 $63,220 $47,539 75%

223-Subscriptions and publications $6,878 $4,898 $12,738 $7,840 62%

231-Audit fee $75,950 $58,800 $76,000 $17,200 23%

232-Legal fee $68,527 $43,662 $60,500 $16,838 28%

233-Engineering consulting $240,054 $29,497 $166,000 $136,503 82%

235-Professional fee $1,669,025 $750,645 $1,815,514 $1,064,869 59%

236-Enhanced policing fee $153,400 $38,400 $297,200 $258,800 87%

239-Training and education $96,483 $50,214 $163,329 $113,115 69%

242-Computer programming $78,633 $20,477 $108,681 $88,204 81%

251-Repair & maintenance - bridges $205,079 $2,817 $602,000 $599,183 100%

252-Repair & maintenance - buildings $151,352 $58,923 $195,820 $136,897 70%

253-Repair & maintenance - equipment $421,486 $151,999 $369,800 $217,801 59%

255-Repair & maintenance - vehicles $64,432 $36,571 $81,900 $45,329 55%

258-Contract graders $104,461 $32,675 $150,840 $118,165 78%

259-Repair & maintenance - structural $1,596,984 $233,865 $1,588,193 $1,354,328 85%

261-Ice bridge construction $77,703 $90,094 $120,000 $29,906 25%

262-Rental - building and land $29,340 $30,931 $29,812 ($1,119) -4%

263-Rental - vehicle and equipment $56,773 $37,778 $81,695 $43,917 54%

266-Communications $97,814 $42,292 $117,638 $75,346 64%

271-Licenses and permits $1,290 $495 $8,568 $8,073 94%

272-Damage claims $0 $1,000 $5,000 $4,000 80%

274-Insurance $313,112 $0 $298,960 $298,960 100%

342-Assessor fees $264,623 $126,730 $263,000 $136,270 52%

290-Election cost $0 $2,855 $5,000 $2,145 43%

511-Goods and supplies $861,048 $361,014 $935,116 $574,102 61%

521-Fuel and oil $740,479 $434,955 $1,017,070 $582,115 57%

163



Mackenzie County

Summary of All Units

For the Six Months Ending June 30, 2016

2015 Actual 2016 Actual 2016 $ Variance % Variance

Total Total Budget

531-Chemicals and salt $268,567 $153,608 $328,700 $175,092 53%

532-Dust control $568,170 $434,462 $728,405 $293,943 40%

533-Grader blades $149,959 $131,472 $137,500 $6,028 4%

534-Gravel (apply; supply and apply) $1,612,430 $203,802 $1,617,378 $1,413,576 87%

535-Gravel reclamation cost $29,792 $0 $0 $0

543-Natural gas $87,911 $27,896 $113,877 $85,981 76%

544-Electrical power $689,859 $277,843 $679,037 $401,194 59%

710-Grants to local governments $1,927,281 $1,400,108 $1,805,000 $404,892 22%

735-Grants to other organizations $2,068,118 $1,764,666 $2,104,245 $339,579 16%

747-School requisition $6,635,781 $7,620 $6,836,582 $6,828,962 100%

750-Lodge requisition $788,108 $852,083 $852,083 $0 0%

810-Interest and service charges $29,536 $5,055 $27,000 $21,945 81%

831-Interest - long term debt $614,288 ($42,672) $562,323 $604,995 108%

921-Bad debt expense $4,324 $114 $3,800 $3,686 97%

922-Tax cancellation/write-off $1,190,753 $0 $1,502,106 $1,502,106 100%

970-Other expenses $2,260 $0 $0 $0

993-NBV value of disposed TCA $834,784 $0 $880,169 $880,169 100%

994-Change in inventory ($216,403) $0 $580,324 $580,324 100%

995-Depreciation of TCA $8,922,961 $0 $9,169,166 $9,169,166 100%

TOTAL $42,556,847 $13,018,745 $46,977,187 $33,958,442 72%

Non-TCA projects $1,092,265 $361,225 $1,569,288 $1,208,063 77%

TOTAL EXPENSES $43,649,112 $13,379,970 $48,546,475 $35,166,505 72%

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) $998,318 $19,749,087 ($6,193,428) ($25,942,515) 419%

OTHER

840-Provincial transfers for capital $5,102,465 $0 $12,635,212 $12,635,212 100%

575-Contributed TCA $718,363 $0 $323,020 $323,020 100%

597-Other capital revenue $14,787 $124,194 $610,621 $486,427 80%

630-Proceeds of sold TCA asset $528,614 $0 $492,932 $492,932 100%

$6,364,229 $124,194 $14,061,785 $13,937,591 99%

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) - PS MODEL $7,362,547 $19,873,281 $7,868,357 ($12,004,924) -153%

CONVERT TO LG INCOME STATEMENT

    Remove non-cash transactions associated with PSAB changes

993-NBV value of disposed TCA $834,784 $0 $880,169 $880,169 100%

994-Change in inventory ($216,403) $0 $580,324 $580,324 100%

995-Amortization of TCA $8,922,961 $0 $9,169,166 $9,169,166 100%

    Remove TCA revenues

Total of OTHER per above ($6,364,229) ($124,194) ($14,061,785) ($13,937,591) 99%

   Add LTD principle paid

832-Principle Payments $1,669,369 $0 $1,578,512 $1,578,512 100%

   Add/Deduct LG model TF to/from reserves

930-Contributions from Operating Reserve ($370,205) $0 ($1,178,928) ($1,178,928) 100%

940-Contribution from Capital Reserve ($515,310) $0 ($322,326) ($322,326) 100%

762-Contribution to Capital (funding TCA projects) $3,459,941 $0 $871,748 $871,748 100%

763-Contribution to Capital Reserves $3,716,473 $0 $3,240,267 $3,240,267 100%

764-Contribution to Operating Reserves $2,529,390 $0 $246,958 $246,958 100%

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) - LG MODEL $50,002 $19,749,087 $0 ($19,749,087)

164



Administration Department

Signs with Flags for FV Office (CF)             6,940             6,940 -                   18,060                    18,060 Waiting for metal works to be completed 50%

Payroll software                     - -                   20,000                    20,000 Fall 2016 0%

FV - Phone System Upgrade           17,598 17,598          20,000                      2,402 All matrials purchased, now configuring and installing. 75%

High Level Office Security                     - -                   10,000                    10,000 Completed 100%

FV - Fireproof Storage Cabinet (Records)                  83                  83 8,000                        8,000 Aug. 2016 0%

LC - Library Building         108,976                     - 108,976        107,970                   (1,006) 10% Hold back 90%

Zama Office Entrance (stones and a sign) CF)             7,246             7,246 -                   10,754                    10,754 

Land Purchase (South of High Level)                     -                     - -                   13,000                    13,000 Negotiating setbacks with province 0%

LC Office - Installation of Gnerator                     - -                   28,000                    28,000 Connect Unit 90%

 Total department 12        126,573        235,784        109,211 

Fire Department

LC -Aerial Unit Upgrade                     - -                   30,000                    30,000 Waiting for delivery of truck 0%

FV - New tanker/pumper, with equipment (CF)                     -                     - -                   375,000                375,000 Ordered - awaiting truck build 0%

Total department 23                    -        405,000        405,000 

Enforcement Department

Peace officer vehicle           22,910                     - 22,910          80,000                    57,090 Awaiting invoices 90%

Total department 26          22,910          80,000          57,090 

Transportation Department

Heliport Road             1,593 1,593            285,000                283,407 Planning project 5%

 Project Progress Report for June 2016 

 Project Name  2016 Budget  Costs in 
prior years 

 Budget 
Remaining 
on June 30, 

2016 

 Costs in 
current year 

up to       
June 30, 

2016 

 Status Update on June 30, 2016 
 Percentage 

of Completion 
(%) 

 Total costs 

Page 1 of 7

165



 Project Name  2016 Budget  Costs in 
prior years 

 Budget 
Remaining 
on June 30, 

2016 

 Costs in 
current year 

up to       
June 30, 

2016 

 Status Update on June 30, 2016 
 Percentage 

of Completion 
(%) 

 Total costs 

AWD Graders (x3) LC, ZA, FV  (2-16M, 1-14M)         578,251 578,251        1,416,000             837,749 2 graders delivered, awaiting invoices, 1 yet to be received. 66%

FV - 6" pump w/hoses           19,158 19,158          28,000                      8,842 Completed 100%

FV- 43rd Ave, East of 50th Street                     - -                   135,000                135,000 Project awarded to Knelsens 5%

FV - 45 Ave Cul-de-sac, East of 52nd Street                     - -                   140,000                140,000 Project awarded to Knelsens 5%

FV - PW Pick up Truck           40,175 40,175          40,000                        (175) Truck received, awaiting invoicing 90%

Rocky Lane Store Road Reconstruction             1,806 1,806            400,000                398,194 Engineering Project-signing easements 5%

FV - Sander                     - -                   10,000                    10,000 0%

New Road Infrastructure (CF)         698,442         655,019 43,423          204,981                161,558 12 New Road Applications 25%

FV - Skid Steer Broom                     - -                   7,000                        7,000 0%

FV - Snowplow blade                     - -                   5,500                        5,500 0%

LC - Packer/Roller           24,980 24,980          25,000                           20 Complete 100%

LC - Sander/Spreader           11,066 11,066          10,000                     (1,066) Complete 100%

LC - Crew Cab 4x4 Trucks (x2)           79,873 79,873          80,000                         127 Complete 100%

LC - Engineering & Design for 113 Street and 109 Ave (CF)           53,549           53,549 -                   46,451                    46,451 Still in Design phase from last year 0%

LC - 94th Ave Ashphalt Overlay           33,347 33,347          870,000                836,654 Contract Awarded 15%

LC - Lagoon Access Paving                     - -                   25,000                    25,000 Contract Awarded 0%

LC - Dump Trailer                  28 28                 22,000                    21,972 Complete 100%

High Level South Rebuild (CF)                     -                     - -                   50,000                    50,000 Planning project 0%

LC - Loader Scales             9,520 9,520            9,996                           476 Complete 100%

Zama Access Pave (PH V) (CF)                     -                     - -                   6,000,000          6,000,000 On hold - No grant received 0%

LC - Salt shed             2,014 2,014            300,000                297,986 Electrical, Doors and Interior remaining 80%

ZA - Tractor           14,900 14,900          30,000                    15,100 Complete 100%

BF 78103             2,852 2,852            120,000                117,148 Being reviewed by our lawyers 40%

Page 2 of 7

166



 Project Name  2016 Budget  Costs in 
prior years 

 Budget 
Remaining 
on June 30, 

2016 

 Costs in 
current year 

up to       
June 30, 

2016 

 Status Update on June 30, 2016 
 Percentage 

of Completion 
(%) 

 Total costs 

Snow Plow Truck Replacement                     - -                   290,000                290,000 Preparing tender 0%

Fire Damaged Toolcat Replacement           96,463 96,463          96,464                             1 Complete 100%

LC - South-Shoulder pull and road rehabilitation(CF)         171,919         171,919 -                   128,081                128,081 Quotation Stage 10%

Gravel Reserve (to secure gravel source) (CF)           31,899           31,899 -                   119,101                119,101 0%

FV - Sand and salt shelter (CF)                     -                     - -                   200,000                200,000 Preparing tender 0%

FV - Cold storage/Emergency generator building (CF)                     -                     - -                   147,250                147,250 Tender awarded - Alpine Builders 10%

FV - North- Shoulder pull and road rehabilitation (CF)         158,922         147,600 11,322          461,661                450,339 Working on Blumenort Road 30%

Total department 32        970,771   11,702,485   10,731,714 

Airport Department

FV - Pole Tarp Storage Shed                     -                     - -                   45,000                    45,000 Planning 0%

Total department 33                    -          45,000          45,000 

Water Treatment & Distribution Department

LC - Paving Raw Water Truckfill Station                     - -                   48,000                    48,000 Done in conjunction with Street Improvements projects. 5%

FV - 48th Ave Waterline Replacement(CF)           89,251           75,226 14,025          25,774                    11,749 Complete. 100%

FV - Paving for Water Treatment Plant                     - -                   250,000                250,000 Done in conjunction with Street Improvements projects. 5%

FV - Hydrant Replacement (CF)           52,020           49,020 3,000            15,980                    12,980 Getting quotes for sidewalk replacement and then contractor to 
finalize landscaping. 95%

LA - Well number 4         133,696 133,696        150,000                  16,304 
AE doing desktop analysis for additional well, GWUDI assess. 
in the works and application for surface water diversion sent 
ASRD

1%

ZA - Distribution pump house upgrades (CF & New)           79,625           79,625 -                   838,944                838,944 Awaiting grant funding approval. 1%

FV - Frozen Water Services Repairs (River Road) (CF)           14,519           14,486 33                 196,214                196,181 Data collected by operators, being evaluated and list for 
interested residents being compiled. 5%

FV - Raw Water Truck fill (pressured and filtered) (CF)           43,930           12,500 31,430          28,400                     (3,030) Diverting treated water truckfill to east side is complete. 100%

LC - Raw Water Truckfill Upgrade           56,662           15,837 40,825          42,163                      1,339 Awaiting some final electrical drawings. 99%

Page 3 of 7

167



 Project Name  2016 Budget  Costs in 
prior years 

 Budget 
Remaining 
on June 30, 

2016 

 Costs in 
current year 

up to       
June 30, 

2016 

 Status Update on June 30, 2016 
 Percentage 

of Completion 
(%) 

 Total costs 

LC - Waterline Bluehills                     -                     - -                   833,250                833,250 0%

LA - Rural Potable Water Infrastructure (CF)         452,052           32,059 419,993        6,562,557          6,142,564 Brushing & clearing complete. Startup meeting July 5/16 with 
staking and fusing occuring immediately after. 10%

 (6/13)Fort Vermilion Backwash Waste Dechlorination           49,020 49,020          50,000                         980 

FV - 50th St - Water & sewer extension (CF)           16,520           16,520 -                   563,480                563,480 Reviewing options w/ engineer. 1%

Total department 41        692,021     9,604,762     8,912,741 

Sewer  Disposal Department

LC Lagoon Upgrade (CF)      7,254,070      7,218,918 35,153          84,433                    49,281 Only grass seeding and 1 year inspection remaining. 98%

Zama - Lift station upgrade (CF & New)         116,439         116,439 -                   1,256,052          1,256,052 Awaiting grant funding approval. 1%

LC - Main Lift Station Repair & Modification (CF)           61,000           10,900 50,100          51,100                      1,000 Repairs complete, some site work still required once ground 
has settled. 98%

LC - Sanitary Sewermain Upgrades (CF)           53,356           31,187 22,169          893,813                871,644 Main sewer line is installed with the exception of the CIPP pipe. 
Service installations almost complete. 70%

FV - River Road Lift Sation Repair                     - -                   10,000                    10,000 Contractor been given go ahead to start. 5%

Total department 42        107,421     2,295,398     2,187,977 

Solid Waste Disposal

Waste Bins 40 & 6 yd                     - -                   40,000                    40,000 Ordered - awaiting invoices 50%

ZA - WTS Fence                380 380               25,000                    24,620 Old fence removed - awaiting invoices & install 25%

LC - Blue Hills - Build up ramp (CF)             8,410             8,410 -                   3,590                        3,590 Road work to be done 75%

Total department 43               380          68,590          68,210 

Planning & Development Department

New GIS Computer             9,009 9,009            9,000                              (9) New computer is provisioned and all S/W installed. 100%

Total department 61            9,009            9,000                  (9)

Page 4 of 7

168



 Project Name  2016 Budget  Costs in 
prior years 

 Budget 
Remaining 
on June 30, 

2016 

 Costs in 
current year 

up to       
June 30, 

2016 

 Status Update on June 30, 2016 
 Percentage 

of Completion 
(%) 

 Total costs 

Agricultural Services Department

HL - Rural Drainage - Phase II & Phase III (CF)                     -                     - -                   100,000                100,000 Negotiating with Dene Tha 0%

LC - Buffalo Head/Steep Hill water mangement (Phase I) (CF)         193,100         178,201 14,899          1,721,800          1,706,901 
Still waiting for approval under the Water Act from AE&Parks. 
ASB is scheduling a meeting with landowners concerning 
project status and easements in late July.

Total department 63          14,899     1,821,800     1,806,901 

Recreation Department

FV - Ball Diamonds CF                     - -                   160,000                160,000 

One old diamond has been taken down and working on the 
second diamond. In the middle of June the contractor starts 
with a completion date on August 15th. Both diamonds up 
and fencing complete, will be installing wheeping tile, 
shale seeding.

50%

FV - Ventilations/fans installed             9,453 9,453            6,000                       (3,453)

Difficuly receiving quotes. Current contractor CJ Contracting 
will be giving a quote and hope to have completed by next 
hocky season (OCT 2016). Will look into it, waiting on 
contractor quote (electrician) still.

5%

FV - Skate Shack                     - -                   30,000                    30,000 

The skate shack will be moved this summer up to the rodeo 
grounds. Thomas Simpson is in charge of this project. It is only 
about 10% complete with plans of being 100% by fall. Next 
meeting August 9th.

10%

LC - Capital (requests from Recreation Society) CF           66,510           66,510 -                   15,000                    15,000 Arena Main lIghts - Completed 2015 100%

LC - Baseball Tractor/Gate for Arena                     - -                   520                              520 Completed in 2015 100%

Grounds Improvements (2014 - FV Walking Trail) (CF)         522,406         522,406 -                   25,394                    25,394 Ongoing 85%

ZA - Old County office - window replacement CF           21,980                     - 21,980          9,000                     (12,980)
Summer plans, Contractor hires and windows ordered. 
Contractors didn’t show this week, hopfully 2 weeks from 
now.

20%

ZA - Com. Hall: Back Storage Room/Loading dock step                     - -                   2,000                        2,000 Almost complete. Few tuchups to be completed 80%

ZA - Com. Hall: Table & Chair Trolleys (6)                     - -                   6,000                        6,000 Completed. 100%

ZA - Com. Hall: Storage room industrial floor covering                     - -                   6,500                        6,500 Flooring complete, have trim left, but may not install. 99%

ZA - Com. Hall: Property Full landscaping                     - -                   126,000                126,000 Just started, waiting on rental units to arrive. Started 
landscaping. 20%

ZA - Security Camera System                     - -                   5,500                        5,500 

Waiting until facility is completed. Scoping out usful locations 
for cameras. Plan to start project in late summer to early fall. 
Greg will speak to Lisa, not sure if equipment is at the 
location.

60%

Page 5 of 7

169



 Project Name  2016 Budget  Costs in 
prior years 

 Budget 
Remaining 
on June 30, 

2016 

 Costs in 
current year 

up to       
June 30, 

2016 

 Status Update on June 30, 2016 
 Percentage 

of Completion 
(%) 

 Total costs 

ZA - Hall electrical upgrades                     - -                   1,887                        1,887 

In contact with ATCO and another consultant. Plan to be 
completed by the end of September. (1st priority)  Working on 
a few more finishing touches - some work with lighting still 
to happen.

70%

ZA - Shower facilities at campground                     - -                   41,613                    41,613 Complete. 100%

LC - Splash Park (CF)                     -                     - -                   255,000                255,000 Have money set aside for the Splash Park but no record of 
plans to start the building process. 0%

FV - Skate Park (CF)                     - -                   70,000                    70,000 Completed aprox July 15th 2015 100%

FV - Rodeo Grounds           10,567 10,567          40,000                    29,433 Currently purchased shoots and fencing for the grounds. 
Purchasing paneling for August event. 50%

FV - Covered Gazebo for Splash Park             9,500 9,500            10,000                         500 
In the process of building the base and hope to have the 
gazebo built by the end of the week and will submit invoice next 
week. Being used, inv - Competed

100%

FV - Playground Equipment             2,850 2,850            10,000                      7,150 

Equipment was ordered and is to contact Jennifer as to the 
location of equipment. Then the next step is to deliver and set 
equipment up at the location. Equipment still at the county 
office, planns to be delivered to location arund August 8th.

80%

FV - Curling Rink Renovations           20,000 20,000          20,000                              - 
They have received the $20,000 and an invoice was submitted. 
Held fundraiser and earned $13,125 to go towards bathroom 
upgrades. Paid, reimbursed - Completed.

100%

LC - Bluehills Rink           20,500 20,500          41,000                    20,500 
In process, have awarded the tender. Sent request for decision 
to the Finance Committee to reallocate $11,000 from LC-
Storage Facility Project to this Project. Completed.

100%

LC - Outdoor lights (front arena & players' entrance)             2,600 2,600            5,200                        2,600 Tender Packages have been sent out. Awarded. 0%

LC - Upgrade counters & cupboards in minor hockey kitchen             4,800 4,800            4,800                                - Counters and cupboards in minor hocey kitched have been 
completed since the end of April. Completed 100%

LC - Bowling Alley repairs & upgrade           14,569 14,569          20,147                      5,578 Company working on the project will arrive in one to two weeks. 
Completed. 100%

LC - 2 NHL nets             1,350 1,350            2,700                        1,350 Received nets and have been place at location. Completed 100%

LC - Wind mesh for Blumenort tennis courts             1,750 1,750            3,500                        1,750 Received wind mesh, needs to install at the location. 100%

LC - Painting pickleball courts             1,500 1,500            1,500                                - Completed. 100%

ZA - Water Line to Outdoor Rink Shack                     - -                   30,000                    30,000 In progress, Dealing with electrical problems before able to 
continue this project. Moved funds to electrical upgrade. 0%

LA - Ice Chiller Replacement         297,516 297,516        375,400                  77,884 Old parts have been removed, early July replacement parts will 
arrive. Completed. 100%

Total department 71        418,934     1,324,661        905,727 

Parks & Playgrounds Department

Page 6 of 7

170



 Project Name  2016 Budget  Costs in 
prior years 

 Budget 
Remaining 
on June 30, 

2016 

 Costs in 
current year 

up to       
June 30, 

2016 

 Status Update on June 30, 2016 
 Percentage 

of Completion 
(%) 

 Total costs 

FV - Hutch Lake Caretaker Site Development                     - -                   15,000                    15,000 Awaiting invoices 90%

Dock Blocks Hutch Lake & Wadlin Lake (CF)           49,000                     - 49,000          49,000                            (0) Extra Dock arrived, invoice received July 5 100%

D.A. Thomas Park - Shelter Repair                170 170               6,000                        5,830 Maintenance Request completed-awaiting quotes 1%

Machesis Lake - Horse camp - road (CF)             7,160             1,438 5,722            23,562                    17,840 Painting still to be completed - awaiting invoices - Grand 
Opening July 13, 2016 80%

Bridge campground - Survey & improvements (CF)           26,950           26,950 -                   12,050                    12,050 Awaiting Historical Assessment 5%

LC - Concrete Toilets Knelsen Park                     - -                   16,000                    16,000 Been orderd for 3 months 5%

FV - D.A. Thomas Park - Steps                     - -                   10,000                    10,000 0%

Wadlin Lake - Grounds improvements (CF)           18,575                     - 18,575          70,000                    51,425 Gravel moved in for development, Soil contamination testing 
Invoices to follow. 40%

Total department 72          73,468        201,612        128,145 

 TOTAL 2016 Capital Projects 2,436,387     27,794,092   25,357,705   

Page 7 of 7

171



Year Amount Significant Account 1 Significant Account 2 Total Less Significant Accounts

2012 282,966.96 213,176.03 0.00 0.00

2013 522,482.89 483,018.10 0.00 39,464.79

2014 756,212.77 622,586.87 15,028.71 118,597.19

2015 1,611,480.92 1,091,616.01 39,218.75 480,646.16

2016 3,576,120.77 313,444.36 16,682.09 3,245,994.32

Total 6,749,264.31 2,723,841.37 70,929.55 3,884,702.46

Company Total

238568 9,119.79$                        

009926 35,694.24$                      

006970 56,483.52$                      

004542 24,176.52$                      

010109 15,822.18$                      

141,296.25$                    

Current 249,039.90$                    

Period 1 153,339.80$                    

Period 2 25,504.66$                      

Period 3 4,008.06$                        

Period 4 10,506.52$                      

Total 442,398.94$                    

Current 10,739.91$                      

30-60 days 2,791.76$                        

90 days 21,301.34$                      

91 and over 203,520.85$                    

Balance 238,353.86$                    

Aged Receivables on June 30, 2016

Utility Receivables 

Trade Receivables 

Tax Receivables

Tax Receivables from Oil Companies

0.00

1,000,000.00

2,000,000.00

3,000,000.00

4,000,000.00

5,000,000.00

6,000,000.00

7,000,000.00

8,000,000.00

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 Total

Tax Receivables  

Significant Account 2

Significant Account 1

Remaining Accounts

172



Agenda Item # 13. a) 
 

Author: M Dyck Reviewed by:  CAO:  
 

 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 
 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: August 9, 2016 

Presented By: Len Racher, Director of Facilities & Operations (South) 

Title:  Third Access Request – NE 23-104-15-W5M 

 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
Administration received an application for a third access to a parcel of land, and as per 
Policy PW039, Item 10 of the Policy reads as follows… 
 

“10. For accesses to Rural areas, administration may approve two accesses to a 
titled property. Any additional accesses will be brought to Council for 
consideration.  Where deemed applicable and beneficial, a shared access to 
agricultural lands will be encouraged.” 

 
The quarter section contains the maximum of 2 residential subdivisions and one yard 
site on the remainder of the quarter.  Applicant is requesting a third access for a 
possible subdivision.  As per the Land Use Bylaw, the applicant cannot currently build or 
apply for an additional yard site to the quarter unless it has been rezoned for a multi lot 
country residential.  The attached aerial view indicates existing subdivisions, existing 
yard site, and current accesses to the quarter. 
 
 
OPTIONS & BENEFITS: 
 
Option 1:  To deny third access. 
 
 
COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
 
N/A 
 

173



Author: M. Dyck Reviewed by:  CAO:  
 

 
SUSTAINABILITY PLAN: 
 
N/A 
 
 
COMMUNICATION: 
 
Administration will write a letter to the applicant stating Council decision. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
 Simple Majority  Requires 2/3  Requires Unanimous 
 
That the request for a third access on NE 23-104-15-W5M be denied in accordance with 
the Land Use Bylaw; preventing the construction of a third access until re-zoning is 
completed and additional subdivision is applied for. 
 

174



•%52 OM? 

• 
*road%  

~ 

• 

, 	  

1st  acqess -to 
quarte,riex(sting 
yard site) 

• 

ExistingRnd- 
Access!'::-:.. 

,fopOsdd 3rd 	‘i - 
„ 

%,ubdiVtigikirtry: .  
• ' ' 	".• 

"■••• 
• 

• • • . • 	. • 

• • 

• • 	• 1 	s • 	+ 
e 

I 	.0  • 

- • 
' • , • 	, 	I 	• 	• 	• 

• 

1 

• e 
t • 

• , 	 . 	• 
• 

• ...1  .** 	

.„ 

	

?.. 	• • ; 

fe"Ail 

• 	

11;" 

/ 

) NE 3. 

,• 

11, 	,•••• 

• , 	, 	.

• 	

• • 

• 

• 

. 	 ,..t• 	• 

" 	 w 

• 

• p• 	• •,•:•., 
•7? , 	A• 	• Tr% 

**4" 	 4t .  • • .1t6"'7 
• •• 

. • 

	

, 	P 

• • 	.•.• • 	• 
44.7:7 le 	 t 	• 

'ye. a; t • 
41( 	; -■ 

	

‘2:44. 	'• • 

' • 	N. .•.`• 	 •-• 
• Aa 

• 0. • 

175



Ltd. J.K.& 

Wiebe 
P. 

,12 
I Wolfe 

J.T.& K 
Wail 

.K.& E. 
J. 

	[10 

SchellenberChellefl 

Pc 
Peters 
A.& N. 

Wiebe 
L.H.& B.M 

lapans 
A. 

'all 
&M. 

Peters 
A.& N. 

Unrau 
J.& A. 

Kimberlit 
Farr Ltd 

RgselAead 
Farm Ltd. 

Klmbeflit Schapans14/ 
rarm Lt . J. 	Friessen 

Rgseitead eters 	j.  
Farm Lt 	• 

Imberli ° 
Farm Lt 

e 	29 Ims-
Ltd. ti) 

CUM 
CL 
fir.6 

-5z co—; 

I Boehlig Thiess 
G.& F. J.W.& 

Teich rob 
C.& E. 

125t  
Boehlig Boehli 
E.& A. D.& S. 
Wiebe N.& M. 
J•8' A. VAGE 

Kimberlit 
F rm Lttl. Farr Ltd 

ieviead, • sAlead 
irm Ltd, Farm Ltd. 

Wall 
J.W. 

Boehli 
Boehli 	NI& • 
N.J.& 

.20 

Boehlig 	Boehli 
N.J.& M. 	N 

Wall 
J.W. 

Hiebe 
E.& S. 
H.& S. 

Jnrau 
l.& S. 

ro 

leudo 
D.& 

riesen 	Friesen 
IA.& A. 	H.A.& A. 

2 
iesen 
W.& H. 

Wiebe 
J.P.& H. 

S Marten 
triebe 	Wiebe 
i-nesen 	Wiebe 
	 3  

Wiebe 	Rose 
J.H.& S. 	Meado 

Farm L 

Hiebert 
D.& M. 

etets 
J.B.& V.M. 

Wiebe 
J.P.& H. 

Driedger 
D.P.& A. 

16 
praywo 

Agri Ltd. VRebe 
J.P.& H. 

Wiebe 
P.P.& 
M.J.& 
D.P.& A. 

Head 
Prairie 

Wiebe 

• 
Peters 	Peters 
M.B. 	M.B. Lafleur 

H.& K. 

Schapans chapansky Hiebert 	Peters 
J.& A. 	H.& G. 1 	J.W.& H.D. J.B.& V.M 

Friesen 	Friesen 
R.& S. 	R.& S. 

	F16 

Lafleur 
H.& K. 

Peters 	Peters 
M.B.& A. 	M.B. 

Hiebert 	Hiebert 
J.W.& H 	D.& S.M. 

Wiebe 	. 
D.P.& A.& Wiebe 
P.P.& M.J 

12 
• 

Wiebe 	Wiebe 
P.P.& M.J. J.P.& 

( 
Frigien Friesen 

R.& S. 
Driedger Schapans 
D.& AC  

Neudorf 
D.& M. 

Wiebe 
P.P.& M.J  (t) 

Knelsen 
R.& K. 

Peters 	Peters 
Friesen 	M.B.& A. 	M.& A. 
K.P. 

Schapans 
J.& A. 

12 
berta 

td. 
Wolfe 

M.& S.A. 

Crown 
octrote 

inkrimg 
Ltd. 

Kimberlits 
Farm Ltd & 	Schvans 

Rose Meadbli.80 
Farm Ltd., 

Friese 
P.W.& 

Wiebe 
GA 

Pete 
E.B.& Neudorf 

D.& M. 

Imberlit 
a Ltd 

se't1ead 
arm Ltd. 

Schapa 
w  H.& 

mberlite 
rrn Ltd. 

se Mead 
arm Ltd. 

5 
\Schapan 

hapanslry 18, A. 
J.& A. 

120644 
Alberta 
Ltd. 

Kimbe  • 
0 	

 

Fa rU  176



Agenda Item # 13. b) 
 

Author: M. Dyck Reviewed by: L. Racher CAO: CG 
 

 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 
 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: August 9, 2016 

Presented By: Len Racher, Director of Facilities & Operations (South) 

Title:  Supply of Winter Sand 

 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
The Supply of Winter Sand RFP was released in June of this year. Two quotes have 
been provided, one from Knelsen Sand & Gravel and one from Unity Sand & Gravel 
(see attached). 
 
The RFP was for a yearly supply of approximately 1800 cubic meters of Winter Sand to 
be delivered to the La Crete Salt/Sand Shelter.  Winter Sand will be 6-8mm and meet 
the Alberta Transportation Specifications. 
 
 
OPTIONS & BENEFITS: 
 
Option 1: 
Mackenzie County awards the supply of Winter Sand to the lowest bidder. 
 
 
COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
 
Operating Budget 
 
 
SUSTAINABILITY PLAN: 
 
N/A 
 
COMMUNICATION: 
 
Administration will inform the successful bidder of Council decision. 

177



Author:  Reviewed by:  CAO: CG 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
 Simple Majority  Requires 2/3  Requires Unanimous 
 
That the supply of Winter Sand to the La Crete Salt/Sand Shelter be awarded to the 
lowest bidder. 
 

178



1-to  KNELSEN SAND & GRAVEL LTD. 
Phone: 780 928 3935 Fax: 780 928 3656 

Box 125 La Crete, AB. TOH 2H0 
Icoffice@knelsen.com  

Mackenzie County PRICE QUOTE RE: 

A IN Len R D July 19/16 

LAX NUMBER: T(YrAl. PAGES: 1 

Isaac Schmidt 1-12.0M: P/ IONE NUMBFR: 

Project: Supply and Deliver Winter Sand to La Crete 

FACSINIIIE TRANSMITUAL SI IEF:1' 

MATERIAL QUANTITY SUBTOTAL UNIT PRICE 

$17.00Tnn Winter Sand 

($21 25yd) 

SUBTOTAL 

GST 

TOTAL 

Notes: 

Isaac Schmi t 

179



Madison Dyck 

From: 	 Sylvia Wheeler 
Sent: 	 Monday, July 18, 2016 2:33 PM 
To: 	 Madison Dyck 
Subject: 	 FW: Winter Sand Quote 

For Winter Sand Supply RFD© 

Sylvia Wheeler 
Public Works Administrative Officer 
Mackenzie County 
La Crete Office 780-928-3983 ext. 7120 
Fax 780-928-3636 
swheeler@mackenziecounty.com   

From: Len Racher 
Sent: July-14-16 4:11 PM 
To: John Krahn 
Cc: Sylvia Wheeler; David Fehr 
Subject: RE: 

FYI. 

From: John Krahn  [mailto:unitygravel@gmail.com]  
Sent: July-12-16 12:04 PM 
To: Len Racher 
Subject: 

Attention Len Racher: 

Unity Sand & Gravel Ltd. would like to put in a bid for winter sand for $22.95/yd. delivered to La Crete. 

Thank-you, 

John Krahn 

1 

180



Agenda Item # 13. c) 

Author: D. Roberts Reviewed by:  CAO: CG 
 

 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 
 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: August 9, 2016 

Presented By: Ron Pelensky, Director of Community Services & Operations 

Title:  Zama Water Sprinkler 

 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
Administration requests the remaining funds from two existing TCA projects to be 
combined in order to have resources to cover the cost of installing a water sprinkler 
system at the Mackenzie County Administration Building (Cornerstone Building) and the 
Zama Community Hall.   
 
Existing TCA Project - Zama Office Entrance 
Funds remaining: $10,754.00 
 
The intent of this project was to landscape the Cornerstone Building, install flag poles, 
enhance the entrance of the building esthetically and erect the Mackenzie County sign.  
With the exception of the Mackenzie County sign all aspects of this project were 
completed.  Administration has discussed the option of Fort Vermilion receiving a new 
sign and Zama receiving their existing sign.   
 
Existing Non-TCA Project – Zama Office Furniture 
Funds remaining: $12,955.00 
 
The intent of this project was to purchase furniture and decor for the newly erected 
Cornerstone building.  All furniture has been purchased and installed.  Former CAO Bill 
Kostiw had suggested acquiring a full-mount bison to be displayed in the lobby.  Until 
recently Administration assumed remaining funds would be reserved for this purpose. 
The Zama Recreation Society had also reserved funds with the intent of acquiring and 
displaying a full-mount bison in the lobby of the Cornerstone building. The Zama 
Recreation Society has diligently researched the acquisition of the bison but due to 
inter-provincial rules and provincial regulations (Alberta Fish & Wildlife) it has been 
deemed unachievable at this time.  In light of this the ZRS has elected to use their funds 
to erect two outdoor bison statues, one in front of the Zama community hall and the 
other in front of Cornerstone building.  

181



Author: D. Roberts Reviewed by:  CAO: CG 
 

 
Proposed Project - Installation of New Sprinkler System 
 
Since the completion of the Cornerstone building, Administration has found it 
challenging to landscape the property and achieve acceptable County standards to their 
lawns due to insufficient water. Within the past six years the lawns surrounding the 
Cornerstone building have been tiled twice and seed / fertilizer applied on a yearly 
basis. The Zama Fire department has assisted with watering the lawns by conducting 
fire hose training on site but this is sporadic and is an inadequate amount of water. 
Conventional watering (hose & sprinklers) have been tried producing poor results due to 
the size of the area. 
 
The Zama Recreation Society, with consultation from the community, has initiated a 
project to landscape the area around the community hall and plant trees as a memorial 
to past residence of Zama that have departed.  Administration has worked with the 
Zama Recreation Society and has discussed the placement and proposed location of 
these trees.  
 
It is important at this time to note that both the Community Hall and the Cornerstone 
building share the same lot / property.   
 
The ZRS has approached Administration with the concept of installing trees, at their 
cost, not only around the community hall but also the Cornerstone building. This would 
tie-in both areas and completes the esthetics of the entire property.  
 
 
OPTIONS & BENEFITS: 
 
Option 1:  
Approve the amalgamation of funds remaining in both projects with the purpose of 
installing a water sprinkler system as presented. 
 
Option 2 
Don’t approve. 
 
Benefits 
The lawns around the administration building would receive a sufficient amount of water 
on a regular basis and would eliminate the need to annually seed this area. The newly 
planted trees would also receive sufficient amounts of water on a regular basis and 
would insure their successful growth and survival. In recent years the residences of 
Zama have worked hard to beautify their properties and take pride in the development 
of the hamlet. The success of this project would give Mackenzie County their own 
showcase and inspire the residence for future improvements throughout the hamlet.  

182



Author: D. Roberts Reviewed by:  CAO: CG 
 

COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
 
TCA - Zama Office Entrance - Funds remaining:  $10,754.00 
 
Non-TCA Zama Office Furniture - Funds remaining:  $12,955.00 
 
Combination of Funds……………  Total   $ 23,709.00 
 
Cost of installation of Water Sprinkler System   $ 24,725.00 
 
The remaining amount required for the project ($1,016.00) will be covered by the Zama 
Recreational Society. 
 
 
SUSTAINABILITY PLAN: 
 
This item relates to the County’s Sustainability Plan under Environmental Sustainability 
G4. Zama City Development Plan 
 
 
COMMUNICATION: 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
 Simple Majority  Requires 2/3  Requires Unanimous 
 
That the budget be amended as follows: 

• Delete - TCA Project - Zama Office Entrance ($10,754) 
• Delete - Non-TCA Project - Zama Office Furniture ($12,955) 
• New - TCA Project - Zama Sprinkler System ($23,709) 

 

183



 

184



Agenda Item # 13. d) 
 

Author: M. Dyck Reviewed by: L. Racher CAO: CG 
 

 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 
 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: August 9, 2016 

Presented By: Len Racher, Director of Facilities & Operations (South) 

Title:  Blue Hills Bridge Crossings 

 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
Blue Hills Roads to New Lands requires two bridge crossings.  Thorough studies have 
been completed and two locations have been selected as the optimum placing of the 
two crossings (WSP maps attached indicating these locations)  
 
These locations require the County to make a new Right of Way through Crown Land in 
order to obtain access to these crossings.  Extensive surveying will be required as well 
as applications through Alberta Environment & Parks.  Permits through the Federal 
Fisheries Act will also be needed as these streams are fish bearing. 
 
Ryan Konowalyk, Regional Director with Alberta Transportation, met with myself and 
Dave Fehr and informed us that we may be able to apply for funding for the bridge 
projects if the projects designs are made shelf ready.  Instructing WSP to proceed and 
expedite the ‘Shelf Ready’ Designs for both crossings will be beneficial for possible 
funding as soon as possible.  At this time we are not aware of the extent or percentage 
of funding available but, it will contribute to the crossings project. 
 
 
OPTIONS & BENEFITS: 
 
These two crossings will benefit future growth of the new P5 Road as well as provide 
access to New Lands that are being sold at public auctions that do not currently have 
access.  These crossings will promote growth and development throughout the area. 
 
 
COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
 

185



Author: M. Dyck Reviewed by: L. Racher CAO: CG 
 

Funding will be coming from the New Road Infrastructure Capital Budget, G/L Code: 6-
32-30-09.  According to the detailed WSP Proposal (attached), the site costs are as 
follows: Site 1: $128,007.60. Site 2: $97,133.60, making a total of $225,141.20. 
 
The current remaining amount in the New Road Infrastructure Budget is $161,558.00, 
an additional $63,583.20 is needed from the Road Reserve: RR-4-32-713. 
 
 
SUSTAINABILITY PLAN: 
 
 
 
COMMUNICATION: 
 
Administration will inform WSP of Council decision. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
 Simple Majority  Requires 2/3  Requires Unanimous 
 
That administration be authorized to engage WSP to proceed with and accelerate the 
‘Shelf Ready Designs’ for the Bridge Crossings in Blue Hills in order to apply for funding 
when it becomes available and that the budget be amended to include an additional 
$63,583.20 in the New Road Infrastructure budget with funding coming from the Roads 
Reserve. 
 

186



SONS P 

July 26, 2016 	 WSP File: Proposal 

Mackenzie County 
4511-46 Avenue 
Box 640 
Fort Vermilion, AB 
TOH 1NO 

Attention: 	Mr. Len Racher, Director of Facilities and Operations (South) 

Re: Proposal — Blue Hills Bridge Crossings 

Thank you for the opportunity to submit this letter proposal to provide engineering services for 
the above noted project. 

We've reviewed the information provided for the Blue Hills Bridge Crossing projects in 
Mackenzie County and understand that site developments will comprise of the construction of a 
new bridge structure at Crossing Site 1 and a new bridge culvert at Crossing Site 2 (location 
map attached for reference). 

Scope of Work  

Our tentative scope of work to complete the above projects includes: 

Site 1 (SW 30-101-17-W5) Bridge Crossing 

• Design — WSP will complete a detailed design of the bridge crossing at this location. 
The budget assumes the new structure to be a 2-lane, 3-span Alberta Transportation 
standard bridge (14m-14m-14m). Cost savings during construction could be realized if 
the County wishes to reduce the standard to a single lane bridge; however a single lane 
standard would have reduced loading and a reduced lifespan. 

• Environmental — The watercourse is assumed to be fish bearing. As such, a fisheries 
assessment has been included in the budget for environmental permitting purposes. 

• Geotechnical — Our proposed scope of work comprises of the following elements: 
o Completion of two geotechnical boreholes (one per abutment) to maximum depths of 

approximately 15 meters and collection of soil samples at select depths; 
o Laboratory testing on selected soil samples; and, 
o Geotechnical analysis and report preparation. 

Site 2 (SE 3-102-17-W5) Culvert Crossing 

• Design — WSP will complete a detailed design of the bridge crossing at this location. 
The budget assumes the new structure to be an SPCSP culvert in the 4 meter diameter 
range. Other structure types will be investigated during the preliminary design stage. 

P.O. Box 7766,9020-90 St., Peace River, Alberta, Canada TOH IWO 
Telephone: 780-624-5631 - Fax : 780-625-3732- - www.wspgroup.com  

187



2 

Environmental requirements (i.e. fish passage) may require the culvert to be oversized 
to reduce velocities, or other structures (open bottomed) to be proposed. 

• Environmental — The watercourse is assumed to be fish bearing. As such, a fisheries 
assessment has been included in the budget for environmental permitting purposes. 

• Geotechnical — A geotechnical investigation is assumed not to be required. If site 
reviews indicate a concern with the subsurface conditions, then a geotechnical 
investigation may be prudent for a large culvert in a new alignment. A cost for an 
investigation is shown in the Deletable Items section of the budget. 

Roadway Work Site 1 and 2 

• Preliminary Engineering — WSP will complete a preliminary survey for both the 
proposed road alignments. 

• Detailed Design — A detailed design of the projects will be competed, including quantity 
estimates, detailed mosaic drawings and typical cross section drawings. WSP will also 
prepare a "C" cost estimate for the work and will have a design review meeting 
conference call to ensure the design meets the needs and expectations of the County. 

• Land Acquisition — WSP will utilize Roy Northern for the land acquisition of the project. 
WSP will prepare detailed 1.0.P. drawings and work with Roy Northern to complete the 
land transactions. 

• Legal Survey — WSP will perform the legal survey and land registration once 
construction is complete. 

Engineering Fees  

Based on the identified scope of work our current engineering estimate to complete this 
assignment is $128,007.60 for Site 1 and $97,133.60 for Site 2 not including deletable items. 

The attached tables represent a summary of the fees associated with providing engineering to 
complete this assignment. 

Furthermore, our engineering estimate is based on the following criteria; 

• Additional engineering effort may be needed if environmental agencies do not allow a 
round culvert at Site 2 

• Tender preparation has not been included in this estimate 
• Construction supervision has not been included in this estimate 
• Material fabrication inspection has not been included in this estimate 
• Cost savings will be realized if both projects are approved due to task mobilizations 

between sites being coordinated 

Conclusion 

WSP is prepared to utilize all of our resources to accelerate the delivery of this project and 
provide the County with an exceptional product. 

Should you require further information or clarification please contact me at (780) 624-5631. 
Thank you again for this opportunity, we look forward to being of service to you. 

188



3 

Sincerely, 

Chase Milligen, P. Eng., PMP 
Project Manager 
WSP Inc. 

cc. 	Blake Quinney, WSP Canada 
Garth McCulloch, WSP Canada 

189



Site 1 Deletable Items 

  

$8,087.00 First Nations Consultation 

 

  

Cost Summary 
Blue Hills Bridge Crossings 

Mackenzie County 

SITE 1 (SW 30-101-17-W5) 

Work Phase 

Site 1 Bridge Crossing Design 

Prime Consultant Fees Subtotal Disbursements Subtotal Project A 

Site Survey $7,040.00 $1,980.00 $9,020.00 

Bridge Planning $29,853.00 $17,850.00 $47,703.00 

Structural Design $21,750.00 $1,250.00 $23,000.00 

TOTAL (Without Deletables) $58,643.00 $21,080.00 $79,723.00 

Work Phase 

Site 1 Roadway Design 

Prime Consultant Fees Subtotal Disbursements Subtotal Project A 

Preliminary Engineering $11,536.00 $5,995.00 $17,531.00 

Detailed Design $6,333.00 $0.00 $6,333.00 

Land Acuisition and Legal Survey $1,206.00 $24,700.00 , 	$24,420.60 

$30,695.00 	 $48,284.60 TOTAL (Without Deletables) $19,075.00 

SITE 2 (SE 3-102-17-W5) 

Site 2 Culvert Crossing Design 

Prime Consultant Fees Subtotal Disbursements Subtotal Project B 

$7,040.00 $1,980.00 $9,020.00 

$20,127.00 $5,170.00 $25,297.00 

$13,258.00 $800.00, 	$14,058.00 

$40,425.00 $7,950.00 	 $48,375.00 

Site 2 Roadway Design 

Prime Consultant Fees Subtotal Disbursements Subtotal Project B 

$11,536.00 $5,995.00 $17,531.00 

$6,333.00 $0.00 $6,333.00 

$1,206.00 $24,700.00 $24,894.60 

$19,075.00 $30,695.00 $48,758.60 

SITE 1 TOTAL (WITHOUT DELETABLES) $128,007.60 

 

SITE 2 TOTAL (WITHOUT DELETABLES) $97,133.60 

    

Site 2 Deletable Items 

First Nations Consultation $8,087.00 

Geotechnical - One Borehole $13,488.00 

190



9,020 

$1,456 
$5,299 
$1,819 
$6,624 

$18,660 
$1,494 
$4,432 
$4,412 
$1,207 
$2,300 

$3,768 
$10,952 
$2,391 
$2,002 
$1,207 
$1,580 
$1,100 

$11WSP Site 1 (SW 30-101-17-W5) Bridge Crossing Design 

Mackenzie County - Engineering Cost Budget - New Standard Bridge 

Phase Task 

co 

  a 
 5 	

aoy

0Q 6   
 

47/
0 

 

<1.1 

F-' 
-k- 

F 	0 
8 	

...-'4' o 
e- 

, 

Rate (per hour) Expenses (per unit) 
$158 $141 $129 $69 $206 $96 $148 $85 $129 $110 $ 	1.00 $67 $173 N/A 

Site Survey Site Survey & Drafting 2 6 18 4 16 1500 2 2 

Bridge 
Planning 

Review BF(s),Fish Classification 2 4 6 
Site Inspection 2 23 1500 1 1 
Environmental Desktop Review 1 1 18 
Fisheries Assessment 2 4 42 1500 2 2 $ 	200 
Geotechnical - Two Boreholes 2 12 2 6 32 4 1 1800 2 2 $ 	9,300 
Hydrology 2 8 $ 	50 
Structure Alternatives & Costs 5 24 2 
Bridge Planning Report 4 24 2 2 
Review Meeting - via telephone 2 4 1 2 
Lump Sum Disbursements $ 	2,300 

Structural 
Design 

Bridge Structural Details 6 20 
Prepare Design Drawings (3) 4 30 54 $ 	150 
Environmental Applications (DFO / AEP) 2 1 24 

Structural Design Summary 2 10 4 
Review Meeting - via telephone 2 4 1 2 

Independent Design Check 10 
Lump Sum Disbursements $ 	1,100 

Hrs 
Totals 

$ 

43 170 6 11 24 38 5 84 16 71 6300 7 7 
$ 	6,794 $ 23,970 $ 	774 $ 	759 $ 4,944 $ 3,648 $ 	740 $ 7,140 $ 2,064 $ 7,810 $ 	6,300 $ 	469 $ 	1,211 $ 	13,100 

Summary Budget 

Site Survey (Lump Sum) $ 	9,020 
Bridge Planning (Lump Sum) $ 	47,703 
Structural Design (Lump Sum) $ 	23,000 

Total $ 	79,723 

191



ESTIMATE OF FEES OF PRIME and SUB CONSULTANTS 
SITE I (SW 30.101.17-WS) ROADWAY DESIGN ENS EST TABLE 

SIM 1 Roadway Work 

111111WSP 

PRIME CONSULTANT Disbursements TOTALS 

R
e
gi

o
n

al
 M

a
n
a
ge

r  
G

a
rt
h
 M

c C
ul

lo
ch

 

B
ra

n
c h

 M
a

n
a

ge
r  

B
la

ke
  C

lu
in

n
e
y  Et 

i 3 

i 
Jo

se
ph

 L
u
g
.  M

S
c.

  E
n

g
.,

  P
.  E

n
g

.  
S

r.
  D

e
si

g
n
  E

n
g
in

e
e

r  

,1 

1 

i 

S
r.

  M
a
te

ri
a
ls

  T
e
ch

n
ol

o
g
is
t  

la 
.6 
3 g 

E 1 
6 2

-M
a

n
  S

u
rv

e
y  

C
ra

w
  

1 
i 
E 

6' 

P
ro

je
ct

  S
e
rv

ic
es

  T
e
ch

n
ol

o
g
is

t  

a 
a 

& 
i i 

1 
■ - - I k 

] 

1 
.:i 

.14 
5 m 

S i 
5 • 

TASKS 	 Days /Rats $154.00 $133.00 5129.00 $133.03 $121.00 $121.00 $96.00 $148.90 $206.00 $99.00 $129.30 $69.00 51.00 $240.80 $240.00 $1.00 $1.00 
1) PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING (Lumpsum) 

Initialization Neetkg 1 I 1 1 $414.00 $0.00 $464.00 
Preliminary Survey and Fleld Pickup 1 8 2 20 1 625 4 95,623.00 $1,585.00 $7,201.00 
$ok Investigation 1 4 50 570 16 $5,449.00 $4.410.00 $8,158.00  

Sub4otat(un6s) 
0I8001al (We) 

0 
$0.00 

3 
$399.00 

13 
$1.677.00 

1 
$133.00 

2 
$242.00 

0 
$0.00 

50 
$4.800.00 

0 
00.00 

20 
04,120.00 

1 
096.00 

0 
$0.00 

1 
589.00 

01,195.00 
01495.00 

$4.00 
095000 

$16.00 
$3,840.00 

$0.00 
$0.00 

$0.00 
$0.00 011,936.00 $9955.00 $17,531.00 

2) DETAILED DESIGN (Lumpsum) 
Detailed 0e213n 1 2 2 16 16 3 $4,698.00 30.00 $4,5119.00 
Walks/ .reormnts/Plen.  
Design Review Meetings 

1 
I 

4 
1 1 

4 2 
1 

91,271.00 
$494.00 

$0.00 
50.00 

91,271.00 
0444.00 

888401•1 (,3als) 
Sub4olal 0994 

0 
$0.00 

3 
$399.00 

7 
$903.00 

3 
$399.00 

16 
$1.936.00 

20 
$2,420.00 

0 
$0.00 

0 
$0.00 

0 
$0.00 

0 
$0.00 

0 
$0.00 

4 
$275.00 

0 
$0.00 

0 
$0.00 

0 
$0.00 

0 
$0.00 

0 
$0.00 $9333.00 $0.00 $9333.00 

3) Land AcqulaltIon and Legal Survey (lumpsum) 
Land AcquIsilon (Includes envIcenmanlal assessment on DLO) 1 2 4 1 $13514.00 $944.00 $13,514.60 $14,454.40 
87r24 Nations Consults don (0•19tab)e)  
Legal Surnry and Plan ReglstrNon 

1 
1 

1 
1 $ 	9,700.03 

$7,82900 $262.00 
9212.00 

$7,825.00 
$5,100.00 

$9087.00 
$9,962.08 

500.10181 (units) 
38048181 goes) 

0 
$0.00 

3 
$399.00 

4 
$515.00 

0 
$0.00 

0 
$0.00 

4 
$484.00 

0 
$0.00 

0 
$0.00 

0 
$0.00 

0 
$0.00 

0 
$0.00 

1 
$69.00 

0 
50.00 

0 
00.00 

0 
$0.00 

9700 
09700.00 

21339.5 
$21,339.60 01,46000 031,03950 032,507.50 

Total 50.00 $1,117.00 $3,099.00 $532.00 $2,178.00 $2,904.00 04,800.00 $0.00 $4,120.00 $96.00 $0.00 $414.00 $1,195.00 $940.00 $3,840.00 $9,700.00 $21,339.80 $19,337.00 537,034.90 856,371.60 

Teta! without Dolatablas $0.00 51,064.00 $2,967.00 $532.00 $2,178.00 $2,504.00 I $4,800.00 $0.90 $4,120.00 $96.00 $0.00 $414.00 $1,195.00 9990.00 $3,840.00 $5,700.00 $13,514.90 $19,075.00 829,203.90 $48,284.60 

Blue Ms Orlages_Ena jams mAmmAa 

192



$9,020 

$1,456 
$5,299 
$1,479 
$5,604 
$1,494 
$3,146 
$4,412 
$1,207 
$1,200 
$1,162 
$6,068 
$2,391  
$1,582 
$1,207 
$948  
$700 

AUWS P Site 2 (SE 3-102-17-W5) Culvert Crossing Design 

Mackenzie County - Engineering Cost Budget - New Bridge-Sized Culvert 

Phase Task 

     
Y 
 

 0 
 

 Is    e 	d 	

Q 

c ,  6? 	 c 
/./../ 

g  ' g 
U.'  
c .-'.2

c

.
. , 

Rate (per hour) Expenses (per unit) 
$158 $141 $129 $69 $206 $96 $148 $85 $129 $110 $ 	1.00 $67 $173 N/A 

Site Survey Site Survey & Drafting 2 6 18 4 16 1500 2 2 

Bridge 
Planning 

Review BF(s), Fish Classification 2 4 6 
Site Inspection 2 23 1500 1 1 
Environmental Desktop Review 1 1 14 
Fisheries Assessment 2 4 30 1500 2 2 $ 	200 
Hydrology 2 8 $ 	50 
Structure Alternatives & Costs 4 16 2 
Bridge Planning Report 4 24 2 2 
Review Meeting - via telephone 2 4 1 2 
Lump Sum Disbursements $ 	1,200 

Structural 
Design 

Culvert Structural Details 2 6 
Prepare Design Drawings (2) 2 12 36 $ 	100 
Environmental Applications (DFO / AEP) 2 1 24 
Structural Design Summary 2 8 2 
Review Meeting - via telephone 2 4 1 2 
Independent Design Check 6 
Lump Sum Disbursements $ 	700 

Hrs 
Totals 

$ 
30 116 6 7 18 6 5 68 12 52 4500 5 5 

$ 	4,740 $ 16,356 $ 	774 $ 	483 $ 3,708 $ 	576 $ 	740 $ 5,780 $ 1,548 $ 5,720 $ 	4,500 $ 	335 $ 	865 $ 	2,250 

Deletable 
Items Geotechnical - One Borehole 1 8 2 6 20 2 1 	I 	1800 1 1 $ 6,500 I $13,488 

            

Summary Budget 

Site Survey (Lump Sum) $ 	9,020 
Bridge Planning (Lump Sum) $ 	25,297 
Structural Design (Lump Sum) $ 	14,058 

Total Without Deletables $ 	48,375 

Deletable Items 
	

13,488 

193



ESTIMATE OF FEES OF PRIME and SUB CONSULTANTS 
SITE 2 SE 3.102.11.W3) ROADWAY DESIGN ERG EST TABLE 

SRA 2 Roadway Work 

b  WS P 

PRIME CONSULTANT DIsburamnanta TOTALS 

R
eg

io
na

l M
a n

ag
er

  
G

ar
th

 M
cC

ul
lo

ch
 

r 

i i 
i I 4  

Br
ya

n  
H

ol
de

n,
  P

.  E
ng

..  
K

IP
 

Pr
oj

ec
t  M

an
ag

er
  

Jo
se

ph
 L

uc
a,

  M
Sc

.  E
ng

..  
P

.  E
ng

.  
Sr

.  D
es

ig
n  

E
ng

in
ee

r  

1 .. m 
1 
..g 

Sr
.  D

ra
ft

sp
er

so
n  

Sr
.  M

at
er

ia
ls

  T
ec

hn
ol

og
is

t  

E
nv

ir
on

m
en

ta
l S

pe
ci

al
is

t  
R

ol
e  

H
og

an
,  B

.  S
c.

  

1 

i 
2 
2 

1  
Sr

.  I
ns

tr
um

en
tm

an
  

Pr
oj

ec
t S

er
vi

ce
s  

T
oo

hn
o l

og
ie

f 

i 
. M

ile
ag

e  

2  
i :i 

. 
a 

A 
a 

S
u

b-
C

on
su

lta
nt

  R
oy

  N
or

th
am

  

Pr
im

o  
C

on
su

lt
an

t  
M

an
po

w
er

  T
ot

al
  2 , 

FA 
.2 

TASKS 	 Days / Rate $154.00 $133.00 $129.00 $133.60 $121.123 $121.00 $96.00 9148.00 $206.00 $96.03 $129.00 $6000 91.03 $240.00 1240.00 91.00 $1.00 
1) PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING (Lianpaum) 

Initialization Meeting  
Pralimlnaly Survey and Field Pickup 

1 
1 

1 
8 

1 
2 20 1 

1 
625 4 

0464.00 
$5,123.00 

WOO 
$1,585.00 

0464.00 
$7,201.00 

Soh InyeskatIon 1 4 SO 570 16 $5,441.00 $4,410.00 $9,159.00 

300401al (1..) 
0 

$0.00 
Sub.401e1 3453 s) 3 

$399.00 
13 

51,677.00 
1 

$133.00 
2 

5242.00 
0 

$0.00 
60 

54.800.00 
0 

00.00 
20 

5412000 
1 
$96.00 

0 
10.00 

1 
$60.00 

51.19600 
51,195.00 

54.00 
$960.00 

078.00 
$3.040.00 

$0.00 
50.00 

10.00 
$0.00 911,536.00 $4915.00 $17.531.00 

2) DETAILED DESIGN (Lutopsum) 
Dot031.804 DaaIan 1 2 2 16 16 1 $4,5911.00 $0.00 $4,511.63 
UNNias/A0raern0nta/Pl2ns 1  4 

1 
4 2 

1 
$1,271.00 

$464.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 

$1,271. 00 
0464.00 Design Review Mwiln94 

Sub-kgal tuni(8) 
301,4013l M.) 

0 
$0.00 

3 
$390.00 

7 
$903.00 

3 
139000 

16 
$1,936.00 

20 
$22,420.00 

0 
$0.00 

0 
5000 

0 
$0.00 

0 
50.00 

0 
$0.00 

4 
1276.00 

0 
10.00 

0 
$0.00 

0 
$aw 

0 
s0.00 

0 
woo $4333.06 $0.00 $6,333.00 

3) Land Acquisition and Legal Survey (lutn)3sum) 
Land AcquIdon (Includes analronmanIN asauarnant on DLO) 1 2 4 1 013,958.60 0944.00 $13,988.60 914,93010 
First liatlons C0880118808 (ri.letabha) 
LoqalSurvoy and Plan Ftaslotrallon 

1 
1 

1 
1 $ 9,785.00 

$7,125.00 $262.00 
5352.00 

07,82520 90,037.00 
$9,700.00 

131,513.60 

39,962.00 

$32,981.60 506-0,181 (hes) 
0 

$0.00 
3 

$399.00 
4 

$516.00 
0 

$0.00 
0 
taw 

Sub-lotal (1,4 8) 4 
$484.00 

0 
$aw 

0 
saw 

0 
00.00 

0 
s0.00 

0 
saw 

1 
$60.00 

0 
$0.00 

0 
$0.00 

0 
00.00 

9700 
*70000 

21813.6 
021.813.60 $1,468.00 

Total $0.00 51,197.00 93,010.00 $532.00 $2,171.00 00904.00 14,800.00 90.00 34,120.00 $96.00 90.00 5414.00 $1,195.00 $960.00 $3,1140.00 59,700.00 $21,113.60 $19,337.00 $37,505.60 156,845.60 

Total without Deletablas 00.00 $1,064.00 $2,967.00 0632.00 $2,178.00 $2.904.00 54.800.60 $0.00 $4,120.00 $96.00 $0.00 $414.00 $1,195.00 060.00 $3,840.00 $1,700.00 $13,988.60 $19,075.00 $29,6113.60 $41,758.60 

11119. 560 30900_E39_Te.117 July 001141 

194



r"-"•• 

NW 2-102-17-5 NE 2-102-17-5 

SE 2-102-17-5 SW2-102117-5 

• 

-I- 

NE 33-101-17-5 NW 34-101-17-5 NW 31-101-17-5 

MACKENZIE COUNTY 

BLUE HILLS AREA 
SITE 2 BRIDGE CROSSING 

SITE PLAN 
OFFICE 

RED DEER 

CON1RLCT SNEET 

1 of 2 

DIUM.10 

S2-04737-01 

CONSULTANT 

as 

DATE 

DATE 

2018.0710 

RENE 

1111-04737-00 

lioWSP 

DATE 	  

Mackenzie County 

60 2., 	Ica 

- 	  
WNWAL 

- - _ --t 

NE 35-101-17-5 

195



c4 cA a 8 S 5 

011
1I 

11111111 1 	1 I 
111 OE , Ii 

1 
,;.i...  . 	,...... co. 9 w 1  

1 	I 
,..13 1.• 27 

A 
ccoHozs 

I 
in 

9 

1 1.1,0*00704.0.4.3431.  I 

1 
MI 

\ , 

4 : Z 	GOO' I. 00001, 

MCA. 007024, 

1, 

I I  

00.IV 000.006 L I4A 

II 1111 1111111111 
1 

0 ,.. ii 
0 

a 

• 

1 

A
IM

10
9

 3
IZ

N
3N

O
V

IN
  

	) 

	

) 

DATE 
	

TO 
	

DEEMED. 
	

CONI1D.T 
	

DRAM° 
SURVEVE 
	

BLUE HILLS AREA - SITE 2 BRIDGE CROSSING - PROFILE 
	

2 C42  S2-04737-02 

REDDHWArEPROJECTEaDADAD01.0.17100PLUE HELD BODGE COCESINGS1ISSUEOFORDEVEWELAN• Fli0FIEDDWG 	DRAWN INIA1 
	

.1,07.10 196



) 

IV DA I 	PHOTO 	I 
BLUE HILLS AREA - SITE 1 BRIDGE CROSSING - SITE PLAN 

COMPACT 	MEET 	 OPAYIPM 

1 of 2 	S144737-01 

	 -1- 	  90 	  + 	  

-
) 

NE 30-101-17-5 

3+000 1 

4\s 
NE 25-10i-18-5 °..,23NW 30-101-17-5 

--, ---...._, 

S-,), ------- .4.- ',.__„/-̀  
- ST., 2+676.993 -1 -,---..Z.7,...-„ri  

" 	CS 2+615.743 	-- 

1 — 

' - -'-.-  
--, \62._....,---..._. 	- 

,., 

8 0' -  

e  

SE 25-10 -./ 
."--'—'e- 

/-' \''' I 	 .. 	_.-, SE 30-101-17-5 

, 	. 

»
  

,n
zie C

 

/ 
\ 

..,,, 03  ,s  , v., - 

5  , /174 
-.- 	  

r M 

.. 

_ 
9600  aD 	 -,4 

I 
- 

4 ..> 

NE 24-,1,6-1.----411;) ', NW 19-101-17-5 NE 19-101-17-5 / 	• r 

"?a 	 • 
. C 	919 

,7 
ej 

■-, 	' 
, SC 0+963.159 

TO 0+882.493 

	 + 	  + 	  

a,-, 
c-"-  

,, 	i,  
0+500 

\ . 

1.0? -19-5 I  SW 19-101-17-5 SE 19-1101-17-5 \ _
L

. 

,1  

I 

__— -- 

NE 13-101-18-5 NW 18-101-17-5 NE 18-101-17-5 

B
LU

E
 H

ILLS
 A

R
E

A
 

S
IT

E
 1 B

R
ID

G
E

  C
R

O
S

S
IN

G
  

S
IT

E
 P

LA
N

 

M
A

C
K

E
N

Z
IE

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

 

_,. 

=60,10 1.1,0NtVILTYLPII PrPJFILLSll'IRa 	DRAWN. hiliM 197



SURVEYED ST DATE PI-PTO - 	 DESCRPTION 	 CONTRACT 
BLUE HILLS AREA - SITE 1 BRIDGE CROSSING - PROFILE 

SHEET 
2 Ti 2  

DRAWING 
S1-04737-02 

rg 	IS 

I 

"O" 
cm ca 	 . 	DI CY 

§ 

1 

1 

11111111111111 
n SO.000 390./R7 

0101 in 11111111 111111111111111111 111111 
1 , 1E1E11 11111111111111111111111111 1 	I 

11111111 
i 

1
11

11 
01 2.905.000 	88.068 

in 
MIMI! .)/ 

I 
I pl, im 

Ii 2.623.000 ass 	I 

1 

I 

0 

,-_:-. ----r-7 
avc 2..945..0 isema 

— 

, ,,--• •.::,--:: EVC 
*CP' 

2.360.003 361.202 lIllilil 4
  11.-re

rs
 

404*.%  
M

a
cke

n
z
ie C

o
u

n
ty 

;34,', ri 0 	,,, 

?, 

.....-) 111 	111111 I 
VP1 2.160.000 

1111111 I 

I
J
O

E
.. 	

1
6

1-0
4

7
3

7-0
0
 	

1  

- ,74 :.2., --  
__Eve 

BVC .060.000 348.534 ' 	I 
,905,00 349313 

''.0,..., ' - EVC 13630.0 

H I 
I 

- EY:' 	• YI.Ilab.oco 350.800 

,.. --. .__ 

I NEE 

.400 1 

I ‘,. 

1 

! 

I 

.- 	._ 

_. 	.. I 
F20.000 303.009 

I 

D
A

TE
 	

D
m
.
 

2
0

1
5-0

7-1
0
 	

R
E

D
  D

E
E

R
  

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

 

IN 

1 
I 

II 	I 

0 

rJ 

B
LU

E
 H

ILLS
 A

R
E

A
 

S
IT

E
 1  B

R
ID

G
E

 C
R

O
S

S
IN

G
 

P
R

O
F

ILE
 

M
A

C
K

E
N

Z
IE

  C
O

U
N

TY
 

III 1111 

11  1111 .1 101111 1111101111,11011 
1111111111 111111111111111111111111111111111 1 	0.005 0. 384..6 III 

20 047,0 198



Agenda Item # 13. e) 
 

Author: M. Dyck Reviewed by: L. Racher CAO: CG 
 

 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 
 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: August 9, 2016 

Presented By: Len Racher, Director of Facilities & Operations (South) 

Title:  Supply of Water Truck & Operator for Windrow Burning Tests 

 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
Administration received a letter from Michelle Shesterniak, Wildfire Prevention Officer 
with Alberta Forestry, asking if Mackenzie County would consider supplying a water 
truck at no charge to assist and alleviate smoke during the controlled burn test (see 
attached).   
 
Kevin Hunt, Wildfire Technologist with Alberta Forestry is working on this project with 
Michelle and will be in attendance to further discuss the project with Council. 
 
 
OPTIONS & BENEFITS: 
 
Option 1: To supply water truck and operator for the duration of burn testing. 
 
Option 2: To supply a water truck only, allowing Forestry to supply a certified operator of 
their choice; similar to our current Handi-van procedure. 
 
 
COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
 
If we require a water truck at any time during the testing for our own operations, hiring a 
water truck will be necessary. 
 
 
SUSTAINABILITY PLAN: 
 
N/A 
 
 

199



Author: M. Dyck Reviewed by: L. Racher CAO: CG 
 

COMMUNICATION: 
 
Administration will inform Forestry of Council Decision.  
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
 Simple Majority  Requires 2/3  Requires Unanimous 
 
For discussion. 

200



201



202



Agenda Item # 14. a) 
 

Author:  Reviewed by: B Peters CAO: CG 
 

 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 
 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: August 9, 2016 

Presented By: Byron Peters, Director of Planning & Development 

Title:  Bylaw 1022-16 Service Road Closure  

 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
On March 23, 2016 a Public Hearing was given for Bylaw 1022-16 being a Road 
Closure Bylaw to Close the Service Road directly north of Plan 052 4622, Block 21, Lot 
10 in the Hamlet of La Crete (excluding the utility right of ways on the east and west) for 
the purpose of sale and consolidation.  No concerns were brought forth from the public. 
 
A Road Closure Bylaw package was sent to the Minister of Transportation for approval. 
Approval was granted and the signed copy has been received by administration 
(attached).  
 
Previous Background 
The question of selling the service road had been brought forth to Council on March 25, 
2015 where Council made the following motion: 
 
MOTION 15-03-219 MOVED by Councillor Braun 
 

That administration be authorized to negotiate with the adjacent 
landowners North of Plan 052 4622, Block 21, Lot 10 for the sale of the 
service road allowance along the south side of 109 Avenue (excluding the 
utility right of ways on the east and west) in the Hamlet of La Crete. 

 
Administration proceeded with acquiring the market value for this land. As the price of 
land within La Crete is fairly high, we wanted to make sure that the applicant was aware 
of what they would have to pay prior to presenting this application for a decision. The 
market value for the service road is $115,000 per acre. The road closure encompasses 
0.457 acres.  The applicant stated that he was fine with this price and acknowledges 
that he is responsible for all associated costs.  
 
 

203



Author:  Reviewed by:  CAO: CG 
 

 
OPTIONS & BENEFITS: 
 
Maintain ownership of the property, or agree to sell the property to the adjacent 
landowner. There is no apparent need for the County to maintain ownership of the 
property in order to facilitate future infrastructure improvements, while selling the 
property would generate some revenue for the County while also being beneficial to a 
local business.  
 
 
COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
 
All costs to be borne by the applicant. 
 
 
SUSTAINABILITY PLAN: 
 
The Sustainability Plan does not address road closures in the municipality.  As such, the 
proposed land use bylaw amendment neither supports nor contradicts the Sustainability 
Plan. 
 
 
COMMUNICATION: 
 
The bylaw was advertised as per MGA requirements as well as notifications sent to all 
adjacent landowners.  
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
MOTION 1: 
 
 Simple Majority  Requires 2/3  Requires Unanimous 
 
That second reading be given to Bylaw 1022-16 being a Road Closure Bylaw to Close 
the Service Road directly north of Plan 052 4622, Block 21, Lot 10 in the Hamlet of La 
Crete (excluding the utility right of ways on the east and west) for the purpose of sale 
and consolidation.  
 
MOTION 2: 
 
 Simple Majority  Requires 2/3  Requires Unanimous 
 
That third reading be given to Bylaw 1022-16 being a Road Closure Bylaw to Close the 
Service Road directly north of Plan 052 4622, Block 21, Lot 10 in the Hamlet of La Crete 
(excluding the utility right of ways on the east and west) for the purpose of sale and 
consolidation.  

204



4 a,

DELIVERY SERVICES DIVISION
2N0 FLOOR! TWIN ATRIA BUILDING

4999-98 AVENUE
EDMONTON ALBERTA CANADA
T6B2X3

June 26, 2016

MacKenzie County
4511-46 Avenue
Fort Vermilion, Alberta TOH 1 NO

Attention: Liane Lambert, Development Officer

RE: ROAD CLOSURE - BYLAW 1022-16

Transportation

TELEPHONE N0 780415-1 538
Toll Free Connection Dial 310-0000

Enclosed is the above noted bylaw which was approved
closure and sale on June 26, 2016.

by Alberta Transportation for

Following the second and third readings of the bylaw by your council the bylaw may
be registered at Land Titles. Please notify me of the second and third readings and
when the bylaw is registered at Land Titles.

Thank you.

Yours truly,

frLa~~
Adrienne Kisko
Land Technologist

cc: Marlene Cobick
Development & Planning Technologist
Peace River, Alberta

Enclosures
JUL 182016

MACI(EPJVE COUNTY
FORT VERMILION OFFICE

205



BYLAW NO. 1022-16

BEING A BYLAW OF
MACKENZIE COUNTY

IN THE PROVINCE OF ALBERTA

FOR THE PURPOSE OF CLOSING OF A SERVICE ROAD IN ACCORDANCE
WITH SECTIONS 22, 24 AND 606 OF THE MUNICIPAL GOVERNMENT ACT,

CHAPTER M-26, REVISED STATUTES OF ALBERTA 2000

WHEREAS, Council of Mackenzie County has determined that a Service Road as outlined
in Schedule “A” attached hereto, be subject to a road closure, and

WHEREAS, notice of intention of the Council to pass a bylaw will be published in a locally
circulated newspaper in accordance with the Municipal Government Act, and

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved that the Council of Mackenzie County does hereby
close and sell, a Service Road described as follows, subject to the rights of access granted
by other legislation or regulations:

All of the Service Road lying north of Plan 052 4622, Block 21, Lot 10 as shown
as Area “A” on Plan 162

EXCEPTING THEREOUT ALL MINES AND MINERALS

As outlined in Schedule “A”

READ a first time this 22nd day of February, 2016.

PUBLIC HEARING held this 23,d day of March, 2016.

~i1fNeufeId
Reeve

‘~‘1/-
.Joulia Whittleton
Chief Administrative Officer

APPROVED this 2~ day of J ~€.. , 201~~~?

portation
Approval valid for __________ months.

206



Bylaw 1022-16 Page 2 of 3
Service Road Closure

READ a second time this _____ day of 2016.

READ a third time and finally passed this ______ day of 2016.

Bill Neufeld
Reeve

Joulia Whittleton
Chief Administrative Officer

207



Bylaw 1022-16
Service Road Closure

Page 3 of 3

BYLAW No. 1022-16

SCHEDULE “A”

SERVICE ROAD

208



Mackenzie Coun 

IL .4  • 	.1 A. .41 .4 

LAND USE BYLAW AMENDMENT APPLICATION 

APPLICATION NO.   ( 	 —  

NAME OF APPLICANT 

1 4 ) Lts--7 	6 	ili i bex-i-e, 1--rd 
ADDRESS 

3IDX 	1 ci Go 
TOWN 

\--_C 	Crd-e-t 	Ike: 
POSTAL CODE 

Tb  t-k D -Ni 0 
PHONE (RES.) 

-7w-qa4,--r7LI7 
BUS. 

7 SD-9dg- 338 

COMPLETE IF DIFFERENT FROM APPLICANT 

NAME OF REGISTER OWNER 

ADDRESS 

TOWN 

POSTAL CODE 1 PHONE (RES.) 

1 

BUS. 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE LAND AFFECTED BY THE PROPOSED AMENDMENT 

QTR./LS. 	SEC. 	 TWP. 	 RANGE 
	

M. OR PLAN 

LAND USE CLASSIFICATION AMENDMENT PROPOSED: 

FROM:  SeC tLe- TO: 

REASONS SUPPORTING PROPOSED AMENDMENT: 

Apn p  mpcs 	414 NA--%k- Li ctiv- aro 	ry-ev4-1-0".0q   
icrf-  LJTA4, 	LL S.Qfv■Ge_ coed 4, J 	noca-- o—P  "  /71 rwto-,,y1   

4)  
Sktv-4- SerVic4._ mad olt,,-L9  Pty a-p4-y•Py n-e4‘0),6) ,--s -43  711,4  
c4o.goANbe49, #e_lb,48-1 	 c-- ger vi-c_e_ r J aff.cyv   

, 	 -Trve_ 	Pow-e,Vor+i .6 44_ -e-tta-i--  

 7tv  1-  
f/1 

 €, .0  .L 4-a„ 	A-e-ei ‘, 

n 	 A 	 CA•J‘t  • 

keL8\6Ce, 1,14— ALA- 	644,-e4ti 	.2/41"  
Nor 	Agott- Ifreef: /4.g 	4;4- zL,J J 	EL t-L42-1-V 

..111. 	.4110.1r4.. d 

I/WE HAVE ENCLOSED THE REQUIRED APPLICATION FEE OF $ goo. oo 

 

RECEIPT NO.   I  C(50 fise" 

 

    

       

//(1(E72-‘ 	LTO 

        

    

Fe-e_b   

  

APPLICANT 

   

DATE 

   

NOTE: REG 	RED OWNER'S SIGNATURE REQUIRED IF DIFFERENT FROM APPLICANT. 

j11.  

REGISTERED ER DATE 

BLK 
	

LOT 

I 
	

JO 
 

209



BYLAW AMENDMENT APPLICATION 
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NOT TO SCALE 

File No. Bylaw 1022-16         
 
Information on this map is provided solely for the user’s information and, 
While thought to be accurate, is provided strictly “as is” and without 
warranty of any kind, either express or implied.  
 
The County, its agents, employees or contractors will not be liable for any 
Damages, direct or indirect, or lost profits or data arising out of the use of  
information provided on this map. 

210



BYLAW AMENDMENT APPLICATION 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

File No. Bylaw 1022-16            NOT TO SCALE  

Disclaimer 

Information on this map is provided solely for the user’s information and, 

While thought to be accurate, is provided strictly “as is” and without 

Warranty of any kind, either express or implied.  

The County, its agents, employees or contractors will not be liable for any 

Damages, direct or indirect, or lost profits or data arising out of the use of  

information provided on this map. 

211



212



Agenda Item # 14. b) 
 

 
Author: L. Lambert Reviewed by:  CAO CG 
 

 
 

 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 

 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: August 9, 2016 

Presented By: Byron Peters, Director of Planning & Development  

Title: 
Bylaw 1044-16 Land Use Bylaw Amendment to Amend Bylaw 
649/07 being a Road Closure for NW 29-106-15-W5M (Plan 042 
4702) (La Crete Rural) 

 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
On May 22, 2008, Bylaw 649/07 was given 2nd & 3rd reading approving the closure of a 
portion of road within subdivision Plan 042 4702 located on NW 29-106-15-W5M. The 
applicant of this road closure was then required to hire a surveyor to complete the 
closure and consolidation. This was never completed.  
 
Now the applicant would like to finish the closure and has hired a surveyor. The 
surveyor has submitted some documents, one of those is a request to amend the 
wording of Bylaw 649/07 so that the closed road can be split into two parts to be 
consolidated with the respective lots 5 & 6.  
 
When submitting documents to Alberta Land Titles, we are now required to obtain a 
proper description from a survey company.  The description received for this partial road 
closure was not to the satisfaction of Alberta Land Titles. Land Titles had requested a 
plan of survey be submitted or an acceptable metes and bounds description.  
 
On May 12, 2009 an amendment with a description from a surveyor was given to Bylaw 
649/07. This amended Bylaw 718/09 was never registered and the planning department 
never heard from the applicant until last month.  
 
As Bylaw 718/09 was never registered, administration is asking that it be rescinded and 
a new amendment be given to Bylaw 649/07.  
   
This amendment does not change the intent of the Bylaw. Bylaw 1044-16 therefore 
does not need to be re-advertised or signed by the Minister of Transportation.  
 

213



 
Author: L. Lambert Reviewed by:  CAO CG 
 

OPTIONS & BENEFITS: 
 
This amendment will finalize the closure of this road enabling administration to close the 
file.  
 
 
COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
 
All costs will be borne by the applicant   
 
 
SUSTAINABILITY PLAN: 
 
The Sustainability Plan does not directly address road closures within the County. As 
such, the proposed closure neither supports nor contradicts the Sustainability Plan. 
 
 
COMMUNICATION: 
 
No communication is required.  
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
Motion 1 
 
 Simple Majority  Requires 2/3  Requires Unanimous 
 
That first reading be given to Bylaw 1044-16 being a bylaw amending the road 
description in Bylaw 649/07 as shown on Plan 162 _____ as surveyed by MIDWEST 
SURVEYS INC.  
 
Motion 2 
 
 Simple Majority  Requires 2/3  Requires Unanimous 
 
That second reading be given to Bylaw 1044-16 being a bylaw amending the road 
description in Bylaw 649/07 as shown on Plan 162 _____ as surveyed by MIDWEST 
SURVEYS INC.  
 
Motion 3 
 
 Simple Majority  Requires 2/3  Requires Unanimous 
 

214



 
Author: L. Lambert Reviewed by:  CAO CG 
 

That consideration be given to go to third reading of Bylaw 1044-16 being a bylaw 
amending the road description in Bylaw 649/07 as shown on Plan 162 _____ as 
surveyed by MIDWEST SURVEYS INC at this meeting. 
 
Motion 4 
 
 Simple Majority  Requires 2/3  Requires Unanimous 
 
That third reading be given to Bylaw 1044-16 being a bylaw amending the road 
description in Bylaw 649/07 as shown on Plan 162 _____ as surveyed by MIDWEST 
SURVEYS INC.  

215



BYLAW NO. 1044-16 
 

BEING A BYLAW OF 
MACKENZIE COUNTY 

IN THE PROVINCE OF ALBERTA 
 

FOR THE PURPOSE OF CLOSING A PORTION OF AN  
INTERNAL SUBDIVISION ROAD ALLOWANCE  

IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTIONS 22, 24 AND 606 OF THE MUNICIPAL 
GOVERNMENT ACT, CHAPTER M-26,  

REVISED STATUTES OF ALBERTA 2000. 
 

WHEREAS, Council of Mackenzie County passed all three readings of Bylaw 649/07  
closing a portion of road allowance as outlined on Schedule A attached hereto, be 
subject to a road closure, and, in accordance with the Municipal Government Act 
Revised Statutes of Alberta 2000, and  
 
WHEREAS, Bylaw 649/07 requires description amendments as specified by Alberta 
Land Titles Registries prior to registration, and 
 
NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved that the council of Mackenzie County does hereby 
amend the description in Bylaw 649/07 to read as follows: 
 
NOW THEREFORE, the Council of Mackenzie County, in the province of Alberta, duly 
assembled, hereby enacts as follows:  
 

FIRST: 
PLAN 042 4702 
ALL THAT PORTION OF ROAD WHICH LIES WITHIN THE LIMITS OF 
LOT 11, BLOCK 1, PLAN 162 _____ 
CONTAINING 0.527 HECTARES (1.30 ACRES) MORE OR LESS 
EXCEPTING THEREOUT ALL MINES AND MINERALS 
 
SECOND: 
PLAN 042 4702 
ALL THAT PORTION OF ROAD WHICH LIES WITHIN THE LIMITS OF 
LOT 12, BLOCK 1, PLAN 162 _____ 
CONTAINING 0.143 HECTARES (0.35 ACRES) MORE OR LESS 
EXCEPTING THEREOUT ALL MINES AND MINERALS 

 
 
READ a first time this ___ day of __________, 2016. 
 
READ a second time this ___ day of __________, 2016. 
 
READ a third time and finally passed this ___ day of __________, 2016. 

216



 
 

 
Bill Neufeld 
Reeve 
 
 
Carol Gabriel 
Interim Chief Administrative Officer 

 

217



BYLAW NO. 1044-16 
 

SCHEDULE “A” 
 

1. That the land use designation of the following property known as: 
 

FIRST: 
PLAN 042 4702 
ALL THAT PORTION OF ROAD WHICH LIES WITHIN THE LIMITS OF 
LOT 11, BLOCK 1, PLAN 162 _____ 
CONTAINING 0.527 HECTARES (1.30 ACRES) MORE OR LESS 
EXCEPTING THEREOUT ALL MINES AND MINERALS 
 
SECOND: 
PLAN 042 4702 
ALL THAT PORTION OF ROAD WHICH LIES WITHIN THE LIMITS OF 
LOT 12, BLOCK 1, PLAN 162 _____ 
CONTAINING 0.143 HECTARES (0.35 ACRES) MORE OR LESS 
EXCEPTING THEREOUT ALL MINES AND MINERALS 

 

218



RP

Fd.I.
Mp. 0.3 S.

Fd.I.
Mp. 0.3 S. Fd.I. c.s. 0.10

Mp. 0.3 S.W.

Fd.I.
Mp. 0.3 E.

Fd.I.
Mp. 0.3 S.

Fd.I.
Mp. 0.3 N.W.

Fd.I.
Mp. 0.3 S.

Fd.I.
Mp. 0.3 S.

Fd.I.
Mp. 0.3 N.

Fd.I.
(flush)

Fd.I.
Mp. 0.2 N.

Fd.I.
(flush)

Fd.I.Hole
Pl.I. c.s. 0.10

SEE
DETAIL 'A'

SEE
DETAIL 'B'

20
.1

2 
G

O
V

E
R

N
M

E
N

T 
R

O
A

D
 A

LL
O

W
A

N
C

E

ROAD

N.E.1/4 Sec. 29-106-15 W.5M.

S.E.1/4 Sec. 29-106-15 W.5M.S.W.1/4 Sec. 29-106-15 W.5M.

N.W.1/4 Sec. 29

N.E.1/4 Sec. 30-106-15 W.5M.

S.E.1/4 Sec. 30-106-15 W.5M.

S.E.1/4 Sec. 31-106-15 W.5M. S.E.1/4 Sec. 32-106-15 W.5M.S.W.1/4 Sec. 32-106-15 W.5M.

106-15 W.5M.

(5.553 ha.)

(7.440 ha.)

LOT 1
BLOCK 1

ROAD PLAN 802 2999

ROAD PLAN 802 2999

10.00 DRAINAGE R/W

PLAN 042 4703

10.00 UTILITY R/W

10.00 UTILITY R/W PLAN 042 4704

PLAN 042 4704

PLAN 042 4704

UTILITY R/W

BLOCK 1

BLOCK 1

LOT 9

LOT 8

LOT 7

LOT 12

LOT 3

LOT 4
LOT 11

LOT 10

PLAN 962 2181

PLAN 042 4702

PLAN 042 4702

C.of T.

BLOCK 1
PLAN 042 4702

BLOCK 1
PLAN 042 4702

BLOCK 1
PLAN 042 4702

BLOCK 1
PLAN 042 4702

BLOCK 1

BLOCK 1

10
.0

0 
U

TI
LI

TY
 R

/W
P

LA
N

 0
42

 4
70

4

ROAD WIDENING PLAN 042 4702

R
O

A
D

 W
ID

E
N

IN
G

 P
LA

N
 0

72
 4

70
2

10
.0

0 
U

TI
LI

TY
 R

/W
 P

LA
N

 0
42

 4
70

4

269°26'55"
211.94

19
.9

5
17

9°
31

'5
5"

149.18 ck.m.
89°27'25"

154.49
89°26'55"

A
rc

=9
5.

50
R

=3
0.

00

17
9°

25
'2

5"
17

1.
98

166.7598°55'50"

108.84
93°10'15"

18
1°

19
'2

0"
60

.4
7

174.37
128°58'05"

63
6.

01
35

9°
28

'2
0"

269°16'40"
125.28

17
9°

25
'2

0"
23

7.
76

 c
k.

m
.

269°26'55"
217.99

18
1°

37
'1

5"
16

6.
64

29
106-15-5

RP
Fd.I.

Mp. 0.2 N.
Fd.I.
(flush)

Fd.I.
(flush)

Fd.I.(P230)
(flush)

Fd.I.(P230)
c.s. 0.2

DETAIL 'A'
SCALE - 1:1000

ROAD

10.00 UTILITY R/W
PLAN 042 4704

LOT 11
BLOCK 1

LOT 4
BLOCK 1

PLAN 042 4702

BLOCK 1
LOT 8

PLAN 042 4702

149.18 ck.m.
89°27'25"

269°26'55"
211.94

154.49
89°26'55"

Arc=98.40

R=30.00

Arc=27.39
R=20.00

Arc=22.60

R=30.00

17
9°

26
'5

5"
3.

35

17
9°

27
'5

0"
(R

)

257°56'00" (R) 77°56'10" (R)

250°00'10" (R)

20
6°

50
'35

" (
R)

17
9°

25
'2

5"
17

1.
98

269°26'55"
217.99

Fd.I.
Mp. 0.3 S.

Fd.I.
Mp. 0.3 N.

Pl.I.(flush)
Mp. 0.3 S.

Fd.I.Hole
Pl.I. c.s. 0.10

Fd.I.Hole

Pl.I. c.s. 0.10

DETAIL 'B'
SCALE - 1:1000

LOT 12
BLOCK 1

BLOCK 1
LOT 8

PLAN 042 4702

LOT 7
BLOCK 1

PLAN 042 4702

10.00 UTILITY R/W
PLAN 042 4704

LOT 11
BLOCK 1

154.49
89°26'55"

Arc=39.81
R=30.00

Arc=27.37
R=20.00

Ar
c=

95
.5

0
R

=3
0.

00

17
9°

30
'4

0"
 (R

)

269°26'55"
217.99

18
1°

37
'1

5"
34

.0
1

17
9°

30
'4

0"
25

.9
8

17
9°

28
'3

5"
 (R

)

257°53'00" (R) 77°55'25" (R)

17
9°

25
'2

0"
23

7.
76

 c
k.

m
.

18
1°

37
'1

5"
16

6.
64

1°
54

'1
0"

(R
)

SCALE - 1:2000

Survey was performed on the date of
July 6th, 2016 in accordance with
the provisions of the Surveys Act.

(Within N.W.1/4 Sec.29 Twp.106 Rge.15 W.5M.)

JACOB REIMER AND TRUDY REIMER  -  LOT 12, BLOCK 1
SIMON PETERS  -  LOT 11, BLOCK 1

Lot 6,  Block 1,  Plan 042 4702  -

Closed Road,  Plan 042 4702  -
Lot 5,  Block 1,  Plan 042 4702  -

TOTAL  -

CONTAINING WITHIN:

7.297  ha.

0.670  ha.
5.026  ha.

12.993  ha.

DIMENSIONS SHOWN ALONG CURVILINEAR BOUNDARIES ARE ARC DISTANCES.
AREA DEALT WITH BY THIS PLAN BOUNDED THUS

LAND TITLES OFFICE

ALBERTA LAND SURVEYOR:
IAN D. CLELAND

PLAN No

N.A.L.R.D.
A. D. REGISTRAR

INSTRUMENT No

ON

ENTERED AND REGISTERED

PLAN SHOWING SURVEY OF

CONSOLIDATION

STATUTORY IRON POSTS 'FOUND' SHOWN THUS:

LEGEND:

DISTANCES ARE GROUND AND IN METRES AND DECIMALS THEREOF AND ARE
ALL STATUTORY IRON POSTS PLACED ARE MARKED:  'P034'

MACKENZIE COUNTY

A
L

O
N

YORS' ASSO
CIATIB

ER
TA

LA
ND SURVE

MIDWEST
SURVEYS

INC.

TI
RR

NM
EP

EBMU

OF 

STATUTORY IRON POSTS 'PLACED' SHOWN THUS:

BETWEEN POSTS UNLESS OTHERWISE SHOWN.

GRANDE PRAIRIE  PHONE:780-832-4801 FAX: 780-832-4805

MIDWEST SURVEYS INC.
IAN D. CLELAND, A.L.S.

Checked by:  IDC

Drawn by:  DJM

Dwg.: GP-0161-16-SUB

REGISTERED OWNER(S):

A.L.S. ........... Alberta Land Surveyor
Arc= ............. Arc distance

(R)  ..............  Radial

5.553  ha.
 +0.527  ha.

5.026  ha.

TOTAL   =

LOT 11   BLOCK 1
FROM LOT 5 BLOCK 1 PLAN 042 4702  

 CLOSED ROAD, PLAN 042 4702  
7.440  ha.

+0.143  ha.
 7.297  ha.

TOTAL   =

LOT 12   BLOCK 1
FROM LOT 6 BLOCK 1 PLAN 042 4702  

 CLOSED ROAD, PLAN 042 4702  

TABLE OF AREAS

Closed Road,  Plan 042 4702
AND

Lots 5 & 6,  Block 1,  Plan 042 4702

ABBREVIATIONS:

RPGEO-REFERENCE POINT IS SHOWN THUS
THE OBSERVED CO-ORDINATES ARE: N. 6455175.31 ; E. 532125.29

BEARINGS AND CO-ORDINATES ARE UTM GRID, NAD83 (CSRS),
REFERENCE MERIDIAN 117°W (ZONE 11N) AND ARE DERIVED FROM GNSS OBSERVATIONS.
COMBINED SCALE FACTOR:  0.999566

l. ..................  Statutory Iron Post

Rge. ............. Range

CSRS .......... Canadian Spatial Reference System

Sec. ............  Section

ha. ................ Hectare

Mp. ............... Metal marker post
M. ................. Meridian

Fd. ................ Found
c.s. ............... Countersunk

N.,S.,E.,W. .. North, South, East and West 

Pl.  ............... Placed

C.of T. .......... Certificate of Title

No. ............... Number

NAD83 ......... North American Datum, 1983

GNSS ........... Global Navigation Satellite System

R=  ............... Radius

RP  .............. Geo-Reference Point

Twp. ............ Township
UTM ............. Universal Transverse Mercator

ck.m. ............ Check Measured

R/W  ............ Right of Way

Not Registered

219



220



221



222



Agenda Item # 14. c) 
 

Author: L. Lambert Reviewed by:  CAO:  
 

 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 
 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: August 9, 2016 

Presented By: Byron Peters, Director of Planning & Development 

Title:  Bylaw 718/09 amending Bylaw 649/07 

 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
Bylaw 718/09 amending Bylaw 649/07 was never registered and is no longer valid.  
 
Copy of Bylaw 718/09 is attached.  
 
 
OPTIONS & BENEFITS: 
 
N/A 
 
 
COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
 
N/A 
 
 
SUSTAINABILITY PLAN: 
 
N/A 
 
 
COMMUNICATION: 
 
N/A 
 

223



Author: R. Pelensky Reviewed by:  CAO: JW 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
 Simple Majority  Requires 2/3  Requires Unanimous 
 
That Bylaw 718/09 amending Bylaw 649/07 be rescinded. 

224



BYLAW NO. 718/09 
 
 

BEING A BYLAW OF 
MACKENZIE COUNTY 

IN THE PROVINCE OF ALBERTA 
 
 

FOR THE PURPOSE OF CLOSING A PORTION OF A GOVERNMENT ROAD 
ALLOWANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTIONS 22 AND 606 OF THE 

MUNICIPAL GOVERNMENT ACT, CHAPTER M-26, REVISED STATUTES OF 
ALBERTA 2000. 

 
WHEREAS, Council of Mackenzie County passed all three readings of Bylaw 
649/07 thereby closing a portion of government road allowance within Subdivision 
Plan 042 4702 in accordance with the Municipal Government Act Revised Statutes 
of Alberta 2000, and 
 
WHEREAS, Bylaw 649/07 requires description amendments as specified by Alberta 
Registries prior to registration, and 
 
NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved that the Council of Mackenzie County does 
hereby amend the road description in Bylaw 649/07 to read as follows: 
 

1. All that portion of Closed Road Allowance  
As shown on Plan 092 _________ 
Excepting thereout all mines and minerals  

 
2. That this Bylaw shall come into effect upon the passing of the third 

and final reading of this Bylaw. 
 
 
 

READ a first time this _____ day of __________, 2009. 
 
READ a second time this ______ day of _________, 2009. 
 
READ a third time and finally passed this ______ day of _________, 2009. 
 
 
  
 REEVE 

 
  
 CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

 

225



226



Agenda Item # 14. d) 

Author: L. Lambert Review by: BP CAO CG 
 

       

 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 

 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: August 9, 2016 

Presented By: Byron Peters, Director of Planning & Development 

Title: Policy DEV009 - Subdivision Affidavits 

 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
Subdivision applications can be applied for at any time of the year. Part of the 
subdivision process requires the developer to abide with the conditions set out by the 
Municipal Planning Commission. Some of these conditions are standard ones such as 
construction of either a road or accesses, and specific ones such as relocation of a 
pumpout sewer discharge line. Generally if the subdivision is applied for in the spring or 
summer, there will be plenty of time to complete these conditions. However, many times 
the applicant doesn’t apply until fall or winter. Once the ground freezes, these conditions 
cannot be met until the spring thaw.  
 
Several years ago the practice of allowing the developer to register the subdivision prior 
to certain conditions being approved by signing an affidavit and providing security was 
enacted by administration. This has been a popular choice among developers, and this 
procedure has worked well, and all those who’ve chosen this option have always 
completed their requirements.   
 
However, this practice is not a policy and therefore has no backing. During the spring, 
summer and early fall the planning department will not offer this practice as they feel 
that the developer is able to complete all conditions on time. Recently though, certain 
individuals have insisted that we offer them this option during the summer. They were 
denied, however the planning department would like that this practice be made a policy 
in order to support their decisions and/or refusals.  
 
 
OPTIONS & BENEFITS: 
 
There are several benefits to adopting this policy, those being: 
 

227



 
Author: L. Lambert Review by: BP CAO CG 
 

I. Provides applicant’s the opportunity to register a subdivision prior to completing 
all conditions.  

II. Provides the opportunity to speed up the subdivision process during the winter 
months.  

III. Provides backing for the planning staff on granting and refusing an affidavit 
during construction season. 

IV. Provides a guideline for planning staff to follow.  
 
OPTIONS 
 
Option #1  
Council adopts policy DEV009 
 
Option # 2  
Council accepts this as information 
 
Option # 3 
Council adopts policy DEV009 with amendments.  
 
 
SUSTAINABILITY PLAN: 
 
The Sustainability Plan does not address items of this nature. 
 
 
COMMUNICATION: 
 
As required with potential developers/applicants.  
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
 Simple Majority  Requires 2/3  Requires Unanimous 
 
That Policy DEV009 Subdivision Affidavits be adopted as presented. .  
 
 
 

228



Mackenzie County 
 
Title Subdivision Affidavits Policy No: DEV009 
 
Legislation Reference MGA Section 5,(b) 
 
Purpose 
 
To define a formal process when allowing the registration of a rural subdivision prior to 
the completion of required conditions.   
 
 
Policy Statement and Guidelines 
 
Mackenzie County recognizes that during the winter month’s road/access construction 
and other certain conditions cannot proceed.  The County offers an alternative option 
that will allow the subdivision to be registered prior to certain conditions being 
completed.  
 
Definition: 
 
In the event that the Planning Department acknowledges that an access, road or 
relocation of sewer system cannot be completed due to winter conditions, the following 
option is offered:   
 

1. The applicant must sign an affidavit in the presence of a commissioner, the 
affidavit shall contain the development agreement number, legal land location,  
the conditions that must be complied with, the date it must be fulfilled by and the 
amount submitted by a certified check, 

 
2. Once a signed approval from the Operations Department, or proof that the 

condition has been completed is received by the Planning Department, only then 
will the Planning Department release the certified check,   

 
3. An affidavit will not be offered from May 15 through October 15, 

 
4. Only on special circumstances may this option be considered during May 15 to 

October 15, if the applicant is incapable of completing the required conditions 
due to forces outside their control, the decision shall be at the discretion of the 
Municipal Planning Commission.  
 

 
 Date Resolution Number 
Approved   
Amended   
Amended   
 
 

229



230



Agenda Item # 14. e) 
 

Author:  Reviewed by: BP CAO: CG 
 

 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 
 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: August 9, 2016 

Presented By: Byron Peters, Director of planning & Development 

Title:  La Crete SE Drainage Ditch  

 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
Mackenzie County has received a request to purchase a drainage ditch within the 
Hamlet of La Crete from the registered landowner.  
 
In 2002 a storm water drainage ditch draining into an unnamed water body on the SE 3-
106-15-W5M was constructed. Land Acquisitions were signed with landowners Janzen 
and Dyck and an easement agreement with Elias. At that time, for some reason, the 
drainage ditch was never registered.  
 
On May 23, 2007 council made the motion to proceed with the registration of the 
drainage ditch. 
 
MOTION 07-05-483  MOVED by Councillor Froese  

That Maltais Geomatics be requested to proceed with the registration of 
the drainage right-of-way plan on North ½ 3-106-15-W5M, Plan 992-
0893, Block 1, Lot 13 MR and Plan 992-0894, Block 2, Lot 1, for an 
approximate cost of $4,300.00 plus GST to be funded from General 
Operating Reserves.  

 
A letter was sent to Maltais from Mackenzie County informing them to proceed with the 
registration of the drainage as a Utility right-of-way plan, giving the County rights to the 
ditch. Unknown to current administration, it was not registered as a ‘Utility’ Right-of-
Way; it was done as a Right-of Way plan whereas no rights have been registered.  
 
Several years ago NE 3-106-15-W5M was developed into country residential lots. 
During the subdivision process lots were created north of the drainage ditch. These lots 
did not include the drainage right of way which resulted in a piece of land remaining in 
the landowner’s name that is entirely drainage ditch.  
 

231



Author:  Reviewed by: BP CAO: CG 
 

The County does not “own” any of the land that the drainage ditch crosses; it stays 
within the landowner’s name. The entire ditch that is on NW 3-106-15-W5M still belongs 
to the landowner. On the NE 3-106-15-W5M there are two pieces that were left over 
from subdividing that are in different landowners names. Both land owners had 
originally signed land acquisitions for the amount of one dollar.  
 
 
OPTIONS & BENEFITS: 
 
A Right-of Way can be registered at Alberta Land Titles without written consent of the 
landowners. This only registers the plan, but gives no rights to it.  
 
A Utility Right-of-Way gives rights to the interest in the land with consents from the 
landowners. 
  

Section 69 of the Land Titles Act provides for an interest in land known as a utility 
right of way ("U.R.W."). This interest is most commonly granted for gas and oil 
pipelines and for municipal utilities where there is a need for a continuous right of 
way under many parcels of land. In these circumstances, the common law 
requirement of a dominant tenement has been dispensed with by the enactment 
of a statutory provision to allow the granting of specified rights to specified 
entities. A U.R.W. is often referred to as an easement since it grants rights, which 
are similar to rights granted in a common law easement. However, it must 
comply with the statutory requirements in order to be registrable. Since there is 
no dominant tenement, it is registered only against the land that is subject to the 
rights granted (i.e., the servient tenements) and once it is registered, the right to 
use the land in accordance with the terms of the grant remains 
with the grantee and its successors or assigns until a release is registered 

 
In 2002, all the landowners signed agreements selling the land to the county for the 
drainage ditch. 
 
 
COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
 
N/A 
 
 
SUSTAINABILITY PLAN: 
 
N/A 
 
 
COMMUNICATION: 
 
N/A 
 
 

232



Author:  Reviewed by: BP CAO: CG 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
 Simple Majority  Requires 2/3  Requires Unanimous 
 
For discussion 

233



Agenda Item # 

MACKENZIE COUNTY 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 

Meeting: 	 Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: 	May 23, 2007 

Presented By: 	Paul Driedger, Director of Planning and Emergency Services 

Drainage Right-of-Way within N 1/2  3-106-15-W5M, 
Title: 
	

Plan 992 0893, Block 1, Lot 13 MR and 
Plan 992 0894, Block 2, Lot 1 
(La Crete) 

BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:  

Mackenzie County has received a letter from Maltais Geomatics with regard to the 
registration of a drainage right-of-way that was started in 2002 and requires completion. 
The subject right-of-way is for the drainage ditch within the North 1/2 3-106-15-W5M, 
Plan 992 0893, Block 1, Lot 13 MR and Plan 992 0894, Block 2, Lot 1. The ditch was 
constructed to provide drainage for the residential subdivisions located within NE 4-1 06-  
15-W5M‘,. Plan 012 4176, Block 4, Lot A. 

OPTIONS & BENEFITS:  

The subject drainage ditch was constructed by Mackenzie County however, due to 
staffing changes the project was never registered. Maltais Geomatics has now provided 
two options with regard to the completion of this drainage ditch as follows: 

Option I 

Maltais will submit an "Easement of Monuments *Plan" at land titles and invoice 
Mackenzie County for approximately $1,200. This would provide Mackenzie County no 
rights to the constructed drainage ditch through the N 1/2  3-106-15-W5M, however it 
would complete Maltias' legal obligations for the project. 

Author: Eva Schmidt, 	- Reviewed by: 
Planning Supervisor  

CAO 

 

    

107 
234



Option 2 
Maltais will proceed with the assistance of Mackenzie County to complete the easement 
documents, update the drainage right-of-way plan and register it with land titles. 
Mackenzie County would be invoiced approximately $4,300 plus GST and fees. 

The planning and development department will undertake to complete this project. The 
drainage ditch should be registered as a drainage right-of-way in the name of 
Mackenzie County to ensure that full rights for it remain with the County. 

COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING: 

General Operating Reserves. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  

That Matteis Geomatics be requested to proceed with the registration of the drainage 
right-of-way plan on North % 3-106-15-VV5M, Plan 992 0893, Block 1, Lot 13 MR and 
Plan 992 0894, Block 2, Lot, for an approximate cost of $4,300.00 plus GST to be 
funded from General Operating Reserves. 

CSV 

Author: Eva Schmidt, 	 Reviewed by: 
Planning Supervisor  

 

CAO 

  

      

108 235



• CMIVIZE 
APR 30 . 2007 11 

MACKENZIE COUNTY 
LA CRETE OFFICE 

MALTAIS-7 
GEOIVIATICS -1  

Maitais Geomatics Inc. 

Box 89, 9802-100 Street, High Level, Alberta TON 1Z0 • Phone (780) 926-4123 • Fax (780) 926-4550 
highlevel@maltaisgeomatics.com  • www.maltaisgeomatics.com  

April 19, 2007 

Mackenzie County 
Box 640, 4601 - 46th  Avenue 
Fort Vermillion, AB 
TOE 1NO 

Attention: Paul Driedger 
Director of Planning 

Our File: H16702 

Dear Mr. Driedger; 

Re: Plan Showing Survey of Drainage Right-of-Way within 
N V2 Sec 3, Twp 106, Rge 15, W5M, Lot 13 MR, Block 1, Plan 992 0893 & 
Lot 1, Block 2, Plan 992 0894, Mackenzie County, Alberta 

As you may be aware, we have an unregistered Drainage R/W plan within the noted land 
locations and we are seeking your assistance in resolving this loose end. I will summarize 
the history of this file so that you have a full understanding of the situation and can provide 
our office with clear direction on how to proceed. 

We received a request for proposal from OPEC Consulting Ltd (Peace River) in May 2002 
and we responded with a letter with our estimated costs. Our proposal was accepted and the 
field work took place in the fall of 2002 as an as-built legal survey. OPEC's file number is 
5353-022-01-40. Survey posts were planted establishing the boundaries of the R/W and a 
plan was drafted (copy attached). We sent the plan and a letter to Alan Cronlchite in La 
Crete on November 29, 2002. The letter requested a dollar figure that we could use as 
consideration to the landowners on the easement documents. The letter had an attachment 
noting the area of land affected and copies of each of the affected titles. 

Our records show no response was received from Mr. Cronlchite and this file has been 
inactive since that correspondence. Kent Croucher, the Maltais Geomatics Inc. branch 
manager at the time, maintained contact with the MD and GPEC, in an attempt to keep the 
file moving towards plan registration. There was some discussion (not documented) that the 
MD was considering purchasing the land for the drainage R/W as opposed to taking 
easement. This debate held up the file for several more months. 

In December 2002 we interim invoiced GPEC Consulting Ltd., the invoice was forwarded 
to the Municipal District of Mackenzie No. 23 in January 2003 and was paid the same 

Spatial Technology 	• 	Alberta Land Surveyors 	• 	Canada Lands Surveyors 	• 	Engineers 
pr,i 1.1-Inn! rui 	 • 	 (-Akan, 	 • 	 Hioh I pvei 

1 0 9 
236



month (your cheque number 151929, dated January 15, 2003). 

In March of 2004 we made another attempt to revive this file by contacting Steve Rozee 
who at the time was with the water and sewage department in the La Crete MD office. We 
requested from Mr. Rozee the provision of signed easement documents to accompany our 
drainage R/W plan to Land Titles for registration. We have received no further 
correspondence from the MD with respect to this file. 

Our efforts since the issue and payment of our invoice 1-116702-1 has resulted in some 
additional costs and in order to finalize this file there will be more costs. The costs will vary 
depending on how we are to proceed. We have at least two options to close off this file. 

1. We will submit an "Establishment of Monuments Plan" at the land titles office and 
send you an invoice for approximately $1,200.00. This will give you no rights to the 
constructed drainage ditch through the north i/2 section 3-106-15-5, but will 
complete our legal obligations for this project. 

2. We can proceed with the assistance of Mackenzie County, to revive this file, 
complete the easement documents, update the drainage R/W plan and register the 
plan and documents at the Land Titles office. The approximate costs will be 
$4,300.00 (Plus GST and Fees). 

Please get back to our office at your earliest convenience with your comments. 

Yours very truly, 

Maitais Geomatics Inc. 

A iv 
Dave Arsenault 
Branch Manager 

DAA/mjd 

PC 
	

MGI - Edmonton 

/madam:us  —7 11 0 
GEOMArics 

237



, 

I 	g  
11 

ii  II 
ii.  
/I 
r 1 	, 

1 i  
i 

Hi 1 

o 
I A i 

110 
I 

i i 	1  
14 	h 	ii -III 	Ili, i 1 ft  

I/ ,10 thr litligif 
illiiiiii  1 	h'IllE fiitt, 	aith ILI  , 

1 ; 
1  i  0 
I t 	1 	- 

• 1 	.... .../ 

1 

7 II  ill 2  

114111 I 
Rip i .11,1 Intl 
filbilh 
j tp 

.01 	t  ifillifil .. 	. 

I 	ill hill 

filo 
iti: 

Itti 

	

a. 	if ! 11 

	

b ; 	f , 	1! 

	

1 1 	I I 5" 1 

	

1 	V i g o 

	

i 1 	s v ..., 1 	.c 
1 i 	g 	k 01 , 

I 

I 

i 

1  
.............. .. 

: 
i 
i 
-.; 

J 
ill i 

... 

q 

1 	I 
..-g  

0 
0 

11 

j 
• 

. 

I 

.. 

o . 	o 3 

i 
i 

'4 e 

<, d> 

J 
ill 

i 

2 

a 
s 
r, 

. 
	cr 

1 . 	3 
2 

. 
3 . 

.. 
...e.t 

1; 

i 4,4  

1 
i 
i 

1 

1.45 qua , 

i 
I 

..t 

111/ 
1 

- 

le.ls glee 

• 
i 

t 

, 	. 

. 

. 
5 

4 

' 

i 	'.... 

...., 	# 

J 
4 

I  

..^.: 

A 

115 	Z5. 

3 
••141 

3 , , . 

- -. ..,... 

*. 

. 

.. 

1--t jillA  

, 
't 	.. 

1 

1 5 	j 
ill 

I 

1 

1 1 1 
238



/Mar  0101.111 
pleggIf4P5  p.  

p anoners, 
ael 

Alarinalra0  
'• 	• 

Schedule B 
Bylaw No. 462/04 
Adopted by Council this 13th day of 
October, 2004 A.D. 

SE3 106-15-5 

239



APPLICATION 

 
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NOT TO SCALE 

File No.       

  
Disclaimer  
 
Information on this map is provided solely for the user’s information and, 
While thought to be accurate, is provided strictly “as is” and without 
warranty of any kind, either express or implied.  
 
The County, its agents, employees or contractors will not be liable for any 
Damages, direct or indirect, or lost profits or data arising out of the use of  
information provided on this map. 

240



APPLICATION 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

File No.               NOT TO SCALE  

Disclaimer 

Information on this map is provided solely for the user’s information and, 

While thought to be accurate, is provided strictly “as is” and without 

Warranty of any kind, either express or implied.  

The County, its agents, employees or contractors will not be liable for any 

Damages, direct or indirect, or lost profits or data arising out of the use of  

information provided on this map. 

241



242



243



244



245



246



247



248



249



250



251



252



253



254



Agenda Item # 14. f) 

Author: C Smith Reviewed by: B Peters CAO: CG 
 

 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 
 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: August 9, 2016 

Presented By: Byron Peters, Director of Planning and Development 

Title:  Quality Investment Corp. – Road Widening Reimbursement 

 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
Mackenzie County has received an invoice from Quality Investment Corp. (George 
Janzen) for the widening of the road along 100th Avenue that was constructed during 
the latest phase of development. Administration was unaware of the reasoning for the 
road widening. After a search through land files it has been made clear that 100th 
Avenue was considered an arterial road and was constructed at 24 meters not the 
standard 22 meters. Therefore, Quality was expected to build their subdivision road at 
the same width as the existing road. 
 
No other developer was paid for the existing road widening. 
 
Quality Investments was paid for the road widening as per Council motion at the April 
11, 2007 Council Meeting: 
 
 9. b) Quality Investment Corporation – Road Widening 

 Costs (La Crete) 
 

MOTION 07-332 
Requires 2/3 

That the 2007 capital budget be amended to include the Quality 
Investment Corporation (Part of SW 9-106-15-W5M –Subdivision 47-
SUB-04) road widening project in the amount of $11,138.28 to be 
funded out of the General Capital Reserve as per DEV001 policy.  
 
CARRIED 

 
The 2007 RFD for payment references policy DEV001 Urban Development Standards 
(2005-12-13) as the main reasoning for reimbursement:   
 

MD of Mackenzie will: 
 1.e) pay for the difference in costs when requiring the Developer to construct  

main arterial roads (proportionate to a standard road). 

255



Author: C Smith Reviewed by: B Peters CAO: CG 
 

 
Now that the developer has completed Phase 6 of the subdivision, he has requested 
that payment be made for the continued road widening of 100th Avenue. 
 
The difference between then and now is that this time 100th Avenue is no longer 
considered an arterial road but is classified between a local road and collector road. 
 
The current version of DEV001 Urban Development Standards states in the guidelines 
that: 
 Mackenzie County will: 
 1.c) determine who is responsible for the cost of installing the infrastructure as 
  indicated in this policy 

1.d) establish the mechanism for any cost sharing, endeavor to assist, or other  
financial considerations 
 
2. The developer will be responsible for all costs except where otherwise 
indicated in this policy. 
 

The policy also states under Funding: 
 

Funding for municipal infrastructure improvements required to support a 
developer’s approved Development will be provided by the developer. The 
County, within the Development Agreement, will provide assistance to the 
developer when oversizing is required to collect appropriate funds from 
benefitting lands when the benefitting lands are further developed.  

 
The County may consider providing a portion of the funding when oversizing is 
required, however this will be subject to negotiation and Council approval. 
Funding in these situations may also be recouped by way of a local improvement 
bylaw. 

 
Neither of the Development Agreements for Phase 5 or Phase 6 include a condition or 
any mention of the requirement for the road widening or the repayment to the 
developer.  
 
There is one condition of 47-SUB-04 which states that the County will reimburse the 
cost of local improvements: 
 

4.3 The Developer is responsible for the construction and cost of construction of the 
Municipal Improvements, which shall include the following to be constructed in and 
adjacent to the said Lands: 
(g) Construction of urban cross-section improvements;  

 
(1) Curb & Gutter 
(2) Sidewalks -one side 
(3) Civic - Utilities 

 

256



Author: C Smith Reviewed by: B Peters CAO: CG 
 

The Municipality shall reimburse the Developer for the costs of the local 
improvements in clause 4.3 (g) (1) (2). 

 
22-SUB-14 (Phase 6) uses a local improvement bylaw to partially reimburse for the cost 
of Curb & Gutter and Sidewalks – one side. 
 
 
OPTIONS & BENEFITS: 
 
Option 1:  That the 2016 capital budget be amended to include the Quality 

Investment Corporation (Part of SW 9-106-15-W5M –Subdivision 22-SUB-
14) road widening project in the amount of $31,281.48 to be funded out of 
the General Operating Reserve.  

 
Option 2: The County does not repay the developer due to a lack of documentation 

and evolving infrastructure standards.  
 
 
COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
 
The price on the invoice for the road widening is $31,281.48, to come out of the General 
Operating Reserve. 
 
 
SUSTAINABILITY PLAN: 
 
The sustainability plan does not address this topic. 
 
 
COMMUNICATION: 
 
N/A 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
 Simple Majority  Requires 2/3  Requires Unanimous 
 
For discussion. 

257



Agenda Item # ________ 
 

Author: E. Schmidt, Planning Supervisor Reviewed:  CAO  
 

 

MACKENZIE COUNTY 
 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 
 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: April 11, 2007 

Presented By: Paul Driedger, Director of Planning  

Title: Quality Investment Corporation – Road Widening Costs  
(La Crete) 

 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:  
 
The subdivision of 28 lots in the area of 99th Avenue,100th Avenue and 110th Street west 
of 109th Street, which was completed in 2005, resulted in widening 100th Avenue from 
22 meters to 24 meters.  This street widening was required in order to maintain the 
width of the existing 100th Avenue, from 100th Street to 109th Avenue.  
 
George Janzen, the developer for this project, submitted the cost for the road widening 
for this project as calculated by Focus Corporation, the engineer for this project, and the 
price for the widening is $11,138.28. 
 
DISCUSSION / OPTIONS / BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES:  
 
In accordance with policy DEV 001 the Municipal District of Mackenzie is responsible to 
pay the developer the difference for the cost of constructing a main arterial road. 
 
COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
 
$11,138.28 to be funded out of General Capital Reserve 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
That the 2007 capital budget be amended to include the Quality Investment Corporation 
(Part of SW 9-106-15-W5M –Subdivision 47-SUB-04) road widening project in the 
amount of $11,138.28 to be funded out of the General Capital Reserve.  

258



10710 
10709 

10706 10705 CD  

10802 10701 

10714 10629 
we; 

10710 10625 
106; 

10706 10621 
1061 

10702 10617 

10630 

10626 ' 

10622 

10618 

0 
NeI  

1060 

1061 

1060 

10613 

10609 

10605 

10614 

10610 

10806 

10614 

10610 

10606 

10622 

10618 

10614 

10610 

LAO' 
10613 

10609 

10605 
10602 10601 10602 10806 

10602 

10514 

10510 

10504 

10506 

10901 

1041: 10502 

10401 10410 

2 k s 

10818 10805 

10814 

10810 

10806 

10802 
10801 

10702 

t  
105 St 

E . s 
8 
. 
CD 
*-4 

§ 
0 

§ 
0 ' (.° o 
ti, 

i 

10501 

10410 

4 AAAC 

105 St 

10514 1053 

10510 

loos 10405 8 104  

10502 

10409 

10505 

10501 

10421 

10417 

e 
(b cc  el 	f i  

-t) ciC  rt- 

fc  1;i- 
Li .frC-r 

RGE RD 154 

259



260

csmith
Polygon

csmith
Polygon

csmith
Callout
Phase 5 Road Widening Reimbursement paid for by County

csmith
Callout
Phase 6 Reimbursement requested for Road Widening 



Agenda Item # 14. g) 
 

Author:  Reviewed by:  CAO: CG 
 

 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 
 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: August 9, 2016 

Presented By: Byron Peters, Director of Planning and Development 

Title:  Mackenzie County Land Use Bylaw Amendment – Contract 
Awarding 

 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
A Request for Proposals was advertised on July 14, 2016, asking for proposals to 
amend the current Land Use Bylaw 791-10. The RFP submission deadline was 10:00 
a.m. on August 3, 2016.  
 
The total budget of $100,000.00 for all aspects of the project was clearly specified within 
the RFP, with the RFP asking for the best product for the given budget.  
 
The RFP was evaluated using the following rubric: 
 

 Evaluation Criteria Mark 
(%) 

Points 
available 

Subtotal 

Experience and Qualifications  30  

Project Team  35  

Project Understanding & Proposed Methodology  30  

RFP total bid price  5 
 

 

Total points available   100  
 
The criteria for each of the classifications is specified below: 
 

Experience and Qualifications 
 

a. Select up to three (3) projects completed in the last five (5) years that illustrate 
the relevant skills of the firm.  

261



Author:  Reviewed by:  CAO: CG 
 

b. Summarize the following key elements of the project in five-hundred (500) words 
or less per project:  

i. Describe the relevance to the current project;  
ii. Indicate which team members were involved, the role played by each;  
iii. Describe what timing and budgeting issues arose during the project and 

how were they managed; and  
iv. Provide the name, role, and contact details of one (1) client reference* 

per listed project. References are asked to provide comments such as the 
Proponent’s stability, quality of work and meeting client expectations.  

*The County reserves the right to contact only the references of the short-listed 
Proponents when in its best interest.  

 
c. For each project, briefly describe one or more key learning points that you intend 

to apply to this project.  
 

Project Team 
 

a. Provide a project organization chart of the core project team including the roles 
and responsibilities of each team member.  

b. Describe the composition of the core project team members to be assigned with 
reference to applicable skill sets, credentials, and demonstrated experience in 
similar projects in the last ten (10) years. Resumes and CV’s are not to exceed 
three (3) pages per project team member.  

c. Confirm the identity and role of any sub-consultants or project team members 
which will be retained in order to supplement the Proponent’s own staff and if so, 
describe the principle business and history of the sub-consultant team member.  
NOTE: The above criterion pertains to current staff and all sub-consultants, if 
applicable.  

Project Understanding and Proposed Methodology 
 

a. Proponents should demonstrate their understanding of the project scope and 
requirements; identify objectives of the project, key issues, anticipated problems 
and what the approach to resolution would be proposed; 

b. Describe the capabilities in terms of methods, approach, and tools the Proponent 
intends to deploy in fulfilling project scope and requirements; 

c. Identify the proposed method, indicating major steps and a description of 
activities (including sequence and time-frame) that your firm will undertake to 
address the project objectives and complete the identified project scope and 
deliverables; 

d. Identify methods of information gathering, information dissemination and their 
frequency of use to complete the scope of work; 

e. Provide a schedule for completing the project with major milestones, deliverables 
and ability to allocate resources to achieve the timely completion of the project. 

 
Due to the timing of the RFP closing time and the requirement to evaluate the proposals 
fairly, a list of all qualifying proponents will be provided at the meeting along with a 
recommendation of who the contract should be awarded to. This RFD will be updated 
and provided as a handout prior to the meeting. 
 

262



Author:  Reviewed by:  CAO: CG 
 

 
OPTIONS & BENEFITS: 
 
Administration has evaluated each of the proposals, and recommends that the project 
be awarded to _______________, because of __________ (to be updated). 
 
 
COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
 
The total budget for the project is $100,000. $50,000.00 has been budgeted as a 
current non-TCA budget item. The remaining $50,000.00 will come from a FireSmart 
grant which was awarded in November, 2015. 
 
 
SUSTAINABILITY PLAN: 
 
 
 
COMMUNICATION: 
 
The successful proponent will be notified immediately. 
 
The project will require a minimum of 3 public open houses, any zoning changes will 
require landowners be notified, and the updated bylaw will be advertised before the 
Public Hearing.  
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
 Simple Majority  Requires 2/3  Requires Unanimous 
 
That the Mackenzie County Land Use Bylaw Amendment contract be awarded to 
_________________. 
 

263



264



Agenda Item # 15. a) 

Author: F. Wiebe Reviewed by:  CAO: CG 
 

 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 
 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: August 9, 2016 

Presented By: Fred Wiebe, Director of Utilities 

Title:  Rural Waterline Lateral (Danny Friesen) 

 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
Mackenzie County has been approached about the installation of a lateral waterline 
connected on Foster Road east along TWP – 1081 for a total length of approximately 
2300 meters to serve River Lot 6;7. 
 
In order to make the lateral installation feasible, Mr. Friesen is proposing to install a 1” 
(25mm) line. Our current rural water servicing policy states that any lateral shall not be 
less than 3” (75mm) in size. We ran a quick water model on 2” and 3” laterals to serve 
the 20 adjacent lots. Assuming the pressure at tie-in on Foster Road is 45 psi, the 2” 
would provide water to 100 lots at 1 USGPM and the 3” would provide water to 200 lots 
at 1 USGPM. According to this water model the 2” waterline would easily provide water 
to the 20 river lots as well as additional water for future extension. 
 
Mr. Friesen has also requested that he be allowed to install the waterline as he feels 
this could be done much more efficiently and feasibly. Our current policy alludes to 
Mackenzie County installing the waterline and recovering the costs: 

“A combination of financial recovery instruments may be considered: connection 
fees, developer’s contributions, offsite levies, and/or local improvement. These 
will be determined on a case by case basis for individual areas.” 

 
No matter which option we proceed with, Mackenzie County still needs to ensure that 
requirements are met and approved. 
 
 
OPTIONS & BENEFITS: 
 
Lateral Sizing Options: 

1. 2”  
2. 3”  

265



Author: F. Wiebe Reviewed by:  CAO: CG 
 

3. 4” or larger 
 
The larger size we install the more we ensure that future requirements are met, but it 
comes at a higher cost and ultimately may make it not make it feasible for one resident 
to install. 
 
Responsible Installer Options: 

1. Mackenzie County – maintain full control of the waterline installation. 
 

2. Resident(s) – Would require conditions such as engineering, warranty, 
approval process etc. to ensure approved product which may make the costs 
similar to the first option anyways. Resident could sole source the work 
whereas we would need to tender which could help in reducing the cost. 

 
 
COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
 
The following are estimated costs which include miscellaneous site work (brushing, 
locating existing utilities, traffic etc.), waterline install, contingency, and engineering: 
 
 2” (50mm) - $75,000 
 3” (75mm) - $90,000 
 
The policy also states the following regarding upsizing:  

“The County may contribute funding for oversizing a line if required for future 
growth. This decision is at the County’s sole discretion and subject to budget. An 
offsite levy bylaw may be established to offset the oversizing cost.” 

 
There is also clarity needed in regards to fees regarding tie-in. Our fee schedule bylaw 
states there is an $8000 fee for tie-in directly to the trunk line. Would residents 
interested in lateral installation be required to pay this fee for the lateral tie-in or 
is this meant just for services as the lateral installation cost is to be fully paid by 
the interested residents? 
 
 
SUSTAINABILITY PLAN: 
 
Strategy C5.2 Provide additional rural potable water truck fill sites so all residents reside 
within 35 minutes of potable water. This is the closest mention regarding rural water 
within the Sustainability Plan. 
 
 
COMMUNICATION: 
 
Discussion will be communicated with the applicant. 

266



Author: F. Wiebe Reviewed by:  CAO: CG 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
 Simple Majority  Requires 2/3  Requires Unanimous 
 
For discussion. 
 
 

267



 

268



Agenda Item # 16. a) 
 

Author: C. Simpson Reviewed by:  CAO:  
 

 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 
 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: August 9, 2016 

Presented By: Carol Gabriel, Interim Chief Administrative Officer 

Title:  Information/Correspondence 

 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
The following items are attached for your information, review, and action if required. 

• Correspondence – Alberta Environment Parks – Draft Little Smoky and A La 
Peche Caribou Range Plan 

 

• Correspondence – Service Alberta – Alberta Justice – Rural Registry Agents  
• Correspondence – Alberta Municipal Affairs – Regional Collaboration 

Program 
 

• Correspondence – Alberta Municipal Affairs – Grant Opportunity for 
Emergency Preparedness 

 

• Correspondence – Alberta Huma Services  - FCSS  
• Correspondence – Alberta Transportation – Fox Lake Access Road  
• Correspondence – Premier of Alberta - Caribou  
• Correspondence – Minister of Justice and Solicitor General – Rural Registry 

Services 
 

• Meeting Minutes Mackenzie Library Board  
• Meeting Minutes Water North Coalition   
• AAMDC Member Bulletin  
• Convention AUMA  
• Watershed North Coalition Presentation – Alison Roberts  
• Watershed North Coalition Presentation – Debra Mooney  
• Watershed North Coalition Presentation – Tanya Hunter  
• Grand Opening High Prairie Airport  
• League of Extraordinary Recyclers 2016 RCA Conference  
• High Level Forest Public Advisory Committee – Silviculture Field Trip  
• Asset Manager Approach  
•   
•   
•   

269



Author: C. Gabriel Reviewed by:  CAO:  
 

 
OPTIONS & BENEFITS: 
 
COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
 
 
 
SUSTAINABILITY PLAN: 
 
 
 
COMMUNICATION: 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
 Simple Majority  Requires 2/3  Requires Unanimous 
 
That the information/correspondence items be accepted for information purposes. 
 

270



At
June 16, 2016

Environment
1 and Parks

Planning Branch
Policy and Planning Division
3~ Floor, South Petroleum Plaza
9915 —108 Street NW
Edmonton, Alberta T5K 238
Telephone: 780-641-9429
www.alberta.oa

Reeve Bill Neufeld
Mackenzie County
PC Box 640
Fort Vermilion, Alberta TON 1 NO

Dear Reeve Neufeld: MACKENZIE COUNTY
FORT VERMIIJON OFFICE

As you may be aware, on June 08, 2016, the Minister of Environment and Parks, the
Honourable Shannon Phillips announced that the Government of Alberta has released an
innovative and ambitious plan that takes meaningful action to promote woodland caribou
recovery.

Government is proud to take real leadership to ensure iconic caribou herds remain on the
landscape for future generations to enjoy. To get there, we will focus on pillars of Indigenous
rights and cooperation, jobs and community support, and clear rules for continued operating of
oil and gas and forestry.

Generally, the draft range plan represents the best balance between supporting caribou
recovery, restoring critical habitat and protecting vital jobs. In consideration of this we are
committed to protecting important forestry jobs which are essential to the local communities
around the range. As we move forward in implementing the range plan we propose there will be
opportunity for regional employment in the recovery program. We estimate that habitat
restoration may create 150-250 new jobs, and the caribou rearing facility may create 35-40 jobs
for construction and 10-15 for ongoing operation.

Please confirm whether your municipality would like to schedule a one-on-one meeting with
Alberta Environment and Parks staff on the Draft Little Smoky and A La Peche Caribou Range
Plan. A copy of the draft range plan is enclosed for your convenience, along with a copy of the
mediator’s report - Selling Alberta on the Path to Caribou Recovery. The main intent of these
meetings is to review the contents of the plan, and identify the opportunities where your
community can contribute to implementing the plan once finalized.

If you would like to schedule a one-on-one meeting please provide potential dates and times as
soon as possible to George Duffy, Caribou Planning Lead at george.duffy@gov.ab.ca or (780)
422-0567.

In addition to these one-on-one meetings, we have also posted an online survey to gather
feedback on the draft caribou range plan. Here is the link to that survey:
https://extranet.ciov ab.calopinio6//s’s=30855.

If you have concerns on specific elements of the draft plan, please provide a clear statement of
the issue and suggest alternatives. Feedback will be accepted until August 05, 2016. All
feedback received will be fully considered when finalizing the Little Smoky and A La Peche
Caribou Range Plan. If you would prefer to submit written feedback, please send it to:

JUN 23 2016

271



George Duffy
Planning Branch

3rd Floor, South Petroleum Plaza
9915— 108 Street NW

Edmonton, Alberta T5K 2G8

or by email to George Duffy at george.duffy@pov.ab.ca.

Your input is very much appreciated. We look forward to working with your municipality in
finalizing the Little Smoky and A La Peche Caribou Range Plan.

Sincerely,

Brendan Hemens
Director, Planning System and Support
Planning Branch
Environment and Parks

cc: George Duffy, Caribou Planning Lead, Environment and Parks
George Robertson, Regional Director, Upper Athabasca, Environment and Parks
Darcy Beach, Regional Director, Upper/Lower Peace, Environment and Parks

272



N.

/

June 2, 2016

N.

/

,/.

,4’tJ2€tt4k$ Government
/ *D~FT*

Little Smoky and A La Peche
Caribou Range Plan

273



Jtn 2, 2016 DRAFT (JOe Smoky and A La Peche
Cadbou~ Pffin

02016 Government ciAibeeta

/)
//

274



Executive summary. iii

1.0 Caribou Recovery Planning in Alberta 1

2.0 Little Smoky and A La Peche Caribou Ranges Overview 1

3.0 Little Smoky and A La Peche Caribou Range Plan Purpose 2

3.1 Alberta’sapproach 2

3.2 Definitions 3
7 )

4.0 Habitat Management and Restoration 5

4.1 Targets and Management Intent N 5

42 Zonation 5

4 3 Restoration / / 7

4.4 Access Management ~. . . .4 N 7
N N

4.5 Management of Forest Activit9~...;~ 8

4 6 Management of Energy Activity “ 10

4 7 Other Sectors — Management Requirements 11

4 8 Managing natural disturbance risks to habitat 11

5.0 Human UseManagemeñt 12
/ ~ •.. N. j/

6 0 Population Management 12

6 1 Car&ot<Rearing Facility 13

6 2 Alternate Prey Management N 13

63 Preda~orMaiagement 13

7 0 Monitoring an~I Reporting 14

7 1 Population monitoring 14

Z2 Nj-/àbitat condition, monitoring 14
N

8.0 Research— On~oing and Future 15
N \/ /

9.0 Timelines:,Raflge Plan Updates 16

9.1 Contin uous improvement 16

June 2, 2016 *DRRFT* Little Smoky and A La Peche ii
Caribou Range Plan

© 2016 Government of Alberta

275



ExEcuTIvE SUMMARY

Alberta’s Range Plan for the Little Smoky and A La Peche Caribou Ranges presents a
combination of habitat and population management actions, addressing the objectives of
Alberta’s woodland caribou recovery plan and policy, and the federal recovery strategies
for Boreal and Southern Mountain woodland caribou populations.

Caribou recovery in the Little Smoky and A La Peche Caribou Ranges depends on
addressing habitat-related factors that result in excessive predation rates on caribou
populations. This requires both short and long term strategies and actions towards a
future where caribou populations can be self-sustaining. Cu~rent habitat conditions in the
Little Smoky and A La Peche Caribou Ranges will not sup~or~self-sustaining caribou
populations. Full recovery of sufficient habitat to supppft self-sustaining caribou is
anticipated to take decades. /

These ranges include important forest and energy rèsoürces that àontinue to support local
Alberta communities and the provincial econci’my~ This Range Plan supports a working
landscape where caribou and industrial ae,tWitycb-exist, with strict rçgulation, investment
in aggressive and innovative approaches, ‘and &reful monitoring of oütcom9s.

Caribou are an important part of the lives and traditions of Alberta’s Indigenous peoples
This plan creates opportunities for Indigenous peoples to support and contribute to
caribou recovery ‘~

Alberta’s approach is a focused strategy towards achieving self-sustaining populations
Many tools will be used including habitat restoration on seismic lines, wolf population
management, creation of a caribou rearing facility for the Little Smoky population and
stricter requirements for resource development / ~.

The Range Pl&n identifies ≥omnptments to

• Work wfth~6il~nd ga~c6mpanies tire~chedule and provide voluntary extensions
for developments, with increased flexibility in the tenure system to contribute to

- achievement of caribou goals and obj ectwes

‘. Reserve from disposition all remaining coal, metallic minerals, peat, sand and
N gravel rights., \~

N, .~

•.~ Restoration of legaby seismic lines to ensure establishment of appropriate
~ve~etation withid ftve years th*l ensuring that future seismic development is
séhsitivçto caribo~i conservation and recovery requirements.

• Requi?e~ntegratea land management (ILM) for all industrial activities to reduce
current aiidfutüre,footprint.

• Develop strii~geiit requirements for new oil and gas approvals.

• Focus forest harvesting in areas where harvesting has already occurred.

• Continue population management of wolves, and the alternate prey of wolves
(that is, moose, elk and deer), to avoid near-term extirpation of the caribou
populations.

• Establish a caribou rearing facility to improve population growth for the Little
Smoky caribou population.

June 2,2016 *DRRFT* Little Smoky and A La Peche iii
Caribou Range Plan

©2016 Government of Aiberta

276



• Engage Indigenous communities in opportunities to support achievement of the
Range Plan.

• Support travel on approved corridors within the ranges to ensure both hunting
access for alternate prey management and protection of forest growth on restored
seismic lines.

• Ensure assessments, monitoring and research occurs, as needed, to track Range
Plan accomplishments and assist in achieving Range Plan goals and objectives.

• Review and improve the Range Plan regularly, through adaptive management, to
ensure achievement of plan goals and objectives.

N.

/

/ .-

/

*DRp~FT* Little Smoky and A La Peche
Caribou Range Plan

@2016 Government of Alberta

7 /7
N

/
~/i

N

.1

•\

,,.,.\

~ ~N/\
/7

/

N,/

June 2,2016 iv

277



1.0 CARIBou RECOVERY PLANNING IN ALBERTA

In Alberta, woodland caribou (Rang~fer tarandus caribou) are classified as two ecotypes: mountain’ and
boreal2. Woodland caribou are designated as Threatened under Alberta’s Wildl(fe Act. The nationally
defined Boreal and Central Mountain woodland caribou populations are similarly designated as
Threatened under Canada’s Species at Risk Act (SARA).

The Alberta Woodland Caribou Recovery Plan (2005) and A Woodland Caribou Policyfor Alberta
(2011) guide caribou conservation and recovery in the province.

In October 2012, the Government of Canada released the Recovery Strategyfor the Woodland Caribou
(Rang(fer tarandus caribou), Boreal Population in Canada (the Boreàl Recovery Strategy). The strategy
sets out requirements for range and action plans to support the goal o~sélf-sustaining status for all
remaining local populations of boreal woodland caribou in Caiiâda. Ihe strategy outlines requirements for
critical habitat protection and management with the intent that ~yob4láuid caribou recovery is to be
achieved through a combination of habitat and population ihanagement

In addition, in June 2014, the Government of Canada ~ina1i~ed and adoptè4the Recovery Strategyfor the
Woodland Caribou (Rangjfer tarandus caribou,), Soutjiern Mountain Poputht~oñ in Canada (the Southern
Mountain Recovery Strategy), which applies to all of the mountain ecotype w&odldnd caribou in Alberta.
The Southern Mountain Recovery Strategy is comparabl&to the Borèal Recovery Strategy in most details.

•\ *. N
Approximately 23 per cent of Alberta is ~overed by caribou range, overlapping significant natural
resources There are twelve boreal and three southern mounfain woodland caribou populations currently
remaining on provincial lands in Alberta One additional southern mountain caribou population remains
in Jasper National Park and is under the jurisdiction of the federal government The local population in
Banff National Park was extirpated in 2009, from the Park a~nd adjacent provincial lands

Alberta is committed to achieving caribou conservation and recovery, wher~ activities are well-managed
and coordinated, supportinj different land use activities an*á balanced outcomes in a working landscape
Recognizing that carib&u.rdpiesent oàe det of values, thc integration of caribou range plans into Alberta’s
other Government of Albert~ plans and frameworks (for example, regional plans and biodiversity
management frameworks) will ensdfe Alberta addresses desired environmental, economic and social
outcomes ‘N

N N

2 0 ‘LITTLE SMOKY AND A LA PECI-JE CARIBou RANGES OVERVIEW

The Little Smoky and A La Peche Caribou Ranges are located within the Foothills, Subalpine and Alpine
Natural Regions, and Lower Foothills and U~pér Foothills Sub-regions in west-central Alberta. Together,
the ranges are 9,699km2 in size and ~hile they share a common border, the Little Smoky and A La Peche
caribou populations are different caribou ecotypes — the Little Smoky population are non-migratory
boreal caribou while th&ALa ~ethe~áre migratory mountain caribou.

The distribution of woodla≥d~parjbbu in west-central Alberta has greatly declined over the last 50 to 80
years. The Little Smoky caribdu population is the most southerly boreal population currently remaining in
the province. The A La Peche caribou population is now the most southerly mountain caribou population
remaining in Alberta on provincially controlled lands.

Equivalent to the nationally defined Southern Mountain woodland caribou (now subdivided into Southern and
Central Mountain populations)
2 Equivalent to the nationally defined Boreal woodland caribou

June 2,2016 *DRAFT* Little Smoky and A La Peche Page 1 0116
caribou Range Plan

©2016 Government of Alberta

278



The Little Smoky and A La Peche Caribou Ranges are located in the Municipal District of Greenview
No.16 and Yellowhead County and overlie significant forest and energy resources. Natural resource
exploration and development in the area contribute to the economic and social stability of a wide network
of west-central Alberta towns and communities.

There are three Aboriginal communities with consultation areas that overlap the Little Smoky and A La
Peche Caribou Ranges: The Aseniwuche Winewak Nation of Canada, Sturgeon Lake Cree Nation, and
Horse Lake First Nation. Sturgeon Lake Cree Nation and Horse Lake First Nation are both signatories to
Treaty No.8. Caribou have been an important part of the traditional way of life of First Nations and Metis
people in Alberta. In addition to reporting that caribou were an historical subsistence food source,
aboriginal groups report that caribou have been an important source of raw materials.

3.0 LITTLE SMOKY AND A LA PEcHE CARIBOU RANGE PLAN PURPOSE
7

This Little Smoky and A La Peche Caribou Range Plan (th~e*ange Pan) describes Alberta’s actions
towards meeting the caribou conservation and recovery goals and objectives outlined in Alberta’s caribou
recovery plan and policy, and the goals and objectiv~siisted in the Govèmi~ient of Canada’s woodland
caribou recovery strategies. It identifies an approa~ch to,hábitat and popula&qnNthanagement that sustains a
working landscape where caribou and careful de~e1oprnent co-exist

Alberta recognizes that woodland caribou conservation and recovery will require time and commitment to
both habitat and population management actions We are committed to ongoing assessments and research
to supporting these actions 3’

The Boreal and Southern Mountain Recovery Strategies identi& critical habitat as dependent upon both
biophysical habitat attributes and undisturbed habitat The strategies guide the effective protection of
critical habitat and speci~ the need to achieve and maintain a minim~üm of 65% undisturbed area within
each range (Boreal) or the low elevation winter range (~outhem Mountain) and provide the biophysical
habitat attributes necessary for caribou recovery This range~jilan establishes a habitat trajectory towards
the 65% threshold for both ranges

The Range Plan identifies definitions, in~icators and targets that support measuring and reporting on
progress towards the requirements otthe Recovery Strategies, while also providing the groundwork for a
made-in-Alberta approach

The federal Species At RiskAct establishes requirements for action plans, including specified protection
of critical habitat The Range Plan will form part of Alberta’s action plan for boreal woodland caribou

3.1. Alberta’s approach\

Alberta’s approach is’af~èqsed strategy towards achieving self-sustaining populations while supporting
communities and the ecohomy. /

Caribou recovery in the Little Sni~ky and A La Peche Caribou Ranges depends on reducing predation
rates so caribou populations can grow and then remain stable at increased population levels, and restoring
and conserving sufficient suitable habitat to support self-sustaining populations. Current habitat
conditions in the Little Smoky and A La Peche Caribou Ranges will not support self-sustaining caribou
populations. Achieving sufficient future habitat will take many decades.

Caribou habitat will be managed through the reduction of forest harvesting, modifications to how oil and
gas resources are managed, restoration of industrial features, protection from natural disturbances and
coordinating industrial development to reduce footprint. Restoration of legacy seismic lines will begin
immediately and new footprint will be minimized and mitigated. Our goal is to achieve a level of habitat
that will enable self-sustaining caribou populations without the need for direct actions to reduce

June 2,2016 *DRAFT* Little Smoky and A La Peche Page 2 of 16
Caribou Range Pian

© 2016 Government of Alberta

279



predation.

To meet provincial and federal goals and objectives, while remaining responsive to dynamic caribou
population and landscape conditions, Alberta will employ an adaptive management approach. Objectives
and actions identified in the Range Plan will be monitored and reported.

Alberta will support ongoing monitoring, research and evaluation to improve our understanding of
caribou populations, habitat, and restoration efficacy. Actions in the Range Plan will be reviewed
annually, and based on the outcomes of those reviews, Alberta will revise management strategies and
actions as necessary to enhance caribou recovery. The Range Plan will be updated every five years.

The Range Plan takes a three phase approach to achievement of self-sustaining caribou populations:

Th
Initial restoration of all
legacy seismic lines that
require assistance to
establish appropriate
vegetation Enhanced
restoration standards for
new footprint

• Access plan to minimize
and mitigate future
footprint

• Complete historical harvest
to reduce further mpacts
on caribou habitat and
mitigate MPB threat

• Modify oil and gas
management.

• Continue predator-prey
management program to
avoid caribou extirpation

• Establish human use plan
to support habitat and
population actions

— Initially restored footprint
moving toward full
restoration.

— Follow long-term plan for
managed disturbances.

• Continue predator-prey
management, adjusting as
caribou population
increases.

• Follow long-term plan for
human use

Stabilizing

0-5 Years

Sustaining

50+ Years

Th
• Historica footprint fully

restored Ongoing
management of remaining
footprint

• Energy development
footprint declines
Follow long-term plan for
managed disturbances.

• Monitor self-sustaining
caribou populations.

• Follow long-term plan for
human use

.44-

Figure : Albert&s phased approach to achieving self-sustaining populations.

3.2 Definitions

Alberta uses the following definitions in the Range Plan. They inform the management actions that
follow, as well as monitoring and reporting activities.

3.2.1 Federal Recovery Strategies - definitions
The Range Plan adopts the following definitions from the federal Recovery Strategies.

ScjfSustaining Local Population

A local population of boreal caribou that on average demonstrates stable or positive population
growth over the short-term (<20 years), and is large enough to withstand random events and persist
over the long-term (>50 years), without the need for ongoing active management intervention.

Disturbed Habitat

Habitat showing: i) human-caused disturbance visible on Landsat at a scale of 1:50,000, including
habitat within a 500 metre buffer of the human-caused disturbance; and/or ii) fire disturbance in the

June 2 2016 DRAFT* Little Smoky and A La Peohe
Caribou Range Plan

Page 3 of 16

© 2016 Government of Alberta

280



June 2, 2016 *DRRFT* Little Smoky and A La Peche
Caribou Range Plan

last 40 years, as identified in data from each provincial jurisdiction (without buffer).

Undisturbed Habitat

Habitat not showing any: i) human-caused disturbance visible on Landsat at a scale of 1:50,000,
including habitat within a 500 metre buffer of the human-caused disturbance; and/or ii) fire
disturbance in the last 40 years, as identified in data from each provincial and territorial jurisdiction
(without buffer).

3.2.2 Alberta’s approach — definitions
These definitions support Alberta’s approach to range planning.

Habitat

Effective Habitat /
Habitat that has characteristics which provide cariboy kitlj ili &fthSir ecological needs (that is, food,
shelter, ability to travel and disperse, ability to repródüçe, and ability tbavoid excessive levels of
predation). Effective habitat is available and fgnétio~iihg at three scalésç- the local population range
(sufficient for self-sustaining populations), th4 indMdual home range (p?ocyiding for biophysical
habitat needs) and individual foraging sites Effective habitat has low risk of predation on caribou,
caribou food availability, and low occurrence of food’fpr wolv~s’ main alternáte~~rey: moose, elk and
deer N

Initially Restored Habitat

Habitat that was disturbed in the past, but hips since been put on a s~ccessional pathway towards
providing effective caribou habitat, either naturally or through rIlanagement actions Forest cutblocks
are required to be reforested by law, thus, they are cdnsidered imni’ediately initially restored

Restored habitat

Habitat that was disturbed in the j~ast, but has since’returned to a state that is beginning to contribute
to effective habitat

Developnjeht N

WorklAglahdscape

An ~rea of land manajèd for multiple environmental, social and economic objectives These
objectives include enviro~mental conservation, as well as continued human use for social and
economic ‘~/aIues.

N N

Footprint ‘NN~

Footprint, for this R~àngè plah, isdefined as the area of human disturbance features, exclusive of an
influence buffer, until they achieve a status of ‘restored habitat’. Overlapping features are only
counted once. N

Historical footprint

Footprint as of April 1, 2016~, deemed unnecessary to support continued human activity, is not
initially restored and does not have a legally responsible party to deal with the restoration work (for

Alberta will continue to improve its inventory of historical footprint over time, adding it to historical footprint
based on the date of its creation, relative to April 1,2016.

Page 4 of 16

© 2016 Government of Alberta

281



example, historical seismic lines that have not been returned, either naturally or through management
actions, to a successional pathway towards providing effective caribou habitat).

Appended Development

Development that occurs immediately adjacent to roads, pipelines, facilities and well pads that have
not been initially restored.

4.0 HABITAT MANAGEMENT AND RESTORATION

This section outlines the management actions that Alberta will take for caribou habitat in the Little Smoky
and A La Peche Caribou Ranges, towards meeting Alberta’s caribou~conservation and recovery goals.

4.1 Targets and Management Intent / 4
K

Alberta’s habitat targets and management intents are fr~mçd asa ph~ed approach to achieving the
amount and quality of effective habitat which will sup~ort~elf-sustainiñg Little Smoky and A La Peche
caribou populations. Alberta’s immediate goal is tpinitiate the restoration ófekisting footprint and
minimize/manage the creation of new footprint while ~pstaining social and edoi~dffiic values. This strategy
puts the ranges on a habitat trajectory towards 65pekeiitqndisturbed.habitat and e~áb1es wise
management of biophysical habitat N

Phase Habitat targé~ ~... EnergjMana~ement Forestit Management
‘ Intent’ Intent

Stabilizing Restoration of all historiqal~ Minipiize and mitigate. Maintain and increase
0 — 5 years footprint Minimize and new development .~ N effective habitat Complete

mitigate new footpnnt to / historical harvesting to
maintain habitat nd~ reduce further impacts to
de~ëlo~ ‘f~ture habitat, N/N caribou and mitigate
establishing a trajectory mountain pine beetle
tqwards 65% undisturbed threat

~ habitat and managing N /

/ biôphysic~ habitat~\ ‘~

K attributes. ~
‘N ~

Recoverthg ‘.. . ~.. ‘N Manage new development Forest management to
~. Restoration sites~.on N,,

6— 50 years ~. . ‘ ~ to ensure the amount and increase caribou habitat,
‘. trajectory to effective “ .

~ habitat type is appropriate to and manage mountain pine
H,, ~ achieve caribou objectives, beetle risk.

Sustaining Achie’~e~suffiéiegf Manage new development Habitat maintenance and
50+ years effectWe .habitat’to support to ensure the amount and sustainable development

self-sustaihink caribou type is appropriate to
populations. achieve caribou objectives.

4.2 Zonation

Zones provide the basis for allocating management strategies to achieve measurable outcomes. The zones
support the overall management approach to achieve the goals and objectives of this plan. Two zones are
identified to direct management activity, one within the caribou ranges, and one surrounding and

*DRAFr Little Smoky and A La Peche
Caribou Range Pian

June 2.2016 Page 50116

©2016 Government of Alberta

282



encompassing the ranges (Figure 1).

it

Pt,
t - -‘/ I,

Little SmokyandALa Pedie
Wood and Canbou Ranges

t
I

j_w -

7 ,~ /

:~:~>
S 4’ ~?dtF> t

>#-~,/ ~
— ‘si

~.) /‘•~)~1g
- —F~ ~ •~, ~J ,~

— ‘;? ~

IPmt nda

— .0— —
s-b

I

-*Ji
I

__1

Figure 1. Management zones for the Little Smoky and A La Peche Caribou Ranges.

4.2.1 Zone Definitions

Zone 1

*DRi\FT* Little Smoky and A La Peche
Caribou Range Plan

Prln.y Higiwsy

ALa PscI,eRsng*

Litt~ Smdcy Rang.

L_V0n*2
Wi~na. Prk (Wlnlott)

NMIDnsI Past

June 2, 2016 Page 6 of 16

© 2016 Government of Alberta

283



Zone 1 was delineated based on the occurrence of existing forest harvesting footprint along with caribou
occurrence and movements.

Zone 2
This zone extends beyond the Little Smoky and A La Peche Caribou Ranges. It will be used to identi~’
where coordinated access management practices are required, inclusive of the ranges. This zone
coincides with the boundary used to develop the original Berland-Smoky Regional Access Development
Plan.

4.3 Restoration
/

Restoration of disturbed habitat towards conditions which are~~&ecti~e for caribou is a cornerstone of
Alberta’s approach to stabilizing and recovering caribou populations

The goal of restoration is to re-establish forest communiuiês ~h disturhed sites, thereby restoring normal
ecosystem processes. Alberta’s restoration prograrnobjeetives are: ‘ ..

• Habitat restoration — Restore sites to thei~natfiral successional trajectory;in turn 1) reducing
caribou avoidance of disturbance, 2) reducing establishment and growth of plant species
preferred by alternate prey, and 3) over time, creating effective habitat for caribou

7 N ‘~• •/ N 2
• Reduce predation risk —Impede and tec uce wolf travel oplinear corridors, and fèduce habitat

features which support high nu~bers of wolves

Restoration Management Requuirements
I Alberta will lead the development and implementation of a restoration plan for historical and

existing footprint in the ranges, to increase undisturbed and effective habitat and reduce predation
rates on caribou Implementation of this plan will initially restore histoncal seismic lines in the
ranges by the end of 2022.

2 Industry operating in the area will be required to meet enhanced restoration requirements at the
time of footprint abandonment, to be established by Alberta in communication with the
Regulator, for any new footprint onor after April 1, 2017, within the caribou ranges

4 4 Access Management

Minimizing the creatiàn ofnew footprint in a working landscape requires carefully considered
development plans, &peratmg conditions, and coordination of access to minimize new linear disturbances
and identify opportunitiès~t&r~stóre,éxisting linear disturbances. Alberta’s Range Plan will ensure
alignment with caribou habitat ard ‘population objectives by the application of strict operating conditions,
and a mandatory ILM approaàhthrough the approval of a coordinated regional access development plan.

Mandatory Integrated Land Management (ILM)
ILM is a strategic, planned approach to manage and reduce human footprint on the landscape. ILM aims
to balance values, benefits, risks and trade-offs when planning and managing resource extraction, land use
activities, and environmental management. ILM in the Little SmOky and A La Peche Caribou Ranges is
mandatory; industry operating within the Little Smoky and A La Peche Caribou Ranges will be expected
to adhere to ILM requirements in applications for development and throughout their activity cycles.

June 2,2016 *DRAFT* Little Smoky and A La Peche
caribou Range Plan

Page 7 of 16

@2016 Government of Alberta

284



Berland Smoky Regional Access Development Plan
The Berland Smoky Regional Access Development (RAD) Plan was developed by the Foothills
Landscape Management Forum (FLMF). The FLMF is a self-funded forum made up of resource
companies (energy and forestry) and the Aseniwuche Winewak Nation who work together on the
management of industrial footprint to mitigate the impact on other resource values. The RAD Plan
included input from government, Indigenous communities and industry stakeholders to provide a
coordinated approach to planning access roads in the region within and surrounding the Little Smoky and
A La Peche Caribou Ranges. Alberta approved the RAD Plan’s primary corridors. In consideration of
potential implications for caribou and some other fish, wildlife and land management values, completion
and approval of all aspects of the RAD Plan’s secondary corridors p1an~vas deferred until the completion
of caribou range plans. Following the release of the Range Plan, thIGo~Vernment of Alberta will work
with the FLMF to prepare a new regional access plan which c9nsiders’all access types.

Access Management Requirements *

1. ~‘the ~odthih~Tindsb~& Management Forum dr ai~lir ~d&ing gr &si~nited by
Government will coordinate the preparation of a multi-company regional access plan for the
forest and energy sectors in Zone 2, subject to oversight by the Government of Alberta,
Indigenous peoples, environmental non-government organizations, municipalities and other key
impacted stakeholders. Alberta Environment and Parks will lead the review and approval of this
plan, including consultation with Indigenous peoples and downstream regulators.

~4. Parties seeking to develop roads in the Little Smoky and A La Peche Caribou Ranges will be
required to submit rolling 5-year operational access plans annually, demonstrating consistency
with the approved regional access plan and provisions of the Range Plan. Road approvals and
amendments for different sectors will be integrated, with oversight from Agriculture and Forestry~
and the Alberta Energy Regulator to ensure consistency with the approved regional access plan
and rolling access plans. /

4 5 Management of Forest Activity

Harvesting will focus on areas of pre-existing harvest first (Zone 1), taking advantage of existing access
and disturbanàqtd r~educe flirthe~’fthest fraghientation and produce large contiguous areas of future
caribou habitat. Ani~uai harvesting plins will strive to concentrate activities geographically. Further,
companies will ensure any carryover yolume from previous years is harvested outside the ranges before
proceeding to harvest inside, the r~ng~s.

/
Each company with tenur~”oyerlap~ing caribou ranges will update their respective Forest Management
Plan to reflect direction in thi~ range plan, ensuring that volume scheduled inside the ranges is identified
as an annual schedule. Range volume may be carried forward from year to year, but may not exceed the
volume cumulative to that year.

Forestry Requirements
5. For any forest management unit, harvesting inside the ranges may only remove “second-pass”!

“reserve block” stands (that is, stands in Zone 1) until all of that area is removed.

6. Carryover volume must be harvested outside the ranges before proceeding to harvest inside the
ranges. Harvesting plans will prioritize scheduling blocks that minimize increases to disturbed

*D~ft~FT* Little Smoky and A La Peche
Caribou Range Plan

Forest p~oducis harve~tingwi~l b&thariaged usiri~ ‘zoiätip’ñ as shown in Figure 1, and in some areas
volume limits. ‘ ‘N

June 2,2016 PageS oilS

© 2016 Government of Alberta

285



habitat.

7. Harvesting in forest management unit WI 5 inside the ranges will not exceed the following levels
annually:

2016/17: 548,500 m3

2017/18: 498,500 m3

2018/19: 498,500 m3

2019/20: 473,500 m3

2020/21: 448,500 m3

8. Harvesting in forest management unit E8 inside the ranges will not exceed 342,000 m3 annually
for the next 5 years.

9. Forest management plans will be updated to reflect the direction in this range plan by December
31, 2016, ensuring that volume scheduled inside the ranges is identified as an independent annual
schedule.

10. Range harvest volumes may be carried forward from year to year, but may not exceed the volume
cumulative to that year.

II. Alberta will introduce operational requirements for forestry activity to:

a. Require the reforestation of historical footprint adjacent to or within forest harvest cut
blocks.

b. Require initial restoration of Class V forest roads within three years of construction.

igure 2. Little Smoky and A La Peche caribou ranges showing forest management unit names.

June 2,2016 *D~fl•* Little Smoky and A La Peche Page 9 of 16
Caribou Range Plan

© 2016 Government of Alberta

286



4.6 Management of Energy Activity

Alberta has various management provisions specific to caribou in place through its Enhanced Approval
Process (EAP).

The current EAP provisions supporting caribou habitat and population protection will be reviewed and
where necessary adjusted for consistency with the goals and objectives of the Range Plan.

Energy Requirements
crown mineral rights

12. The Government of Alberta will work with companies to achieve voluntary activity rescheduling
and will offer agreement extensions on a case-by-case basis for companies to support
transitioning to compliance with all provisions of the Range Plan These extensions will be
conditional on a signed commitment to a significant multi-year rescheduling ofnew development
on the agreement companies identify, or a substantive and sigmficant prolonging of activity over
an extensive period of time.

13. The Government of Alberta will reserve from disposition all remaining Crown coal and metallic
and industrial mineral rights within the Little Smoky and A La Peche Caribou Ranges. Petroleum
and natural gas rights are available.

Requirements for new and existing development

14. All new oil and gas development adheres to appended development as a required approach. New
development may be approved, provided there is a demonstrated inability to access resources
from existing roads, pipelines, facflities and well pads, or it is identified in the approved multi-
company regional access plan. Consideration will be given to human safety and best
environmental outcomes in assessing the inability to access resources.

15. New disturbances should avoid open and treed wetlands throughout the ranges.

16 The Government of Alberta will review the current requirements in the Enhanced Approval
Process (RAP), and approval conditions applied to existing applications, for consistency with the
Range Plan goals and objectives. In the case of conflict between the Range Plan and any
applicable portion of the LAP or other approval condition, the Range Plan prevails.

Geophysical Exploration Requirements

17.

18.

Applications for new seismic exploration must demonstrate to the Alberta Energy Regulator that
reprocessing existing seismic data cannot be used in its place.

Where existing disturbances occur (i e clearings and cleared lines with vegetation heights less
than 1 meter in height and within 200m of proposed seismic program line), the creation of new
lines is prohibited, and the existing lines must be reused.

19. Where existing disturbances (as outlined in Standard 2) are not available, new clearings must
adhere to the following standard

a. Receiver lines must be meandering, under-canopy hand-cut and using tree avoidance
techniques (that is, no trees with a diameter at breast height greater than 10 cm to be
removed). Receiver lines must not be spaced closer than 200 meters apart.

b. Source lines must be meandering and may not exceed 2.75 meters in width and employ
tree avoidance techniques to limit line of sight to less than 50 meters Source lines must
be at least 300 m from each other.

June 2,2016 *DRAFT* Little Smoky and A La Peche
Caribou Range Plan

Page 10 of 16

© 2016 Government of Alberta

287



Natural Disturbance Requirements

0.

© 2016 Government of Alberta

c. Doglegs must be employed at all intersections with other linear features to limit line of
sight.

20. Vehicles employed in seismic exploration will have a low ground pressure configuration.

21 Shrub and tree regeneration on existing lines must be protected through avoidance techmques

22 Helipads must use natural open areas or existing clearings where available If helipads are
prepared, they must not exceed 35 meters in diameter.

23 Heli-portable programs must have shot hole drop zones no greater than 4 metres in diameter

24 Initiate activity as early as possible in the winter to limit late winter activities Seismic programs
must be complete by February 15th of each year

Pipeline Construction Requirements

25 Alberta will only approve pipeline construction that employs techniques to minimize the extent
and duration of new footprint, through application of appropriate construction and restoration
techmques Alberta will develop requirements for approval of pipeline applications

7’ 7’ ~
c~. ~ ‘7 .7’

4.7 Other Sectors — ManagemeñtRçquirerpçnts \*~
N.

Peat Extraction

26 The Government of Alberta will reserve from disposition all peat within the Little Smoky and A
La Peche Caribou Ranges.

Sand and Gravel Extraction

27 The Government of Alberta will reserve from disposition all sand and gravel within the Little
Smoky and A La Peche Caribou Ranges.

28 Borrow excavations will be permitted for approved activities
7 / ~ \ N

“N~. N~• ~ N.

48 Managing natural disturbance nsks to habitat

The majority of pine stands within the Ranges have been assessed as moderately susceptible to damage
from attacking pine beetles, the risk of pine mortality is significant Mountain pine beetle infestations and
resulting im~act~to pine forests~c~aftwge hyd~ol~gical function, ecosystem function, sensitive sites and
wildlife habitat as ‘~,ell as sustaindblétorest hafvest levels.

S S

While only a small prpportion of the r~nges have burned over the last 60 years, wildfires are frequent
natural and human-cai~sed ~ventsin the Upper Athabasca and Upper Peace regions.

/
Alberta will focus its efforts in tl~e Little Smoky and A La Peche Caribou Ranges to reduce the risk of
habitat loss to these importanfnatural disturbances.

~29. Alberta will continue with its high state of readiness for wildfire response and suppression in the
Little Smoky and A La Peche Caribou Ranges.

Alberta will pnoritize use of Level 1 (single-tree removal of high risk mountain pine beetle sites)
control treatments in the Little Smoky and A La Peche Caribou Ranges, approving Level 2 (block
or patch harvesting of infestations) treatments as necessary.

31 Alberta will review application of the Healthy Pine Strategy in the Little Smoky and A La Peche
June 2, 2016 *DR4FT* Little Smoky and A La Peche Page 11 of 16

caribou Range Plan

288



L,c,~rikp~ Ranges to ensure alignment with caribou b n.

5.0 HuMAN USE MANAGEMENT

Successful restoration depends on supporting tree regrowth on sites, and ensuring it is protected from
subsequent disturbance. At the same time, management of alternate prey species for wolves (that is,
moose, elk and deer) rests on the ability of Indigenous and licenced hunters to obtain access to the range.

Alberta will designate a Public Land Use Zone (PLUZ) to support habitat conservation, approving routes
to support targeted access. A PLUZ is an area of public land to which legislative controls apply under
authority of the Public Lands Act, to assist in the management of industrial, commercial and recreational
land uses and resources. A PLUZ is created for a specific land base~ahd~he unique conditions that exist
within that land base. PLUZ conditions are designed primarily to Ø~roteci areas containing sensitive
resources and manage conflicting land-use activities, including~ecre&tion.

Management of Human Use - RequiçemeAts N.

32. Alberta will designate a Public Land Use Zone encompassing the Little Smoky and A La Peche
Caribou Ranges, including application of necessary bafflers and enforcement Motorized use will
be restricted to approved roads and designated corridors through the use of a Public Land Use
Zone, subject to constitutionally practiced treaty rights.

33. Alberta will coordinate the development of a recreational access component of the multi-
company regional access plan and the restoration plan, to define designated routes in cooperation
with affected Indigenous communities, municipalities, recreation and other users.

34. Awareness and educational programming will be enhanced through the Alberta Caribou Patrol to
educate local communities, recreational associations (for example, the Off Highway Vehicle
Association) about the impacts of recreational use on caribou

6 0 PoPuLATIo~I MANAGEMENT

Targets —

Alberta’s objectives for the Little Smoky and A La Peche caribou populations are framed as a phased
approach towards achieving self~ustaining populations

Phase Population target

Stabilizing N N, Each range populition has greater than 100 animals and demonstrates
~ “~., population stability or positive growth.

\ ‘N

Recovering “ ~. Each tang’e population has greater than 150 animals and demonstrates
‘ .populatión stability, or positive growth (within the bounds of the ecological

darrying capacity for caribou within each range).

Sustaining Achievement and maintenance of a self-sustaining local caribou population
in each of the Little Smoky and A La Peche ranges.

Recovery of habitat to levels that can sustain caribou will take many decades. During the Stabilizing and
Recovering phases caribou populations require assistance to withstand excessive predation pressures. To
improve survival rates, a large-scale caribou rearing facility will be used to augment the reproduction
success of the Little Smoky population, with ongoing predator management for both caribou populations.

June 2, 2016 *DRRFT* Little Smoky and A La Peche Page 12 of 16
caribou Range Plan

©2016 Government of Alberta

289



6.1 Caribou Rearing Facility

Alberta will construct a large (up to approximately 100 km2) fenced caribou rearing facility, to contain a
suitable breeding population of caribou within the Little Smoky range. Periodically, young adult caribou
will be released to the caribou population outside of the facility to contribute to population growth. The
approach provides several potential benefits:

• Year-round protection for adult and young caribou from predation;

• Infrequent removal of predators from within the fenced area;

• Relatively large area protection, so caribou should require minimal supplemental feeding;

• Animals released as young adults should have reduced prêd~;idn mortality rates; and

• The size and location of the facility will assist in it~~6t contributing to negative impacts for the
main caribou population remaining outside of thpfeQced arIa\\

This approach is not suitable for the migratory A La Peche population
/ 4 N

6 2 Alternate Prey Management
N /

Alberta will continue to manage ungul~te harvest levels ~o 1) address increases in th~ productivity of
moose, deer and elk which result from wolf~opulation red≥ctions, and 2) to reduce apparent competition
between caribou and other prey species. Th~se gdals will be achje~ed through a combination of ungulate
harvest by Indigenous peoples, and general and special hunting licence ~ppportunities

6 3 Predator M~nagernent /

\\

Wolf management in relatIon to Alberta’s threatened wdbdland carihàu is enabled by Alberta’s Woodland
Caribou Recovery Plan, Woodland Caribou Policy for Alberta, and the Management Plan for Wolves in
Alberta Wolf populations are abundant and *idely distributed across provincial forested lands

The Government of Alberta will c6ntinue its existing wolf population management program in and
adjacent to the Little Smoky and A La P~che Caribo~I Ranges Alberta will engage local Indigenous
communiii~s in dialogue on ttaditional knowledge supports, and opportunities for communities to
support predator management efforts

Alberta’s goal for wolf management ~yill be to annually reduce and maintain wolf populations to levels
which enable caribdu population pèrsi~tence, by achieving population stability or growth.

Population manégement requirements
35 Alberta will establish and fence a caribou rearing facility up to approximately 100 km2 in size, to

contain a suitable caribou breeding population, in the Little Smoky range.

36 Alberta will maintain conditions within the rearing facility necessary to the successful
reproduction of the contained breeding population.

37 Alberta will continue setting harvest targets for moose, deer and elk in the Little Smoky and A La
Peche Caribou Ranges that address the productivity increases of those species resulting from wolf
population reductions, and to reduce apparent competition with caribou.

38 Conduct annual wolf population reductions within and adjacent to the Little Smoky and A La
Peche caribou ranges to enable caribou population persistence, by achieving caribou population

June 2,2016 *DR4FT* Little Smoky and A La Peche Page 13 of 16
Caribou Range Plan

© 2016 Government of Alberta

290



stability or growth.

39. In consultation with local Indigenous communities, Alberta will identi& opportunities for their
peoples to contribute to caribou populationinanagement.

7.0 MoNITORING AND REPORTING

As a key element of an adaptive management approach, the Government of Alberta will issue annual
progress reports and five year stewardship reports for the Little Smoky and A La Peche Caribou Ranges.
Alberta Environment and Parks will be accountable for Range Plan reporting, in collaboration with
Alberta Agriculture and Forestry, Alberta Energy, the Alberta Energy Regulator, and other relevant
departments and agencies. Annual reports will be prepared in association with a Caribou Range
Management Advisory Committee, to be established by Alberta Environment and Parks.

Alberta will engage Indigenous peoples regarding opportunities for them to support and contribute to
monitoring actions.

7.1 Population monitoring

Alberta will continue to monitor caribou in the Little Smoky and A La Peche Caribou Ranges.

Population size Estimates every 5 years
Caribou Population Annual estimates
populations demographic rates and

growth (lambda)

Moose (alternate prey) Estimates every 5 years
Caribou population size
predation

Annual wolf removals Annual numbers removed

7.2 Habitat condition monitoring

Habitat will be monitored based on the Range Plan habitat definitions, and reported in annual and 5 year
stewardship reports. The following indicators will be monitored by Alberta.

Table I. Indicators associated with habitat condition and restoration activity that will be monitored and
reported by Alberta.

ootprint The area of anthropogenic disturbance features, classified by
originating activity

Landscape Footprint available for The area of anthropogenic disturbance features, classified by
condition restoration originating activity, eligible for restoration

Natural disturbance The area of disturbed and undisturbed habitat affected by
natural disturbance for exam le, wildfire, MPB, blowdown,

June 2. 2016 ORAFT Little Smoky and A La Peche Page 14 of 16
Caribou Range Plan

@2016 Government of Alberta

291



etc.)

Linear feature density The length of linear features per unit area, expressed for
each range

Disturbed/undisturbed Per the Range Plan definitions, in absolute and proportional

Caribou habitat quantities
habitat Effective habitat Per the Range Plan definitions in absolutely and

proportional quantities

Restoration activity The area where footprint and historical footprint have been
Trajectory initially restored, by activity type
to65% . . .Initially restored habitat The area of restoration activity meets Government of Alberta
undisturbed
habitat requirements.

Restored habitat The area of restored habitat

Monitoring and Reporting Actions
Alberta Monitoring Requirements

40. Alberta will monitor habitat and population indicators as identified within section 7.0 of this
range plan.

41. Alberta will engage Indigenous communities regarding opportunities for them to contribute to
monitoring actions.

Industry Monitoring Requirements

42. Industrial land users operating in the Little Smoky and A La Peche Caribou Ranges shall report
an accurate representation (“as-built”) of additions or modifications to footprint annually, to
Alberta Environment and Parks; the department will define acceptable standards for submitted
data.

43. In association with Alberta Environment and Parks, a Caribou Range Management Advisory
Committee will prepare annual public reports by March 31 of each year assessing:

a. the establishment and success of the seismic restoration program and caribou rearing
- facility

b. monitoring data collected annually by Alberta, as identified in requirement 36.

46. Alberta, led by Alberta Environment- and Parks, will prepare five year stewardship reports for the
Little Smoky and ALa Peche Caribou Ranges.

8.0 RESEARcH — ONGoING AND FUTURE

Alberta is committed to ongoing assessments, monitoring and research to support adaptive management
of the Range Plan and to inform defining habitat indicators and targets. Alberta will identify priority areas
of research that support caribou population and habitat objectives. Alberta will collaborate with suitable
researchers and agencies to deliver research priorities.

Features established to connect two points, that is, seismic lines, roads, trails, transmission corridors, railways,
pipelines, easements, etc. Low impact seismic is not included in linear feature density calculations.

June 2 2016 *DRAFT* Little Smoky and A La Peche Page 15 of 16
Caribou Range Plan

© 2016 Govemment of Alberta

292



Alberta Environment and Parks, in association with a Caribou Range Management Advisory Committee
to be established by Alberta Environment and Parks, will review and assess new research findings as they
relate to delivery and potential adjustments to the Range Plan

9.0 TEMELINE5: RANGE PL.AN UPDATES

9.1 Continuous Improvement

Alberta is committed to achieving positive environmental,
economic and social outcomes for the benefit of current and
future generations of Albertans. The principle of adaptive
management incorporated in the Range Plan ensures that we
will respond to changes in our understanding of those values
overtime, continuously improving our approach.

Monitor

9
Improve

The occurrence of natural or unexpected disturbances (for
example, wildfire) within the Little Smoky and A La Peche
Caribou Ranges could threaten the achievement of expected Report Evaluate
outcomes. In the event that a natural disturbance affects more
than 5% of the area of either range, more than one year before a
regular plan update evaluation, the Government of Alberta will
provide a management response in collaboration with key stakeholders, Indigenous people, amending the
Range Plan as necessary.

Alberta’s climate has been changing. Alberta has experienced the largest increase in mean annual
temperature, approximately 1.4 degrees Celsius, of all Canadian provinces over the last 100 years.
Caribou are among the most vulnerable boreal species to climate change. More moderate winter
temperatures have allowed MPB to survive farther north and at higher elevations. Alberta will carefully
evaluate continued changes in climate, identifying and addressing challenges to caribou populations, and

If the management actions outlined in the Little Smoky and A La Peche Caribou Range Plan are not
meeting intended targets or caribou populations continue to be challenged by excessive predation, Alberta
will employ its adaptive management approach. Changes contemplated to the management actions
outlined in the plan will be done in collaboration with key stakeholders and Indigenous people.

47. Alberta will review and update the Little Smoky and A La Peche Caribou Range Plan, including
all management actions and activity levels, at least every five years from its approval.

48. The Caribou Range Management Advisory Committee will review and assess annual monitoring
data and new research, providing annual advice to government on the need for adjustments of the
Little Smoky and A La Peche Caribou Range Plan.

49. If natural disturbance affects more than 5% of the area of either range, more than one year before
a regular p~~pdate, Alberta will proyide~a managementresponse.

Page 16 of 16*Dft4F~ Little Smoky and A La Peche
Caribou Range Plan

investigating adaptation approaches as necessary.

Adaptive Management Actions

June 22016

© 2016 Government of Alberta

293



294



 

Mackenzie County 
P.O. Box 640, 4511-46 Avenue, Fort Vermilion, AB  T0H 1N0 

P: (780) 927-3718 Toll Free: 1-877-927-0677 F: (780) 927-4266 
www.mackenziecounty.com 

office@mackenziecounty.com 
 
 
 
 

…2 

July 12, 2016 
 
 
 
The Honourable Stephanie McLean 
Minister of Service Alberta 
103 Legislature Building 
10800 – 97 Avenue 
Edmonton, AB 
T5K 2B6 
 
The Honourable Kathleen Ganley 
Minister of Justice and Solicitor General 
424 Legislature Building 
10800 – 97 Avenue 
Edmonton, AB 
T5K 2B6 
 
Dear Ministers: 
 
RE: RURAL REGISTRY AGENTS OF ALBERTA 
 
Mackenzie County would like to express its concern with Service Alberta and Alberta 
Justice threatening to exclude registry agents from providing services already available 
through online outlets. 
 
Rural registry offices are essential within Mackenzie County.  They support our 
communities by providing necessary services including vehicle, operator, statistics, 
corporate registry and land titles.  By forcing Mackenzie County residents to utilize 
online resources, a large portion of the region’s population will be unable to access 
these services.  Mackenzie County is a remote municipality and hence, there are many 
areas within the County where internet access is unreliable or simply unavailable.  As a 
result, many Mackenzie County residents are computer illiterate and unable to utilize 
online resources.  Additionally, Mackenzie County has a high portion of the population 
that uses English as a second language and therefore online services do not 
accommodate their language requirements.  Thus, rural registry offices must continue to 
operate in order to ensure that registry services are available to all Albertans including 
residents within the northern and remote areas of the province. 

295



 
Minister of Service Alberta 
Minister of Justice and Solicitor General 
Page 2 
July 12, 2016 
 
 
In addition, prohibiting registry offices from offering services available on online 
platforms has a detrimental effect on their already unstable financial viability.  The 
agency fee of $9 per transaction is much higher than the $3 online fee although it still 
has not been adjusted in the last 11 years.  Therefore, the $9 fee has not accounted for 
inflation and this makes it difficult to cover the agency’s expenses.  Eliminating revenue 
from these already low fees by offering registry services exclusively online will make 
registry agents unsustainable.  As a result, this will reduce the number of existing offices 
even further and prevent the agency from operating within Mackenzie County, obligating 
residents to drive several hours to access the resources that cannot be addressed 
online. 
 
Consequentially, Mackenzie County strongly opposes the exclusion of rural registry 
agents from providing services through their offices, despite these services being 
available online.  Furthermore, the County requests that the Alberta government 
implement a fee model for the regular review of fees and corresponding adjustments for 
rural registry agents in order to ensure their viability. 
 
Should you wish to discuss this matter, please feel free to contact myself at (780) 841-
1806. 
 
Yours sincerely, 

 
 
Bill Neufeld 
Reeve 
Mackenzie County 
 
c:  Ms. Debbie Jabbour, MLA, Peace River 
 Mackenzie County Council 
 
 

296



At

July 27, 2016

Municipal Affairs 17th floor, Commerce Place
10155- 102 Street
Edmonton, Alberta T5J 4L4
Telephone 780-427-2225

Batch No.: 500006

Ms. Carol Gabriel,
Mackenzie County
PC Box 640
Fort Vermilion AB TOH 1 NO

Dear Ms. Gabriel:

Re: Regional Collaboration Program (RCP) — Regional Collaboration
Component— Project No.: 1314-RC-40 File No.: 04111-M07

Thank you for submitting the 201 3/14 Regional Housing Study project reporting, funded
by a $100,000 RCP grant.

This letter confirms that Mackenzie County has satisfactorily complied with the
completion date and the reporting requirements of the conditional grant agreement
signed on March 7, 2014.

Sincerely

J.D. Kliewer
Acting Director, Grant Accountability

JR
MACKENZIE COUNTY

FORT VERMILION OFFICE

Interim Chief Administrative Officer

AUG 32016

297



ALBERTA

MUNICIPAL AFFAIRS

Office of theMinister
MLA, Lesser Slave Lake

AR8S816

Dear Elected Officials:

It is my pleasure to announce that Alberta Municipal Affairs is providing $150,000 In grant
funding for the 2016/17 Emergency Management Preparedness Program. The grant guidelines
and project application forms are available on the Alberta Emergency Management Agency's
website, at www.aema.alberta.ca/erants. Please forward this information to your chief
administrative officers and directors of emergency management.

The purpose of the grant is to facilitate training for municipal emergency response personnel
and volunteers needed to protect Albertans during an emergency event. The approved
projects/courses for this grant are separate from other training provided directly through the
ministry:

In order to maximize resources, regional collaboration of municipalities is requested, with one
municipality applying as the host. Please work closely with the Alberta Emergency Management
Agency field officers in your area when applying. The officers can assist you during the
application process.

Should you have questions regarding the grant applications and/or the program guidelines,
please contact the Grants Coordinator at 780-422-9000, or at aema.empp@eov.ab.ca.

I wish you all the best with your training projects.

Sincerely,

VUAJ^

Danielle Larivee

Minister Municipal Affairs

204 Legislature Building, 10800- 97 Avenue, Edmonton, Alberta T5K 2B6 Canada Telephone 780-427-3744 Fax 780-422-9550

PrinuJ onrreytltd̂ fxr

298



299



300



 

July 21, 2016 
 
Mr. Bill Neufeld 
Reeve 
MacKenzie County 
office@mackenziecounty.com 
 
Dear Reeve Neufeld: 
 
Thank you for your recent letter regarding MacKenzie County’s concerns about the 
possible effects of caribou habitat protection.  
 
I am sharing your letter with the Honourable Shannon Phillips, Minister of Environment 
and Parks, for her consideration and detailed response. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
Rachel Notley 
Premier of Alberta 
 
cc: Honourable Shannon Phillips 
 Minister of Environment and Parks 

301



From: Ministry of Justice
To: Office
Cc: Debbie Jabbour NDP (debbie.jabbour@assembly.ab.ca); Service Alberta Minister
Subject: Rural Registry Services
Date: July-27-16 4:17:44 PM

Dear Reeve Neufeld:
 
Thank you for your letter to the Honourable Stephanie McLean, Minister of Service Alberta,
 and me regarding rural registry agents.  I am pleased to respond to your concerns about recent
 changes to fine payment services.
 
I understand that registry services are vital to the day-to-day activities of all Albertans. 
 Whether online or face-to-face in the communities where they live, Albertans are looking for
 easy, secure, and cost-effective ways to access these services.  We are committed to providing
 these services in continued partnership with Alberta’s registry agents.
Please note that Albertans will continue to be able to pay traffic fines in-person at registry
 offices, and registry agents will continue to retain the $9 fee for providing this service. 
 Regarding online fine payments, our previous contract with the Association of Alberta
 Registry Agents (AARA) (through its company Registry Connect) and the Alberta Motor
 Association (AMA) expired on July 7, 2016.  Since July 8, 2016, Albertans have been able to
 make online fine payments for traffic and other violation tickets issued in the province
 through MyAlberta eServices.  While I appreciate that this may impact some revenue streams
 for AARA and AMA, our first commitment as a government must be to provide a secure,
 reliable, and cost‑effective service to Albertans.
The MyAlberta eServices portal for fine payments has been developed to allow those
 Albertans who wish to pay fines online to conduct convenient, secure, and accurate
 transactions.  By interfacing directly with court systems, MyAlberta eServices ensures the
 correct ticket is being paid in the correct amount.  This will significantly reduce the number of
 payment errors, improving service for Albertans and reducing the time court staff spend
 correcting errors. The $3 service fee for ticket payments is designed only to recuperate
 administrative costs.
 
We have an ongoing dialogue with the AARA and AMA about fine payment services and we
 look forward to continuing to work with Alberta’s registry agents to ensure the sustainable
 delivery of these services to Albertans.
 
Thank you for sharing your views on this matter. 
 
Sincerely,
 
 
 
 
Kathleen Ganley
Minister of Justice and Solicitor General
 
Attachment
 
cc:        Honourable Stephanie McLean, Minister of Service Alberta

Ms. Debbie Jabbour, MLA, Peace River

302

mailto:ministryofjustice@gov.ab.ca
mailto:office@mackenziecounty.com
mailto:debbie.jabbour@assembly.ab.ca
mailto:ministersa@gov.ab.ca


 
This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential and intended solely for the use of
 the individual or entity to whom they are addressed. If you have received this email in error
 please notify the system manager. This message contains confidential information and is
 intended only for the individual named. If you are not the named addressee you should not
 disseminate, distribute or copy this e-mail.

303



304



305



 
 

DRAFT MINUTES- For Approval at October XXX, 2016 Meeting 
 

MINUTES 
Water North Coalition (WNC) 

Thursday, June 23, 2016 
La Crete, AB 

 
 
Attendees 
Jonathan Anaka, Town of Wembley 
Dollie Anderson, M.D. of Opportunity 
Tracey Anderson, Aquatera 
Jennifer Besinger, County of Grande Prairie 
Peter Braun, Mackenzie County/NADC Council 
Simon Cardinal, M.D. of Opportunity 
Rhonda Clarke-Gauthier, Mighty Peace Watershed Alliance 
Jillian Cormier, Alberta Municipal Services Corporation (AMSC) (AUMA) 
Elmer Derksen, Mackenzie County 
Grant Dixon, ATAP – Advanced Technology Applications 
Marvin Doran, Birch Hills County 
Sandra Eastman, M.D. of Peace No. 135 
Willis Fitzsimmons, Saddle Hills County 
Earl Gullion, M.D. of Opportunity 
Dana Langer, Town of Peace River 
Bob Marshall, County of Grande Prairie 
Brianne Nettelfield, Northern Lakes College 
Okey Obiajulu, Alberta Environment and Parks 
Rachel Ouellette, Northern Lakes College 
Chris Thiessen, City of Grande Prairie 
Ken Titford, Saddle Hills County 
Brad Trimble, Town of Bonnyville 
Ray Skrepnek, M.D. of Fairview 
Keith Straub, Town of High Level 
Fred Wiebe, Mackenzie County 
Ian Willier, Big Lakes County 
 
Administration 
Brittany Bingham, Northern Alberta Development Council  
Deborah Clarke, Northern Alberta Development Council 
Kim Pinnock, Northern Alberta Development Council 
Nicole Renaud, Northern Alberta Development Council  
 
Speakers 
Alison Roberts, Alberta Environment and Parks 
Tanya Hunter, Alberta Environment and Parks 
Debra Mooney, Alberta Health  
Irina Arzumanyan, Alberta Health Services 
 
 

1 
 

306



 
 

DRAFT MINUTES- For Approval at October XXX, 2016 Meeting 
 

Welcome 
Bob Marshall, Chair, introduced Fred Wiebe, MacKenzie County Public Works, who brought greetings 
from MacKenzie County. He welcomed the WNC group to La Crete and provided a brief history of the 
region and an overview of the water and wastewater systems within the county. 
 
Bob Marshall called the meeting to order at 9:10 a.m.   
 
Adoption of Agenda 
 
 
It was MOVED by Jonathan Anaka THAT the agenda be accepted. 

 
CARRIED 

 
Adoption of Minutes of the Athabasca, April 27, 2016 meeting 
 
It was MOVED by Marvin Doran THAT the minutes of the Athabasca, April 27, 2016 meeting be accepted 
as presented. 

 
CARRIED 

 
Roundtable introductions were made. 
 
 
Review of Action List:  Kim Pinnock, NADC 
 
Chair persons have been assigned to the WNC Sub-committees. 
 
Okey Obiajulu has been assigned as Alberta Environment and Park’s rep for the WNC. 
 
The search for an Agriculture and Industry Rep for the WNC is ongoing, and the sub-Committee will be 
making recommendations at a later date. 
 
The Alberta Resilience Program representative available for today’s meeting is Alison Roberts, who is 
presenting in lieu of Director Andy Lamb. 
 
The NADC is working on creating a Protocol Document for the WNC currently and will have this 
completed for the October meeting. 
 
The Alberta Water Council’s Lake Management Project Team draft report is not yet available and would 
be made available for broad stakeholder review and engagement shortly. Megan Payne from the Lesser 
Slave Watershed Council will provide when available. 
 
 
 
 
 

2 
 

307



 
 

DRAFT MINUTES- For Approval at October XXX, 2016 Meeting 
 

Correspondence: 
 
The WNC sent out a copy of its Strategic Plan to pertinent provincial government ministries and 
associations, and received responses from the Minister of Environment and Parks, the Ministry of 
Transportation, and the Alberta Association of Municipal Districts and Counties. 
 
Mr. Okey Obiajulu, Approvals Manager for Alberta Environment and Parks (AEP) in Grande Prairie, has 
been appointed by Minister Shannon Phillips to the WNC Group, and the Minister expressed an interest 
in the AEP collaborating with the WNC. Okey provided an overview of his role and AEP’s pertinent 
initiatives and updates. The Ministry is currently finalizing its water re-use policy, and the Ministry 
acknowledges water shortages in the North. The Ministry is also moving towards changing the 
manganese concentration of wastewater, which could impact northern facilities. The AEP created a 
Wetland Policy, and any construction affecting wetlands may incur compensation. 
 
The letter from the Ministry of Transportation in response to WNC’s Strategic Plan was shared, and 
included information outlining the government’s investments in water and wastewater programs. The 
letter also provided the contact information for Mr. Danny Jung, Infrastructure Manager with Alberta 
Transportation with whom the WNC can connect with to discuss its Strategic Plan. 
 
The Alberta Association of Municipal Districts and Counties (AAMDC) has appointed a representative to 
the WNC:  Ms. Carolyn Kolebaba, and alternate, Mr. Tom Burton.  
 
WNC received a request from Lawrence Kiyawasew from ONEC to present at upcoming meeting. As per 
the new protocol, ONEC filled out a presenter request form. Recommendation is that print information 
regarding ONEC be shared to members, but that WNC would suggest Water Week North’s Trade Show 
as a better venue for further sharing of information on the company and their products. NADC will 
follow up with ONEC. 
 
A Gmail account will be created for the WNC in order for the group to have access to resource 
documents and information pertaining to the WNC. A Google Docs account will be set up, and a one 
pager and demonstration on how to use Google Docs will be added to the agenda for the next meeting. 
 
Presentation Topic:  Operator Certification, Tanya Hunter, Water Wastewater Op Cert. Lead, Alberta 
Environment and Parks.   
 
Tanya Hunter provided an overview of the Water and Wastewater Operator Certification Program. The 
program classifies municipal water and wastewater facilities based on sophistication of treatment 
facility and the population serving the water distribution and wastewater collection systems. The 
program is administered by the Provincial Programs Branch – Operations Division – Drinking Water and 
Wastewater Section – Certification Section out of Edmonton. The presentation covered the following 
points: 
 

• Administration – Current yearly certification schedule 
• Operator guidelines 
• Certification requirements for Level I to Level IV 
• Exams contracted out with the Association of Boards of Certification 
• Renewals for operators with and without current experience 

3 
 

308



 
 

DRAFT MINUTES- For Approval at October XXX, 2016 Meeting 
 

• Education/Training (Continuing Education Units)  
• Upcoming initiatives, including on-line exam availability over the next two years, as 

well as an interactive web app for operators identified as a need 
 
It was MOVED by Dollie Anderson THAT the WNC would write a letter of support to Minister Phillips to 
see a database created with the Alberta Water & Wastewater Operators Association to access training 
records of operators. 

 
CARRIED 

 
WNC members are to review the letter and ask their respective councils and organizations if they want 
to also write a letter in support of this database. 
 
Presentation Topic:  Community Resilience Program, Alison Roberts, Community Resilience Program 
Coordinator, Alberta Environment and Parks.  
 
The Alberta Community Resilience Program (ACRP) is a $500 million, 10 year provincial grant program 
available to municipalities in support of long-term resilience to flood and drought impacts. The 
presentation covered the following points: 
 

• Overview of the Alberta Community Resilience Program (ACRP) 
• ACRP eligible applicants & cost-share 
• ACRP in Northern Alberta 
• ACRP: Flood and drought examples 
• Technical support & flood hazard mapping 
• Project selection 
• How to apply to ACRP & application requirements 
• The Watershed Resilience & Restoration Program and objectives 

 
Presentation Topic:  Environmental Public Health Advisory, Debra Mooney, Environmental Public 
Health Advisory, Alberta Health and Irina Arzumanya, Public Health Inspector, Alberta Health Services.  
 
The presentation gave an overview on the Environmental Public Health Advisory’s role relating to 
recreational water, lead in drinking water, reclaimed water, and Alberta Health Services’ response to 
drinking water quality issues. For each of these topics, the presentation outlined: 
 

• Recreational water 
o The Proposed Recreational Water Management Protocol is a 2016 pilot 

study with the purpose of developing a comprehensive risk assessment 
strategy to address risk to bathers, set water quality standards, introduce a 
collaborative multi-stakeholder non-regulatory approach, and share 
responsibility for assessment, monitoring, and management between 
Alberta Health Services and operators.  

o The components and process involved for building a Recreational Water 
Safety Plan. 

o The process for conducting a site assessment, including completing a site 
assessment survey on land uses, weather conditions, potential sources of 

4 
 

309



 
 

DRAFT MINUTES- For Approval at October XXX, 2016 Meeting 
 

fecal contamination, previous water quality history, sources of chemical 
hazards, and physical hazards. 

• Lead in drinking water 
o The causes of lead in drinking water were discussed, and some of the 

advances in sampling protocols were introduced. 
• Reclaimed water 

o The current status of reclaimed water protocol was discussed, including 
provincial codes, regulations, and the role of municipalities. 

o The future of reclaimed water was discussed, including updated safety 
variances for systems, a new national plumbing code, the increased 
application of reclaimed water in southern Alberta, and the application of 
Health Canada Guidelines for Domestic Reclaimed Water for Toilet and 
Urinal Flushing. 

• Response to drinking water quality issues 
o Irina Arzumanya presented on the response to drinking water quality issues, 

including the Communication and Action Protocol for Failed Bacteriological 
Results in Waterworks under EPEA for bacteriological exceedances, the AEO 
and AHS collaborative response to exceedances, and the communications 
process in working with municipalities for boil water advisories by 
messaging and notifying facilities, AEP, and other agencies. The current 
Acute Chemical Exceedance Protocol is scheduled for review and revision. 
 

 
Chris Thiessen will send link to a report about fluoride and lead in drinking water. 
 
Debra Mooney asked the WNC to work with their Councils and identify the pressures and frustrations 
around reclaimed water for municipalities. 
 
Sub-Committee Updates: 
 
The Water North Coalition has four sub-committees that reflect its Strategic Plan’s organizational 
priorities of Advocacy, Public Education, Recruitment and Retention, and Training. The Advocacy sub-
committee’s purpose is to advocate for “made in the north” solutions to water and wastewater 
problems. The Public Education sub-committee works to increase and facilitate water literacy through 
outreach and programming, and leadership training. The Recruitment and Retention sub-committee 
focuses on addressing the barriers to recruiting and retaining qualified operators, those barriers being 
pay grade, work location and education and training. The Training sub-committee is working to increase 
accessibility to training and raising awareness of training opportunities to especially address the training 
needs in rural and remote locations. 
 
During the sub-committees teleconference meeting, it was requested that the WNC create a list of 
members with their titles. The NADC has also provided the sub-committees access to teleconference 
lines for their business. 
 
 
 
 

5 
 

310



 
 

DRAFT MINUTES- For Approval at October XXX, 2016 Meeting 
 

ADVOCACY 
Jillian Cormier, Chair of Advocacy, requests on behalf of the Advocacy sub-committee approval from the 
Water North Coalition to create a funding document. It aims to have a draft complete for Water North 
Coalition’s next meeting in October, and the final product complete by December 31. 
 
It was MOVED by Jonathan Anaka THAT the request made by the Advocacy sub-committee be accepted. 
 

CARRIED 
 

 
PUBLIC EDUCATION 
Tracey Anderson, Member of Public Education, requests approval on behalf of the Public Education sub-
committee approval from the Water North Coalition to develop a resources library. 
 
It was MOVED by Sandra Eastman THAT the request made by the Public Education sub-committee be 
accepted. 
 

CARRIED 
 
RECRUITMENT AND RETENTION 
Jennifer Besinger, Chair of Recruitment and Retention, is requesting approval from the Water North 
Coalition to create a joint help document for a service agreement, and a document relating to the 
changes in demographics and getting relief. The group will examine other examples of joint help 
agreements, such as Saskatchewan’s circuit rider program model as a potential template. 
 
It was MOVED by Dollie Anderson THAT the request made by the Recruitment and Retention sub-
committee be accepted. 
 

CARRIED 
 
TRAINING 
Rachel Ouellette, Chair of Training, is requesting approval from the Water North Coalition: 

• That items 4.1.3 and 4.5 of their work plan be referred to other committees (4.1.3 will move to 
Recruitment and Retention, and it was agreed Trades would move to Advocacy)  

• To Advocate to Alberta Environment & Parks to review and renew their training list and add a 
new column re. delivery model 

• Formally request an invitation to the Alberta Urban Municipalities Association (AUMA) Shaw 
Conference in October, and the Alberta Association of Municipal Districts & Counties’ 
Convention in November in order to increase awareness of the Water North Coalition and 
Water for Life by municipal leaders and administrators 

• Advocate to Alberta Environment & Parks a complete review of module for Elected Official 
Education Program 

• Permission to move forward on creation of a listing of available training in the north for 
publication on the Water North Coalition website 

 
It was MOVED by Jennifer Besinger THAT all of the requests made by the Training sub-committee be 
accepted. 

6 
 

311



 
 

DRAFT MINUTES- For Approval at October XXX, 2016 Meeting 
 

 
CARRIED 

 
 

Roundtable and Topics for Discussion 
 

• Several communities are doing system upgrades, maintenance and replacements to their public 
works.  Ie. Water treatment plants, sewer line extensions, pump house repairs and 
replacements, cast iron replacements, water meter changes for cost recovery and increased 
conservation, etc.  

• High Level is focusing on sound asset management and tying in development, operations, and 
financial decisions. 

• Blue Sky and Whitelaw Hamlet are looking to combine their waterline for lower rates, and would 
contribute to Fairview’s water co-op by adding customers. 

• Northern Lakes College’s Waste and Wastewater Operator Preparation Program: Level 1 is 
accepting registration in July for the online program starting in September. Further information 
on the Program is available here:  https://www.northernlakescollege.ca/programs-
courses/courses#/courses/253/6771. 

• The Mighty Peace Watershed Alliance is updating its Integrated Watershed Management Plan 
(IWMP).  Water quality results are available through their website. Further information on the 
IWMP is available at: http://www.mightypeacewatershedalliance.org/projects/integrated-
watershed-management-plan/. 

• M.D. of Opportunity received grant approvals and will be completing several upgrades within 
their region. Simon Cardinal is also featured in the NLC Water and Wastewater Operator video 
promoting the program, which Rachel will send to the group. 

• Water Week North is October 18-20 and will feature a one day Training or Tragedy workshop by 
Bruce Davidson from Walkerton on Tuesday, October 18. More information on the conference is 
available at: http://www.waterweeknorth.ca/schedule.html. 

• It was suggested that the WNC could try to get spotlighted at future AUMA conferences.  
• Suggested that the WNC document and track our accomplishments as an organization. 
• Okey Obiajulu with Environment and Parks encouraged everyone to keep an open dialogue with 

him and to ask questions proactively 
• Kim Pinnock updated that Mr. Brian Allen, NADC member from Grimshaw is the NADC’s new 

Vice-Chair. 
 
There was discussion around the notification delays in regards to water samples that require no further 
attention, which pass by Alberta Health Services and taking up to five days and delaying the job. It was 
agreed that the WNC draft a letter to Alberta Health Service’s Mark Fehr to try and expedite these 
responses.  
 
It was MOVED by Marvin Doran THAT Keith Straub, and Fred Wiebe would work with NADC to draft the 
letter. 
    

CARRIED 
 
 
 

7 
 

312

https://www.northernlakescollege.ca/programs-courses/courses%23/courses/253/6771
https://www.northernlakescollege.ca/programs-courses/courses%23/courses/253/6771
http://www.mightypeacewatershedalliance.org/projects/integrated-watershed-management-plan/
http://www.mightypeacewatershedalliance.org/projects/integrated-watershed-management-plan/
http://www.waterweeknorth.ca/schedule.html


 
 

DRAFT MINUTES- For Approval at October XXX, 2016 Meeting 
 

Presentation Topic:  Social innovation labs with Watershed Planning and Advisory Councils.  
Nicole Renaud, Senior Northern Development Officer, Northern Alberta Development Council.  
 
The Red Deer River Watershed Alliance has conducted Alberta’s first Social Innovation Lab for water 
issues through an initiative called Project Blue Thumb. This lab worked collaboratively with multiple 
stakeholders to prototype solutions to watershed management and to create its Integrated Watershed 
Management Plan. More information on Project Blue Thumb is available at: 
http://www.rdrwa.ca/node/202.  
 
The presentation outlined a brief overview of the following: 
 

• What is a Social Innovation Lab and how does it differ from traditional engagement approaches? 
• The process and outcomes of labs 
• Practical applications with watershed management organizations 

 
The presentation highlighted the use of these labs, and other tools, for WNC to consider as an option to 
integrate into future activities for addressing water issue challenges. 
 
A graphic on Social Innovation Labs was distributed and is available at: http://visual.ly/understanding-
value-social-innovation-labs-solutions-complex-social-problems  
 
Next Meeting  
 
The next meeting will take place October 2016 – exact date yet to be determined.   
 
An inquiry regarding hosting has been advanced with the Town of Beaverlodge. Pending a response, the 
City of Grande Prairie has offered to host the next WNC meeting.  
 
Chris Thiessen MOVED that the meeting adjourn at 1:55 p.m. 
 

CARRIED 

8 
 

313

http://www.rdrwa.ca/node/202
http://visual.ly/understanding-value-social-innovation-labs-solutions-complex-social-problems
http://visual.ly/understanding-value-social-innovation-labs-solutions-complex-social-problems


 
 
 
 
 July 13, 2016 

 
Government of Alberta’s Asset Management Approach Now Available 

As part of federal requirements related to the Gas Tax Fund, each province and territory has 
completed an agreement with the Government of Canada that establishes a provincial/territorial 
approach to promoting and implementing municipal asset management. The agreements for each 
province and territory are unique and reflect varying capacities and experience with asset 
management. To view Alberta’s agreement, click here. 

The Government of Alberta has finalized their approach to asset management, which has been 
approved by the Government of Canada. The approach includes two phases.  

Phase 1 concludes in 2017 and focuses on developing tools, resources, training opportunities, 
and other capacity building mechanisms. Phase two runs from 2018 to 2023 and includes more 
concrete steps to assist municipalities in integrating asset management techniques into their 
corporate planning processes. At this point, the AAMDC is awaiting detail from the Government 
of Alberta as to how the activities identified in the approach will be completed, and what role the 
AAMDC and municipalities will have in their development. 

To view Alberta’s approach, click here. 

Enquiries may be directed to:  
 
Wyatt Skovron 
Policy Analyst 
780.955.4096 

Kim Heyman 
Director of Advocacy and Communications 
780.955.4079 

 

314

http://www.infrastructure.gc.ca/prog/agreements-ententes/index-eng.html#gtf-fte
http://www.infrastructure.gc.ca/prog/agreements-ententes/gtf-fte/2014-ab-eng.html
http://municipalaffairs.alberta.ca/documents/ms/Asset_Management_Approach.pdf
http://municipalaffairs.alberta.ca/documents/ms/Asset_Management_Approach.pdf


From: MA Municipal Services and Legislation
To: Carol Gabriel
Subject: Alberta Municipal Affairs - Minister"s Meeting Room at 2016 AUMA Convention
Date: July-12-16 3:23:41 PM

Dear Chief Administrative Officer,

As you are likely aware, the Alberta Urban Municipalities Association (AUMA) will be
 hosting its annual convention in Edmonton at the Shaw Conference Centre from October 5-7,
 2016. While this event is still a few months away, Municipal Affairs has commenced
 planning for several of the ministry-related events to be held at the convention. Part of this
 preparation includes the co-ordination of meetings, as scheduling allows, between myself and
 municipal stakeholders.

Should your council wish to meet with me at the 2016 AUMA Convention, and to ensure
 suitable time for co-ordination, I would invite you to submit your meeting request on or
 before Friday, August 19, 2016. Requests may be submitted to Marianne Bobik, Program
 and Policy Advisor, toll-free at 310-0000, then 780-644-2903, or by email at
 marianne.bobik@gov.ab.ca. Please ensure you include your top three agenda items with your
 request, as well as a listing of meeting attendees.

Specific details on meeting dates and times will be determined in the fall, once the AUMA
 Convention agenda and associated convention events have been confirmed. Once a finalized
 meeting schedule is determined, municipalities will be contacted by Friday September 16,
 2016 to advise of their meeting time along with the location of the meeting.

I look forward to seeing many of you during the convention, and am eager to engage with you
 to discuss municipal priorities and opportunities for regional collaboration and strategic
 initiatives.

Sincerely,

Hon.Danielle Larivee
Minister of Municipal Affairs

This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential and intended solely for the use of
 the individual or entity to whom they are addressed. If you have received this email in error
 please notify the system manager. This message contains confidential information and is
 intended only for the individual named. If you are not the named addressee you should not
 disseminate, distribute or copy this e-mail.

315

mailto:municipalservicesandlegislation@gov.ab.ca
mailto:cgabriel@mackenziecounty.com
mailto:marianne.bobik@gov.ab.ca


Watershed Resilience & Mitigation 
Branch  

Water North Coalition Meeting  
Le Crete, AB 

June 23, 2016 

316



The Alberta Community Resilience 
Program (ACRP)  
• $500 Million, 10-year Provincial Grant Program available to 

municipalities in support of long-term resilience to flood and 
drought impacts.  
– Program Priorities:  

• Protection of Critical Infrastructure  
• Mitigate Public Safety Hazards  

– Project Outcomes:  
• Mitigation to protect critical infrastructure  
• Waterway Restoration  
• Sustainable Stormwater Management  
• Acquisition & Relocation where appropriate  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Water North Coalition 2016-JUNE-23 
 2 317



 
ACRP Eligible Applicants & Cost-Share  

 
• ACRP provides grants to First Nations, Improvement Districts, 

Metis Settlements, Municipalities, and Special Areas.  
 

• ACRP is a cost-shared program between a municipality and the 
province  
– AEP provides 90% of the engineering and construction costs up to 

$3 million and 70% of costs in excess of $3 million 

3 318



 
ACRP in Northern Alberta  

Community  Project  Grant Value  
Town of Manning  Waterline Remediation  $270,160   

Town of Peace River  Pat’s Creek Flood 
Mitigation: Phase I  

$2,295,000  
 

Town of Whitecourt  Athabasca River Erosion 
Control  

$2,000,000   

Town of Peace River  Pat’s Creek Flood 
Mitigation: Phase II  

$2,070,000  

Westlock County  Range Road 272 Road 
Relocation  

$400,500   

4 319



 
ACRP: Flood and Drought Examples 

• To date: most projects have focused on flood mitigation  
 

– City of Camrose - Raw Water Station Replacement (above 1:100)  
– City of Calgary – Bonnybrook WWTP – Flood protection berm  
– City of Edmonton – Stormwater Dry Ponds – Stormwater 

Management  
– City of Medicine Hat – Berm projects (Lion’s Park and Industrial Ave)  
 

• Examples of approved projects addressing flood/drought:  
– Town of Pincher Creek – Raw Water Relocation  
– Town of Magrath – Stormwater Retention Wetland Project  

5 320



Alberta Community Resilience Program 
at a Glance 

6 

City of Calgary  
25% 

City of Edmonton  
15% 

South Sask.  
41% 

Red Deer/North 
Sask. 
13% 

Upper Athabasca  
2% 

Peace Region  
4% 

Regional Distribution of ACRP Funding 

321



Alberta Community Resilience Program 
at a Glance 

7 

35% 

18% 
21% 

26% 

Project Distribution 
StormWater Management
Berm/Erosion Control
Protection of Critical Municipal Infrastructure
Protection of Other Municipal Infrastructure

322



Technical Support & Flood Hazard 
Mapping 

• Flood Hazard Mapping in Northern AB  
– Fort McMurray, Fort Vermilion, Watino, Manning, Grande Prairie  
– Upcoming: Town of Peace River  
– http://maps.srd.alberta.ca/FloodHazard/  
 

• River Basin Studies  
– Peace River Basin Flood Mitigation Study 
– Athabasca River Basin Flood Mitigation Study  
– http://www.alberta.ca/flood-mitigation-studies.cfm  

 
• Alberta Rivers Mobile App  

 

8 323

http://maps.srd.alberta.ca/FloodHazard/
http://www.alberta.ca/flood-mitigation-studies.cfm
http://www.alberta.ca/flood-mitigation-studies.cfm
http://www.alberta.ca/flood-mitigation-studies.cfm
http://www.alberta.ca/flood-mitigation-studies.cfm
http://www.alberta.ca/flood-mitigation-studies.cfm


 
Project Selection  

• In 2015 – 137 applications were reviewed – 19 were approved for 
funding   

• Project Selection:  
– Based on eligibility criteria, economic and technical feasibility 
– Benefit to the community and the environment  
– Project longevity, risks mitigated, historical damage, urgency etc… 
– Program Coordinators – will also gather input from SME (ex. 

Regional approvals/compliance staff, engineers, flood hazard 
specialists etc…)  

 
 

 

9 324



How to Apply to ACRP &  
Application Requirements 
• Annual Submission Deadline:  

– September 30th  
– 2017-18 FY (round 3 funding)  

• Submission Requirements:  
– Completed Application Form  
– Community Resilience & Mitigation Assessment  
– Preliminary Engineering  

• Risk Assessment, Options Assessment, Cost-benefit Analysis  
• Maps, project design  

– Other Relevant Information  
• Tips/Suggestions:  

– Specificity, creativity, prioritization, and provide evidence  
 

 

10 325



The Watershed Resilience & Restoration 
Program 
Watershed Resilience and 
Restoration Program (WRRP)  
• Increase the natural ability of the 

province’s watersheds to reduce 
the intensity, magnitude, duration 
and effects of flooding and 
drought through watershed 
mitigation measures  
– Funding available to NGO’s, 

WPAC’s, Stewardship Groups, 
Municipalities, and First 
Nations  

326



The Watershed Resilience & Restoration 
Program Objectives:  
 

12 

• Restore and enhance degraded or lost 
wetlands, riparian areas and floodplains;  

• Conserve critical wetlands, riparian areas, 
and floodplains;  

• Encourage watershed stewardship through 
greater understanding and awareness  

• Provide data, tools, and information to 
support decision-making.  

  
• For more information:  

Monique Dietrich  
403-476-5469  
Esrd.wrrp@gov.ab.ca   

327

mailto:Esrd.wrrp@gov.ab.ca


 

Questions??? 
For More Information Visit: 

www.acrp.alberta.ca  
 

Program Coordinator, Northern Alberta  
Alison Roberts  

alison.roberts@gov.ab.ca  
Phone: 780-641-8887  

 
Program Director 

Andy Lamb  
andy.lamb@gov.ab.ca  

403-340-3426 
 

328

http://www.acrp.alberta.ca/
http://www.acrp.alberta.ca/
mailto:alison.roberts@gov.ab.ca
mailto:andy.lamb@gov.ab.ca


Water North Coalition  Meeting  

Debra Mooney 
Environmental Public Health Advisor 

Health Protection Branch, Alberta Health 
June 23, 2016 

 
 

1 
329



Overview of Water Issues 

• Recreational Water  
• Lead in Drinking Water 
• Reclaimed Water 
• Response to Drinking Water 

Quality Issues 
 

2 
330



Proposed Recreational Water 
Management Protocol (RWMP) 

2016 Pilot Study 

3 
331



RWMP History 
 

• Part 3, Public Beaches of the Nuisance and 
General Sanitation Regulation was outdated 
and did not reflect current practice. 

• Rescinded Part 3 with recommendation to 
introduce a new protocol. 

• Cross-ministry team was organized to develop 
a draft protocol: 

• Environment and Parks 
• Municipal Affairs 
• AHS/Prov Lab 
• University of Alberta 
• Agriculture and Forestry 

4 
332



RWMP Purpose 
• Develop a comprehensive risk assessment 

strategy to encompass bacteriological, chemical 
and physical risks to bathers. 

• Set clear and meaningful water quality 
standards. 

• Introduce a non-regulatory approach based on 
cooperation and collaboration between 
government/related agencies/operators (EP, 
WPAC, Watershed Stewardship Groups). 

• Shared responsibility for assessment, 
monitoring, and management between AHS and 
operators. 

5 
333



RWMP Pilot Study 
• 10 sites throughout the province (provincial and 

private).  
South: County 40 Mile Park Beach 
Calgary: Chestermere Lake, Auburn Bay 
Central: Pigeon Lake, Gull Lake 
Edmonton: Lake Wabamun, Hubbles Lake 
North: Lac La Biche, Baptiste Lake 

• Summer of 2016, operators will: 
• sample the beach for fecal coliforms and 

cyanobacteria throughout the season 
• conduct the site assessment  
• prepare a Recreational Water Safety Plan 

• Evaluation in late fall 2016; revisit the draft Protocol. 
 
 
 

6 
334



7 

Building a Recreational Water 
Safety Plan 

RWSP Organize 
team 

Site 
assessment 

Review 
historical 

data 

Prioritize 
risks 

Manage  
risks  

Monitoring 
plan 

335



Site Assessment  
• Review past and present information; land uses, 

sampling results, lake conditions and biological, 
chemical and physical hazards. 

 
 

 
 

 

8 
336



Lead in Drinking Water 

9 
337



Lead in Drinking Water 

Current Knowledge 
• Recent studies indicate: no safe level of lead in 

drinking water; young children and infants are 
particularly vulnerable to lead.   

• Lead at even low levels can result in behaviour 
and learning problems, lower IQ, hyperactivity. 

• Drinking water is a lower contributor to overall 
lead intake. But, lead service lines, lead solder 
and brass fittings in plumbing contribute to lead 
exposure from water.  

• EPA: Basic Information about Lead in Drinking 
Water (March 2016).  
https://www.epa.gov/ground-water-and-drinking-
water/basic-information-about-lead-drinking-water#health 
 

10 
338

https://www.epa.gov/ground-water-and-drinking-water/basic-information-about-lead-drinking-water%23health
https://www.epa.gov/ground-water-and-drinking-water/basic-information-about-lead-drinking-water%23health


Lead in Drinking Water 
Current Activities: 
• In 2013, Alberta Health revised the document “Lead and 

Drinking Water from Lead Service Lines”. 
(http://www.health.alberta.ca/documents/CMOH-Drinking-
Water-Lead-Services-2013.pdf)   

• Reviewing the sampling protocol for drinking water systems  
and individual buildings.  (HC Guidance on Controlling 
Corrosion in Drinking Water Distribution Systems 2009) 

• Cities of Edmonton and Calgary have introduced lead 
sampling programs focusing on neighborhoods with lead 
service lines; a LSL replacement program and NSF filtration 
units for individual homes with high lead. City of Wetaskiwin 
is considering a survey.  

• One school district is undertaking a school screening 
project at elementary schools.  
 
 

 
 

11 
339

http://www.health.alberta.ca/documents/CMOH-Drinking-Water-Lead-Services-2013.pdf
http://www.health.alberta.ca/documents/CMOH-Drinking-Water-Lead-Services-2013.pdf


Reclaimed Water  

12 
340



Reclaimed Water: Current Status 
• EPEA requires an approval before using treated 

wastewater for irrigation or any other purpose. 
• Alberta Building Code and Plumbing Code require all 

plumbing systems to be directly connected to a sanitary 
drainage system.  

• To allow use of reclaimed water for toilet/urinal flushing or 
irrigation, a variance under the Safety Codes Act must be 
issued by the local authority having jurisdiction (AHJ); 
separate second variance must be issued by the Technical 
Administrator for the equipment required to operate the 
reclaimed water reuse system. 

• Generally, the municipality requests a review and 
comments from AHS as part of the variance approval. 

• Details available at: 
http://www.municipalaffairs.alberta.ca/documents/ss/STANDATA/plumbin
g/FactSheet-AlternativeSolutionsGuideforReclaimedWaterReuse.pdf 

  
13 341

http://www.municipalaffairs.alberta.ca/documents/ss/STANDATA/plumbing/FactSheet-AlternativeSolutionsGuideforReclaimedWaterReuse.pdf
http://www.municipalaffairs.alberta.ca/documents/ss/STANDATA/plumbing/FactSheet-AlternativeSolutionsGuideforReclaimedWaterReuse.pdf


Reclaimed Water: Future 

• Municipal Affairs introduced STANDATA 15.01, 
a plumbing safety variance for systems on a 
single property and under 25m3 per day.  

• National Plumbing Code, to be adopted in AB, 
will allow reclaimed water use.  

• Increasing number of applications in southern 
Alberta to incorporate reclaimed water for 
irrigation and toilet, urinal flushing, car 
washes, fire suppression etc. 

• Currently applying Health Canada Guidelines 
for Domestic Reclaimed Water for Toilet and 
Urinal Flushing but need to develop water 
quality criteria for other uses.  
  

14 342



Response to Drinking Water 
Quality Issues 

Irina Arzumanyan 
Public Health Inspector, 

North zone, AHS 

15 
343



Response to Bacteriological 
Exceedances 

Communication and Action Protocol for 
Failed Bacteriological Results in 
Waterworks under EPEA (January 2009)  

• Prov Lab will fax ASAP the owner of the 
facility, AEP and district health office of 
failed bacteriological result.  

• Owner/operator also notifies AEP of any 
emergency operations, significant 
problems that may impact water quality, 
AEP notifies AHS. 

 
 

16 344



Response to Exceedances 

• Collaboration between AEP/AHS to determine 
next steps which will include: 
– Re-sampling  

• Might include: 
– Repair malfunction /damage 
– Optimize treatment 
– Increase disinfectant 
– Flush drains etc. 

• If a condition is a potential public health concern, 
an executive officer (health inspector) may issue 
a boil water or ‘do not use’ order to the operator 
(bacteriological vs chemical). 

 
 

17 345



Advisories 

• The order usually includes requiring the operator to 
issue a ‘boil water’ or ‘do not use’ advisory to the 
customers.  

• This may be done in conjunction with AHS. AHS 
often forwards the advisory to all facilities that AHS 
regulates (internally, an alert goes to healthcare 
facilities and AHS Comms). 

• AHS Communications work with the municipality on 
messaging and notifying facilities, AEP and other 
agencies.  

• The Acute Chemical Exceedance Protocol is 
scheduled for review and revision.  
– review reporting and actions responding to exceedance 

of 1-10 day exposure limits and MAC limits.   
  

18 346



 
Questions?? 

  Debra Mooney 
Environmental Public Health Advisor 

Alberta Health 
Debra.Mooney@gov.ab.ca 

780-427-8273 
 

Irina Arzumanyan 
Public Health Inspector 
Alberta Health Services 

Irina.Arzumanyan@albertahealthservices.ca 
780-841-3252 

 

 
19 347

mailto:Debra.Mooney@gov.ab.ca
mailto:Irina.Arzumanyan@albertahealthservices.ca


WATER AND WASTEWATER 
OPERATOR CERTIFICATION 

PROGRAM 

Tanya Hunter 
Team Lead – Water and Wastewater Operator Certification 

Program 
Alberta Environment and Parks (AEP) 

Water North Coalition Meeting 
June 23, 2016 

 
348



Topics Discussed 
 

• Administration – Current Yearly Certification Schedule 
• Operator Guidelines 
• Certification Requirements for Level I to Level IV 
• Exams 
• Renewals 
•  Education/Training (Continuing Education Units – CEU’s) 
 

 
 

 
 349



Program became mandatory in 1982 to 
protect public health and the environment 

 
•All Municipal Water and Wastewater facilities/systems were and 
continue to be classified (Level I to IV) 

• Sophistication of treatment facility (AEP has table of values assigned to 
treatment methods) 

• Population serving the WD and WWC systems 
 
Based on the Level of facility or system – Approvals and Registrations 

outline the number and specific  level (s) of certified operator required 
to operate  

350



Administration 
 

• Program is administered by Provincial Programs Branch – 
Operations Division –Drinking Water and Wastewater Section – 
Certification Section 

• Office is located in Edmonton 
• Jeff Charrois, PhD - is Manager of Drinking Water and 

Wastewater Section 
 

• Certification Section – two of us in section – Vernice Bello – 
Certification Coordinator and myself  - Team Lead 
 

• Currently ~2551 certified operators in AB 
 

• Certification Advisory Committee (CAC) 
 
 

351



Current Yearly Certification Schedule 

• There are three exams writing a year currently – March 
(AWWOA conference), end of May, November 

 
• Applications are due January 20, April 10, and September 

20 of each year 
 

• All applications are verified and approved by the CAC, 
which meet three times a year as well - usually 2 weeks 

after application deadline 
 

• Once applications are approved, the applicant is notified 
with a time and location of exam sitting (try to have them 

out three weeks prior to writing) 
 
• Renewal notices are sent out August 1 each year, all 

certificates expire on December 31 

Administration 
 

352



Guidelines  
 

• Established requirements for obtaining and maintaining 
certification – developing since 1975 – have changed  over time 

to keep up with updated industry practices and to streamline 
with the rest of Canadian provinces – Agreement on Internal 

Trade 
 
• Current version on-line  - anyone who owns/operates a W or 

WW facility or system should become familiar with 
requirements to ensure compliance with their Provincial 

Approval or Registration 
 
 
 

353



Certification Requirements 
 

Level I  ***Everyone starts at level I 
• 12 months work experience – operating under an approval or 

registration 
• Grade 12 or Equivalent 
• ELT 

 
Level II 

• 3 years operating experience 
• can substitute 1 year of experience for 1 year W and WW related 

post secondary education 
 

354



Level III 
• Minimum 4 years operating experience (2 of those years must 

be in a Class II or III facility) 
• 2 years post secondary education or 90 CEU’s 
• 2 Years DRC – DRC only starts after Level II 

 
Level IV 

• Minimum of 5 years operating experience (3 of those years must 
be in class III or IV facility) 

• 4 years post secondary education or 180 CEU’s 
• 3 Years DRC – DRC only starts after Level II and you require 1 

additional year of DRC after obtaining Level III  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Certification Requirements 
 

355



Exams 

• AEP uses the Association of Boards of Certification (ABC) as our exam 
contract provider out of Iowa, USA (as does 10 other Canadian 
Provinces and territories) 
 

• Modular exams in Alberta for Level I and Level II – max of 2 hours 
regardless of how many modules you are writing 
 

• Pencil and paper exams right now – hoping to move to on-line in the 
next couple of years 
 

356



Renewals 

   With Current Experience 
An operator must obtain a minimum of twelve months of operating 
experience in the previous three years and must obtain an 
appropriate number of CEUs during the three–year renewal period.  
 
   Without Current Experience  

*Option #2 can only be used a maximum of two consecutive times. 
If an operator does not have current experience, there are two options to choose from:  

  
Continuing education: An operator must obtain a minimum of double 
their required CEU’s during the three–year renewal period.  

    or 
Re-examination: An operator may re-write the certification exam at the 
appropriate category and level. The rewrite must be in November of 
last year of renewal.  

         

357



Education/Training 

• Post Secondary Education – certificate, diploma, degree - 
     related to water and wastewater operations (1 years is equal 
     to 45 CEU’s). 

 
• Continuing Education Units (CEU’s – 10 contact hours  
     is worth 1.0 CEU)  
 

 
• Approved CEU’s List 

 
 

• Application for CEU Evaluation 

358



Upcoming Initiatives  

• On-line exams phased in over the next two years 
• Benefits  

• 30 Days to schedule your exam writing 
• Results within 48 hours 
• Can re-schedule 
 
 
 

 • WE KNOW THERE IS A NEED FOR AN INTERACTIVE WEB  
   APPLICATION FOR THE OPERATORS 
 – Not there yet, but is has been identified 

359



QUESTIONS????? 

360



Saturday, September 17, 2016  |  10 am Saturday, September 17, 2016  |  10 am --  2 pm2 pm  

~  Free Brunch  ~  No Landing Fees  ~  Facility Tours ~~  Free Brunch  ~  No Landing Fees  ~  Facility Tours ~~  Free Brunch  ~  No Landing Fees  ~  Facility Tours ~   

~  Cardlock Fueling Station: 100 LL / JetA  ~~  Cardlock Fueling Station: 100 LL / JetA  ~~  Cardlock Fueling Station: 100 LL / JetA  ~   

~  Fully Renovated Pilots Lounge  ~~  Fully Renovated Pilots Lounge  ~~  Fully Renovated Pilots Lounge  ~   

 

Need More Info? Contact:Need More Info? Contact:Need More Info? Contact:   
               Roland Gauthier:  780Roland Gauthier:  780Roland Gauthier:  780---523523523---101310131013   

                     Mel Beaudette:  780Mel Beaudette:  780Mel Beaudette:  780---523523523---826282628262   

361



Recycling_Heroine

From: Peter F. Braun
To: Carol Gabriel
Subject: Fwd: Early Registration Deadline Extended - "League of Extraordinary Recyclers" 2016 RCA Conference
Date: July-29-16 3:04:05 PM

Carol can you add this to info section in next council package. 

Sent from my I phone

Begin forwarded message:

From: Recycling Council of Alberta
 <Recycling_Council_of_Alberta@mail.vresp.com>
Date: July 29, 2016 at 3:01:22 PM MDT
To: "Peter F. Braun" <peter@mackenziecounty.com>
Subject: Early Registration Deadline Extended - "League of Extraordinary
 Recyclers" 2016 RCA Conference
Reply-To: Recycling Council of Alberta <reply-b8d102ecd8-8eb255381b-
5fd5@u.cts.vresp.com>

League header graphic

Early Registration Deadline Extended!

The Recycling Council of Alberta (RCA) 2016 Waste
 Reduction Conference "League of Extraordinary
 Recyclers – Knocking Out Waste" will be held
 September 28-30, 2016 at The Fairmont Jasper Park
 Lodge in Jasper, Alberta. This conference offers an
 exciting and progressive array of current topics and high
 quality speakers.

Join your waste reduction peers in Jasper to learn and
 discuss the latest issues and developments. This
 conference will deliver technical content through topics
 and speakers that promise to
 generate lively discussion,
 combined with ample
 networking opportunities and
 social events, to make this

 the premier waste reduction event in Canada. Experience
 the "League of Extraordinary Recyclers" comic online,
 and find program updates, registration information and

362

mailto:/O=FIRST ORGANIZATION/OU=FIRST ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=PFBRAUN
mailto:cgabriel@mackenziecounty.com
mailto:Recycling_Council_of_Alberta@mail.vresp.com
mailto:peter@mackenziecounty.com
mailto:reply-b8d102ecd8-8eb255381b-5fd5@u.cts.vresp.com
mailto:reply-b8d102ecd8-8eb255381b-5fd5@u.cts.vresp.com
http://cts.vresp.com/fbl?b8d102ecd8/8eb255381b/http%3A%2F%2Fhosted-p0.vresp.com%2F643616%2Fb8d102ecd8%2FARCHIVE%23like
http://cts.vresp.com/ts?b8d102ecd8/8eb255381b/http%3A%2F%2Fapi.addthis.com%2Foexchange%2F0.8%2Fforward%2Ftwitter%2Foffer%3Ftemplate%3D%257B%257Btitle%257D%257D%2B%257B%257Burl%257D%257D%26url%3Dhttp%253A%252F%252Fhosted-p0.vresp.com%252F643616%252Fb8d102ecd8%252FARCHIVE%26shortener%3Dbitly%26title%3DEarly%2BRegistration%2BDeadline%2BExtended%2B-%2B%2522League%2Bof%2BExtraordinary%2BRecyclers%2522%2B2016%2BRCA%2BConference
http://cts.vresp.com/ls?b8d102ecd8/8eb255381b/http%3A%2F%2Fapi.addthis.com%2Foexchange%2F0.8%2Fforward%2Flinkedin%2Foffer%3Ftemplate%3D%257B%257Btitle%257D%257D%2B%257B%257Burl%257D%257D%26url%3Dhttp%253A%252F%252Fhosted-p0.vresp.com%252F643616%252Fb8d102ecd8%252FARCHIVE%26shortener%3Dbitly%26title%3DEarly%2BRegistration%2BDeadline%2BExtended%2B-%2B%2522League%2Bof%2BExtraordinary%2BRecyclers%2522%2B2016%2BRCA%2BConference
http://cts.vresp.com/c/?RecyclingCouncilofAl/b8d102ecd8/8eb255381b/37e7d2b80b
http://cts.vresp.com/c/?RecyclingCouncilofAl/b8d102ecd8/8eb255381b/37e7d2b80b


Composting_Hero

 other details on the conference web site. Be sure to come
 back to this site often – the program will continue to be
 updated as speakers, sessions, and other feature events are
 confirmed.

To accommodate holiday schedules, early-bird
 registration discounts have been extended until August
 12, 2016. Register today!

Hotel rooms at a special conference rate are subject to availability and must be made
 prior to until Aug. 30 to be eligible for the conference rate. It is advisable to book
 rooms sooner rather than later, as the hotel is filling up fast! More info here.

Twenty-one companies have already reserved exhibitor booths, with a limited number
 of spaces still available. Sponsorship opportunities remain open for those who wish
 to profile their commitment to recycling and waste reduction in Canada. Contact
 info@recycle.ab.ca to discuss your sponsorship needs.

Click the image below to experience the "League of Extraordinary Recyclers "
 comic! (please note: the comic strip is viewable on computer and tablet only, but
 you can access the website content from any device)

View Comic Action Shot

See you at the conference!

You are subscribed to receive notices about the RCA conference. You can

363

http://cts.vresp.com/c/?RecyclingCouncilofAl/b8d102ecd8/8eb255381b/f37a8b4157
http://cts.vresp.com/c/?RecyclingCouncilofAl/b8d102ecd8/8eb255381b/5a42defe38
http://cts.vresp.com/c/?RecyclingCouncilofAl/b8d102ecd8/8eb255381b/772aee342b
mailto:info@recycle.ab.ca?subject=sponsorship%20inquiry
http://cts.vresp.com/c/?RecyclingCouncilofAl/b8d102ecd8/8eb255381b/b0122092fd
http://cts.vresp.com/c/?RecyclingCouncilofAl/b8d102ecd8/8eb255381b/b0122092fd
http://cts.vresp.com/c/?RecyclingCouncilofAl/b8d102ecd8/8eb255381b/e767fb5dc5


 unsubscribe any time, just let us know.

Recycling Council of Alberta  Box 23, Bluffton, AB  T0C 0M0
p: 403.843.6563  e: info@recycle.ab.ca   https://recycle.ab.ca

Find RCA on Facebook http://www.facebook.com/RecyclingCouncilOfAlberta
and follow us on Twitter http://twitter.com/3RsAB  -  conference hashtag:
 #2016RCA

Forward this message to a friend

Click to view this email in a browser

Click to view this email in a browser 

If you no longer wish to receive emails from RCA, please reply to this message with "Unsubscribe" in the subject line or
 simply click on the following link: Unsubscribe

Recycling Council of Alberta
Box 23
Bluffton, Alberta T0C 0M0
CA

Read the VerticalResponse marketing policy.

       

364

mailto:info@recycle.ab.ca
http://cts.vresp.com/c/?RecyclingCouncilofAl/b8d102ecd8/8eb255381b/54a2a16a74
http://cts.vresp.com/c/?RecyclingCouncilofAl/b8d102ecd8/8eb255381b/27ce95fe87
http://cts.vresp.com/c/?RecyclingCouncilofAl/b8d102ecd8/8eb255381b/955f1046e6
http://oi.vresp.com/f2af/v4/send_to_friend.html?ch=b8d102ecd8&lid=283484971&ldh=8eb255381b
http://hosted.verticalresponse.com/643616/b8d102ecd8/283484971/8eb255381b/
http://hosted.verticalresponse.com/643616/b8d102ecd8/283484971/8eb255381b/
http://cts.vresp.com/u?b8d102ecd8/8eb255381b/mlpftw
http://www.verticalresponse.com/content/pm_policy.html
http://www.verticalresponse.com/landing/ef/?mm/b8d102ecd8&utm_campaign=footer&utm_medium=referral&utm_source=footer


From: Melanie Plantinga
Subject: Silviculture Field Trip
Date: July-21-16 4:22:29 PM

Good day,
 
You are invited to join the High Level Forest Public Advisory Committee for a “Silviculture Field Trip”. 

 This trip is being planned for Tuesday, September 6th at 12pm.  (With an alternate Thursday,

 September 8th if weather is poor on Tuesday).
 
We will meet at the Tolko Office at Noon for lunch.  After the meal we will visit sites west of High
 Level including 2 year planted blocks, 15 year old post performance blocks, the Zama Ridge Trial site
 and the processing yard.  We will expect to return to High Level at 6pm.
 

Depending on interest we may provide transportation.  Please RSVP by Friday, August 19th at 8:00
 am so that food and transportation can be planned.
 

Melanie Plantinga
Admin/AP Assistant  |  Tolko Industries Ltd.
T  (780) 926-8947     |   F (780) 926-4773   
Melanie.Plantinga@tolko.com |  www.tolko.com
11401 - 92nd Street | High Level, AB | T0H 1Z0

This message may contain confidential information and is intended only for the addressee(s). If I sent you this message in error, please notify me and delete it. Thank
 you!

 

365

mailto:Melanie.Plantinga@tolko.com
mailto:Melanie.Plantinga@tolko.com
http://www.tolko.com/


1 | P a g e  
 

Asset Management Approach 
 

Introduction: 
 
Under the agreement for the federal Gas Tax Fund (GTF) program, Alberta and Canada have agreed 
to “work in collaboration to develop the approach to asset management planning based on where 
Alberta is today. This is to ensure continued progress is made while setting achievable goals against 
which Alberta will measure progress as part of the Outcomes Report.”  
 
Infrastructure Canada’s GTF Oversight Committee recently approved Alberta’s proposed asset 
management approach. The first check-in date is March 2018. 
 
While recognizing the commitment made by the province under the GTF agreement, the 
responsibility and authority for the implementation of asset management processes ultimately rests 
with municipalities. Under the Municipal Government Act (MGA), municipalities have the authority 
to provide services, facilities, or other things that, in the opinion of council, are necessary or 
desirable for all or a part of the municipality; to establish capital budgets; and to borrow for 
purposes of financing a capital property. 
 
According to a recent report prepared for the AAMD&C membership titled Asset Management for 
Municipalities in Alberta “ … asset management planning is well underway in many larger 
municipalities; however, in small and medium-sized municipalities, many barriers to adoption 
remain, including a lack of resources and capacity…  ” 
 

 
Approach: 
 
Asset management processes allow municipalities to manage infrastructure in a planned and 
integrated manner to maximize value to the community. Identifying and pursuing opportunities to 
build municipal capacity and promote sustainability is consistent with the objectives of the 
Municipal Sustainability Strategy (MSS) and the mandate of the MSS Advisory Committee. 
 
Alberta’s strategy is focused mainly on meeting the needs of smaller communities as well as 
continued support for the broader asset management community that is already very active.  
Municipal Affairs developed the approach to asset management planning, which the MSS Advisory 
Committee will guide.   
 
The approach is currently envisioned in two phases over seven years, as outlined below. 
 
 

  

366



2 | P a g e  
 

Phase One Activities - 2015 to 2017: 
 
1. Complete and publish an inventory of current tools and resources 

The ministry currently maintains the MSS Capacity Building Tools web page, which is a central 
repository for municipalities researching resources on a variety of topics.  
 
There are numerous technical resources already available for asset management tasks at 
different levels of complexity.  Both the AAMD&C report and the Consulting Engineers of 
Alberta (CEA) have provided information to the ministry that is being compiled and made 
available through the web page. 

 
2. Support the development and rollout of tools that support asset management 

The CEA received funding from the Alberta Community Partnership program to develop an asset 
management resource for smaller municipalities. The ministry and other municipal associations 
participated as members of the project advisory committee. 
 
The resulting handbook and toolkit resource was launched in early 2016. We are also partnering 
with Infrastructure Asset Management Alberta to determine if any other tools exist within 
municipalities or other organizations that could be shared.  

 
3. Enhance existing advisory services and training opportunities 

The ministry, and the members of the MSS Advisory Committee, have many avenues to 
distribute information about asset management to municipal officials. 
 
As an example, discussions are underway to create a one-day training session based on the CEA 
handbook/toolkit resource in partnership with the Government Finance Officers Association. As 
well, consideration is being given to including an information session on asset management 
during the Regional Training Initiative (spring 2016) in several locations in the province. 
 
The ministry will also provide its municipal and financial advisors with knowledge about the 
benefits of asset management and links to the available tools to share as they interact with 
municipal clients. 
 
Infrastructure Asset Management Alberta (IAMA) is an initiative whose membership includes 
municipalities interested in knowledge sharing and best practices.  IAMA received funding from 
the ministry to support asset management workshops and to establish a website. Ministry 
advisors are participating in this group as members of the core committee. 

 
Measurement of municipal progress in asset management during Phase One will be based on data 
currently collected in Municipal Sustainability Initiative capital project applications.  MSI program 
guidelines require the municipality to confirm that a multi-year capital plan has been prepared.  
 

 

367



3 | P a g e  
 

Phase Two Activities – 2018 to 2023: 
 
1. Assist municipalities to implement corporate planning regulatory requirements 

 
Amendments to the Municipal Government Act approved in spring 2015 will require all 
municipalities to prepare three-year financial and five-year capital plans.  This change is 
intended to ensure that all municipalities are able to better utilize their financial and physical 
assets under more rigorous legislative requirements.  The form and content of the plans will be 
included in a regulation that is currently under development. 
 
The development and implementation of asset management policies, strategies and plans 
directly support the identification of capital project additions as set out in the new 
requirements, and could be viewed as necessary prerequisites to making informed decisions 
about what is to be included in the financial plan and the capital plan. 
 

2. Expand tools and resources where gaps are identified 
 
While there appear to be sufficient materials useful to smaller municipalities with capacity 
limitations, such as worksheets and financial planning guidance, there may be a need to 
develop additional tools around some other aspects of asset management, such as level of 
service or risk assessment.   
 

The MSS Advisory Committee will assist in determining the need for additional tools and/or 
measurement criteria. 

 
 

Conclusion: 
 
Alberta plans a two-stage approach to asset management planning; specific tasks will be 
undertaken at each stage.  Phase One builds on many activities already underway. 
 
Phase Two will continue the activities of Phase One and will promote the development and use of 
policies, strategies and plans to support the capital planning requirement introduced through the 
amendments to the MGA.  Further clarity will be provided through the regulation that is under 
development.  The MSS Advisory Committee will monitor and identify gaps and advise on additional 
processes and activities to be developed in Phase Two.   
 
This two phase approach represents specific actions that can be taken today and over the next 
several years.  It also includes strategies to meet additional requirements as the approach evolves. 
 
It is expected that through these activities, as well as the efforts of the broader asset management 
community in Alberta, municipalities’ ability to optimize their infrastructure and other physical 
assets will improve significantly. 
 

368


	REQUEST FOR DECISION
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:
	2016-07-12 Council Meeting Minutes DRAFT.pdf
	Minutes of the Regular Council meeting for Mackenzie County held on July 12, 2016 in the Fort Vermilion Council Chambers.

	Blank Page
	RFD - Minutes of the July 11, 2016 Finance Committee Meeting.pdf
	REQUEST FOR DECISION
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	RFD - Tompkins Crossing Committee Unapproved Minutes.pdf
	REQUEST FOR DECISION
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	RFD - ASB Unapproved Minutes.pdf
	REQUEST FOR DECISION
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	MPC RFD.pdf
	REQUEST FOR DECISION
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	RFD  - CAO Reports.pdf
	REQUEST FOR DECISION
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	Blank Page
	Tender - Removal of BF78103 and Construction of Range Road 140A.pdf
	REQUEST FOR DECISION
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	RFD Request for Proposal - Supply of New or Used PlowSanding Gravel Truck.pdf
	REQUEST FOR DECISION

	RFD Tender - Supply and Construct Wooden Post Frame Sand Shed.pdf
	REQUEST FOR DECISION

	RFD - Seeking Input on Energy Efficiency and Community Energy in Alberta.pdf
	REQUEST FOR DECISION
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	Blank Page
	RFD - Mighty Peace Watershe Working Alliance Groups.pdf
	REQUEST FOR DECISION
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	Blank Page
	RFD - Mackenzie Housing Management Board.pdf
	REQUEST FOR DECISION
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	Blank Page
	RFD - Boreal Housing Foundation - Draft MO.pdf
	REQUEST FOR DECISION
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	Blank Page
	RFD ASB Policy 020 Wold Depredation Managment Policy.pdf
	REQUEST FOR DECISION
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	Policy ASB020 Wolf Depradation Managment Policy.pdf
	Purpose:
	Policy Statement and Guidelines

	Blank Page
	RFD - Archeological Study Bridge Campground.pdf
	REQUEST FOR DECISION
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	RFD Canada 150 2016.pdf
	REQUEST FOR DECISION
	A letter will be sent to the Canada 150 Community Infrastructure Program with the County’s commitment of the additional funds.
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	RFD La Crete Arena – Ice Chiller Replacement Additional Funding  .pdf
	REQUEST FOR DECISION
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	RFD - Request to Waive Contracted Services Fee - Norbord Fire.pdf
	REQUEST FOR DECISION
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	Blank Page
	RFD-Policy FIN023.pdf
	REQUEST FOR DECISION
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	FIN023 Local Improvement Charge Cancellation - Amended 26-June-2013 JULY AMENDED.pdf
	Mackenzie County
	Policy Statement and Guidelines

	Blank Page
	RFD Policy ADM049.pdf
	REQUEST FOR DECISION
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	ADM049 Bursary Policy - Amended August 2016.pdf
	Mackenzie County
	Contact Information  (please print)
	Educational Information
	Personal Information
	Applicant Declaration



	RFD - Tax Recovery Auction.pdf
	REQUEST FOR DECISION
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	RFD - Financial Reports  June 2016.pdf
	REQUEST FOR DECISION
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	Satement of Operations by Department June 30 2016.pdf
	Report

	RFD - Third Access NE 23 104 15 W5M.pdf
	REQUEST FOR DECISION
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	RFD - Third Access NE 23 104 15 - Maps.pdf
	Page 1
	Page 2

	RFD - Supply of Winter Sand.pdf
	REQUEST FOR DECISION
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	Knelsen Sand & Gravel Winter Sand Quote.pdf
	Page 1

	Unity Sand & Gravel Winter Sand Quote.pdf
	Page 1

	RFD - Zama Sprinkler System.pdf
	REQUEST FOR DECISION
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	RFD - Blue Hills Crossings.pdf
	REQUEST FOR DECISION
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	WSP  Proposal - Blue Hills Crossings.pdf
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8

	WSP Site Plans.pdf
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4

	RFD - Supply of Water Truck & Operator for Windrow Burn Testing.pdf
	REQUEST FOR DECISION
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	Blank Page
	1.RFD Bylaw 1022-16 Service Road Closure.pdf
	REQUEST FOR DECISION
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	3.application.pdf
	Page 1

	Blank Page
	1. RFD Bylaw 104x-16 Amend Bylaw 649-07.pdf
	REQUEST FOR DECISION
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:
	Motion 1
	Motion 2
	Motion 3
	Motion 4


	2. Bylaw 1044-16.pdf
	SCHEDULE “A”

	1.RFD - Rescind Bylaw 718-09.pdf
	REQUEST FOR DECISION
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	Blank Page
	1.RFD - DEV009.pdf
	REQUEST FOR DECISION
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	2.DEV009 Subdivision Affidavits.pdf
	Mackenzie County

	Blank Page
	1.RFD La Crete SE Drainage Ditch.pdf
	REQUEST FOR DECISION
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	2.RFD May 23, 2007.pdf
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6

	1. RFD.pdf
	REQUEST FOR DECISION
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	2. 2007 Original RFD.pdf
	Request For Decision
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	3. Map.pdf
	Page 1

	RFD - LUB Contract Awarding.pdf
	REQUEST FOR DECISION
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	Blank Page
	RFD-Waterline Lateral Danny Friesen.pdf
	REQUEST FOR DECISION
	Discussion will be communicated with the applicant.
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	RFD - Information.pdf
	REQUEST FOR DECISION
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	Debra Mooney Presentation - WNCM.pdf
	Water North Coalition  Meeting 
	Overview of Water Issues
	Proposed Recreational Water Management Protocol (RWMP)
	RWMP History�
	RWMP Purpose
	RWMP Pilot Study
	Building a Recreational Water Safety Plan
	Site Assessment 
	Lead in Drinking Water
	Lead in Drinking Water
	Lead in Drinking Water
	Reclaimed Water 
	Reclaimed Water: Current Status
	Reclaimed Water: Future
	Response to Drinking Water Quality Issues
	Response to Bacteriological Exceedances
	Response to Exceedances
	Advisories
	�Questions??�




